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>L ;~rfns ;ldlt>L ;~rfns ;ldlt

;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8

gS;fn, sf7df8f}+ .

laifoM k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .laifoM k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .

dxfzo, 

===========================================================lhNnf =====================================================================g=kf=÷uf=kf=, j8f g+= ============= a:g] d÷xfdL ==============================================================================

===================================================================n] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] cfufdL @)*@ ;fn a}zfv @* ut] x'g] @*cf}+ jflif{s 

;fwf/0f ;efdf :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5n©n tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pQm ;efdf efu lng tyf 

;~rfnsx?sf] lgjf{rg jf cGo k|:tfjx?dfly dtbfg ug{' kg]{ ePdf ;f] ;d]tsf nflu =========================================================== lhNnf 

============================================================================================================ g=kf=÷uf=kf=, j8f g+= ============= a:g] To; sDkgLsf z]o/wgL >L =============================================================

======================================================================================================================== nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ .

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] JolQmsf]M 	 lgj]bs -z]o/wgL_M

b:tvtM	 b:tvtM

gfdM	 gfdM

7]ufgfM	 7]ufgfM

z]o/wgL kl/ro g+=M	 z]o/wgL kl/ro g+=M

l8Dof6 vftf g+=M	 l8Dof6 vftf g+=M

	 z]o/ ;+VofM

	 z]o/sf] lsl;dM ;+:yfks    ;j{;fwf/0f

	 ldltM

-of] lgj]bg $* 306f cufa} sfof{no ;doleq sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{nodf btf{ ug'{kg]{5 ._

k|j]z–kqk|j]z–kq
;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= sf] ldltM @)*@ ;fn a}zfv @* ut] x'g] @*cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt 

x'g hf/L ul/Psf] .

z]o/wgLsf] gfdM ==================================================================================================================================================== z]o/ k|=k=g+=÷ z]o/wgL g+=÷lxtu|fxL g+= M ============================ 

z]o/wgLsf] b:tvt==================================================================================== z]o/ ;+VofM ==========================  			 

sDkgL ;lrjsDkgL ;lrj
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cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,dxfg'efjx?,
@)*@÷)!÷)$ df a;]sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] #$cf}+ a}7ssf] lg0f{ofg';f/ o; sDkgLsf] @*cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg pNn]lvt ldlt, 

;dodf lgDg pNn]lvt laifox?dfly 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ a:g] ePsf] x'+bf sDkgL P]g, @)^# adf]lhd ;f] ;ef ;DaGwL sfuhftx? 

;dflxt u/L of] k|ltj]bg k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .

;fwf/0f;ef a:g] ldlt, :yfg / ;do;fwf/0f;ef a:g] ldlt, :yfg / ;do

ldltM	 @)*@ ;fn a}zfv @* ut] cfOtaf/ -d] !!, @)@%_ .

:yfgM	 /fgLdxn a}+Sj]6 k|f= ln=, 1fg]Zj/, sf7df8f}+ .

;doM 	 laxfgsf] !) ah] .

5nkmnsf laifo ;"lrx?M5nkmnsf laifo ;"lrx?M

s_	;fdfGo k|:tfjx? M 

!_	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] @*cf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷@)*! kfl/t ug]{ .

@_	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] @)*! ;fn cfiff9 d;fGtsf] jf;nft tyf ;f]xL ldltdf ;dfKt cf= j= @)*)÷)*! sf] gfkmf gf]S;fg tyf 

cfo Joo lx;fa / ;f]xL cjlwsf]] gub k|jfx ljj/0f tyf cg';"rLx? 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ .

#_	 n]vf k/LIf0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/; adf]lhd cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ sf] nflu n]vf k/LIfssf] lgo"lQm ug]{ / lghsf] kfl/>lds tf]Sg] . -jt{dfg  

n]vf k/LIfs >L h]=aL= /fhe08f/L P08 Pzf]l;o6\; -l8laG;_ rf68{ PsfpG6]G6;\ sfg'gt k"gM lgo"Qm x"g ;Sg]5_ .

$_	 ;+rfns ;ldltaf6 z]o/wgLx?nfO{ !% k|ltzt k|:tfljt ?= #(,##,(%,&#)÷ gub nfef+z  -s/ ;lxt_ kfl/t ug]{ .

v_	ljz]if k|:tfj

!_	 sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf cGo ;ldlt tyf pk;ldlt x?sf] a}7s eQf tyf ;'ljwf k'g/fjnf]sg ;DaGwdf .

@_	 ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGt{ut ljleGg ;+3 ;+:yfx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] /sd cg'df]bg ;DaGwdf .

#_	 sDkgLsf] k|aGwkq tyf  lgodfjnLsf] k|:tfljt ;+zf]wgdf ;DalGwt lgsfosf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ cfjZos ;dfof]hg ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ 

clVtof/L lbg] .

u_	ljljw .

	 ====================================================================================================

	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn]

	 sDkgL ;lrj
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;fwf/0f;ef ;DaGwL cGo hfgsf/L;fwf/0f;ef ;DaGwL cGo hfgsf/L

!=	 ;fwf/0f ;efsf] k|of]hgsf nflu ldltM @)*@ ;fn a}zfv !& ut] ! lbgsf] nflu z]o/wgL btf{ k'l:tsf aGb ul/g]5 . z]o/wgL btf{ 

k'l:tsf aGb ePsf] ldltM @)*@÷)!÷!& ut]eGbf cl3Nnf] lbg;Dd g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h ln= df ePsf] sf/f]jf/af6 z]o/ vl/b u/L 

z]o/wgL btf{ k'l:tsf aGb ePsf] ldltn] tf]lsPsf] sfo{lbg;Dd z]o/ gfd;f/L tyf bflvn vf/]hsf nflu cfjZos sfuhft ;lxt 

o; sDkgLsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L Unf]an cfO{PdO{ Soflk6n ln=, gS;fn, sf7df8f}+df k]z ePsf] ljj/0fsf] cfwf/df sfod ePsf  

z]o/wgLx?n] dfq jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng kfpg] 5g\ . 

@= sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf *$-$_ adf]lhd n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt sDkgLsf] ;+lIfKt cfly{s ljj/0f o;};fy k|sfzg  

ul/Psf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg tyf ljQLo ljj/0fx? sDkgLsf] j]a;fO6 www.salico.com.np af6 x]g{ jf k|fKt 

ug{ ;lsg]5 .	

#=	 k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg'x'g] z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLsf] cfgf] ;d"xsf] s'g} Ps z]o/wgLnfO{ k|ltlglw d's// u/L $* 306f 

cufj} jf ;f]eGbf cufj} k|dfl0ft u/fO{ sfof{no ;doleq btf{ ug{' kg]{5 . 

$=	 k|f]S;L bf]xf]/f] kg{ uPdf klxn] btf{ ul/Psf] k|f]S;Ln] dfGotf kfpg]5 . k|f]S;L d's// ug]{ z]o/wgL :jo+ ;efdf pkl:yt eO{ b:tvt 

ug'{ePdf k|f]S;L :jtM ab/ x'g]5 .

%=	 gfjfns jf ljlIfKt z]o/wgLsf] tk{maf6 sDkgLsf] z]o/ nut lstfjdf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf btf{ ePsf JolQmn] ;efdf efu lng, dtbfg 

ug{ jf k|ltlglw tf]Sg kfpg]5g\ .

^=	 ;efdf efu lng] ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?n] ;ef x'g] lbg z]o/sf] k|df0f;lxtsf] kl/rokq ;fydf lnO{ cfpg'x'g cg'/f]w 5 .  

z]o/ cef}ltlss/0f u/fO;Sg'ePsf z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] xsdf l8Dof6 vftf gDa/ / kl/ro v'Ng] ;Ssn kl/rokq k|:t't  

ug'{kg]{5 .

&=	 5nkmnsf] laifodWo] ljljw lzif{s cGtu{t 5nkmn ug{ OR5's z]o/wgLn] ;ef x'g'eGbf & lbg cufj} 5nkmnsf] laifo sDkgL ;lrj 

dfk{mt ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfnfO{ lnlvt ?kdf lbg'kg]{5 .

*=	 pkl:ylt k'l:tsf laxfg (M#) ah]b]lv v'Nnf /xg]5 .
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@*cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf nflu@*cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf nflu
;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,
;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8sf] o; @*cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf oxf+x?nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tk{maf6 xflb{s :jfut 

ub{5f}+ . sDkgL P]g, @)^# cg'?k tof/ ul/Psf] of] k|ltj]bg k|:t't ug{ oxf+x? ;dIf cg'dlt dfUb} o; ;fwf/0f ;efdf sDkgLsf] sfd 

sf/jfxLsf] k|ltj]bg, sDkgLsf] n]vfk/LIfsx?sf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*! sf] jf;nft, gfkmf–gf]S;fg lx;fj, gub k|jfx 

/ cfjZos cGo ljj/0fx? cg'df]bgsf] nflu cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .  

!=	 laut aif{x?sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg
sDkgLn] cfkmgf] Joj;flos p2]Zo k|fKt ug{sf] nflu k|wfg sfof{no nufot d'n'se/sf !!! j6f If]qLo÷k|fb]lzs sfof{no, zfvf 

sfof{no / pkzfvf sfof{nox? af6 ;]jf k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . sDkgLsf] cl3Nnf] aif{sf] ljj/0f / ;dLIff aif{sf] ljj/0f hf]8L 

Psd'i7 u0fgf ubf{ laut jif{df cfh{g ePsf] aLdfz'Ns cfDbfgLsf] If]qut tflnsf, bfjL, / gfkmf–gf]S;fg lx;fjsf] ;+lIfKt ljj/0f 

lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 . 

s_ aLdfz'Ns cfh{g 		  							           -/sd ?= nfvdf_							           -/sd ?= nfvdf_

ljj/0f )&(÷)*) )*)÷)*! j[l4 k|ltzt

;DklQ aLdf     10,205     11,783 15%
df]6/ aLdf     20,487      17,129 –16%
;fd'lb|s aLdf       2,061      2,089 1%
OlGhlgo/LË       5,150       6,355 23%
n3' aLdf         159            7 –96%
xjfO{ aLdf       3,094      6,034 95%
s[lif aLdf       1,624       1,127 –31%
ljljw aLdf       3,457       3,366 –3%

hDdf      46,237      46,237    47,890    47,890 44%
v'b aLdfz'Ns 20,332 17,227 –15%

v_ s"n bfjL e'QmfgL									             -/sd ?= nfvdf_v_ s"n bfjL e'QmfgL									             -/sd ?= nfvdf_

ljj/0f )&(÷)*) )*)÷)*! j[l4 k|ltzt

;DklQ aLdf 5,788 5,923 2%
df]6/ aLdf 16,436 13,085 –20%
;fd'lb|s aLdf 1,403 871 –38%
OlGhlgo/LË 2,393 1,935 –19%
n3' aLdf 1,729 16 –99%
xjfO{ aLdf 461 3,537 668%
s[lif aLdf 1,519 1,127 –26%
ljljw aLdf 1,648 1,838 12%

hDdf 31,377 28,333 –10%
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 u_   cGoM	 u_   cGoM	 -/sd ?= nfvdf_-/sd ?= nfvdf_

ljj/0f )&(÷)*) )*)÷)*! km/s k|ltzt

v'b bfjL Joa:yf 8,811 8,150 –8%
k'gla{df z'Ns 25,908 30,663 18%
Joa:yfkg vr{ 7,224 8,103 12%
v'b d'gfkmf 3,512 4,610 31%

3_  tflndM  3_  tflndM  
	 sDkgLn] k|wfg sfof{no tyf zfvf sfof{nosf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ k'gtf{huL tflndx? k|bfg ul//x]sf] 5 . o:tf] tflndx? g]kfnleq 

/ g]kfn aflx/ ef}lts / er'{jn dfWodaf6 klg k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy}, sDkgLsf] cfjZostf adf]lhd OG:of]/]G; OlG:6Ro"6 ckm 

g]kfn, sn]h ckm OG:of]/]G;, d'DaO{df klg sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ tflndsf] nflu k7fpg] ul/Psf] 5 . 

@=	 /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltsf] k|efjM@=	 /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltsf] k|efjM
;dLIff cjwLsf] ca:yf x]bf{ lautdf l;lyn ag]sf cfly{s ultljlwx?df k"0f{ ?kdf ;'wf/ x'g g;s]sf], ljQLo If]qdf l:y/tf cfpg 

g;s]sf], Jofkf/ Joj;fo nufotsf cfly{s ultljlwx?n] ult lng g;s]sf], /fli6«o cy{tGqsf] ca:yf ;'b[9 x'g g;s]sf], hgtfsf] 

qmozlQm a9\g g;s]sf] sf/0f cGo If]q h:t} aLdf If]qdf ;d]t o;sf] k|efj b]lvPsf] 5 . To;}u/L, ?;–o'qm]g o'4, dWok"j{df  

b]lvPsf] cl:y/tf / ljZjJofkL Jofkf/ o'4 tyf cfly{s dGbLsf] k|efj g]kfndf ;d]t kg{ uPsf] / ljZjJofkL ?kdf cfk"lt{ ;Gt'ng 

vnalng uPsf] 5 . tyflk aLdf Joj;fo la:tf/} cfd hgtfsf] kx'Frdf k'Ug] ;Defjgf /x]sf] 5 . 

ljZjsf b'O{ 7"nf cy{tGq ePsf l5d]sL d'n'sx?sf] t'ngfdf g]kfnsf] cfly{s ca:yf sdhf]/ x'g', cfly{s ultljlw, gof+ pBf]u, 

snsf/vfgfsf] lasf; gx'g', k"jf{wf/ lasf;sf] sfd cf]e]mndf kg'{, ;fdfGo hgtfdf aLdf ug]{ a:t' tyf cfo>f]tsf] lasf; x'g 

g;Sg' klg csf]{ ;d:of /x]sf] 5 . 

#=   k|ltj]bgsf] ldlt;Dd rfn' jif{sf] pknAwL / eljiosf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ffM#=   k|ltj]bgsf] ldlt;Dd rfn' jif{sf] pknAwL / eljiosf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ffM
s_  aLdfz'NsMs_  aLdfz'NsM  

;dLIff jif{sf] t'ngfdf cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ sf] r}q d;fGt;Dddf sDkgLn] If]qut ?kdf lgDg cg';f/ aLdfz'Ns cfDbfgL u/]sf] 5, 

h;sf] n]vfk/LIf0f x'g af+sL /x]sf] 5M 

-/sd ?= nfvdf_-/sd ?= nfvdf_

ljj/0f cf=a= )*)÷)*! cf=a= )*!÷)*@ km/s k|ltzt

;DklQ aLdf       8,711.24        9,351.76 &%

df]6/ aLdf      13,577.77    14,484.78 &%

;fd'lb|s aLdf        1,625.53       2,036.45 @%%

ljljw aLdf       2,503.31       2,930.67 !&%

OlGhlgo/LË       3,972.35       3,524.99 –!!%

xjfO{ aLdf       4,096.33       4,227.95 #%

s[lif aLdf        849.57          837.56 –!%

n3' aLdf            5.43 – –!))%

hDdfhDdf 35,34235,342 37,39437,394 ^̂%%

v_  eljiosf] of]hgfMv_  eljiosf] of]hgfM
g]kfnsf] lglh{jg aLdf If]qsf] cu|0fL sDkgLsf] ?kdf /x]sf] o; sDkgLsf] zfvnfO{ sfod} /fVb} eljZodf o; sDkgLn] cfGtl/s 

;'zf;g, Joa;fo, aLldtk|ltsf] bfloTj / aLdf ;]jfsf] lx;fjn] cem ;'b[9 agfp+b} n}hfg] ljZjf; z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ lbnfpg 

rfxG5f}+ .
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u_   k'gaL{df Joj:yfM u_   k'gaL{df Joj:yfM 
sDkgLn] ug]{ aLdf Joa;fosf] hf]lvd x:tfGt/0f k|s[ofnfO{ ;'/lIft / e/kbf]{ x'g] u/L sDkgLn] k'gla{df Joa:yf u/]sf] 5 . lab]zL 

k'gaL{df sDkgLx?;+usf] ;DaGw ;'b[9 /x]sf] / To:tf sDkgL Pj+ k"gaL{df a|f]s/x?af6 o; sDkgLn] ;xof]u k|fKt u/L /x]sf] 5 . 

;fy} b]zleq /x]sf laleGg aLdf sDkgLx?;+u sfod /x]sf] ;'dw'/ ;DaGwsf] sf/0f cfGtl/s P]lR5s k'gaL{df cfbfg–k|bfg 

ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . o;af6 sDkgLn] ;Gtf]ifhgs k|ltkmn k|fKt ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . o; sDkgLdf xfn GIC Re, India sf] g]t[Tjdf 
d'VotM lgDg k'gaL{df sDkgLx? ;d]t /x]sf 5g\M

S. No. Name of Re-Insurance Company Origin / Country

1 GIC Re India
2 SAVA Re Slovenia
3 Swiss Re Switzerland
4 Asian Re Thailand
5 Kenya Re Nairobi, Kenya
6 Ocean International Re Belize, Central America
7 Hannover Re Hannover, Germany
8 QBE Sydney NSW 2000
t9 WAICA RE Sierra Leone
10 Sirius International New York and London
11 Kuwait Re Kuwait 
12 PVI Insurance Vietnam
13 Nepal Re Nepal
14 Himalayan Re Nepal
15 CICA RE Lome – Nyeko, Togo

$=   sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus tyf Joj;flos ;DaGwM$=   sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus tyf Joj;flos ;DaGwM
laleGg cf}Bflus tyf Joj;flos k|lti7fg, ;+3;+:yfx?;+usf] ;DaGw cem al9 ;'b[9 agfO{ al9 aLdfz'Ns ;+sngsf] ;fy} 

Joa;fosf] hf]lvdsf] laZn]if0f u/L Joa;fo a[l4 ug]{ nIodf al9 s]lGb|t /xg] gLlt lnPsf] 5 . ;fy} Joa;fosf] k|d'v >f]tsf] 

?kdf /x]sf a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?;+u o; sDkgLsf] ;DaGw cToGt} ;f}xfb|{k"0f{, ;dGjofTds /x]sf] 5 / eljZodf o;nfO{ sfod} 

/fVb} cem ;'b[9 ub}{ nlug]5 . 

o; sDkgLn] cfkmgf] sfdsf] l;nl;nfdf g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0f, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s 

PSr]~h ln=, l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë ln=, g]kfn aLds ;+3, aLdf clestf{, ;e]{o/x?, z]o/ /lhi6«f/af6 o; sDkgLnfO{ cfjZos 

;xof]u k|fKt e} /x]sf] 5 . 

%=  ;~rfns ;ldltdf x]/km]/M%=  ;~rfns ;ldltdf x]/km]/M
s_	 ;~rfns ;ldltdf s'g}klg x]/km]/ gePsf] .

v_	 o; sDkgLsf] lgodfjnLdf ePsf] Joa:yf adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ug{ ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx?af6 rf/hgf / 

;a{;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?af6 b'O{hgf ;~rfns /xg] Joa:yf /x]sf] / lgodfjnLsf] Joa:yf adf]lhd a}b]lzs nufgLstf{ ;+:yfks  

;]lnGsf] xf]N8Lª\U;\ lkPn;L, >Ln°faf6 Pshgf ;~rfns :jtM dgf]lgt eO{ cfpg] Joa:yf adf]lhd o; ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ;+:yfks 

z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 $ -rf/_ hgf / ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 @ -b'O{_ hgf / Ps hgf :jtGq ;~rfnsx? u/L hDdf 

;ft hgfsf] k|ltlglwTj /x]sf] 5 . 

^=  sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx?M^=  sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx?M
aLdf ahf/df lta| k|ltikwf{, kof{Kt bIf hgzlQmsf] cefj, cfly{s ultljlwx?df ck]Iffs[t ;'wf/ x'g g;Sg', hnjfo' 

kl/jt{gaf6 l;lh{t hf]lvdsf] sf/0faf6 a]df};dL af9L klx/f] nufotsf k|fs[lts lakQLx?, ;jf/L ;fwg b'3{6gf, s[lif aLdf cGtu{t 

kz'k~5Lx?sf] bfjL a9\g' cflbsf] sf/0faf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/ c;/ kg]{ b]lvG5 . cfly{s dGbL, pBf]u tyf lasf; lgdf{0fsf 

ultljlwdf ;':ttf, lgof{tdf lu/fj6, pTkfbsTjdf sdL, c:yL/ /fhgLlts tyf ljQLo ca:yf cflbsf] sf/0faf6 aLdf If]qnfO{ 
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/fli6«o / cGt/f{li6«o ?kdf uDeL/ c;/ kg]{ ;Defjgf b]lvPsf] 5 . ;fy} ?;–o'qm]g o'4 nufot cGt/f{li6«o åGå Pj+ k|ltjGwsf] 

sf/0f cGt/f{li6«o Joj;fox?df k|lts"n c;/ kg]{, OGwg, vfBfGg nufotdf dx+uL a9\g hfg], hgtfsf] qmozlQm 36\g], cfly{s 

ultljwL / ;fd'lb|s aLdf Joj;fodf ;d]t To;sf] c;/ kg]{ b]lvG5 .

&=  n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ul/Psf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmofM&=  n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ul/Psf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmofM
n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} pNn]vgLo s}lkmot gePsf] hfgsf/L u/fp+5f}+ . 

*=  d'gfkmf afF8kmfF8 ;DaGwdfM*=  d'gfkmf afF8kmfF8 ;DaGwdfM
;dLIff cf=a= @)*)÷)*! sf] d'gfkmf dWo]af6 sDkgLsf] r'Qmf k"+hL ?=@,^@,@^,#*,@))÷– sf] !% -kGw|_ k|ltztn] x'g cfpg]  

/sd a/fa/ -s/ ;lxt_ #(,##,(%,&#)÷ gub nfef+z ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj ul/Psf] 5 . 

;fy} ;flassf] ;u/dfyf OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= n] cf=a= @)&$÷)&% sf] @@cf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 hf/L u/]sf] *^% af]g;  

z]o/ afktsf] s/ /sd s'g} z]o/wgLn] e'QmfgL gu/]sf] sf/0fn] pQm af]g; z]o/ ;DalGwt z]o/wgLsf] vftfdf hfg g;s]sf] eP 

To:tf z]o/wgLx?sf] xsdf dfly pNn]v eP adf]lhdsf] gub nfef+zaf6 pQm s/ s6[L u/L z]o/ vftfdf k7fpg] Joa:yf ul/g]5 .

(=	 z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] c+lst d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj} ;f] afkt (=	 z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] c+lst d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj} ;f] afkt 
sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt 
ePsf] z]o/ afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] laa/0fMePsf] z]o/ afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] laa/0fM		

	 sDkgLn] s'g} z]o/ hkmt u/]sf] 5}g .

!)=	laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/sf] k|s[lt / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf] !)=	laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/sf] k|s[lt / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf] 
k'g/fjnf]sgMk'g/fjnf]sgM

	 o; sDkgLsf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] hfgsf/L u/fp+5f}+ .

!!=	sDkgL / To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]jf/x? / ;f] cjwLdf sDkgLsf]  !!=	sDkgL / To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]jf/x? / ;f] cjwLdf sDkgLsf]  
sf/f]jf/df cfPsf] s'g} dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{gMsf/f]jf/df cfPsf] s'g} dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{gM

	 o; sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/ lglh{jg aLdf Joj;fo dfq /x]sf] / ;f]df kl/jt{g gePsf] hfgsf/L u/fp+5f}+ .

!@= laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknJw u/fPsf] hfgsf/LM!@= laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknJw u/fPsf] hfgsf/LM
	 ;dLIff cjlwdf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?af6 sDkgLnfO{ s'g} hfgsf/L k|fKt gePsf] hfgsf/L u/fp+5f}+ .

!#=  laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df lghx?  !#=  laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df lghx?  
;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] cfjZosdf lghx?af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/LM;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] cfjZosdf lghx?af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/LM

	 ;dLIff cjwLdf o; sDkgLsf ;~rfnsx?sf] JolQmut÷;+:yfut z]o/ :jfldTjdf b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5M 

qm=;+= ;~rfnsx?sf] gfd z]o/ ;+Vof
!= >L dgf]x/ bf; d'n 1,084,748 

@=
>L clhy /f]xg u'gj4{gf 
;]lnGsf] xf]N8Lª\U;\ lkPn;L k|ltlglw

2,997,458 

#= >L nf]sdfGo uf]N5f 2,38,148

$= >L l;4fy{ dl0f /fhe08f/L 45,746

%= >L c?0f /fh >]i7 266,077

^= >L lahg e6[/fO{ 9,572

&= ;'>L lgd{nf b]jL dfgGw/ -:jtGq ;+rfns_ –

o; sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx? sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df ;+nUg /x]sf 5}gg\ .

!$=	laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;+u ;DalGwt ;D´f}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{af/] !$=	laut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;+u ;DalGwt ;D´f}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{af/] 
pknJw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/fMpknJw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/fM

	 sDkgL;+u ;DalGwt ;D´f}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{ gePsf] hfgsf/L u/fp+5f}+ . 
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!%=	sDkgLn] cfgf] z]o/ cfk}+m vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfgf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof, c+lst d"No !%=	sDkgLn] cfgf] z]o/ cfk}+m vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfgf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof, c+lst d"No 
tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/] afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sdMtyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/] afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sdM

	 sDkgLn] cfgf] z]o/ cfk}+m vl/b gu/]sf] hfgsf/L u/fp+5f}+ .

!^=	cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0fM!^=	cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0fM  
	 sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;Ifd 5 . cfGtl/s lgoGq0fnfO{ lgoldt / Joal:yt ug{sf] nflu g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0fsf] 

lgb]{zg adf]lhd sDkgLsf] sfd sf/jfxLdf ;'wf/ ub}{ nluPsf]  5 . cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIfs / afx\o n]vfk/LIfsaf6 k|fKt ;'emfj 

cg';f/ ;'wf/ ug]{, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltaf6 ;du| ljQLo ca:yfsf] ;dLIff ug]{ / ;f]sf] k|ultsf] cg'udg ub}{ hfg] gLlt lnOPsf] 

5 . sDkgLsf zfvf sfof{nox? / k|wfg sfof{nosf] Joj;fo / cGo sf/f]jf/x?nfO{ cgnfOg k|0ffnLaf6 ;~rfng ul/Psf] 5 . 

laefux?sf] sfo{;~rfngsf] nflu laleGg ljlgod, lgb]{lzsf / lbUbz{gx? tof/ ug]{, ;dofg's"n kl/dfh{g ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . 

	 g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0faf6 hf/L lgb]{lzsfsf] Joa:yf cg';f/ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldlt, nufgL, hf]lvd Joa:yfkg 

tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]Ne]G;L_ ;ldlt, bfjL e'QmfgL tyf k'gla{df ;ldlt, ;DklQ z'l4s/0f lgjf/0f ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 .

	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;gM sDkgLn] lwtf]kq ;DaGwL P]g, lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf, ;DklQ z'l4s/0f lgjf/0f ;DaGwL 
sfg"g, ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL sfg"g, g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0fsf] lgb]{lzsf nufot k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd adf]lhd k]z ug'{kg]{ tyf 

k|sfzg ug'{kg]{ ljj/0fx? tf]lsPsf] ;dodf k]z ug]{ tyf k|sflzt ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . 

!&=	;dLIff jif{sf] s"n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0fM!&=	;dLIff jif{sf] s"n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0fM
	 ;dLIff cf=a= @)*)÷)*! o; sDkgL ln= sf] s"n Joa:yfkg vr{ ?= *!,)#,$&,^($÷– /x]sf] 5 . 

!*=	n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'lawf, ;ldltn] u/]sf]  !*=	n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'lawf, ;ldltn] u/]sf]  
sfdsf/afxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'´fj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] laa/0fMsfdsf/afxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'´fj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] laa/0fM

	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# tyf aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsfsf] Joa:yf adf]lhd ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgLsf] cWoIftfdf lgDg 

;~rfnsx? /xg] u/L n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5M

	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt cWoIf÷;b:ox?M n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt cWoIf÷;b:ox?M 
	 >L lahg e6[/fO{	 ;+of]hs

	 >L kß Hof]lt	 ;b:o

	 ;'>L lgd{nf b]jL dfgGw/	 ;b:o

	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{ofg';f/ k|lt a}7s ?=!),)))÷– sf] b/n] a}7s eQf k|bfg ug]{ ul/Psf] 

5 . ;f] afx]s cGo lgoldt kfl/>lds ;'lawf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5}g . 

	 >L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0fsf] lgb]{zfg';f/ k|To]s q}dfl;ssf] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f u/fO{ ;f] n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgsf] cfwf/df  

s}lkmotx? ;'wf/ ug{, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIfs tyf afx\o n]vfk/LIfssf ;'emfjx?nfO{ tbf?stfsf ;fy sfof{Gjog ug{ 

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] ;do ;dodf Joa:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbO{ ;f]sf] sfof{Gjog eP gePsf]af/] cg'udg ;d]t ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 

ljQLo ljj/0fx?sf] jf:tljs / cBfjlws clen]vsf] nflu cfjZos k|s[ofx?sf] cjnDag ug{, zfvf sfof{nox?sf] Joj;fo 

/ sfdsf/jfxLx?sf] k|efjsf/L cg'udg / lgoGq0f ug{ Joa:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbOPsf] 5 . ;fy} o; sDkgLn] nufgLstf{ tyf 

;/f]sf/jfnfx?sf] hfgsf/Lsf] nflu k|To]s q}dfl;s ljj/0fx? ;fj{hlgs ?kdf k|sflzt ub}{ cfPsf] 5 .

 

!(=	;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns÷sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] !(=	;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns÷sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] 
kmd{, ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'´fpg afFsL /x]sf] eP ;f] s'/fMkmd{, ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'´fpg afFsL /x]sf] eP ;f] s'/fM

	 sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'´fpg afFsL /x]sf] 5}g .

@)=	;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'lawfsf] /sdM@)=	;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'lawfsf] /sdM
	 ;dLIff cf=a= @)*)÷)*! df o; sDkgLsf ;~rfnsx?nfO{ ;ldlt tyf pk–;ldlt a}7s eQf afkt ?= @@,#$,)))÷– / dfl;s eQf 

afkt ?= !),$$,)))÷– vr{ ePsf]  5 . 

	 ;fy}, dfly pNn]lvt dfl;s eQfsf] ;DaGwdf ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o cg';f/ cWoIf tyf ;~rfnsx?nfO{ kqklqsf, ;~rf/, ;jf/L 



16

;'lawf afkt cWoIfsf] nflu dfl;s ?= !@,)))÷– / ;~rfnsx?nfO{ ?= !),)))÷– dfl;s eQf pknJw u/fOPsf] xf] . 

	 o; ;dLIff jif{df ;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= sf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ kfl/>lds, eQf, bz}+ vr{, ;l~rt labf, 

af]g; ;d]t u/L ?=!,^%,^$,^^*÷– tyf gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsb]lv k|aGws tx;Ddsf #% hgf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ kfl/>lds, 

eQf, bz}+ vr{, ;jf/L ;fwg eQf, ;l~rt labf, af]g; ;d]t u/L x'g cfpg] ?= *,*#,^!,$$!÷– k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

@!=	z]o/wgLx?n] a'l´lng afFsL gub nfef+z /sdM@!=	z]o/wgLx?n] a'l´lng afFsL gub nfef+z /sdM
	 ;flas n'lDagL hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= n] cf=a= @)&^÷)&& df ljt/0f u/]sf] %∞ gub nfef+z afkt e'QmfgL a'lemlng af+sL  

/sd ?= @(,#%,%)$÷– /x]sf] 5 .

@@=	 bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DkQL vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/0fM @@=	 bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DkQL vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/0fM 
	 bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ jf cfDbfgLsf] !%∞ al9 x'g] u/L ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL gul/Psf] hfgsf/L u/fp“5f}+ .

@#=	bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]jf/sf] ljj/0fM@#=	bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]jf/sf] ljj/0fM
	 gePsf] hfgsf/L u/fp+5f}+ .

wGojfb 1fkgMwGojfb 1fkgM
sDkgLn] kfPsf] ;xof]usf] nflu z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, u|fxsju{, >L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0f, >L sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, >L lwtf]kq 

af]8{, >L g]kfn lwtf]kq ahf/ ljlgod ln=, >L l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë ln=, z]o/ /lhi6«f/, n]vfk/LIfs, aLdf tyf k'gaL{df sDkgLx? 

Pj+ a|f]s/x?k|lt xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf ;+nUg kbflwsf/Lx? tyf ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ sDkgLsf] pQ/f]Q/ 

pGglt / k|ultdf k'¥ofpg'ePsf] lqmoflzn of]ubfgsf nflu jxf+x?nfO{ ljz]if ?kn] wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . ;fy} xfd|f] lqmofsnfkx?nfO{ 

;sf/fTds ?kdf lnO{ hg;dIf k'¥ofOlbg] ;~rf/ hutsf ldqx? / ;Dk"0f{ z'e]R5'sx?k|lt klg d xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ub{5' . 

wGoafb .

	 c?0f /fh >]i7	     dgf]x/ bf; d'n
	 ;~rfns 	 cWoIf

lbgf°M a}zfv @*, @)*@  .
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;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfngf k|ltj]bg;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfngf k|ltj]bg
-;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:Yffx?sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf, @)&$ adf]lhd_

;"rLs[t ;+Ël7t ;+:yfsf] gfd ;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln=

7]ufgf, Od]n / j]e;fO6 
gS;fn, sf7df8f}+ . 
Email: info@salico.com.np
Website: www.salico.com.np

kmf]g g+= $%!@#^&

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cf=j= @)*)÷)*!

!= 	;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f!= 	;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f
	 -s_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] gfd tyf lgo'lQm ldlt	 M–	 >L dgf]x/ bf; d'n,

		  lgo'lQm ldlt	 M–	 @)*)÷!@÷@&

	 -v_ ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/0f M	;+:yfks	 M–	 %!%

	 ;j{;fwf/0f	 M–	 $(%
	 -u_ ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

qm=;+=
;~rfnsx?sf] gfd /

7]ufgf
k|ltlglwTj 
ePsf] ;d'x

z]o/ 
;+Vof

lgo'lQm ePsf] 
ldlt

kb tyf  
uf]klgotfsf] ;ky 
lnPsf] ldlt

;~rfns lgo'lQmsf 
t/Lsf -ljlw_

!
>L dgf]x/ bf; d'n, cWoIf –
yfkfynL 

;+:yfks 10,84,749 r}q @&, @)*) r}q @&, @)*) lgjf{rg

@
>L clhy cf/= u'0fjw{gf,  
;]lnGsf] OG:of]/]G; >Ln+sf

;+:yfks 29,97,458 P]=P]= P]=P]= P]=P]= 

# >L nf]sdfGo uf]N5f, nlntk'/ ;+:yfks 2,38,148 P]=P]= P]=P]= P]=P]=

$
>L l;4fy{dl0f /fhe08f/L, 
alQ;k'tnL

;+:yfks 45,746 P]=P]= P]=P]= P]=P]=

$ >L c?0f /fh >]i7, afg]Zj/ ;j{;fwf/0f 2,66,077 P]=P]= P]=P]= P]=P]=

%
>L lahg e6[/fO{, s:t"/L dfu{, 
sf7df8f}+

;j{;fwf/0f 9,572 P]=P]= P]=P]= P]=P]=

^
;'>L lgd{nf b]jL dfgGw/, 
afkmn

:jtGq - P]=P]= P]=P]= P]=P]=

		 -3_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s

	y ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;~rfng ;DaGwL ljj/0f;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;~rfng ;DaGwL ljj/0f

	 ;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= sf] a}7s ;DaGwL ljj/0fM

qm=;+=
o; cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df a;]sf] 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7ssf] ldlt

pkl:yt ;~rfnssf] 
;+Vof

a}7ssf] lg0f{odf 
leGg dt /fvL x:tfIf/ 
ug]{ ;~rfns ;+Vof

ut cf=j= @)&(÷)*) 
df a;]sf] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] ldlt

! @)*)÷)$÷!* ( gePsf] @)&(÷)$÷@@

@ @)*)÷)%÷)& * gePsf] @)&(÷)%÷)^

# @)*)÷)%÷!* ( gePsf] @)&(÷)&÷)^

$ @)*)÷)^÷)( ( gePsf] @)&(÷)&÷@&

% @)*)÷)&÷@@ ( gePsf] @)&(÷)(÷)%

^ @)*)÷)*÷!! * gePsf] @)&(÷)(÷#)

& @)*)÷)(÷)* ( gePsf] @)&(÷!)÷)(

* @)*)÷)(÷@^ * gePsf] @)&(÷!)÷!$

( @)*)÷!)÷)* * gePsf] @)&(÷!)÷!&
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qm=;+=
o; cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df a;]sf] 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7ssf] ldlt

pkl:yt ;~rfnssf] 
;+Vof

a}7ssf] lg0f{odf 
leGg dt /fvL x:tfIf/ 
ug]{ ;~rfns ;+Vof

ut cf=j= @)&(÷)*) 
df a;]sf] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] ldlt

!) @)*)÷!)÷@$ & gePsf] @)&(÷!!÷)!

!! @)*)÷!!÷!$ * gePsf] @)&(÷!!÷!)

!@ @)*)÷!!÷@( & gePsf] @)&(÷!!÷!!

!# @)*)÷!@÷!% !) gePsf] @)&(÷!!÷@^

!$ @)*)÷!@÷@& ^ gePsf] @)&(÷!!÷@*

!% @)*!÷)!÷)@ % gePsf] @)&(÷!!÷@(

!^ @)*!÷)!÷#! ^ gePsf] @)&(÷!!÷@(

!& @)*!÷)@÷@& % gePsf] @)&(÷!@÷!$

!* @)*!÷)#÷!# ^ gePsf] @)*)÷)!÷)&

– – – – @)*)÷)!÷#!

– – – – @)*)÷)@÷#@

– – – – @)*)÷)#÷)&
	y s'g} ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s cfjZos u0fk'/s ;+Vof gk'uL :ylut ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M gePsf] .

	y ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ;~rfns jf a}slNks ;~rfns pkl:yt 
eP–gePsf] -gePsf] cj:yfdf a}7ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/0f v'nfpg]_M

v08 -3_ df pNn]v eP adf]lhd sfo{Jo:ttf sf/0f 
s]lx a}7sdf cg'kl:yt

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx?, 5nkmn ePsf] ljifo / 
tT;DaGwdf ePsf] lg0f{osf] ljj/0f -dfOGo"6 sf] 5'§} clen]v 
/fv] g/fv]sf] M

/fv]sf]

;~rfns ;ldltsf] b'O{ nuftf/ a;]sf] a}7ssf] clwstd cGt/ -lbgdf_ M $# lbg

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgwf{/0f ;DaGwdf a;]sf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] 
ldlt M

@)&(÷!!÷@(

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt a}7s eQf ?= cWoIfM ?= !@,)))÷–, ;~rfnsM ?= !),)))÷–

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'n a}7s vr{ ?=
;~rfns ;ldltsf] ?= !$,)$,)))÷– / cGo eQf  
?= =!),$$,)))÷–

@= 	;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj/0f @= 	;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj/0f 

;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cfrf/ ;+lxtf eP÷gePsf] M P]g, lgb]{lzsf cg';f/

Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] Ps eGbf a9L ;~rfns eP ;f]sf] ;f] ;DaGwL ljj/0f M gePsf]

;~rfnsx?sf] jflif{s ?kdf l;sfO{ tyf k'g{tfhuL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

qm=;+= ljifo ldlt
;xefuL ;~rfnssf] 

;+Vof
Tfflnd ;~rfng ePsf] 

:yfg
) ) ) )

k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm' ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kGw| lbg leq b]xfosf s'/fsf] lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fPsf]÷gu/
fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

– sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf (@ adf]lhdsf] ljj/0f afx]ssf cGo s'g} lnlvt hfgsf/L k|fKt gePsf] .– sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf (@ adf]lhdsf] ljj/0f afx]ssf cGo s'g} lnlvt hfgsf/L k|fKt gePsf] .

	y ;+:yf;Fu lghsf] jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf ug{ nfu]sf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f M 
gePsf] .

	y lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8j]Gr/sf] 
ljj/0f M ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] .

	y lgh cGo s'g} ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e't z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f M 
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	y lgh cGo s'g} ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e't z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f M 

;~rfnssf] gfd ;~rfns /x]sf] ;+:yf
cfwf/e't z]o/wgL 
/x]sf] ;+:yf

>L dgf]x/ bf; d'n, cWoIf
cWoIf–PnfOG; kmdf{:o'l6sN;, k|aGw ;~rfns–sfUhf] 
sG;{g k|f=ln=, ;~rfns–dfpG6]g OghL{, sfo{sf/L lgb]{zs–
Pd= s]= k]k/ ldN; ln= 

–

>L clhy cf/ u'0fjw{gf, ;]lnGsf]  
xf]N8Lª\U;\ lkPn;L, >Ln+sf

lgb]{zs–;]lnGsf] xf]N8Lª\U;\ lkPn;L, >Ln+sf
;]lnGsf] xf]N8Lª\U;\ 
lkPn;L, >Ln+sf

>L nf]sdfGo uf]N5f, nlntk'/

cWoIfMcWoIfM /dfnfn hL wfkLb]jL uf]N5f Rofl/6L 6«i6, uf]N5f 
1fg dlGb/

lgb]{zsMlgb]{zsM xif{ nf]s OG6/k|fOh]h k|f=ln=, >L xg'dfg 
OG8li6«h k|f= ln=, e" b]jf] vfB k|f= ln=, ljzfn ahf/ 
sDkgL k|f= ln

–

>L l;4fy{dl0f /fhe08f/L ;~rfns
k|aGw ;~rfnsM g]]kfn sG:6«Szg P08 Ol~hlgol/Ë 
k|f=ln=, Pgl;O;L OSo'kd]G6 P08 ;le{;]h k|f=ln=, Pgl;O;L 
O08li6«on ;le{;]h k|f=ln=

–

>L c?0f /fh >]i7, ;~rfns
k|aGw lgb]{zs–OG6/g]Zgn On]S6«f]lgS; sG;{g k|f=ln=, 
;~rfns–s:df]kf]ln6fg 6«]l8Ë sG;{g k|f=ln=, ;~rfns– 
s:df]kf]ln6fg ;f]n';g k|f=ln=

–

>L lahg e6[/fO{, s:t"/L dfu{, sf7df8f}+ – –

;'>L lgd{nf b]jL dfgGw/ :jtGq ;~rfns – –

	y lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd ul//x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 
gePsf] .

;~rfns p:t} k|s[ltsf] p2]Zo ePsf] ;"rLs[t ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns, tnjL 
kbflwsf/L, sfo{sf/L k|d'v jf sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M

;+:yfut k|ltlglwTjsf] xsdf afx]s To:tf] ca:yf 
gePsf] .

;~rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/
Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M

gePsf]

#= 	;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M#= 	;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M
-s_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f] sf] sf/0f M sDkgLdf ;~rfnsx?sf]  

;+of]hsTjdf n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, bfjL e'QmfgL tyf k'gla{df ;ldlt, dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldlt, nufgL ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joa:yfkg 

tyf ;f]Ne]G;L ;ldlt, ;DkQL z'l4s/0f lgjf/0f ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 .

-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ;f]Ne]G;L ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/L M

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_

	 ;+of]hsM	 >L kb\d Hof]lt, ;~rfns÷;+of]hs

	 ;b:oM	 nf]sdfGo uf]N5f, ;Nnfxsf/÷;b:o

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof M a;]sf] a}7s ;+Vof– @

-O_ 	;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0fM sDkgLsf] z]o/ tyf Joj;foaf6 k|fKt cfDbfgLnfO{ aLdf ;ldltaf6 hf/L lgb]{lzsfsf] 

clwgdf /lx pRrtd\ k|ltkmn k|fKt x'g] u/L nufgL ug]{, sDkgLsf laefux?, sDkgLsf] ljQLo cj:yf, Joj;fo / To;sf] 

hf]lvd laZn]if0f u/L cfjZos ;'emfj lbg] cflb .

-u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M cfGtl/s lgoGq0f laefu u7g ul/Psf], o;n] aLdf P]g, lgodfjnL, k|rlnt sfg"g,  

g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0f jf cGo lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af6 hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{lzsf adf]lhd sDkgLn] kfngf ug'{kg]{ ug'{kg]{ laifox? 

kfngf ug]{ u/fpg] sfd ug]{5 .

-3_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL 

gfd /x]sf] 5'6[} ;ldlt u7g gul/Psf] eP klg g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0fsf] lgb]{lzsf cg';f/ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f laefu u7g  

ul/Psf] / ;f] laefu dfkm{t n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, hf]lvd Joa:yfkg tyf ;f]Ne]G;L ;ldlt nufotsf ;ldltx?af6 tt\ ;DaGwL 

sfdx? x'+b} cfPsf] .
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-ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof

-O{_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f	M

-r_ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf] M ePsf]

$= ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/0f M$= ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/0f M
-s_ ;+:yfn] ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/0f M -cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df_

;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= af6 ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/0fM

ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f sf/f]af/ /fli6«o b}lgs @)*).)&.@^

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f sf/f]af/ /fli6«o b}lgs @)*).!).@(

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f sf/f]af/ /fli6«o b}lgs @)*!.)!.#)

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f sf/f]af/ /fli6«o b}lgs @)*!.)$.#)

;"rgfsf] xs ;DalGw ljj/0f

;"rgfsf] xs ;DalGw ljj/0f
-v_ ;'rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/0fn] lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf6 sf/jfxLdf k/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/L M 

gePsf]

-u_ kl5Nnf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f;ef ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M @)*) r}q @& ut] 

%= ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/0f %= ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/0f 
-s_ sd{rf/Lsf] ;+/rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lt ljsf;, tflnd, tna, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / labf, cfrf/ ;+lxtf nufotsf  

s'/fx? ;d]l6Psf] sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL÷Joj:yf eP gePsf] M ePsf] .

-v_ ;f+u7lgs ;+/rgf ;+nUg ug]{ M 

-u_ pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg'ej ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

gfd / kb z}lIfs of]Uotf cg'ej

r+sL If]qL, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tk|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t :gftsf]Q/ aLdf If]qdf cg'ejL

al/idf ;fpb cfrfo{, gfoa k|d'v gfoa k|d'v 

sfo{sf/L clws[tsfo{sf/L clws[t
:gftsf]Q/ aLdf If]qdf cg'ejL

sla/fh kf}8]n, gfoa dxfk|aGwsgfoa dxfk|aGws :gftsf]Q/ aLdf If]qdf cg'ejL

;'af; lbIfLt, ;xfos dxfk|aGws;xfos dxfk|aGws :gfts aLdf If]qdf cg'ejL

s?0ff b]jL dfgGw/, ;xfos dxfk|aGws;xfos dxfk|aGws :gftsf]Q/ aLdf If]qdf cg'ejL
		

-3_ sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M-3_ sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M

;+/rgf cg';f/ sd{rf/L kbk"lt{ ug]{ u/]÷gu/]sf] u/]sf]

gofF sd{rf/x?sf] kbk"lt{ ubf{ ckgfPsf] k|s[of M lnlvt k/LIff÷cGt/jftf{

Joj:yfkg :t/sf sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof ^)

s'n sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof ^##

sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;S;];g Knfg eP÷gePsf] k|s[ofdf /x]sf]

cf=j= @)*)÷*! df sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ lbPsf] tflnd ;+Vof tyf ;lDdlnt sd{rf/Lsf ;+Vof tflnd ;+VofM &%

;lDdlnt sd{rf/Lsf ;+VofM 

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df sd{rf/L tflnd vr{ ?= ?= ((,$&,^$#

s'n vr{ -Joa:yfkg_ df sd{rf/L vr{sf] k|ltzt @*∞

s'n sd{rf/L vr{df sd{rf/L tflnd vr{sf] k|ltzt @∞
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^= ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj0f^= ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj0f
-s_ n]vf;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

;+:yfsf] kl5Nnf] cf=j= sf] ljQLo ljj/0f NFRS cg';f/ tof/ u/]÷gu/]sf], 
gu/]sf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f

u/]sf]

;~rfns ;ldltaf6 kl5Nnf] ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt ePsf]

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg u/]sf] ldlt

@)*)÷)&÷@^
@)*)÷!)÷@(
@)*!÷)!÷#)
@)*!÷)$÷#)

clGtd n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt @)*!÷!@÷@*

;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt -ut jif{sf]_ @)*)÷!@÷@&

;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f
-c_ cfGtl/s ?kdf n]vf k/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf] jf 

-cf_ jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f

-O_ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f slt cjlwsf] ug]{ ul/Psf] -q}dffl;s, rf}dfl;s 

jf cw{jflif{s_

ug]{ ul/Psf] .
Pd= la= kf08] P08 sDkgL rf6{8{ PsfpG6]G6 .
q}dfl;s

-v_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f

;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= sf]M;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= sf]M

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd, kb tyf of]UotfM

gfd kb of]Uotf

>L 8f= lahg e6[/fO{ ;+of]hs÷;~rfns ljBfjfl/lw

>L kß Hof]lt ;b:o÷;~rfns :gftsf]Q/

;'>L lgd{nf b]jL dfgGw/ ;b:o÷:jtGq ;~rfns :gftsf]Q/

k|lt a}7s eQf ?= !),)))÷– k|lt ;b:o

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfk\mgf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] ldlt M ljljw ldlt

&= cGo ljj/0f&= cGo ljj/0f

;+:yfn] ;~rfns tyf lghsf] Psf3/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] JolQm, a}+s tyf 
ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 C0f jf ;fk6L jf cGo s'g} ?kdf /sd lnP÷glnPsf] 

glnPsf]

k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns, z]o/wgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxfsf/, k/fdz{bftfsf 
x}l;otdf kfpg] ;'ljwf jf nfe afx]s ;"rLs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s'g} 
JolQm, kmd{, sDkgL, sd{rf/L, ;NNffxfsf/ jf k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;Dklt s'g} 
lsl;dn] ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf]

gu/]sf]

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfht kq hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf] zt{x?sf] kfngf eP÷gePsf] ePsf]

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf0f jf ;'kl/j]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ lbO{Psf] 
lgb]{zg kfngf eP÷gePsf]

ePsf]

;+:yf jf ;~rfns lj?4 cbfntdf s'g} d'2f rln/x]sf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f aLdf bfjL afx]s cGo gePsf]

kl/kfngf clws[tsf] b:tvtM		  n]vfk/LIfssf] b:tvtkl/kfngf clws[tsf] b:tvtM		  n]vfk/LIfssf] b:tvt

gfdM af;'b]j hf]zL		  ls/0f 8+uf]n

kbM kl/kfngf clws[t		  rf6{8{ PsfpG6]G6

ldltM @)*@÷)!÷)#		  ldltM 

;+:Yffsf] 5fk		  5fk

k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t ePsf] ldltM @)*@÷)!÷)$
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cWoIfHo"sf] dGtJoMcWoIfHo"sf] dGtJoM
cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,

;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8sf] @*cf}F jflif{s 
;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:ytL hgfpg' ePsf ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL ju{ 
tyf cltly dxfg'efjx?nfO{ d xflb{s :jfut ug{ rfxG5' . 
/ oxfFx¿sf] ul/dfdo pkl:ylt tyf sDkgL k|ltsf] lg/Gt/ 
ljZjf;k|lt sDkgLsf] tkm{af6 s[t1tf JoQm ug{ rfxG5' .

g]kfnsf] lghL{jg aLdf If]qdf ;d[4 Oltxf; af]s]sf] of] ;+:yfn] 
cfhsf] lbg ;Dd cfOk'Ubf Ps ;'vb km8\sf] df/]sf] 5 . rfx] 
Tof] Jofj;flos lj:tf/sf] lbzfdf xf];, rfx]  k"FhL ;'b[9Ls/0f, 
rfx]  ;]jf k|jfx xf];\ tyf rfx] z]o/wgLnfO{ lbg] c6'6 k|ltkmnsf] 
?kdf xf];\, sDkgLn] cfhsf] lbg;Dd cfOk'Ubf cfd g]kfnL 
hgdfg;df aLdf If]qsf] cAan sDkgLsf] ?kdf cld6 5fk 
5f]8\g o; sDkgL ;kmn ePsf] 5 . / ;d'bfodf lghL{jg aLdfsf] 
;]jf kx'FrnfO{ lg/Gt/ tyf pNn]Vo ?kdf j[l4 ub}{ n}hfg o; 
;+:yfn] clåtLo e"ldsf lgefpg ;kmn ePsf] 5 .

æljZjf;sf] ;DaGw, Pstfsf] k|tLsÆ eGg] d"n dGqnfO{ cfTd;ft 
ub}{ cl3 a9]sf] xfdLn], ;]jf ljljlws/0f / k|ljlws/0fsf] 
dfWodaf6 ;fFr} g} ;]jfu|fxLx?sf] ljZjf; lhTg ;kmn ePsf 
5f}+  eg] aLdf kx'Fr lj:tf/, c6'6 nufgL k|ltkmn tyf ;+:yfut 
;'zf;gsf] cEof;af6 sDkgLsf] /0fgLlts p4]Zo, nufgLstf{sf] 
ck]Iff / lgofds lgsfosf] clek|fodf ;fdGh:otf / Ps?ktf 
NofO{ o; ;+:yfnfO{ aLdf If]qs} Ps pTs[i6 sDkgLsf] ?kdf 
pEofpg xfdL  ;kmn ePsf 5f}F .

ljZjdf k|rngdf cfPsf gjLgtd k|ljlwsf] k|of]usf] dfWodaf6 
aLldtx¿nfO{ u'0f:t/Lo ;]jf k|bfg ug{, bfaL e'QmfgL k|lqmof 
l56f], ;xh / k|efjsf/L agfpg tyf Joj;fosf] ;'b[9 lj:tf/ 
ug{ xfdL lg/Gt/ pBt /x]sf 5f}F / gofF lsl;dsf] aLdfn]v 
laqmL / aLdfn]v lalzi6Ls/0fsf] dfWodaf6 sDkgLnfO{ cGo 
k|lt:kwL{ eGbf km/s ?kdf ahf/df k|:t't ug{ ;kmn ePsf  
5f}F . b|'t bfaL e'QmfgL cjnDag k4ltaf6 xfdLn] ljktdf k/]sf  
;]jfu|fxLsf] efjgf;Fu P]Soa4 x'g] cj;/ klg kfPsf 5f}F . 

aLdfnfO{ ;]jf efj 7fgL cfd hghLjgsf] cleGg cË agfpFb}, 
cfgf] ;]jf b]zsf ;a} e"efu;Dd k'¥ofpg] b[9 ;+sNk;fy xfdL 
zfvf k|zfvfx? lj:tf/ ul//x]sf 5f}F . xfn sDkgLn] & j6f 
k|b]z sfof{no, !)^ j6f zfvf tyf % j6f PS;6]G;g sfpG6/
dfkm{t\ zx/b]lv u|fdL0f If]qdf ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] 5 .

kl5Nnf] ;fwf/0f ;efdf xfdLn] sDkgLsf] Joj;fo j[l4, bIf 
hgzlQmsf] ;dfof]hg, / ;+:yfut alnof]kgaf/] h'g k|lta4tf 
JoQm u/]sf lyof}F, tL oyfy{df kl/0ft x'Fb} uPsf] tkfO{+x¿n] 
cg'ej ul//xg' ePsf] 5 . To:t}, sDkgLsf] k|wfg sfof{no  
/x]sf] gS;fndf cfw'lgs, ;'ljwf ;DkGg Jofj;flos ejg 
lgdf{0fsf] of]hgf ;d]t cufl8 al9;s]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpg 
rfxG5' .

aLdf P]g, @)&( sfof{Gjogdf cfPsf] @^ dlxgf kl5 aLdf 
lgodfjnL, @)*! ev{/} dfq sfof{Gjogdf cfPsf] 5 . g]kfn 
aLdf k|flws/0f :jo+ aLdf If]qsf] ljsf;, la:tf/ Pj+ lgodgsf] 
nflu ;lqmotfk"j{s nfluk/]sf] x'bfF o;sf] pkof]u u/L aLdf 
Joj;fonfO{ u|fld0f tx;Dd n}hfg / Joj;fo lj:tf/ ug{ cem 
;xh x'g] ljZjf; xfdLn] /fv]sf 5f}+ . o;nfO{ ;kmn agfpg 
;~rfns ;ldltn] sDkgLsf gLltut laifox?df cfjZos 
Joj:yf ug]{ / sDkgLsf ;a} sfdsf/jfxLx?df Joj:yfkgnfO{ 
clwstd\ clwsf/ lbg] tyf lhDd]jf/ agfpg] gLlt lnPsf 5f}+ .

;dLIff jif{df o; sDkgLn] ?= $,&*,*(,^&,@#^-rf/ ca{ c7xQ/ 
s/f]8 pgfGgAa] nfv ;t;¶L xhf/ b'O{ ;o 5QL; ?k}ofF_ 
aLdfz'Ns cfh{g u/]sf] 5 . o; cf=a= sf] cGTo ;Dddf sDkgLsf] 
nufgL ?= ̂  ca{ $) s/f]8 ## nfv ( ;o $) ?k}ofF k'Ug uPsf] 
5 . ;fy} ;dLIff jif{df sDkgLsf r'Qmf k"FhL, aLdfsf]if, dxfljkQL 
sf]if / hu]8f sf]if ;lxt hDdf s'n ;|f]t (Networth) ?= ^ ca{ 
@) s/f]8 *@ nfv ^@ xhf/ & ;o *! /x]sf] 5, h'g cl3NNff] 
cf=a= @)&(÷)*) sf]] t'ngfdf ?= @& s/f]8 %( nfv ^% xhf/ 
! ;o !& n] clws xf] .

cf=a= @)*)÷)*! sf] g]kfn n]vfdfg / NFRS cg';f/sf] jf;nft, 
gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa, cfoJoo lx;fa, ljQLo ljj/0fx? / 
cg';"rLx? tyf sDkgL P]g, @)^# bkmf !)( pkbkmf $  
adf]lhdsf] k|ltj]bg o;} ;fy ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 

;dLIff jif{df sDkgLn] ?= $^ s/f]8 ( nfv &( xhf/ * ;o 
^( v'b d'gfkmf cfh{g ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . o; cf=a=df NFRS 
cg';f/ g} ljQLo ljj/0f tof/ ul/Psf] x'Fbf aLdf+sLo d"Nof+sg 
cg';f/ hu]8f tyf cGo Joj:yfx? sfod u/L k|:t't cf=a= 
@)*)÷)*! sf] d'gfkmfaf6 !% k|ltzt /sddf ? #( s/f]8 ## 
nfv (% xhf/ & ;o #) gub nfef+z -s/ ;d]t_ sf] Joj:yf 
ul/Psf] Joxf]/f cjut u/fpg rfxG5' . 

cGtdf, sDkgLn] kfPsf] ;xof]usf] nflu z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 
u|fxsju{, >L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0f, >L sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] 
sfof{no, >L lwtf]kq af]8{, >L g]kfn lwtf]kq ahf/ ljlgod 
ln=, >L l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë ln=, z]o/ /lhi6«f/ n]vfk/LIfs, 
aLdf tyf k'gaL{df sDkgLx? P+j a|f]s/x?k|lt xflb{s cfef/ 
k|s6 ub{5' . sDkgLsf Joj:yfkgdf ;+nUg kbflwsf/Lx? tyf 
;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ sDkgLsf] pQ/f]Q/ pGglt / k|ultdf 
k'¥ofpg' ePsf] ;lqmo of]ubfgsf nflu jxf+x?nfO{ ljz]if ?kn] 
wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . ;fy} xfd|f] lqmofsnfkx?nfO{ ;sf/fTds 
?kdf lnO{ hg;dIf k'¥ofO{lbg] ;~rf/ hutsf ldqx? / ;Dk"0f{ 
z'e]R5'sx?k|lt klg d xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ub{5' .

wGojfb .

dgf]x/ bf; d'n dgf]x/ bf; d'n 
cWoIf– ;~rfns ;ldlt .cWoIf– ;~rfns ;ldlt .
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dgf]x/ bf; d'ndgf]x/ bf; d'n
cWoIfcWoIf
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k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] k|ltj4tfk|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] k|ltj4tf
o; ;u/dfyf n'lDagL OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln=sf] @*cf}+ jflif{s 
;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt sDkgLsf ;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIfHo", 
;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:oHo"x?, ;+:yfks z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 
;fwf/0f z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 kfNg'ePsf 
cltyLHo"x?, ;~rf/sdL{ ldqx?, ;xsdL{ ;fyLx? / cfdlGqt 
;a}df xflb{s :jfut ub}{ oxfFx?sf] u/Ldfdo pkl:yltsf] nflu 
wGojfb 1fkg ug{ rfxG5' .

g]kfnsf] lghL{jg aLdf If]qsf] Oltxf;df klxnf]k6s a}b]lzs 
nufgLstf{ leqfpg ;kmn eO{ ljut @( jif{b]lv u|fxsx?sf] 
df´ lr/kl/lrt ;u/dfyf OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= / aLdf  
If]qdf !( jif{;Dd 5'§} klxrfg agfpg ;kmn /x]sf] n'lDagL 
hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ufleP/ @)&( ;fn kmfNu'0f @( ut]
af6 PsLs[t ;+o'Qm sf/f]jf/ ub}{ cfgf u|fxsk|ltsf] ;]jfnfO{ 
klxnf] k|fyldstfdf /flv sfd ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o; qmddf  
aLdfn]v x:tfGt/0f tyf bfjL e'QmfgL k|s[ofnfO{ l56f]  
5l/tf] ?kdf ;DkGg ug{ ljB'tLo (Digital) dfWodaf6 ;do ;fk]If  
kl/dfh{g / cBfjlws ul/“b} nluPsf] 5 .  

g]kfnsf] /fhgLlts cl:y/tfsf sf/0f b]zsf] cfly{s 
ultljlwx? ;Gtf]ifhgs g/x]sf] tyf cGt/f{li6«o :t/df laleGg 
/fi6«x? aLr rln/x]sf] zLto'4sf] sf/0fn] ljZj cy{tGqdf 
k/]sf] k|efj, nufgLsf] l;ldt If]q, 36\bf] Aofhb/, lghL{jg aLdf 
sDkgLx? lar Joj;fodf a9]sf] k|lt:kwf{, hgr]tgfsf] cefj 
h:tf r'gf}tLx?n] aLdf Joj;fonfO{ yk sl7g agfPsf] 5 . o:tf 
r'gf}tLx?sf] Go"lgs/0f ug{ yk pkfo tyf /0fgLltx? cjnDag 
ub}{ ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] pNnª\3gdf z'Go ;xgzLntf ckgfO{ 
kf/blz{tf, hjfkmb]lxtf tyf lhDd]jf/Lkg nufot ;'zf;gsf 
l;4fGtx? tyf gLlt lgodx?sf] k|efjsf/L sfof{Gjog ub}{ 
ePsf cj;/x?sf] ;d'lrt pkof]u ub}{ sDkgLnfO{ b]zsf] cu|0fL 
lghL{jg sDkgLsf] ?kdf :yflkt ug{ Joj:yfkg bQlrt eO{ 
nfu]sf] 5 . 

sDkgLn] cfgf sd{rf/Lx?sf] nflu ;dofg's"n /fli6«o tyf 
cGt/fli6«o tflndx? k|bfg ug{'kg]{ oyfy{nfO{ dWogh/ u/L 
OG:of]/]G; OlG6Ro'6 ckm g]kfn nufot  b]zleq / ef/tdf  
;d]t cfof]hgf x'g] tflndx?df ;xefuL u/fpFb}  cfPsf] 5 . o; 
qmddf sDkgLsf pRrkb:y sd{rf/L Pj+ zfvf sfof{nox?df 
tflndx? ;d]t k|bfg ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy} sDkgLaf6 
;DkGg ug{'kg]{ lgoldt tflndx? / cfjlws tflndx? k|bfg 
u/L sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ Joj;fo k|a4{gsf] l;nl;nfdf hfgsf/L 
/fVg'kg]{ k|rlnt sfg'g, lgod tyf g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0faf6 
hf/L lgb]{lzsfx?sf] af/]df cBfjlws u/fpg] sfd eO{/x]sf] 5 .

aLdfnfO{ ;a} hgtfx?sf] kx'Fr k¥'ofpg] ;/sf/sf] gLlt cg';f/ 
aLdf ;]jfnfO{ zx/b]lv u|fld0f If]q;Dd lj:tf/ ug]{ qmddf 
k|wfg sfof{no nufot d'n'se/sf k|fb]lzs sfof{no ;lxtsf 

!!! j6f sfof{nox?af6 ;]jf k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf 5f}+ . o;sf] 
;fy}, s[lif aLdfsf] nfuL sDkgLnfO{ tf]lsPsf lhNnfx? / cGo 
:yfgdf ;d]t :yflgo s[ifs tyf Joj;foLx?nfO{ afnL tyf 
kz'k+IfL aLdfsf] ;]jf pknJw u/fpg'sf] ;fy} gi6 ePsf afnL 
tyf d[To' ePsf kz'k+IfLx?sf] oyfzSo rf+8f] bfjL e'QmfgL  
ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .

sDkgLn] ug]{ Joj;fosf] hf]lvd x:tfGt/0fsf] nflu kof{Kt 
dfqfdf k'gaL{dfsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf]  5 . :jb]zL tyf lab]zL 
k'gaL{df sDkgLx?;Fusf] Joj;flos ;DaGw / ;xsfo{sf] kl/0ffd 
:j?k u|fxsx?n] ;dod} bfjL e'QmfgL k|fKt ug]{ / o;af6 
sDkgLsf] ljZj;gLotf / bfjL e'QmfgL k|s[ofdf ;d]t lgs} 7'nf] 
d2t k'Ug uPsf] 5 .

sDkgLsf] ljQLo cj:yf / cGo ultljlwx?sf] af/]df 
oxfFx?nfO{ xfd|f] cWoIfHo"sf] ;Daf]wg, jflif{s k|ltj]bg / ljQLo 
ljj/0fx?af6 cjut x'g] g} 5 . 5nkmnsf] qmddf oxfFx?af6 
k|fKt lh1f;fx?nfO{ ;Daf]wg ug]{ / ;f] qmddf k|fKt x'g] cd"No 
;'emfjx?nfO{ xfdLn] dfu{bz{gsf] ?kdf cjnDag ub{} hfg]5f}+ . 

cf=a= @)*)÷)*! sf] sfo{;DkfbgnfO{ d'Nofªsg ub}{ o; 
sDkgLnfO{ The HRM Nepal Corporate Excellence 2024 in Non-
Life Insurance Category gfds ;Ddfgaf6 lje'lift ul/Psf] 
Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpFb} o; k|sf/sf] ;Ddfgaf6 sDkgLnfO{ 
cfufdL lbgdf yk pT;fxk"j{s sfd ug{sf nflu dgf]an k|bfg 
u/]sf] 5 .

cGtdf, sDkgLn] kfPsf] ;xof]usf] nflu z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 
u|fxsju{, >L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0f nufotsf lgodgsf/L 
lgsfox? n]vfk/LIfs, aLdf tyf k'gaL{df sDkgLx? Pj+ 
a|f]s/x?k|lt xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf 
;+nUg d]/f ;xsdL{ ;fyLx?nfO{ sDkgLsf] pQ/f]Q/ pGglt / 
k|ultdf k'ofpg'ePsf] lqmoflzn of]ubfgsf nflu jxfFx?nfO{ 
ljz]if ?kn] wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . ;fy}, xfdLn] ug]{ sfd  
sf/afxLx?nfO{ ;sf/fTds ?kdf lnO{ hg;dIf k'¥ofOlbg] 
;~rf/ hutsf ldqx? / ;Dk"0f{ z'e]R5'sx?k|lt klg d xflb{s 
cfef/ JoQm ub{5' . 

wGojfb .

r+sL If]qLr+sL If]qL

k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tk|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
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r+sL If]qLr+sL If]qL
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tk|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
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Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Key Performance
Indicators

6.21 bn

Net Worth
NPR

4.79 bn

Gross Premium
Collection

461 mn

Net Pro�t

26.23 mn

Number of
Shares

NPR 15.00

Dividend per
Share (DPS)

NPR 236.72

Book Value
per Share

7.43%

Return on
Equity

11.55%

Market Share

41.36

Price Earning
Ratio

275.7%

Solvency Margin

35.15%

Retention Ratio

9.63%

Net Pro�t to
Gross Premium

7.48%

Yield on
Investments
& Loan

64.85%

Reinsurance
Ratio

2.86%

Increment on
Investment Held

8.43%

Investment
on Shares
to Total Assets

NPR 17.58

Earnings per
Share (EPS)

112

Number of
O�ces

633

Number of
Employees

Total No of Active
Insurance Polices

286,367

16.56%

Management
Expense Ratio

1.49%

Regulatory
Expense Ratio

0.78%

Agency
Commission
Ratio

3.39%

Expense
Ratio

2.83 bn

Gross Claim Paid NPR
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To provide protection and �nancial 
security of the highest quality to the 
society, with the aspiration to 
become the customer's �rst choice in 
underwriting their risks, cultivating 
ourselves as a bridge for the future. 

Mission

Vision
Uni�ed to build dreams.

VISION,
MISSION &

OBJECTIVES

1.

Vision and Mission of Company
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SALICO aims to provide value to the customers and stakeholders by following strategies and objectives summarized in following key areas;
i.	 Risk Management and Underwriting

•	 Accurate Risk Assessment:•	 Accurate Risk Assessment: Employ advanced data analytics and actuarial models to evaluate risks accurately and set premiums 
accordingly.

•	 Underwriting Profitability:•	 Underwriting Profitability: Aim to maintain a profitable underwriting ratio by balancing premium income with claims payouts.
•	 Diversification of Risk:•	 Diversification of Risk: Spread risk across different lines of business and geographic regions to mitigate exposure to catastrophic 

events.

ii.	 Product Development and Innovation
•	 Customized Insurance Solutions:•	 Customized Insurance Solutions: Develop tailored products to meet the diverse needs of individual and commercial clients.
•	 Emerging Risks Coverage:•	 Emerging Risks Coverage: Adapt to new market demands by creating products that cover emerging risks, such as cyber liability, 

climate-related incidents, and gig economy-related insurance.
•	 Simplified Processes:•	 Simplified Processes: Streamline policy wording and claims processes to enhance customer satisfaction and reduce administrative 

costs.

iii.	 Customer Experience and Engagement
•	 Enhanced Customer Service:•	 Enhanced Customer Service: Focus on providing exceptional service through multiple channels, including digital platforms, to 

enhance customer satisfaction and retention.
•	 Education and Communication:•	 Education and Communication: Inform customers about policy options, coverage limits, and the importance of risk management to 

improve their understanding and engagement.
•	 Claims Management Excellence:•	 Claims Management Excellence: Implement efficient claims processing systems that enable quick resolutions and build trust with 

policyholders.

iv.	 Operational Efficiency
•	 Cost Management:•	 Cost Management: Focus on reducing operational costs through automation, technology integration, and process optimization
•	 Digital Transformation:•	 Digital Transformation: Leverage technology to enhance internal operations, improve underwriting processes, and provide customer 

service solutions, such as online policy purchase and claims filing.
•	 Agile Operations:•	 Agile Operations: Foster a culture of flexibility and responsiveness to adapt quickly to changing market conditions and customer 

needs.

v.	 Financial Stability and Growth
•	 Sustainable Profitability:•	 Sustainable Profitability: Balance growth objectives with maintaining strong financial performance and a solid balance sheet.
•	 Investment Strategy:•	 Investment Strategy: Develop a prudent investment strategy to optimize returns on premiums collected while managing risk 

appropriately.
•	 Market Expansion:•	 Market Expansion: Explore opportunities for expansion into new markets, whether through organic growth or acquisitions.

vi.	 Regulatory Compliance and Corporate Governance
•	 Adherence to Regulations:•	 Adherence to Regulations: Ensure compliance with all relevant regulations and standards to maintain operational integrity and avoid 

legal penalties.
•	 Transparency and Accountability:•	 Transparency and Accountability: Uphold strong corporate governance practices to foster trust with stakeholders and reinforce the 

insurer's reputation.

vii.	 Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
•	 Environmental and Social Governance (ESG):•	 Environmental and Social Governance (ESG): Incorporate ESG considerations into investment and operational strategies to address 

climate change and societal impacts.
•	 Community Engagement:•	 Community Engagement: Participate in community initiatives and support disaster preparedness and recovery programs.

viii.	Talent Acquisition and Development
•	 Skilled Workforce:•	 Skilled Workforce: Attract and retain top talent in areas such as underwriting, claims management, data analytics, and technology.
•	 Continuous Learning:•	 Continuous Learning: Invest in training and development programs to stay ahead of industry trends and technological advancements.

Overall Strategy and Objectives
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Integrity
Acting with honesty in all interactions, 

ensuring transparency and 
trustworthiness.

Excellence
Committing high standards of 
performance and continuous 

improvement in all aspects of the 
business.

Customer Focus
Prioritizing the needs and experiences 

of customers, striving to deliver 
exceptional service and value.

Innovation
Embracing change and leveraging 

technology and creativity to develop 
better products and processes.

Accountability
Taking responsibility for actions and 

decisions, both individually and collectively.

Respect
Fostering an environment that values 
diversity, inclusivity, and collaboration 

among employees, customers, and 
partners.

CORE
VALUES

OF
SALICO

SALICO is always focused on the operation of the company in a sustainable manner while maximizing customer satisfaction and maintain 
positive reputation in the marketplace. It has clubbed the values, code of conduct and ethical principles of the staffs in the Employees bylaws. At 
the same time, set the similar norms for governing board as well. Core Values, code of conduct and ethical principles of the company has been 
summarized below:

Core Values, Code of Conduct and Ethical Principles
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations
Adhering to all applicable laws, regulations, and industry standards.

Fair Treatment of Customers
Ensuring all customers are treated with fairness and respect, avoiding discriminatory 
practices.

Con�dentiality
Protecting sensitive customer information and data, ensuring privacy and security.

Con�ict of Interest
Avoiding situations where personal interests may con�ict with professional duties.

Reporting Ethical Violations
Encouraging employees to report any unethical behavior or violations, providing 
secure channels for reporting without fear of retaliation.

Responsible Marketing
Ensuring that marketing materials are clear, truthful, and not misleading, accurately 
representing the products o�ered.

Delivering fair outcomes for all stakeholders, 
ensuring that claims and services are 

handled equitably.

Justice
Maintaining open communication regarding 
policies, procedures, and products, including 

any limitations or exclusions.

Transparency
Maintaining a high level of competence and 

professionalism in all interactions, 
showcasing knowledge and skill within the 

industry.

Professionalism

Acknowledging the company’s role in society and striving to 
contribute positively through community engagement and 

sustainable practices.

Social Responsibility
Building trust and fostering long-term relationships with 

customers, agents, and partners based on mutual respect and 
understanding.

Long-term Relationships
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ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE

2.

Company Profile

After the merger of Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd and Lumbini General Insurance Company Ltd we have laid a solid brand foundation as 
"SALICO", Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Ltd. SALICO is one of Nepal's leading non-life insurers with more than 100 branches all over Nepal. 
SALICO customers benefit from a broad range of personal and corporate insurance services, ranging from property, motor, marine, engineering, 
aviation insurance to agriculture and micro insurance. SALICO is the only Non-Life insurance provider in Nepal having investments from a foreign 
investor in Ceylinco Holdings PLC which is a leading insurance company in Sri Lanka.

With a dedicated team of around 700 employees spread across the nation, we embody the spirit of togetherness. Our brand promise revolves around 
fostering unity, ensuring that every policyholder feels a part of the SALICO family. As we safeguard against life's uncertainties, our commitment to 
unity resonates in every aspect of our service. From the bustling urban hubs to the tranquil corners of Nepal, SALICO unites communities through 
reliable insurance solutions, reinforcing trust and security nationwide.



Profile of Board of Directors

Mr. Ajith Rohan Gunawardena has been a member of the Board of 
Directors at SALICO since 29th Falgun 2079. He represents Ceylinco 
Holdings PLC, a prominent Sri Lankan joint venture partner of SALICO. An 
MBA graduate, Mr. Gunawardena brings extensive insurance expertise, 
having served as a Director at Ceylinco Holdings PLC in Sri Lanka. He is 
currently the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive O�cer of Ceylinco 
Holdings PLC. Additionally, he serves on the Board of Directors of several 
organizations, including American Education Centre Ltd., CEG Education 
Holdings (Pvt) Ltd., Cey Hydro Developers (Pvt) Ltd., Ceyfco Property Co. 
(Pvt) Ltd., Ceylinco Holdings PLC, Ceylinco Invest Corp. (Pvt) Ltd., 
Ceypower Cascades (Pvt) Ltd., CGL Educational Services, Energy 
Generators Pvt. Ltd., Energy Lanka Holdings Ltd., International College of 
Business & Technology Ltd., and Ultratech Ceylinco Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Lokmanya Golchha has been a member of the Board of Directors at 
SALICO since 29th Falgun 2079. Before this, he served on the Board of Directors 
of the former Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited. He is a respected 
industrialist and currently the Chairman of the Golchha Organization, one of 
Nepal’s leading business groups. Mr. Golchha has made signi�cant 
contributions to the �elds of automobiles, trade, and manufacturing.

Throughout his career, he has received several prestigious honors, including 
the Suprabal Janasewa Shree Padak (2019) from the Honorable President Mrs. 
Bidya Devi Bhandari, the Knight's Cross of the Order of Merit of the Republic of 
Poland (2015), the National Figure Award (1998), the Silver Jubilee Medal from 
the late King Birendra Bir Bikram Shah, and the Lifetime Achievement Award 
from the Nepal Foreign Trade Association (2024).

Apart from his business success, Mr. Golchha is actively involved in social, 
religious, and charitable activities. He is the Chairman of both the Ramlalji 
Dhapidevi Golchha Charity Trust and Bhagwan Mahabir Jain Niketan. He is also 
the Director of Harshlok Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. and has previously served as a 
Director of NIC Bank, NIC Asia Bank and Bishal Bazar Company.

Additionally, Mr. Golchha has held the position of past director in several key 
associations, including the Nepal Foreign Trade Association, Nepal Automobile 
Dealers Association, and Nepal Jain Parishad. He has also served the Nepal 
Chamber of Commerce in various positions for more than 35 years.

Through his leadership and experience, Mr. Golchha has played an important 
role in advancing Nepal’s banking, automobile, manufacturing, and trade 
sectors.

Mr. Manohar Das Mool is a seasoned entrepreneur and business leader 
with over four decades of experience in paper trading and manufacturing, 
insurance, hydropower and banking. He has been serving as the Chairman 
of SALICO since 29th Falgun 2079 and previously held the Chairmanship of 
Lumbini General Insurance Company Limited. 

An MBA graduate and gold medalist from Tribhuvan University, Mr. Mool is 
actively involved in various business and industry associations. He is the 
President of the Paper Merchants Association of Nepal, Vice President of 
the General Insurance Association Nepal. He is also an Executive Member 
of the Nepal Chamber of Commerce.



Mr. Arun Raj Shrestha has been a member of the Board of Directors at 
SALICO since 29th Falgun 2079. He previously served on the Board of 
Directors of the former Lumbini General Insurance Company Limited. An 
MBA graduate from Allahabad University, India, Mr. Shrestha is a prominent 
�gure in Nepal's IT industry and is the owner of several IT business ventures 
in the country.

Dr. Bijan Bhattarai is an economist with over a decade of multidisciplinary 
experience spanning think tanks, �nancial institutions, academia, and 
international development initiatives. He has been serving as a member of the 
Board of Directors at Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Ltd. since 29th 
Falgun 2079. With expertise in macroeconomics, private sector development, 
and �nancial systems, Dr. Bhattarai has served in a range of advisory and 
consulting capacities. Notably, he served as a Private Sector Development 
Specialist under the Investment Support Facility (ISF), contributing to key 
reforms and policy recommendations. His work includes the development of 
strategic reports for leading development partners such as the World Bank, 
UNDP, and the European Union. Currently, he is the Program Specialist in 
Economics and Finance at the Institute for Integrated Development Studies 
(IIDS), where he leads major initiatives focused on green growth, 
socio-economic policy, and private sector development. He also brings prior 
experience from the banking sector, where he was involved in renewable 
energy �nancing and led digital �nancial initiative. Dr. Bhattarai holds a 
Doctorate in Economics from Peking University, China, where his research 
centered on the e�ectiveness of macroprudential policies in Nepal. In addition 
to his professional roles, he lectures on International Trade, and Management 
Research methods at the postgraduate level.

Mr. Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari serves as the CEO of NCEC, a family 
enterprise operating since 1958. He served as the Vice President of the 
European Economic Chamber, Nepal between 2021-2024. He served as 
member of the Board of Director of Sagarmatha Insurance Company 
Limited. He was the Coordinator in Charge for the EU Nepal Business Forum 
2023 & 2024. 

Mr. Rajbhandari holds an MBA from Asian Institute of Technology, Masters 
in Management from ESCP Paris, B.Sc (Management Science) from 
University of Maryland. He specializes in business strategy and 
international partnerships and is highly focused on human development 
of Nepali youth.



Ms. Nirmala Devi Manandhar has been member of the Board of 
Directors at SALICO since 29th Falgun 2079. She previously served on the 
Board of Directors of the former Lumbini General Insurance Company 
Limited and the former Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd. Ms. 
Manandhar holds an MA in Economics from Tribhuvan University and has 
extensive experience in the general insurance industry. She made history 
as the �rst woman to serve as the Chief Executive O�cer in Nepal’s 
insurance sector. Her previous roles include CEO of the former NB 
Insurance Ltd., Deputy General Manager of the former Prudential 
Insurance Company Limited and Deputy General Manager of Nepal 
Insurance Co. Ltd.

 Ceylinco Insurance PLC Ceylinco Insurance PLC

Mr. Padma Jyoti has been alternate member of the Board of Directors at 
SALICO since 29th Falgun 2079. He previously served on the Board of Directors 
of the former Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Jyoti holds a B. Tech. 
in Mechanical Engineering from IIT Kanpur, India, and a Master of Science 
degree from the Sloan School of Management, Massachusetts Institute of 
Technology, USA. A prominent Nepalese industrialist and politician, Mr. Jyoti is 
the former Chairman of Jyoti Group of Companies and was the President of the 
Federation of Nepalese Chambers of Commerce and Industry. In 2002, he was 
elected President of the South Asian Association for Regional Cooperation 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry (SCCI) at its 8th General Assembly. He 
plays a key role in overseeing various operations across industries under the 
Jyoti Group. A highly seasoned business tycoon, Mr. Jyoti is also the founder 
and leader of the Padma Jyoti Group, a business house dedicated to fostering 
entrepreneurial passion within Nepal's business ecosystem. Additionally, Mr. 
Jyoti holds several key positions, including a member of the Board of Directors 
at Shangri-La Energy Limited, Chairman of Butwal Power Company Limited, 
and was the immediate Past President of the National Business Initiative.



35

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
���

��
�
���
��

�

�
�

�

��
��
�

�
��

�

��
��
�

	
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��

�

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

��
���

�
�
��

��
�
��
��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
�


�
��

���
�

	
��
��

��
��

	
��
��

��
�


��
��


�
��
��

��
��
�

	
��
��
���

��
��

�

�
��

��
�
��
��
��

�

�

��
��
��

�

�
��
��
��
��
��

�

�
��
��
	
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

�

 �
��

��

­�
��

��
��
�

�
��
��

�

�
��
��
��
 �

��
��

�
 

�
��
��
�
��
�

��




��
�

�
��

��
��
�

�
��
��

�

	
��
��

��
�


��
��


�
��
��

��
��
�

	
��
��
���

��
��

�

�

�

��
��
��

�

�  ��




��
�

��
��
��

�
�

�

�

��
��
��

��

��
��
��
�

�
��

��
	
��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�
�
��

��
��
��
�

­�
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
��

­�
��

��
��
�
��
��

��
�

­�
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�
��

�

�
��
��

��
�

�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

�
��

��
��
��

��
��

���
�

��
�

�
��
��

�
	
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��
���

��

	
��

��
��

��
���

��
�
���
��

�

�

��
��

��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
���
�
��

��
�
��
��

�

�
��

��
��
�
��
�


��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
St

ru
ct

ur
e



36

A provision regarding Board of Directors’ Composition, Roles, Meetings, Attendance and Quorum has been mentioned in Article of Association 
of the company. The summary of the provisions is mentioned below;

BOD Composition
i.	 The appointment and election of the Board of Directors will be carried out through the Annual general Meeting.
ii.	 The BOD shall be constituted of 7 member directors including at least one female director and/or one independent director.
iii.	 Out of 7 directors, 4 directors will be appointed from amongst promoter shareholders hereinafter referred to as Group A such 

that 3 directors will be Nepali Promoters and 1 director will be from foreign joint venture partner Ceylinco Holdings PLC.
iv.	 2 directors will be appointed from amongst the public shareholders referred to as Group B.
v.	 1 director will be appointed as independent expert director.
vi.	 The tenure of the member of board of director will be of four year and is eligible for reappointment unless disqualified.

BOD Roles
Roles for board of directors besides mentioned in the Act will be as follows:
i.	 All responsibilities outlined in the Act, Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Guidelines, Memorandum of Association, and Articles of 

Association of the company shall be carried out by the non-life insurance company, unless explicitly specified as the role of 
the Annual General Meeting in the Act.

ii.	 To safeguard the interests of the insured and shareholders by implementing robust risk management strategies, ensuring 
strong corporate governance, and maintaining non-interference policy in the day-to-day operations of management.

iii.	 Other roles of the Board of the Directors;
a.	 To draft and implement the company's internal rules, regulations, and policies.
b.	 To draft and implement the underwriting policy, claims settlement policy, risk management policy, asset-liability management policy, 

financial budget, and annual policies.
c.	 To draft and amend the company's bylaws in accordance with the guidelines and circulars issued by the regulator from time to time.
d.	 To maintain capital, special reserves, other capital reserves, and assets and liabilities at optimal levels.
e.	 To supervise management activities in alignment with the policies set by the board and provide necessary instructions to management 

as needed.
f.	 To present the annual report, along with the annual financial statements, at the Annual General Meeting.
g.	  To comply with and implement the circulars and instructions issued by the regulator periodically.

Meetings, Attendance and Quorum
1.	 The board meeting shall be convened by the company secretary or, in their absence, by the Chief Executive Officer. 
2.	 A minimum of six meetings must be held in a financial year, with no more than a two-month gap between consecutive meetings. 
3.	 Meeting notices should be sent to the directors’ registered physical address or electronically. 
4.	 Directors may attend the meeting either in person or electronically. If a representative director has been appointed, the alternate director 

may attend on their behalf. 
5.	 A quorum for the meeting requires the presence of at least 51% of the directors, either physically or electronically. 
6.	 If a quorum is not met, a short notice of 3 days must be given for the next meeting. If a quorum is still not present, decisions made by the 

members who are present shall be deemed valid. 
7.	 The meeting shall be chaired by the Chairman of the Board or, in their absence, by a director appointed for this role. 
8.	 The agenda of the meeting shall be approved by a majority vote. In case of a tie, the Chairman shall cast the deciding vote. Directors with a 

conflict of interest regarding any agenda item must abstain from discussing or voting on that item. 
9.	 Dissenting directors may record their objections in the meeting minutes. 
10.	 The minutes of the meeting shall be recorded systematically, either electronically or in physical form.
Number of  BOD meetings held during the year: 18 meetings

a.	 The board of directors can delegate the power conferred to it by Article of Association to the committees constituted by it according to its 
need or as required by the circular issued by  the regulator. However managerial rights cannot be delegated. Despite the delegation of the 
power to the committees, the ultimate accountability will lay with the board of directors itself.Excep the audit committee, there will not be 
more than two directors in the committee or subcommittee including the coordinating director.	

b.	 Except the audit committee, there will not be more than two directors in the committee or subcommittee including the coordinating 
director.

c.	 The list of committees and sub-committees are mentioned in section 7d.	

Information on Composition, Roles, Meetings, Attendance of Board Committees

Information on Board of Directors’ Composition, Roles, Meetings, Attendance and Quorum



37

Underwriting: 
This is the process of evaluating
the risk of insuring a client and 

determining the premium that should 
be charged. Underwriters analyze 
various factors, including claims 

history, the nature of the risk, and 
statistical data.

Reinsurance:
Reinsurance acts as a safety 
net for company, allowing it 

to protect us against 
unforeseen catastrophic 

events or signi�cant
claims.

Risk Management: 
Risk management is a critical function
in an insurance company, serving to 

identify, assess, manage,  and mitigate risks 
that could potentially impact the company's 
ability to achieve its strategic objectives and 

ful�ll its obligations to policyholders. Risk 
management includes the following 

functions: Identi�cation of risks such as 
(underwriting risks, market risk, operational 

risk, liquidity risk, regulatory and 
compliance risk, reputational risk, insurance 

risks), assessment of risks (quantitative, 
qualitative and risk pro�ling), risk mitigation 

strategies, risk monitoring and reporting, 
risk governance and crisis management and 

business continuity planning.

Core Business
Activities

Policy Issuance
Once underwriting is 

complete, the company 
issues insurance policies to 
clients. Policies can cover 
various areas, including 
property (homeowners, 
renters), automobiles, 

health, liability, and more.

Claims Handling:
This involves managing and processing 

claims made by policyholders. The 
e�ciency and transparency in claims 

handling are crucial for customer 
satisfaction and retention.

BUSINESS
MODEL

3.
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S.N. Particulars Limit Remarks

1

Government Bonds (Bonds or saving 
certificate issued by Nepal Government, 
Provincial Government,  Local Government or 
Nepal Rastra Bank or the bonds or certificates 
backed by Nepal Government)

At least 20% of the 
total investment.

In case of non- availability, investment to be made in 
fixed deposits of commercial banks or Infrastructure 
Development Banks

2 Fixed Deposits

a Fixed Deposits in Commercial Banks or 
Infrastructure Development Banks

At least 30% of the 
total investment.

Maximum 15% of the total investment in single bank which 
are in operation for more than 5 years and running in profit 
for 3 years. Otherwise, maximum 5%)

b Fixed Deposits in Development Banks Maximum 10% of 
the total investment.

Maximum 5% of the total investment in single bank which 
are in operation for more than 5 years and running in profit 
for 3 years. Otherwise, maximum 2%

c Fixed Deposit of Finance Companies Maximum 5% of the 
total investment.

Maximum 2% of the total investment in single bank which 
are in operation for more than 5 years and running in profit 
for 3 years. Otherwise, maximum 1%.

3
Non-convertible preference shares, Bonds, 
Debentures, saving certificate issued by A, B, 
C Banks

Up to 20% of the 
total investment.

Not more than 10% of the paid up capital of the investee 
company.

4 Bonds, Debentures and saving certificates of 
listed companies

Up to 20% of the 
total investment.

Not more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the investee 
company.

5 Shares of Listed Companies (Both Equity and 
preference)

Up to 10% of the 
total investment.

Not more than 15% of the paid up capital of the investee 
company.

6 Investment Schemes of Mutual Funds and 
Citizen Investment Funds

Up to 5% of the total 
investment Not more than 1% of the total investment in single scheme.

7 Real State (Housing Projects approved by the 
government of Nepal

Up to 10% of the 
total investment.

9

Agriculture production and distribution, Cold 
Storage, Renewable energy sectors including 
Hydropower, Solar Power projects, Tourism 
Industry , Electricity transmission Lines, 
Education and Health

Up to 10% of the 
total investment. -Not more than 5% of the total investment in single project.

10 Share of investment companies Up to 5% of the total 
investment. -Investment in public companies only

17 (a)  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200 

11 Private Equity Fund and Venture Capital Funds 
approved by SEBON

Up to 1.5% of the 
total investment. -Not more than 1% of the total investment in single fund.

Revenue Sources

Premiums 
The primary source of revenue for 

the company comes from the 
premiums paid by policyholders. 
The amount varies based on the 

level of coverage, the type of 
insurance, and risk factors 

assessed during underwriting.

Reinsurance  Recovery:
The company has policy to use 
reinsurance to mitigate risks. By 

transferring a portion of our risk to 
other insurers and reinsures, we can 
stabilize the �nancial performance 

against large losses.

Investment Income
The company has policy to invest the 

premiums we collect in various 
�nancial instruments like stocks, bonds, 

mutual fonds, �xed deposits and real 
estate and other instruments. The 

returns on these investments  
contribute signi�cantly to our 

pro�tability.  As per the investment 
directive 2079 (along with �rst 

amendment 2080). 

The investment limit has been prescribed as below;
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•	 Reinsurance Commission:•	 Reinsurance Commission: It includes the commission received from the reinsurers on the ceded premium by SALICO to them on 
agreed upon rates.

3. 	 Cost Structure
•	 Claims Costs:•	 Claims Costs: The most significant expense for the company is often the claims we pay out. We have policy to maintain  reserves to 

meet these future liabilities.
•	 Operational Costs:•	 Operational Costs: This includes expenses related to management, administration, underwriting, distribution,  marketing, and 

technology.
•	 Reinsurance Costs:•	 Reinsurance Costs: This includes cost pay premiums to reinsurance companies, which can be a considerable expense.
•	 Agency commission cost:•	 Agency commission cost: It includes the cost provided to agents to bring the business.
•	 Insurance Service fee:•	 Insurance Service fee: It is the regulatory fee to be paid to the regulator, Nepal Insurance Authority at the rate of  0.75% on the gross 

insurance premium collected.

4. 	 Distribution Channels
•	 Direct Sales:•	 Direct Sales: Company sell policies directly to consumers through their websites or call centers.
•	 Agents and Brokers:•	 Agents and Brokers: We rely on independent licensed agents or brokers who sell our policies on commission. This can help reach a 

broader audience.
•	 Partnerships:•	 Partnerships: Collaborations with banks (bancassurance), retail companies, and other establishments can also serve as distribution 

channels.

5. 	 Regulatory Environment
•	 SALICO operates under strict regulations set by regulator Nepal Insurance authority to ensure that we maintain 	 adequate reserves, 

treat customers fairly, and remain solvent.

6. 	 Market Segmentation and Targeting
•	 SALICO has segregated the different segments of the market based on demographics, risk profiles, and type of insurance product. This 

helps in tailoring products and marketing strategies to meet specific customer needs.

Types of the lines of business based on product types:

Property
	– Property
	– House
	– Loss of Profit

Motor
	– Motorcycle
	– Private Vehicle
	– Commercial Vehicle
	– Private Vehicle (Short Period)
	– Commercial Vehicle (Short 

Period)

Marine
	– Inland Transit
	– Overseas Transit
	– Air Transit

Engineering
	– Contractor All Risk
	– Erection All Risk
	– Contractor Plant and Machinery 
	– Boiler Pressure Plant 
	– Machinery Breakdown
	– Marine Cum Erection
	– Electronic Equipment
	– Storage Cum Erection All Risk
	– Marine Cum Storage Erection
	– Machinery Loss Profit
	– Deterioration of Stock

Agriculture

	– Livestock
	– Birds
	– Fishery
	– Vegetable
	– Fruits
	– Spices
	– Grains
	– Beekeeping
	– Tea Coffee
	– Grass and Pulses

Aviation
	– General Aviation
	– Loss of License

Miscellaneous
	– Personal Accident
	– Group Personal Accident
	– Burglary
	– Burglary ( General)
	– Money Insurance
	– Cash in transit
	– Fidelity Guarantee
	– Cash
	– All Risk Insurance
	– Children Health Insurance
	– Travellers Mediclaim Insurance
	– Product Liability
	– Medical Insurance
	– Third Party Liability
	– Workmen Compensation
	– Golfer’s Insurance
	– Bankers Blanket
	– Professional  Indemnity
	– Trekking Insurance
	– Public Liability Insurance
	– Commercial General Liability
	– Professional Liability Insurance
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7.  Technology Utilization
•	 SALICO is increasingly adopting InsurTech solutions to streamline operations, improve customer experience, enhance risk assessment, 

and boost claims processing efficiency. It has been using its very own Beema Manager for core insurance solution based on our own 
customization needs.

•	 We have mobile applications which can be accessed by the customers directly can make correspondence with us in terms of policy 
issuance and claim inquiry.

8. Consumer Engagement and Retention
•	 Customer service and engagement are key factors in retaining clients, building trust, providing value through additional services (like 

risk management advice), and ensuring quick claims fulfillment are essential. SALICO is dedicated to faster claim settlement, VIP claim 
settlement, and providing quick and pro response the customer queries.

9. Competitive Landscape
•	 The company has been facing competition from both existing companies and new entrants like micro insurance companies, including 

broker companies. Price competition, innovation, and customer service are critical differentiators.

	 Resources
1.	 Human Resources

SALICO has teamed up with wide range of professional ranging from engineers, M. Phil scholars, lawyers, doctors, chartered accountant, 
management experts, IT professionals and actuaries and their expertise have been well placed at various departments such as 
underwriting, claim, reinsurance, finance & planning, Information technology, human resource, administration, actuaries, legal, risk, 
internal control, compliance, research and development. As of now, the company is equipped with 641 number of human resources. 
Categories of the core insurance human resources have been prescribed below.
•	 Underwriters:•	 Underwriters:   Professionals who assess risks and determine the terms and pricing of insurance policies.
•	 Claims Adjusters:•	 Claims Adjusters: Specialists who handle the evaluation and processing of insurance claims, ensuring that they are 	

handled fairly and promptly.
•	 Actuaries:•	 Actuaries: Experts in mathematics and statistics who analyze actuarial data to assess risk and set premium rates and claim reserving.
•	 Sales and Marketing Teams:•	 Sales and Marketing Teams: Personnel who develop strategies to sell insurance products and promote the company's brand.
•	 Customer Service Representatives:•	 Customer Service Representatives: Staff who interact with clients, addressing inquiries and resolving issues related to policies and 

claims.
•	 IT Specialists:•	 IT Specialists: Technology professionals who maintain the company's digital infrastructure, support systems, and cybersecurity.

2. 	 Financial Resources
Financial resources of SALICO refers to the monetary reserves and assets, including premiums collected, investments, and capital, used 
to fund operations, cover claims, and ensure long-term solvency of the company. They are comprised as follow;
•	 Capital:•	 Capital: Funds provided by shareholders or retained earnings that support business operations, underwriting, and 	

claims payments.
•	 Premium Income:•	 Premium Income: Revenue generated from policyholders in the form of insurance premiums.
•	 Investment Income:•	 Investment Income: Earnings derived from investing the premiums collected, which can include stocks, bonds, realestate, and 

other financial assets. Proper investment management is crucial since these funds are used to pay future claims.

3. 	 Technical Resources
•	 Information Technology Systems:•	 Information Technology Systems: Software and hardware infrastructure that supports policy administration, claims processing, 

underwriting, and customer relationship management. The company as it’s own in house software Beema Manager.

Company's Resources, Usage, Sustainable Competitive Edge and Value Creation

Segmentation on the basis 
of risk profiles

	– High
	– Medium 
	– Low Risk

Market Segmentation
	– Individual
	– Partnership/ Private Firms
	– Private Company
	– Public Companies
	– Cooperatives
	– Insurance
	– NGO/INGOs
	– Private Trust
	– Public Trust
	– Educational Institution
	– Government Organizations
	– Diplomatic Organizations
	– Nonresident Nepali
	– Foreign Person
	– Foreign Company
	– Foreign NGO/INGOs

Micro
	– Micro Subsidy Policy
	– Health Insurance - Micro
	– Household - Micro
	– Micro Package Policy
	– Personal Accident - Micro
	– Micro Cattle & Crop Policy
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•	 Data Analytics Tools:•	 Data Analytics Tools: Systems used for analyzing large volumes of data for risk assessment, pricing strategies, claims analysis, and 
market research. The data analysis is supported by the company’s inhouse software Beema Manager.

•	 Claims Management Systems:•	 Claims Management Systems: The claim management is carried out through the inhouse software Beema Manager; our own 
customized specialized software designed to streamline the claims process, improve accuracy, and enhance customer satisfaction.

4. 	 Tangible  Assets
•	 Offices and Facilities:•	 Offices and Facilities: These include the physical locations where employees work, which include head office, regional offices, branch 

offices and extension counters. Altogether there are 108 offices of SALICO including 1 head office, 7 regional offices, 67 branch 
offices, 29 sub branches and 4 extension counters.

•	 Fixed Assets:•	 Fixed Assets: There are various groups of fixed assets of SALICO such as Land and Building, Office Equipment, 		
Computers & Accessories, Leasehold properties and other assets for effective operations.

5. 	 Legal and Regulatory Resources
•	 Compliance and Risk Management Teams:•	 Compliance and Risk Management Teams: Groups responsible for ensuring that the company adheres to laws, regulations, and 

industry standards, mitigating legal and operational risks.
•	 Legal Advisors:•	 Legal Advisors: In-house or external legal professionals who provide guidance on contracts, disputes, and regulatory issues.

6. 	 Reinsurance Relationships
•	 Reinsurance Contracts:•	 Reinsurance Contracts: Treaty Agreements with reinsurers that help manage risk exposure, allowing the insurance company to 

transfer a portion of its risk to another entity.

7. 	 Market Resources
•	 Distribution Channels:•	 Distribution Channels: Partnerships with insurance agents, brokers, and online platforms , mobile application that facilitate the sale 

of policies to consumers.
•	 Customer Relationships:•	 Customer Relationships: Established trust and goodwill with policyholders are vital for retention and to attract new customers 

through referrals and word-of-mouth.

8.	  Brand and Reputation
•	 Market Presence:•	 Market Presence: The company’s reputation, brand recognition, and customer loyalty, which influence its competitive positioning in 

the insurance market.
•	 Customer Feedback and Insights:•	 Customer Feedback and Insights: Information gathered from customers about their experiences and preferences, which can guide 

product development and service improvement.

Sustainable competitive edge
•	 Unique Product Differentiation•	 Unique Product Differentiation

SALICO seeks to differentiate its products and services in a competitive market by offering tailored insurance packages that cater to 
the specific needs of individuals, families, and businesses can set the company apart. This could include customizable coverage limits, 
deductibles, and add-ons.

•	 Fast and reliable claims services•	 Fast and reliable claims services
The company typically emphasizes efficient claims processing, aimed at minimizing the time taken from the submission of a claim to 
its settlement. It has a dedicated customer service team that can assist clients with the claims process, answering queries and providing 
guidance to ensure all necessary documentation is in order. SALICO prioritizes transparency in their claims procedures, providing 
clear information about what is covered under each policy and the steps involved in filing a claim. The company employs professional 
assessors to evaluate claims promptly, facilitating quick and fair settlements. Customers can expect regular updates on the status of their 
claims, keeping them informed throughout the process. The company typically aims to resolve claims in a manner that meets customer 
expectations, reinforcing their commitment to client satisfaction.

•	 One and only non-life JV company•	 One and only non-life JV company
Being a joint venture company in alliance with Ceylinco Holdings PLC , Shrilanka , the leader insurer in Shrilanka, allows the company 
to leverage international best practices and technologies, enhancing the quality of its services and products. The company enjoy better 
financial stability due to the pooling of resources, which can result in more reliable claims settlement. With exposure to global markets, 
SALICO focuses on innovation and modernization in the insurance industry, incorporating advanced technology and digital solutions.

•	 A leading non-life company•	 A leading non-life company
SALICO is considered one of the leading non-life insurance companies in Nepal. Its prominence in the insurance market can be attributed 
to several factors such as premium collection, efficient claim handling, best reinsurance arrangements etc.

•	 Good corporate governance•	 Good corporate governance
The company established a framework for transparency, accountability, and responsible management as a part of adherence to good 
corporate governance. It has a well-structured and diverse board of directors that includes experienced professionals from various 
fields. The board has independent director who can provide objective insights and oversight. There are clear definitions of the roles and 
responsibilities of the board, management, and other stakeholders ensure accountability in the company. There is regular and transparent 
communication with stakeholders regarding financial performance, strategic direction, and governance practices enhance trust and timely 
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disclosure of important information, including financial statements and annual reports to the stakeholders. It has established a code of 
conduct to promote ethical behavior within the organization is important for maintaining a positive corporate culture.

•	 Strong management team (Technically sound manpower)•	 Strong management team (Technically sound manpower)
A strong management team is crucial for the success of any organization. SALICO has technically sound workforce which enables the 
company to navigate the complexities of the insurance sector, meet regulatory requirements, and provide high-quality services to its 
customers. It has team up with mix of qualified professionals from fields of finance, law, business administration, economics, actuaries and 
risk management that can offer technical grounding to the company necessary for effective decision-making.

•	 Harmonious Board•	 Harmonious Board
A well-functioning board of SALICO has contributed to the company’s strategic direction, risk management, and overall performance. 
The board is composed of members with diverse backgrounds, experiences, and expertise. This diversity fosters richer discussions, varied 
perspectives, and innovation in decision-making. The board maintains a collective focus on the company’s strategic objectives tend to 
collaborate more effectively, making it easier to align individual perspectives with the larger organizational mission. The board is aware 
of and addresses the interests of various stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, customers, and regulators, helping to build a 
culture of collaboration.

•	 Wide networks•	 Wide networks
108 offices networks of SALICO across the country has helped to enhance customer reach, improve service delivery, and facilitate 
partnerships within the industry. A broad presence through multiple branch offices has enabled the company to serve clients in various 
geographical locations, making it more accessible to customers in urban and rural areas. A robust network of agents has helped the 
company to extend the company's reach. Utilization of digital channels, including websites and mobile applications has allowed the 
company for broader customer interaction and service. Online platforms has enabled the clients to get quotes, purchase policies, manage 
claims, and get support conveniently.

•	 Rated as good reinsurance back-up•	 Rated as good reinsurance back-up
Utilizing a mix of different types of reinsurance (e.g., quota share, excess of loss, stop-loss coverage) has provided comprehensive protection 
against various types of risks to SALICO. It has adopted the careful underwriting practices to choose the right risks for reinsurance, which 
has helped the company to maintain a healthy balance in the risk portfolio. The reinsurance agreements of SALICO have sufficient coverage 
limits to absorb potential large losses without exposing the company to significant financial strain.

•	 Financially sound•	 Financially sound
A higher solvency ratio of SALICO suggests that the company has a solid capital base relative to its liabilities. It has properly funded reserves 
to cover claims. A high claims settlement ratio of SALICO reflects the company’s reliability in settling claims. This enhances customer trust 
and contributes to financial stability. A diversified and well-managed investment portfolio of SALICO has reduced risk of the company 
and helped maintain returns on capital. Year-on-year premium growth rates and market share expansion are positive indicators of SALICO 
indicating financial strength and competitiveness.

•	 Customizable IT systems•	 Customizable IT systems
SALICO has its very own inhouse customizable core insurance software known as Beema Manager. The software can be designed to meet 
the specific needs and workflows of the organization, ensuring it aligns perfectly with business processes. SALICO can modify the software 
easily in response to changing requirements or regulatory landscapes without relying on external vendors. The company maintains 
complete control over the development, implementation, and maintenance of the software, allowing for more effective management of 
data and processes. Having control over the software also means better management of sensitive data, reducing the risk of data breaches 
associated with third-party solutions. Inhouse software has helped the company automate repetitive tasks, improve workflow efficiency, 
and reduce the time needed for processes such as policy underwriting and claims management. In-house software development has led 
the company to long-term savings by reducing licensing fees and other recurring costs associated with third-party applications and other 
subscription fees.

•	 A good physical infra•	 A good physical infra
SALICO has accessible offices located in business hubs or major cities can facilitate easy client interactions and employee commuting. It 
has outsourced secure data centers equipped with robust servers, backup systems and has prepared for disaster recovery solutions which 
are very crucial for managing large volumes of sensitive data. It has reliable telecommunication networks, including phone systems, video 
conferencing tools, and internet connectivity to facilitate effective communication within the company and with clients. It has robust 
physical or virtual centers for customer service that enable efficient handling of inquiries and claims. SALICO has strong measures in place 
to protect against data breaches and cyber threats, including firewalls, encryption, and security protocols. The company has separate areas 
designated for staff training, workshops, and continuing education to foster professional development. It has developed the infrastructure 
that includes contingency planning for disaster recovery and business continuity in the event of unforeseen circumstances, such as natural 
disasters.

•	 A strong brand image•	 A strong brand image
SALICO has preserved  a strong brand image in the market because of various factors such as financial stability, efficient claim handling and 
settlement, exceptional customer service, strong marketing and communication, community involvement, corporate social responsibility 
programs, visual branding, positive medica coverage , awards and recognition.
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Value Creation to the customers

The primary value of SALICO is to protect policyholders from 
unexpected �nancial losses due to accidents, natural disasters, theft, 
or liability claims. SALICO is o�ering a range of products tailored to 
meet various customer needs to attract a wider customer base. It has 
been creating bespoke insurance solutions for speci�c industries or 
customer segments to enhance client satisfaction and loyalty. It 
approaches the clients with risk management advice and resources 
can help them mitigate risks, leading to fewer claims and enhanced 
relationships. Fast and fair claims processing has helped the company 
to build trust and satisfaction among policyholders. It has been 
providing consistent, reliable customer support through various 
channels (phone, chat, social media) which improves customer 
satisfaction and retention. The company has invested in user-friendly 
digital interfaces for policy management, claims submission, and 
inquiries that enhances the overall customer experience. Utilizing a 
mix of agents, brokers, online platforms, and direct sales and collabo-
ration with other businesses has helped company reach a broader 
customers base.

SALICO has adopted the strategies and practices that not only focus on pro�tability of the company but also focuses on enhancement of customer 
satisfaction, stakeholder con�dence, and the overall impact on the community.

Value Creation to the company
 and shareholders

Value Creation to the society
SALICO has played a crucial role in society beyond their 
primary function of providing �nancial protection to 
individuals and businesses. By o�ering coverage against 
various risks, SALICO has helped individuals and businesses 
manage uncertainties, leading to greater �nancial stability within the 
community. It encourages individuals and businesses to adopt safety 
measures (like smoke detectors, security systems, or safe driving 
practices) to lower premiums, contributing to overall public safety. 
Insurance enables businesses to operate with greater con�dence, 
knowing they have protection against potential losses. This support 
allows businesses to innovate, invest, and create jobs, which bene�ts 
the economy at large. In the wake of natural disasters or signi�cant 
accidents, the company provides essential �nancial resources for 
recovery, helping communities rebuild and restore normalcy. By 
providing health insurance, SALICO supports access to healthcare 
services for individuals, promoting overall public health and reducing 
the burden on private expenses. SALICO is engaged in educating 
consumers about risk management, �nancial planning, and the 
importance of insurance, promoting �nancial literacy within communi-
ties. SALICO is signi�cant employer, providing various job opportunities, 
from underwriting and claims management to sales and customer 
service, thus supporting local economies and national economies. 
SALICO is engaged in various CSR initiatives, supporting local communi-
ties through charitable contributions, sponsorships, and volunteering 
activities. The company is providing microinsurance products that can 
help protect low-income individuals from unexpected emergencies 
without placing a heavy �nancial burden on them, promoting 
resilience. It has also supported new start ups by providing necessary 
coverage for startups and small businesses, fostering entrepreneurship, 
supporting innovation and economic diversi�cation.

Value Creation to
the national economy

SALICO provide essential coverage that allows individu-
als and businesses to protect their assets. This mitigates 

�nancial risks associated with unforeseen events like natural 
disasters, accidents, or health crises, enabling greater economic 
stability. Many businesses, from small startups to large corporations, 
require various types of insurance to operate legally and e�ciently, 
which SALICO has been able to cater the need in the country. With 
insurance coverage, entrepreneurs can take calculated risks, explore 
new opportunities, and launch ventures that contribute to job 
creation and economic growth. SALICO has helped national economy 
by creating employment opportunity, o�ering a wide range of jobs, 
from underwriting and claims processing to sales and customer 
service. The company’s premiums collection is invested in long-term 
�nancial instruments (like government bonds, infrastructure projects, 
and shares), contributing to capital formation and funding essential 
development projects. SALICO has played crucial role  in national 
economy by contributing signi�cantly to government revenue 
through taxes (corporate taxes, property taxes). This revenue can be 
used to fund public services and infrastructure by the government. 
The company also contribute through regulatory fees, which support 
the broader �nancial regulatory framework. In the aftermath of 
disasters, company’s payouts help stabilize local economies by 
providing funds for recovery and reconstruction, helping communi-
ties bounce back quickly to attain economic resilience. The products 
of SALICO like marine and cargo insurance are crucial for businesses 
engaging in international trade, enabling smoother transactions and 
greater economic cooperation. Providing a�ordable insurance 
products (such as microinsurance) protects low-income populations, 
contributing to their economic participation and reducing poverty 
levels. In overall SALICO has been able to create value addition in the 
GDP of national economy.

VALUE CREATION

SALICO has been able to achieve the sustainable growth and 
pro�tability due to prudent underwriting, which has reduced the 
likelihood of claims, thereby ensuring pro�tability. It has been 
maintaining a favorable loss ratio through diligent risk selection by 
enhancing pro�tability, directly bene�ting shareholders. A well-man-
aged investment portfolio has helped the company generate substan-
tial income, contributing signi�cantly to the company’s overall 
earnings. Streamlining operations through technology and process 
improvements had led to cost reduction and increase in margins. This 
enhances pro�tability, which directly bene�ts shareholders. A strong 
relationship with policyholders had led to cross-selling of other 
insurance products, enhancing revenue streams. Introducing new 
insurance products to meet emerging market needs has captured 
new customer segments and increased market share. A mix of 
insurance products across di�erent sectors and geographical areas of 
the country has helped spread risk. This diversi�cation stabilizes 
revenue and reduces the impact of adverse events in any one area. 
Utilization of big data and analytics has allowed for better 
decision-making regarding underwriting, claims management, and 
customer engagement, thus enhancing overall performance. SALICO 
has been able to distribute consistent dividend to the shareholders 

which has helped boost stock prices, providing direct �nancial 
bene�ts to shareholders.
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Major sources of capital of SALICO can be illustrated as below;

Major Sources of Capital and Their Interconnectedness

 The company has raised the capital by issuing stocks (equity) to investors. This include initial public o�erings 
(IPOs), right shares and bonus shares issues at various time frames since the date of establishment. As of now the 
company has the authorized capital of NPR 5,000,000,000 (50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each) and paid 
up capital of NPR 2,622,638,200 (26,226,382 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.)

Equity share capital

 These are funds set aside to pay for future claims. Company maintains reserves to ensure they have enough 
capital to meet their obligations, and the returns on these reserves are also a source of income. The reserves are 
adequately maintained complying the adherence to the directives issued by the regulator and report provided 
by the actuarial valuation. There are various types of reserves maintained by the company such as special reserve, 
Catastrophe reserves, retained earnings and outstanding claim reserves, unexpired risk reserves. These reserves 
helps company to free up the capital in case of potential threats and losses to the company. As per the prevailing 
laws, the company needs to allocate 50% of the net pro�t to the special reserve until it equalizes the prescribed 
capital by the regulator, and 10% of the remainder should be allocated for catastrophe reserve.

Reserves

 SALICO has provision in article of association regarding raising of capital through debt instruments, such as 
issuing bonds or obtaining loans. This provides immediate capital but also requires repayment with interest. As of 
now, the company has not resorted to the debt �nancing.

Debt Financing

This refers to the pro�ts that the SALICO retained after paying dividends to shareholders. Retained earnings are 
reinvested back into the business, providing an internal source of capital.

Retained Earning

Collaboration with Ceylinco Insurance PLC as joint ventures has provided additional capital or resources for 
expansion and risk management and cross border technological reciprocation as well.

Partnership or Joint Ventures

SALICO can resort to  sale of the portions of investment portfolio or other assets to raise capital when needed.

Asset Sales
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Interconnectedness of capital resources
•	 Risk Management:•	 Risk Management: The capital resources are employed in risk assessment and management strategies. For instance, having sufficient equity 

capital allows a company to absorb losses from claim payouts, supporting a stable financial position.

•	 Investment Strategies:•	 Investment Strategies: The capital raised is invested in various asset classes (bonds, stocks, real estate) to generate returns. The performance 
of these investments directly impacts the company’s profitability and its ability to meet liabilities.

•	 Regulatory Requirements:•	 Regulatory Requirements: Company is operated under strict regulatory frameworks that dictate minimum capital requirements. The 
interconnection between equity, reserves, and reinsurance is critical in ensuring compliance with solvency regulations.

•	 Liquidity Management:•	 Liquidity Management: Maintaining a balance between liquid assets and liabilities is essential. This interconnectedness ensures that the 
company can meet its short-term obligations while still having adequate capital for long-term growth.

•	 Operational Flexibility:•	 Operational Flexibility: Sufficient capital resources allow a general insurance company to adapt its business strategy in response to changing 
market conditions or emerging risks, including climate change or economic shifts.

SALICO’s plan for resource usage and major programs is intricately connected to its capital planning. By aligning these components, SALICO has 
the opportunity to optimize it’s operations, manage risks effectively, and ensure long-term financial stability. This creates a holistic approach that 
supports sustainable growth, regulatory compliance, and responsiveness to changing market dynamics. Implementing a structured framework 
that integrates these plans enables the company to navigate complexities and capitalize on opportunities within the insurance landscape. 
Company’s plan for resource usage and major programs is fundamentally tied to its overall capital plan. These components work together 
to ensure the company operates efficiently while managing risks and meeting regulatory requirements. Here’s how these plans are typically 
structured and related:

1.	 Resource Usage Plan
This plan outlines how SALICO will allocate its financial, human, and operational resources to achieve its strategic objectives. It includes:
•	 Human Resources Plan:Human Resources Plan: Identifying the workforce needed for various functions of departments such as  (underwriting, claims, Accounts, 

reinsurance, administration, internal control, legal, human resource, risk management, and customer service) and assessing training and 
development needs. SALICO has annual and semiannual assessment of staff need and evaluation.

•	 Financial Resources Plan:Financial Resources Plan: This plan includes allocation of capital for underwriting new policies, handling claims, investing in technology, 
and maintaining operational infrastructure, reserving etc. The assessment of position of the solvency and capital is reviewed quarterly by 
the company to see whether capital is adequate according to the operation.

•	 Operational Resources:Operational Resources: This plan of SALICO ensures that all necessary systems (IT and infrastructures are in place and effectively functioning. 
These are monitored on a quarterly basis.

Key Aspects of Resource Usage Planning:Key Aspects of Resource Usage Planning:
•	 Efficiency and Cost Control:Efficiency and Cost Control: Analyzing operational processes to minimize costs while maintaining service quality.
•	 Alignment with Strategic Goals:Alignment with Strategic Goals: Ensuring that resource allocation is aligned with the SALICO’s strategic goals, such as entering new markets 

or developing new insurance products.
•	 Adaptability:Adaptability: Being prepared to adjust resource allocations in response to market conditions, regulatory changes, or unforeseen events 

(e.g., natural disasters).

2. 	 Major Programs
Major programs of SALICO refer to significant initiatives undertaken by the company to enhance its operational capabilities, market reach, or 
overall effectiveness. These could include:
•	 Product Development:Product Development: Launching new insurance products or enhancing existing products based on market analysis and consumer needs.
•	 Technology Investments:Technology Investments: Upgrading the existing software systems for underwriting, claims management, Reinsurance management or 

customer service to improve operational efficiency.
•	 Marketing and Outreach:Marketing and Outreach: SALICO has various programs in pipeline aimed at increasing brand awareness, customer engagement, and 

retention.
•	 Risk Management Initiatives:Risk Management Initiatives: Programs designed to strengthen the company’s risk assessment and mitigation capabilities, including 

investing in actuarial resources and analytics.

Program Planning Considerations:Program Planning Considerations:
•	 Return on Investment (ROI): Analyzing the expected financial and strategic benefits from major programs against the required investment.
•	 Timeline and Milestones: Establishing timelines for implementation and defining success metrics.
•	 Stakeholder Involvement: Engaging relevant internal stakeholders to ensure alignment and support for program initiatives.

3. 	 Relation with the Capital Plan
The capital plan of SALICO outlines how the company will maintain adequate capital levels to support its operations, meet regulatory 

Plan for Resources Usage and Major Programs and Their Relation with the Capital Plan 
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requirements, and manage risks. Here's how it connects to resource usage and major programs:
•	 Capital Allocation:Capital Allocation: SALICO regularly ensures that sufficient capital is set aside for underwriting activities, claims reserves, investment in new 

programs, and maintaining financial stability. This includes assessing the capital impact of major programs and ensuring they are funded 
without jeopardizing the insurer's solvency.

•	 Risk-Based Capital:Risk-Based Capital: SALICO is continuously aware about the maintenance of capital in relation to their risk profile. This directly influences 
resource usage decisions—more capital may be allocated to high-risk areas, while programs that improve risk management frameworks 
might need less capital.

•	 Regulatory Compliance:Regulatory Compliance: The capital plan of SALICO is in alignment with regulatory requirements related to solvency and capital ratios. 
Resource usage is motnitored to support compliance efforts, ensuring the company remains solvent under various stress scenarios.

•	 Strategic Investments:Strategic Investments: Major programs that require significant capital investment are assessed regularly for their long-term impact on the 
company’s capital position. The company has developed capital forecasts that include potential returns from these programs, influencing 
their timing and scope.
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NoteNote:
•	 Comparative Figures includes the data of Erstwhile Lumbini General Insurance Company Limited before merger.
•	 To ensure consistent comparability. The share capital component of Erstwhile Lumbini General Insurance Company Limited is calculated at 

80%, based on the swap ratio of 100:80.
•	 To assess historical trends, a comparative analysis has been prepared using the the data of previous five fiscal years'.
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Information about Different Products, Insurance Policies and Enterprise Wide Function

Product Classification						    
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party (the 
policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects 
the policyholders. The insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

I) PROPERTY PORTFOLIO:
Property/Fire insurance business means the business of a�ecting and carrying out contracts of insurance, otherwise than 
incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other 
occurrences customarily included among the risks insured against in the property/fire insurance business.

II) MOTOR PORTFOLIO:
Motor insurance business means the business of a�ecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or 
arising out of or in connection with the use of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

III) MARINE PORTFOLIO:
Marine insurance business means the business of a�ecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of 
goods during transit.

IV) ENGINEERING PORTFOLIO:
Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing 
construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment in project operation.

V) MICRO PORTFOLIO:
It covers low income people by various Micro Insurance product and some special type of policies as formulated by Nepal 
Insurance Authority (NIA). 

VI) AVIATION PORTFOLIO:
Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger injuries, environmental and third-party 
damage caused by aircraft accidents.

VII) AGRICULTURE PORTFOLIO:
It covers against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential to provide value to low-income farmers and their 
communities, both by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.

VIII) MISCELLANEOUS PORTFOLIO:
All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above categories fall under miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal 
Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.
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In order to achieve its strategic objectives, SALICO has devised clear short-term, medium-term, and long-term strategies, along with effective 
resource allocation. Here’s a breakdown of each timeframe's strategies and the associated resource allocation:

Short-Term Strategies (0 - 1 Year)
1. Strategies:
•	 Enhancing Customer Service:•	 Enhancing Customer Service: Implementing improvements in claims processing and customer support.
•	 Market Penetration:•	 Market Penetration:  Aggressively marketing existing products to increase policy sales within current markets.
•	 Cost Control:•	 Cost Control: Streamlining operations to reduce overhead costs and improve profitability.
•	 Regulatory Compliance:•	 Regulatory Compliance: Ensuring all practices meet necessary regulations to avoid fines and penalties.

2. Resource Allocation:
•	 Financial Resources:Financial Resources: Redirecting budget towards marketing, customer support enhancements, and operational fficiencies.
•	 Human Resources:Human Resources: Training staff in better customer interactions and claims processing efficiency.
•	 Technology Investments:Technology Investments: Upgrading IT systems for faster claims processing and efficient customer service (e.g., chatbots and CRM systems).
•	 Working Capital:Working Capital: Ensuring enough liquidity to meet operational demands and pay out claims promptly.
•	 Medium-Term Strategies (1 - 3 Years)Medium-Term Strategies (1 - 3 Years)

Medium-Term Strategies (1 - 3 Years)
1. Strategies:
•	 Product Diversification:Product Diversification: Developing and launching new insurance products tailored to meet evolving customer needs (e.g., usage-based 

insurance).
•	 Expansion into New Markets:Expansion into New Markets: Entering new geographic regions or demographic markets to grow the customer base.
•	 Risk Management Enhancements:Risk Management Enhancements: Strengthening risk assessment capabilities through advanced analytics and data management.
•	 Partnerships and Collaborations:Partnerships and Collaborations: Building alliances with insurtech firms or other companies to leverage technology and customer access.

2. Resource Allocation:
•	 Investment in R&D:Investment in R&D: Allocating a budget for the development of new products and market research.
•	 Marketing Budget:Marketing Budget: Increasing spending on marketing campaigns to support new product launches and market expansion efforts.
•	 Human Capital:Human Capital: Hiring specialists (actuaries, data analysts, product developers) to support diversification and innovation efforts.
•	 Capital Reserves:Capital Reserves: Setting aside funds to support entry into new markets and manage regulatory requirements.

Long-Term Strategies (3+ Years)
1. Strategies:
•	 Transformational Digital Initiatives:Transformational Digital Initiatives: Fully integrating technology throughout the insurance value chain, from underwriting to claims and 

customer engagement.
•	 Sustainability Goals:Sustainability Goals: Developing practices and products that promote environmental responsibility and meet emerging regulatory 

standards.
•	 Brand Building and Reputation Management:Brand Building and Reputation Management: Establishing a strong brand presence and trust in the marketplace through consistent and 

high-quality service delivery.
•	 Adaptation to Market Disruptions:Adaptation to Market Disruptions: Creating flexible business models to adapt to changes in customer preferences, competitive landscapes, 

and technological evolutions.

STRATEGIC PLAN
AND DEVELOPMENT

5.

Short, Medium and Long Term Strategies of the Organization and Resource Allocation
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2. Resource Allocation:
•	 Long-Term Capital Investments:Long-Term Capital Investments: Committing substantial financial resources to advanced technology ecosystems (e.g., AI, machine learning) 

that enhance decision-making and operational efficiency.
•	 Strategic Workforce Development:Strategic Workforce Development: Investing in ongoing training and career development programs to groom future leaders and retain 

talent.
•	 Research and Development (R&D):Research and Development (R&D): Continuously investing in market research to stay ahead of trends and refine product offerings.
•	 Sustainability Initiatives:Sustainability Initiatives: Allocating funds for sustainable practices and investments that enhance corporate social responsibility, which can 

also serve as a marketing advantage.

1. Insurance Development
Strategy Overview:
SALICO’s strategy for insurance development focuses on enhancing the company’s capabilities, expanding its market presence, and adapting to 
changing industry dynamics.

Key Strategies:
•	 Market Research and Analysis:Market Research and Analysis: Implementing comprehensive research to identify market gaps, customer preferences, and emerging trends 

to inform product development and service enhancements.
•	 Regulatory Compliance:Regulatory Compliance: Establishing robust frameworks to ensure compliance with local and international regulations, thereby minimizing 

legal risks and fostering trust.
•	 Technological Advancements:Technological Advancements: Investing in technology platforms (e.g., data analytics, artificial intelligence) that enhance underwriting 

precision, claim analysis, and customer insights.
•	 Risk Assessment Improvements:Risk Assessment Improvements: Strengthening actuarial and underwriting models with data-driven insights to better evaluate and price 

risks.

Implementation Steps:
•	 Create cross-functional teams dedicated to continuous improvement and innovation.
•	 Establish partnerships with technology firms to leverage cutting-edge solutions.
•	 Conduct regular training for staff on market trends and regulatory updates.

2. Insurance Products
Strategy Overview:
SALICO’ strategy for developing a diverse range of insurance products tailored to meet the specific needs of various market segments is crucial 
for attracting and retaining customers.

Key Strategies:
•	 Product Diversification:Product Diversification: Expanding the product portfolio to include innovative insurance offerings, such as cyber liability, usage-based 

insurance (UBI), and enhanced health insurance products.
•	 Customization:Customization: Allowing flexible policy frameworks that enable customers to tailor coverage according to their individual needs, such as 

add-ons or endorsements.
•	 Sustainability and Social Responsibility:Sustainability and Social Responsibility: Developing products that cater to environmentally conscious consumers, like green insurance 

policies that offer incentives for sustainable practices.
•	 Bundling Opportunities:Bundling Opportunities: Creating bundled insurance packages (e.g., home and auto insurance) to simplify customer choices and drive 

higher sales volumes.

Implementation Steps:
•	 Invest in market testing for potential new products to gauge customer interest and price sensitivity.
•	 Provide ongoing training for sales teams to effectively communicate product features and benefits.
•	 Establish clear channels for receiving and acting on customer feedback regarding existing products.

3. Insurance Services
Strategy Overview:
The strategy related to insurance services emphasizes delivering exceptional customer experience and value-added services throughout the 
customer lifecycle.
Key Strategies:
•	 Enhanced Customer Support:Enhanced Customer Support: Establishing multi-channel customer service platforms (phone, chat, online portals) to address customer 

inquiries and claims efficiently.
•	 Claims Processing Efficiency:Claims Processing Efficiency: Implementing technology solutions that streamline the claims process, including digital submission, status 

tracking, and fast-tracking claims for low-risk scenarios.

Strategy for Insurance Development, Insurance Products and Insurance Services
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•	 Advisory Services:Advisory Services: Offering consultancy services for risk management, safety assessments, and loss prevention to help clients mitigate risks 
before they occur.

•	 Educational Initiatives:Educational Initiatives: Providing resources, workshops, and seminars to educate clients about coverage options, risk management, and 
claims processes.

•	 Distribution Channel:Distribution Channel: Establishing the new distribution channel of insurance products and services.

Implementation Steps:
•	 Develop a customer relationship management (CRM) system to keep track of customer interactions and preferences.
•	 Regularly train customer service representatives on the latest products and claims handling procedures.
•	 Utilize customer feedback surveys to gauge satisfaction and areas for improvement.

The company has developed the sustainability strategy integrating environmental, social, and governance (ESG) principles into its operations 
and offerings. This not only helps mitigate risks but can also enhance competitiveness in a market that increasingly values sustainability. Below 
mentioned are the comprehensive sustainability strategy with measurable objectives tailored specifically for SALICO.

1. Environmental Responsibility
Objectives:
•	 Carbon Neutrality:Carbon Neutrality: Achieve carbon neutrality in company operations by 2030.
•	 Sustainable Underwriting:Sustainable Underwriting: Integrate ESG risk assessments into 100% of underwriting processes by 2030.
•	 Office Energy Efficiency:Office Energy Efficiency: Reduce energy consumption in offices by 20% through energy efficiency upgrades by 2030.

Measurable Actions:
•	 Conduct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions audits annually and track progress toward carbon neutrality.
•	 Implement a revised underwriting framework that incorporates ESG criteria and report on the percentage of policies evaluated annually.
•	 Monitor energy usage and conduct annual reviews of energy consumption metrics, reporting on savings and achieved efficiencies.

2. Social Commitment
Objectives:
•	 Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion:Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion: Ensure that 25% of all new hires and leadership roles come from underrepresented groups by 2030.
•	 Community Engagement:Community Engagement: Invest at least 1% of post-tax profits annually in community programs and initiatives focused on education, 

health, and sustainability. (CSR)
•	 Consumer Education:Consumer Education: Reach at least 50% of policyholders through educational initiatives about sustainable practices and available green 

insurance products by 2030.

Measurable Actions:
•	 Track demographic data on new hires and leadership positions annually, assessing progress toward diversity goals.
•	 Establish a program to monitor community investments and run annual reports detailing how funds improve community outcomes.
•	 Develop a reporting mechanism to gauge customer participation and feedback on educational workshops and products, tracking 

engagement metrics quarterly.

3. Governance and Ethical Standards
Objectives:
•	 Transparent Reporting:Transparent Reporting: Commit to publishing an annual sustainability report by 2030 that aligns with Climate Risk guideline and standards 

issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.
•	 Risk Management Framework:Risk Management Framework: Include ESG criteria in the company’s risk management framework by 2030, with a focus on recognizing 

potential climate-related risks in underwriting and investment decisions.
•	 Stakeholder Engagement:Stakeholder Engagement: Engage at least 60% of stakeholders (employees, clients, investors) in sustainability initiatives through	s u r ve ys 

or participatory programs annually.

Measurable Actions:
•	 Create a dedicated section on the company’s website for sustainability reports and progress updates, monitored for transparency and 

accessibility.
•	 Track the integration of ESG factors in reports, investment strategies, and risk assessments through regular compliance audits.
•	 Utilize stakeholder surveys and feedback mechanisms to measure engagement and satisfaction levels with sustainability initiatives.

Sustainability Strategy with Measurable Objectives
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Implementation Plan
1.	 Leadership Support:Leadership Support:
	 Establish a sustainability governance structure led by a Risk Officer supported by cross-departmental teams.

2.	 Stakeholder Engagement:Stakeholder Engagement:
	 Involve employees, clients, and community members in the design and implementation phases through workshops, focus groups, and 	
	 feedback sessions.

3.	 Progress Monitoring:Progress Monitoring:
	 Set up dashboards to track KPIs related to environmental impact, social initiatives, and governance practices. Conduct quarterly 		
	 reviews to assess progress toward objectives.

4.	 Adaptation and Innovation:Adaptation and Innovation:
	 Continuously evaluate industry’s best practices and emerging trends in sustainability to adapt strategies as necessary.

The company faces a dynamic and evolving landscape influenced by economic, technological, regulatory, and environmental factors. Here’s a 
review of the future business prospects of SALICO, highlighting key trends, challenges, and opportunities.
1. Market Trends and Growth Potential
•	 Increasing Awareness of Risk Management:Increasing Awareness of Risk Management:

Businesses and consumers are becoming more aware of the need for adequate insurance coverage due to rising instances of natural 
disasters, cyber threats, and health crises. This trend is expected to bolster demand for general insurance products.

•	 Digital Transformation:Digital Transformation:
The adoption of digital technologies is reshaping the insurance landscape. Innovations such as artificial intelligence (AI), machine learning, 
and big data analytics are enhancing underwriting accuracy, improving customer service, and streamlining claims processes.

•	 Sustainability and ESG Focus:Sustainability and ESG Focus:
There is a growing expectation for insurers to embrace sustainable practices and offer products that reflect environmental, social, and 
governance (ESG) principles. Companies that align their offerings with these values can capture new market segments.

•	 Tailored Products and Customization:Tailored Products and Customization:
The demand for personalized insurance solutions is rising. Insurers that leverage data analytics to provide tailored coverage will likely 
capture more clients and enhance customer loyalty.

2. Regulatory Environment
•	 Stricter Regulations:Stricter Regulations:

Insurers are facing increasing regulatory scrutiny around data protection, financial stability, and claims handling. Companies will need to 
invest in compliance frameworks to navigate these complexities.

•	 Sustainability Regulations:Sustainability Regulations:
As governments and regulatory bodies push for sustainability, insurers will need to demonstrate their commitment to ESG initiatives 
inreporting practices and their investment portfolios.

3. Technological Advancements
•	 Insurtech Collaboration:Insurtech Collaboration:

The rise of insurtech firms is prompting traditional insurers to consider partnerships or collaborations that can enhance their service 
offerings and operational efficiency.

•	 Automation and AI:Automation and AI:
Implementing AI and automation in claims processing, underwriting, and customer service will streamline operations and reduce costs 
while enhancing customer experience.

4. Risk Landscape
•	 Climate Change and Natural Disasters:Climate Change and Natural Disasters:

The increasing frequency and severity of natural disasters pose significant challenges. Insurers will need to adapt their risk models and 
pricing strategies accordingly to mitigate potential losses.

•	 Cyber Risks:Cyber Risks:
The rise in cyber incidents calls for innovative coverage solutions. General insurers that develop comprehensive cyber insurance 	products 
can meet the growing demand from both businesses and individuals.

Review of the Future Business Prospects
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•	 Health Risks Post-Pandemic:Health Risks Post-Pandemic:
The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in lasting changes to health and life insurance markets. Insurers must adapt to these shifts by offering 
products that address emerging health risks.

5. Competitive Landscape
•	 Emerging Competitors:Emerging Competitors: New entrants, particularly micro insurers and brokers, are disrupting traditional insurance markets. This creates 

both competition and opportunities for collaboration.
•	 Customer Expectations:Customer Expectations: As customers increasingly expect seamless experiences similar to those provided by technology companies, 

insurers need to enhance their digital channels and customer service capabilities.

6. Financial Performance and Investment Opportunities
•	 Investment in Technology:Investment in Technology: Allocating resources toward digital transformation and technology upgrades will be critical for long-term 

profitability. Companies that can efficiently leverage technology will gain a competitive edge.
•	 Focus on Product Innovation:Focus on Product Innovation: Investing in the development of innovative insurance products that cater to new risks, such as gig economy 

coverage or pandemic- related policies, can drive growth.
•	 Diverse Investment Portfolio:Diverse Investment Portfolio: Maintaining a diverse investment portfolio will be essential for managing risks and ensuring financial stability, 

particularly in uncertain economic conditions.

 The external environment has exerted a significant influence on company’s business operations, strategy, and overall performance. Below is an 
analysis of the key external environmental factors and their potential effects on a general insurer's business:

1. Economic Factors
•	 Economic Cycles:Economic Cycles:

Economic growth or recession directly impacts the demand for insurance products. In prosperous times, businesses and consumers are 
more likely to invest in insurance for protection against risks. Conversely, during economic downturns, insurance purchases may decline as 
both individuals and businesses reduce expenditures.

•	 Inflation Rates:Inflation Rates:
Rising inflation can lead to higher claims costs and increased underwriting expenses, prompting insurers to adjust premiums accordingly. 
Insurers must also evaluate the adequacy of reserves to account for increased future claims due to inflation.

•	 Interest Rates:Interest Rates:
Interest rates affect insurers' investment income, which is a significant revenue source. Low-interest rates can decrease investment returns, 
prompting insurers to seek alternative investment strategies to maintain profitability.

2. Regulatory Environment
•	 Compliance Requirements:Compliance Requirements:

The insurance industry is heavily regulated, and changes in laws and regulations can impact operations, product offerings, and profitability. 
Insurers must continuously adapt to comply with evolving regulatory requirements regarding consumer protection, solvency, and data 
privacy.

•	 Capital Requirements:Capital Requirements:
Insurers are required to hold a certain level of capital reserves. Changes in these requirements can impact the company’s financial flexibility 
and ability to underwrite new business.

•	 Environmental Regulations:Environmental Regulations:
Regulatory pressures regarding climate change and sustainability may necessitate changes in underwriting guidelines, particularly for 
sectors exposed to environmental risks (e.g., real estate and motor insurance in flood zones).

3. Technological Factors
•	 Digital Transformation:Digital Transformation:

Rapid technological advances are reshaping the insurance landscape. Insurers must invest in digital platforms and capabilities (e.g., mobile 
apps, online portals) to enhance customer experience, streamline operations, and improve claim processing.

•	 Data Analytics:Data Analytics:
The use of big data and advanced analytics enables company to refine risk assessment, personalize products, and improve pricing accuracy. 
However, reliance on data raises questions about privacy and data security, necessitating investments in cybersecurity measures.

•	 Insurtech Competition:Insurtech Competition:
The emergence of insurtech startups has intensified competition, offering innovative technology-driven products and services. Insurers 
must adapt to this competition, either through collaboration or by developing their own technological solutions.

Effect of External Environment on Business 
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4. Social and Demographic Factors
•	 Changing Customer Expectations:Changing Customer Expectations:

Customers are demanding more personalized, transparent, and accessible insurance solutions. Insurers need to leverage data and 
technology to meet these evolving expectations and enhance customer service.

•	 Demographic Changes:Demographic Changes:
Shifts in demographics, such as an aging population, can affect insurance product demand. For example, an older demographic may 
increase demand for health and life insurance products, while younger generations may favor digital-first solutions.

•	 Cultural Attitudes:Cultural Attitudes:
Attitudes toward risk and insurance vary by culture and may affect purchasing behavior. Insurers must understand these cultural nuances 
to tailor their marketing and product offerings effectively.

5. Environmental Factors
•	 Climate Change:Climate Change:

The increasing frequency and severity of natural disasters (e.g., earthquake, floods, landslide,  wildfires) associated with climate change can 
lead to higher claims and necessitate re-evaluation of risk exposure. Insurers may need to adjust pricing models, enhance risk assessment 
capability, and develop new products for emergent risks.

•	 Sustainability Initiatives:Sustainability Initiatives:
There is growing pressure from stakeholders for companies to adopt sustainable practices. Companies are expected to incorporate ESG 
considerations into their operations and offerings, which can impact branding, customer loyalty, and policy development.

6. Political Factors
•	 Political Stability:Political Stability:

Political stability within a region influences the business environment for insurers. Political instability or turmoil can lead to increased risk 
exposure and affect underwriting practices.

•	 Tax Policies:Tax Policies:
Changes in taxation, particularly regarding capital gains, corporate taxes, or tax incentives for insurance products, can influence insurers' 
profitability and revenue generation.
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•	 SALICO provide essential coverage that allows individuals and businesses to protect their assets. This mitigates financial risks associated 
with unforeseen events like natural disasters, accidents, or health crises, enabling greater economic stability.

•	 Many businesses, from small startups to large corporations, require various types of insurance to operate legally and efficiently, which 
SALICO has been able to cater the need in the country. With insurance coverage, entrepreneurs can take calculated risks, explore new 
opportunities, and launch ventures that contribute to job creation and economic growth. 

•	 SALICO has helped the national economy by creating employment opportunity, offering a wide range of jobs, from underwriting and 
claims processing to sales and customer service. 

•	 The company’s premiums collection is invested in long-term financial instruments (like government bonds, infrastructure projects, and 
shares), contributing to capital formation and funding essential development projects. 

•	 SALICO has played a crucial role in national economy by contributing significantly to government revenue through taxes (corporate taxes, 
property taxes). This revenue can be used to fund public services and infrastructure by the government. 

•	 The company also contributes through regulatory fees, which support the broader financial regulatory framework. 
•	 In the aftermath of disasters, companies’ payouts help stabilize local economies by providing funds for recovery and reconstruction, helping 

communities bounce back quickly to attain economic resilience. 
•	 The products of SALICO, like marine and cargo insurance are crucial for businesses engaging in international trade, enabling smoother 

transactions and greater economic cooperation. 
•	 Providing affordable insurance products (such as microinsurance) protects low-income populations, contributing to their economic 

participation and reducing poverty levels. 
•	 In overall SALICO has been able to create value addition in the GDP of national economy.

As awareness of environmental, social, and governance (ESG) issues has grown, SALICO aims in taking significant steps to become more 
sustainable and contribute to a sustainable global economy. Below are various actions that SALICO is aiming to  enhance their sustainability 
profiles:

Contribution in National Economy

Action Taken by the Company to Become More Sustainable and to Contribute to  a Sustainable
Global Economy

Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company (SALICO) has a strong devotion to staff welfare since they believe that a facilitated workforce will bring more 
productivity and job satisfaction within the workplace. As part of this devotion, the company initiated the following various steps toward staff welfare:

a.	 Despite employees being enrolled with the Social Security Fund as required by law, SALICO has further gone ahead and provided additional 
security. The company offers medical insurance coverage of up to Rs. 2.5 lakhs and accidental insurance of up to Rs. 44.64 Lakhs so that its 
workers are better financially secured.

b.	 SALICO is committed to the continuous growth and expansion of its human resources. Towards this, it undertakes several Province wise In-House 
Training Programs and specialist-led programs to enhance and upgrade the employees' knowledge and skills.

c.	 SALICO regularly conducts training sessions covering various aspects of professional and personal development. Additionally, the company 
collaborates with renowned institutions and trainers to further enhance learning opportunities for its employees.

d.	 SALICO values the importance of work-life balance and fosters a good work environment. SALICO has different policies and programs in place to 
enable staff to balance their personal and work lives.

e.	 The company has introduced well-structured policies aimed at supporting employees' mental health and overall well-being, ensuring a positive 
and healthy work environment.

f.	 To foster mental health and a healthy work-life balance, the company goes beyond the standard leave policies by offering additional leave 
benefits in form of Force Leave. This initiative is specifically designed to offer greater flexibility and support to employees, helping them manage 
their personal and family responsibilities while maintaining their well-being and job satisfaction.

SALICO's employee welfare programs are an indicator of the company's high degree of dedication to creating a favorable and compassionate working 
environment. Through its high prioritization of workers' well-being in its policies and benefits, the company makes the employees feel valued and 
cared for. Such programs, from comprehensive health insurance to force leave, continuous training, and mental health care, not only enhance 
employees' satisfaction but also their morale and performance.

As a result of this positive work culture, it has a direct impact on overall company success. Valued and supported employees are more motivated, 
loyal, and engaged, thus performing better and innovating. Moreover, the reputation of SALICO as a caring and responsible employer improves the 
company's brand image, making it an attractive workplace and a trustworthy company to stakeholders and clients. 

Initiatives Taken for Staff Welfare
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1. Sustainable Investment Strategies
•	 Responsible Investment:Responsible Investment: SALICO aims in integrating ESG criteria into their investment strategies. This includes investing in renewable 

energy projects, green bonds, and socially responsible companies while avoiding investments in fossil fuels, tobacco, and petrol and diesel 
vehicles.

•	 Climate Risk Assessment:Climate Risk Assessment: SALICO has developed the frameworks to assess climate-related financial risks in their investment portfolios 
and underwriting practices. This assessment helps in aligning investments with climate goals, such as those outlined in Nepal Insurance 
Authority’s directives.

2. Green Insurance Products
•	 Eco-friendly Policies:•	 Eco-friendly Policies: SALICO aims in developing products that encourage sustainable practices among policyholders. For example, offering 

green home insurance that provides coverage for solar panels or other energy-efficient installations, or auto insurance discounts for electric 
vehicles.

•	 Climate Resilience Coverage:•	 Climate Resilience Coverage: SALICO aims in creating specialized products that promote resilience against climate-related risks, such as 
coverage for flood defenses or financial incentives for businesses that implement sustainable practices.

3. Operational Sustainability Initiatives
•	 Reducing Carbon Footprint:•	 Reducing Carbon Footprint: SALICO aims in taking steps to reduce own carbon emissions form its proesses. This can include green office 

spaces, energy-efficient technologies, adopting telecommuting practices, and minimizing business travel.
•	 Sustainable Supply Chain:•	 Sustainable Supply Chain: SALICO aims in assessing the sustainability of their supply chains. This includes choosing vendors and partners 

who align with their sustainability goals and encouraging responsible practices throughout their operations.

4. Community Engagement and Social Responsibility
•	 Supporting Local Communities:•	 Supporting Local Communities: SALICO has been engaging in corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives aimed at benefiting local 

communities. This might involve funding community projects, promoting financial literacy programs, or supporting disaster relief efforts.
•	 Stakeholder Engagement:•	 Stakeholder Engagement: SALICO is beginning to communicate more transparently with stakeholders about their sustainability goals, 

including clients, employees, shareholders, and the broader community. Regular reporting on ESG performance and initiatives fosters 
accountability.

5. Regulatory Compliance and Leadership
•	 Meeting Regulatory Standards:•	 Meeting Regulatory Standards: Many countries have introduced regulations that require transparency regarding climate-related risks and 

sustainability practices. SALICO is also staying ahead of these regulations by adopting best practices and reporting standards such as the 
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). The company has framed climate risk policy.

•	 Industry Collaboration:•	 Industry Collaboration: SALICO aims to collaborate with industry associations, NGOs, and governmental bodies to advocate for sustainable 
policies and practices, participating in collaborative initiatives aimed at addressing systemic risks related to climate change.

6. Employee Engagement and Training
•	 Sustainability Training:•	 Sustainability Training: SALICO is providing training programs for employees to raise awareness of sustainability issues and encourage 

sustainable practices in their personal and professional lives.
•	 Diversity and Inclusion:•	 Diversity and Inclusion: The company has assessed and  recognizing the need for diversity and inclusion in their workforce as part of their 

ESG strategies. A diverse workforce contributes to innovative solutions and reflects a commitment to social responsibility.

7. Technology and Innovation
•	 Leveraging Insurtech:•	 Leveraging Insurtech: SALICO is oriented in utilizing technology to enhance efficiency and promote sustainability. This includes digital 

platforms that minimize paper usage, AI for predictive analytics that can improve risk assessment, and blockchain for transparent and 
efficient transactions.

•	 Smart Risk Management:•	 Smart Risk Management: By using data analytics, insurers can refine their underwriting processes to better assess risks associated with 
climate change and other environmental factors, allowing for more accurate pricing and improved risk management.

SALICO has recognized it’s role in promoting environmental conservation, social development, and overall sustainability. This recognition has 
translated into various direct and indirect initiatives that aim to create positive impacts in these areas. Here’s a breakdown of such initiatives:
Environmental Conservation Initiatives
Direct Initiatives
1.	 Sustainable Insurance Products:
•	 Green Policies:•	 Green Policies: Offering insurance products that cover eco-friendly technologies such as solar panels, energy-efficient appliances, and 

electric vehicles. Providing incentives or discounts for sustainable practices among policyholders.
•	 Climate Resilience Insurance:•	 Climate Resilience Insurance: Developing products that provide coverage for climate-related risks, encouraging policyholders to invest in 

mitigating measures (e.g., flood defenses, wildfire protection).

Initiatives towards Environment Conservation, Social Development and Sustainability
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2.	 Investment in Renewable Energy:
•	 Insurers allocate a portion of their investment portfolios to renewable energy projects (e.g., solar, wind) and electric vehicle. This helps 

support the transition to a low-carbon economy.

Indirect Initiatives
1.	 Risk Assessment and Management:

•	 Developing models to assess the environmental impact of various sectors, which guides underwriting decisions and investment 
strategies.

2.	 Supporting Climate Research:
•	 Funding research and partnerships with academic institutions, NGOs, and public agencies to better understand, predict, and mitigate 

climate-related risks and impacts.
3.	 Policy Advocacy:

•	 Engaging in advocacy for policies that promote environmental sustainability at local, national, and global levels, supporting 
regulations that address climate change and reduce environmental risks.

Social Development Initiatives
Direct Initiatives
1.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Programs:

•	 Funding and initiating community development projects, such as educational programs, healthcare initiatives, or disaster relief 
efforts, especially in underserved regions.

2.	 Diversity and Inclusion Programs:
•	 Implementing initiatives to promote diversity and inclusion within the workforce, ensuring equal opportunities for women, minorities, 

and marginalized communities.
3.	 Community Engagement:

•	 Collaborating with local organizations to address social issues, such as poverty alleviation and access to education, often through 
volunteer programs and employee engagement.

Indirect Initiatives
1.	 Ethical Conduct and Governance:1.	 Ethical Conduct and Governance:

•	 Promoting transparent and ethical business practices including anti-corruption measures and responsible marketing, which 
contribute to building trust in communities.

2.	 Financial Literacy Campaigns:2.	 Financial Literacy Campaigns:
•	 Offering programs that educate consumers and small business owners about financial management, insurance products, and risk 

management, fostering economic resilience and empowerment.
3.	 Collaboration with NGOs:3.	 Collaboration with NGOs:

•	 Partnering with non-profits and other organizations to tackle pressing social issues, leveraging resources, and expertise to create 
more substantial social impact.

Sustainability Initiatives
Direct Initiatives
1.	 Reducing Operational Footprint:1.	 Reducing Operational Footprint:

•	 Implementing energy-efficient technologies, reducing waste, and promoting remote work to minimize the carbon footprint of office 
spaces. This can include using renewable energy sources in their facilities.

2.	 Sustainable Supply Chain Management:2.	 Sustainable Supply Chain Management:
•	 Conducting assessments of suppliers and partners to ensure they are aligned with sustainability goals, and promoting eco-friendly 

sourcing practices.
3.	 Green Office Practices:3.	 Green Office Practices:

•	 Promoting initiatives within the organization, such as recycling programs, paperless operations, and using sustainable materials in 
office supplies and furniture.

Indirect Initiatives
1.	 Engaging Stakeholders:1.	 Engaging Stakeholders:

•	 Communicating sustainability goals and progress to stakeholders, including clients, investors, and the community through annual 
sustainability reports and updates.

2.	 Training and Development:2.	 Training and Development:
•	 Offering training for employees on sustainability practices and integrating sustainability into corporate culture, ensuring that all staff 

members understand and contribute to the company’s sustainability goals.
3.	 Engagement and Collaboration:3.	 Engagement and Collaboration:

•	 Joining industry groups or initiatives focused on sustainability, sharing best practices, and collaborating on common sustainability 
challenges and solutions.
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Disclosure in Relation to CSR

The company adheres to a policy of allocating 1% of its net profit each financial year to a dedicated Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) fund. During 
the fiscal year 2080/81, the company incurred a total CSR expenditure of NPR 3,295,974. This fund is utilized to support a range of impactful social 
initiatives, including education, healthcare, disaster relief, insurance awareness programs, poverty alleviation, and assistance
to marginalized and underprivileged communities.

The company remains firmly committed to its social responsibilities, operating in accordance with well-defined internal policies and the directives 
issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority. All CSR proposals are assessed with transparency, fairness, and diligence to ensure meaningful outcomes and 
equitable distribution of resources.
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Effective governance is in the utmost priority of SALICO to operate in a transparent, accountable manner while adhering to laws and regulations, 
thus protecting the interests of policyholders, shareholders, and other stakeholders. Below is an overview of the key aspects of corporate 
governance and compliance within SALICO.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
AND COMPLIANCE

7.

S.N. Particulars Status

1. Insurance Act, 2079 Fully Complied

2. Insurance Regulation, 2049 Mostly Complied

3. Investment Directive for non- life insurer 2080 (With first amendment 2080) Fully Complied

4. Insurer’s Corporate Governance Directive, 2080 ( With first amendment 2081) Fully Complied

5. Insurer’s Financial Directive, 2080 ( With first amendment 2080) Fully Complied

6. Claim Settlement Directive Mostly Complied

7. Marine Insurance Directive, 2065 Fully Complied

8. Agent Training Directive 2072 Fully Complied

9. Motor Insurance Directive 2073 Mostly Complied

10. Property directive 2080,(With first amendment, 2081) Fully Complied

11. Non-Life and Re-Insurance Actuarial valuation Directive, 2076 Fully Complied

12. Agricultural Insurance Directive 2079 Fully Complied

13. Fixed Asset Directive 2065 Fully Complied

14. Accidental Insurance Directive 2078 Fully Complied

15. IRMIS Guidelines 2080 Fully Complied

16. ORSA Directive 2023 Fully Complied

17. Reinsurance Directive, 2080 Fully Complied

18. Risk Based Internal Audit Directive 2079 Fully Complied

19. Risk Management Guideline 2076 Fully Complied

20. Mobile Insurance Directive 2076 Fully Complied

21. Insurer’s Branch Office Directive, 2079 Fully Complied

22. Micro Insurance Directive 2079 Fully Complied

23. Directive for insurers regarding Promoter share, 2077 Fully Complied

24. AMLCFT Directive 2081 (With First Amendment) Mostly Complied

25. IT Guideline for insurer, 2076 Mostly Complied

Compliance Report
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SN Issues Provision Reason

1. Section 36 (Ka) of Insurance 
Regulation 2049.

Distribution of Certificates to insured 
on account of motor insurance

In case of VIP cover, the company has provided VIP 
cards. But the certificates for each insurance of motor 
not provided as the insureds are provided with the 
insurance policy paper which suffice the evidence of 
insurance.

2. Section 5 of AMLCFT 
Directive,2081 Development of mechanism of PEPs

Due to unavailability of public data regarding unique 
identification of PEPs, practical feasibility has been 
difficult.

3. Section 17(7) of AMLCFT 
Directive,2081

AMLCFT Training to shareholders 
holding above 1% holding SALCIO is planning for the program in near future.

4. Section 7 of Claim Settlement 
Directive 2081

Disbursement of claim within 21 
days of receipt of surveyors report.

In some cases, claim disbursement is delayed due to 
non-acceptance of claim assessment amount by the 
customers.

5. Section 12 of Claim Settlement 
Directive 2081

Claim Authority to be provided to 
regional and branch offices

SALICO has started giving claim authority to city centric 
branch offices and all the regional office and planning 
in near future to grant authority to all the branches in 
near future.

6. Section 26 of Reinsurance 
Directive

Complete settlement of accounts 
with local insurers and reinsurers

As the inter company accounts with local insurers 
and reinsurers are of a revolving and on-going nature. 
Complete settlement cannot be achieved as there are 
cases of account settlements and adjustments.

7. Section 15 of IT Guideline, 2076 Use of electronic signatures on 
documents The provision has been complied.

8. Section 18 of IT Guideline, 2076 IT Policy to be prepared It is complied now.

9. Section 87 of Insurance Act, 2079
Audit of the insurer is to be 
completed within 5 months from the 
end of financial year.

Due to practical issues the audit could not be completed 
within 5 months from the end of financial year.

10. Section 84 of Insurance Act, 2079

Submission of audited financial 
statements of the insurer to Nepal 
Insurance Authority within 6 months 
from the end of financial year.

Due to non-completion of audit and allied assignment, 
the submission could not be completed.

11. Section 76 of the Companies Act, 
2063

The annual General Meeting of the 
company to be completed within 6 
month of the elapse of financial year.

Due to non-completion of audit and allied assignment, 
AGM could not be held on time.

Prepared by:
Basudev Joshi
Compliance Officer

Non- Compliance Issues and Reason for Non- Compliance
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The list of the committees and sub committees are mentioned below:
Audit Committee
Dr. Bijan Bhattarai, Coordinator
Mr. Padma Jyoti, Member
Ms. Nirmala Devi Manandhar, Member
Compliance Officer, Secretary

a.	 The audit committee shall consist of three members. The chairman of the board of directors, the chief executive officer, the board advisor, 
the head of finance and planning, and their relatives are not eligible to serve as members of the audit committee.

b.	 The coordinator of the audit committee shall be appointed from among the public shareholders.
c.	 At least one member of the committee must be an expert with a professional accounting certification or possess a   minimum of 10 years of 

relevant experience, holding at least a bachelor's degree in finance, accounting, management, commerce, or economics. Alternatively, the 
member may be a chartered accountant with a minimum of five years of post-qualification experience.

d.	 According to the company’s audit committee charter, the quorum for an audit committee meeting requires the presence of at least two 
members. If the coordinator is absent, the meeting shall be chaired by an agreed-upon member.

e.	 A notice of the meeting, along with the agenda, must be circulated to all members at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.
f.	 The audit committee must meet at least eight times per year, with a minimum of two meetings held quarterly.
g.	 The minutes of the meeting must be recorded within three days of the meeting.

Roles of Audit Committee:
•	 Review of accounts and financeReview of accounts and finance

Review the accounting and financial statements to ensure their accuracy, truthfulness, and fairness, while promoting financial discipline within 
the entity.

•	 Evaluate internal controlEvaluate internal control
Evaluate the internal control system, risk management framework, and budget processes of the entity.

Report on Effectiveness of the Board

Report of the Board Committees
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•	 Oversee the internal audit functionOversee the internal audit function
Oversee the internal audit system and its reporting procedures.

•	 Procurement reviewProcurement review
Assess and confirm the adequacy of the procurement processes and mechanisms.

•	 Appointment of statutory auditorsAppointment of statutory auditors
Recommend firms for the appointment of statutory auditors to the board of directors, in accordance with Section 86 of the Insurance Act 2079 
and Section 112 of the Companies Act 20.

•	 Appointment of internal auditorAppointment of internal auditor
Appoint internal auditors as per applicable laws and notify the board of directors accordingly.

•	 Ensure the compliance by auditorEnsure the compliance by auditor
Review whether auditors have complied with relevant legal requirements.

•	 Management Response review Management Response review 
Request management's response to the remarks raised by internal and external auditors and provide ongoing guidance to the management as 
necessary.

•	 Advise the managementAdvise the management
Advise and guide the management on profitability and asset-liability management strategies.

•	 Review of the underwriting profit and claim ratioReview of the underwriting profit and claim ratio
Review the entity's underwriting profit, including the contributions from branches and provinces, and provide instructions to management regarding 
control of claim ratios.

•	 Monitoring the complianceMonitoring the compliance
Monitor compliance with laws, regulations, and directives issued by the regulator, ensuring the company adheres to corporate governance 
standards.

•	 Accounting system reviewAccounting system review
Confirm that accounting systems and records are maintained accurately in both physical and electronic formats.

•	 Recommending the suggestion to the board of directorsRecommending the suggestion to the board of directors
Provide recommendations to the board of directors as needed.

•	 Drafting and implementing accounting policiesDrafting and implementing accounting policies
Draft and ensure the implementation of the entity’s accounting policies.

Report of Audit Committee regarding the work performed during the year

Number of  audit committee meetings held during the year: 9 meetings
work performed:

•	 Quarterly review of the internal audit reports and findings provided by the internal auditors.
•	 Quarterly review of follow-up status on the findings provided by the internal auditors on each quarter.
•	 Ensure integrity and accuracy in the company’s financial statements.
•	 Engagement of IT auditors.
•	 Review significant accounting policies, adjustments, and estimates to ensure they comply with applicable accounting standards.
•	 Review of the internal bylaws of the company and amendments thereto.
•	 Assess the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems related to financial reporting and operational processes.
•	 Review internal control reports and recommendations from the internal control department and management.
•	 Monitor the internal audit function’s independence, scope, and effectiveness.
•	 Ensure that the company adheres to legal, regulatory, and ethical standards.
•	 Providing regular reports to the board of directors outlining its activities, findings, and recommendations.
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Achievement
Due to the work performed during the year the company has been able to achieve enhanced financial transparency, strengthened internal 
control, independence and quality of audit findings, regulatory compliance and stakeholders’ confidence.

Human Resource Management Committee
Mr. Arun Raj Shrestha, Coordinator
Mr. Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari, Member
Chief Executive Office, Member
Head of Human Resource Department, Secretary

Roles of Human Resource Management Committee
The Human Resource Management (HRM) committee plays a critical role in the strategic management of an organization’s workforce. Its 
functions typically include:
•	 Policy Development:•	 Policy Development: The HRM committee is responsible for formulating HR policies that align with the organization’s goals and comply 

with legal regulations. This includes policies related to recruitment, training, employee relations, diversity, and performance management.
•	 Strategic Planning:•	 Strategic Planning: The committee works closely with the executive team to align human resource planning with the overall strategic 

objectives of the organization. This includes identifying workforce needs, succession planning, and talent management strategies.
•	 Recruitment and Retention:•	 Recruitment and Retention: The committee oversees strategies and processes for attracting, hiring, and retaining talent. This may involve 

developing job descriptions, managing recruitment campaigns, and analyzing turnover rates to implement effective retention strategies.
•	 Employee Development:•	 Employee Development: The HRM committee is responsible for promoting professional development opportunities. This includes training 

programs, mentorship initiatives, and performance appraisal systems aimed at fostering employee growth and enhancing skills.
•	 Compensation and Benefits:•	 Compensation and Benefits: The committee evaluates and develops compensation structures to ensure competitive salaries and benefits 

packages. This includes periodic assessments of employee compensation against industry standards.
•	 Diversity and Inclusion:•	 Diversity and Inclusion: The HRM committee promotes diversity in the workplace by creating initiatives that enhance an inclusive culture. 

This includes addressing issues related to discrimination and implementing practices that support an equitable work environment.
•	 Health and Well-Being:•	 Health and Well-Being: The committee often oversees employee wellness programs and initiatives that support physical and mental health. 

This can include stress management programs, health screenings, and work-life balance initiatives.
•	 Labor Relations:•	 Labor Relations: In organizations with unionized workforces, the HRM committee may also handle labor relations, negotiating contracts, 

and ensuring compliance with collective bargaining agreements.
•	 Compliance and Risk Management:•	 Compliance and Risk Management: The committee is tasked with ensuring compliance with labor laws and regulations. This includes 

keeping abreast of changes in employment legislation and implementing necessary changes in HR policies and practices.
•	 Performance Metrics:•	 Performance Metrics: The HRM committee monitors and evaluates HR metrics to assess the effectiveness of HR policies and practices. Key 

performance indicators (KPIs) such as employee satisfaction, turnover rates, and training effectiveness are frequently reviewed.
•	 Communication and Culture:•	 Communication and Culture: The committee helps foster a positive organizational culture through effective internal communication 

strategies, employee engagement initiatives, and promoting organizational values.
•	 Crisis Management:•	 Crisis Management: In times of crisis, such as economic downturns or unexpected events (like a pandemic), the HRM committee plays a vital 

role in developing strategies to support and sustain the workforce.

Report of Human Resource Committee regarding the work performed during the year
Number of HR Management committee meetings held during the year: 4 meetings

Work performed:Work performed:
•	 Review of the effective succession planning for key positions to maintain organizational stability.
•	 Review and approve compensation structures, including salaries, bonuses, and benefits to ensure they are competitive and aligned 

with the company's goals.
•	 Establish policies relating to employee performance evaluations, training programs, and professional development opportunities.
•	 Assessed the planning for fostering a culture of continuous learning and improvement.
•	 Review and update of HR policies to remain compliant with legal standards and best practices.
•	 Assess and recommend changes to the organizational structure to enhance efficiency and align with strategic goals.
•	 Ensure that roles and responsibilities within the organization are clearly defined.
•	 Review human resource policies and procedures to ensure they reflect the company's values and strategic objectives.

AchievementAchievement
SALICO has achieved during the year the benefits such as effective talent acquisition and management. Successful retention strategies have 
resulted in lower turnover rates, contributing to organizational stability. Development of a competitive compensation and benefits package that 
aligns with market standards and employee expectations, improving employee satisfaction and loyalty. Successful implementation of succession 
plans for key leadership positions, ensuring continuity and stability in the leadership pipeline has been observed. Development and execution 
of training and development programs has enhanced employee skills, directly impacting productivity and employee readiness for future roles.
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Investment Committee
Mr. Lok Manya Golchha, Coordinator
Mr. Pama Jyoti, Member
Chief Executive Office, Member
Head of Finance & Planning, Secretary

Roles and responsibilities of Investment Committee
1. Investment Policy Development1. Investment Policy Development
Formulation of Policies:Formulation of Policies: Establish and recommend investment policies and guidelines that align with the company’s overall strategy, risk appetite, 
and regulatory requirements.
Asset Allocation:Asset Allocation: Determine optimal asset allocation strategies to balance risk and return based on market conditions, underwriting performance, 
and liquidity needs.

2. Investment Strategy and Planning2. Investment Strategy and Planning
Strategic Planning:Strategic Planning: Develop long-term investment strategies that reflect the company’s financial goals, cash flow needs, and risk tolerance.
Market Analysis:Market Analysis: Continuously analyze market trends, economic conditions, and investment opportunities to make informed decisions.
3. Portfolio Management3. Portfolio Management
Investment Oversight:Investment Oversight: Oversee the management of the investment portfolio, ensuring it is consistent with the established investment policies 
and objectives.
Performance Monitoring:Performance Monitoring: Regularly review and assess the performance of investments in the portfolio, comparing actual returns against 
benchmarks and industry standards.

4. Risk Management4. Risk Management
Risk Assessment:Risk Assessment: Identify and evaluate risks associated with investment choices, including market risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, and liquidity 
risk.
Mitigation Strategies:Mitigation Strategies: Implement risk management strategies to minimize potential losses while seeking to maximize returns.

5. Compliance and Regulatory Oversight5. Compliance and Regulatory Oversight
Regulatory Compliance:Regulatory Compliance: Ensure that all investment activities comply with applicable regulatory requirements and standards governing insurance 
investments.
Reporting:Reporting: Prepare and present detailed reports to the board of directors, including investment performance, compliance issues, and market 
outlook.

6. Investment Selection and Due Diligence6. Investment Selection and Due Diligence
Investment Opportunities:Investment Opportunities: Identify potential investment opportunities suitable for the organization’s portfolio, including equities, fixed-income 
securities, real estate, and alternative investments.
Due Diligence:Due Diligence: Conduct thorough due diligence on potential investments, assessing their quality, risk profile, and expected return on investment.

7. Advisor and Manager Selection7. Advisor and Manager Selection
External Managers:External Managers: Evaluate and select external investment managers or advisors, if utilized, based on performance history, expertise, and 
alignment with the company’s investment strategy.
Monitoring Managers:Monitoring Managers: Regularly review the performance and strategies of external managers to ensure they meet performance expectations 
and adhere to investment guidelines.

8. Stakeholder Communication8. Stakeholder Communication
Internal Reporting:Internal Reporting: Communicate investment strategy, performance, and risk assessments to internal stakeholders, including senior management 
and the board of directors.
External Communication:External Communication: Address inquiries from regulators and other stakeholders concerning the investment strategy and performance.

9. Training and Education9. Training and Education
Continuous Learning:Continuous Learning: Stay informed about trends and developments in the investment landscape, including changes in regulations and market 
dynamics.
Capacity Building:Capacity Building: Facilitate training sessions and workshops for internal teams on investment principles and practices.

10. Crisis Management / Response Planning10. Crisis Management / Response Planning
Contingency Planning:Contingency Planning: Develop plans to respond to significant market downturns or economic events that may impact on the investment 
portfolio adversely.

Report of Investment Committee regarding the work performed during the year
Number of Investment committee meetings held during the year: 7 meetings
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Work PerformedWork Performed
•	 Ensuring that the investment policy aligns with the company’s business objectives and regulatory framework.
•	 Overseeing the management of the investment portfolio, including the selection and monitoring of investment managers and funds.
•	 Implement risk management strategies to mitigate exposure and ensure compliance with regulatory requirements.
•	 Regular review and analyze the performance of the investment portfolio against benchmarks and performance objectives.
•	 Analysis of market trends, economic conditions, and investment opportunities to inform decision-making.
•	 Consultation with investment consultants and advisors to gain insights into best practices and emerging trends in the investment landscape.
•	 Assessment of the impact of various scenarios on the company’s solvency and liquidity.

AchievementAchievement
Formulation and implementation of robust investment strategies has led alignment  with the SALICO’s risk appetite and financial goals, leading 
to increased portfolio returns. SALICO has been maintaining 100% compliance with regulatory requirements related to investments, which has 
strengthens the company’s reputation and mitigates legal liabilities. Diversification strategies has reduced the overall risk of the investment 
portfolio while enhancing potential returns through various asset classes. It has enhanced stakeholder confidence through transparent reporting 
and effective communication of investment performance, strategies, and market outlook. The solvency position of the company has remained 
very sound so far.

AMLCFT Committee
Ms. Nirmala Devi Manandhar, Coordinator
Dr. Bijan Bhattarai, Member
Chief Executive Office, Member
Implementing Officer, Secretary

Roles and responsibility of AMLCFT Committee
1. Policy Development1. Policy Development

•	 Establishing Policies: Develop, review, and implement AML/CFT policies and procedures that align with regulatory requirements and 
best practices.

•	 Regular Updates: Ensure that policies are regularly updated to reflect changes in laws, regulations, and industry standards.

2. Risk Assessment2. Risk Assessment
•	 Conducting Risk Assessments: Regularly assess and identify risks related to money laundering and terrorist financing associated with 

the organization’s operations, customers, and products or services.
•	 Mitigation Strategies: Develop and implement strategies to mitigate identified risks effectively.

3. Compliance Monitoring3. Compliance Monitoring
•	 Overseeing Compliance: Monitor the organization’s compliance with AML/CFT laws and regulations, assessing the effectiveness of 

existing controls and measures.
•	 Internal Audits: Conduct regular internal audits or assessments of AML/CFT activities to ensure adherence to policies and procedures.

4. Training and Awareness4. Training and Awareness
•	 Training Programs: Develop and deliver training programs for employees to ensure they understand AML/CFT requirements, red flags, 

and reporting obligations.
•	 Awareness Campaigns: Foster a culture of compliance and awareness throughout the organization regarding AML/CFT issues.

5. Reporting and Recordkeeping5. Reporting and Recordkeeping
•	 Suspicious Activity Reporting: Ensure that internal processes are in place for the identification and reporting of suspicious activities or 

transactions to the relevant authorities.
•	 Documentation: Maintain comprehensive and accessible records of AML/CFT activities, including training sessions, risk assessments, 

and compliance monitoring.

6. Collaboration with Authorities6. Collaboration with Authorities
•	 Engagement with Regulators: Establish and maintain effective communication with regulatory bodies and law enforcement agencies 

regarding AML/CFT matters.
•	 Information Sharing: Facilitate information sharing about potential risks, suspicious activities, and emerging trends in money 

laundering and terrorism financing.

7. Review and Oversight of Customer Due Diligence (CDD)7. Review and Oversight of Customer Due Diligence (CDD)
•	 Customer Verification: Ensure that appropriate CDD measures are implemented to verify the identity of customers and assess their risk 

profiles.
•	 Enhanced Due Diligence (EDD): Oversee processes for conducting enhanced due diligence on high-risk customers or transactions.

8. Incident Response8. Incident Response
•	 Crisis Management Planning: Develop protocols for responding to potential AML/CFT-related incidents, ensuring swift and 

coordinated actions to mitigate risks and regulatory implications.
•	 Investigation Oversight: Assist in overseeing investigations related to suspicious activities and transactions.
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9. Reporting to the Board9. Reporting to the Board
•	 Regular Updates: Provide regular reports to the board of directors and senior management on the organization’s AML/CFT compliance 

status, risks, and any incidents that may have arisen.
•	 Recommendations: Make recommendations to the board regarding improvements to AML/CFT policies and practices based on 

findings from assessments and audits.

10. Continuous Improvement10. Continuous Improvement
•	 Monitoring Trends: Stay informed about emerging trends, typologies, and risks related to money laundering and terrorist financing, 

ensuring the organization’s policies and procedures remain effective.
•	 Benchmarking: Compare the AML/CFT program against industry standards and best practices for continuous enhancement.

Report of AML/CFT Committee regarding the work performed during the year
Number of AMLCFT Management committee meetings held during the year: 1 meeting

Work PerformedWork Performed
•	 Assessing AML/CFT policies and procedures of the company in accordance with regulatory requirements and best practices.
•	 Ensuring the communication with regulatory bodies to ensure compliance with AML/CFT legislation in terms of TTR and STR reporting.
•	 Ensure that proper records are maintained that document compliance with AML/CFT regulations, including documentation of customer 

due diligence and transaction monitoring such as KYCs; both simplified and enhanced.
•	 Discussion on the procedures for managing identified incidents related to money laundering and terrorist financing, ensuring timely 

reporting and resolution.

AchievementAchievement
Comprehensive risk assessments has led to the identification and mitigation of money laundering and terrorist financing risks tailored to the 
company’s operations and client profiles. It has ensured robust process for the timely filing of SARs and other regulatory reports, ensuring 
transparency with regulatory authorities and maintaining the company’s integrity. Passing internal and external audits with minimal findings, 
showcasing the effectiveness of the AML/CFT framework and commitment to compliance has been observed in the company.

Claim Settlement and Reinsurance Committee
Mr. Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari, Coordinator
Mr. Arun Raj Shrestha, Member
Chief Executive Office, Member
Head of Claim Department, Secretary

Roles and responsibilities of Claim Settlement and Reinsurance Committee
1.	 Claims Management Oversight1.	 Claims Management Oversight

•	 Policy Development: Formulate and review the policies and procedures related to the claims settlement process to ensure fairness, 
efficiency, and compliance with regulatory requirements.

•	 Claims Strategy: Develop strategic objectives for claims management that align with the company’s overall business goals and risk 
management framework.

2.	  Claims Review and Approval2.	  Claims Review and Approval
•	 Claims Assessment: Review and approve significant or complex claims that exceed a certain threshold, ensuring adherence to 

company policies and regulatory guidelines.
•	 Dispute Resolution: Address disputes or disagreements in claims settlements between the company and policyholders, 

seeking equitable resolutions.

3.	  Reinsurance Oversight3.	  Reinsurance Oversight
•	 Reinsurance Policies: Establish and periodically review the company’s reinsurance policies and programs, including treaties 

and facultative arrangements.

•	 Reinsurance Strategy: Develop strategies for securing reinsurance that align with the company’s risk appetite and financial 
goals, ensuring adequate coverage for retained risks.

4.	  Risk Assessment and Management4.	  Risk Assessment and Management
•	 Risk Evaluation: Assess the impact of claims on the company’s financial position and risk exposure, making necessary 

adjustments to underwriting and pricing strategies.
•	 Loss Experience Analysis: Monitor and analyze loss experience data to identify trends and potential areas of concern, 

informing underwriting and pricing decisions.

5.	  Regulatory Compliance5.	  Regulatory Compliance
•	 Compliance Monitoring: Ensure that the claims settlement process and reinsurance activities comply with applicable laws, 

regulations, and industry standards.
•	 Reporting: Prepare regular reports on claims settlements and reinsurance activities for internal stakeholders, including 

management and the board of directors.
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6.	  Stakeholder Communication6.	  Stakeholder Communication
•	 Internal Coordination: Collaborate with other departments, such as underwriting, finance, and legal, to ensure effective 

claims handling and reinsurance practices.
•	 External Relationships: Maintain relationships with external parties, including reinsurers and regulatory authorities, 

ensuring transparency and effective communication.

7.	  Training and Education7.	  Training and Education
•	 Staff Development: Ensure that claims and reinsurance staff receive appropriate training on policies, procedures, and 

regulatory requirements to enhance their competency.
•	 Awareness Programs: Promote awareness of claims processes and reinsurance policies among staff and stakeholders.

8.	  Performance Monitoring and Benchmarking8.	  Performance Monitoring and Benchmarking
•	 Claims Performance Indicators: Establish key performance indicators (KPIs) to monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of 

the claims settlement process.
•	 Benchmarking: Compare the company's claims handling and reinsurance practices against industry benchmarks to 

identify areas for improvement.

9.	  Continuous Improvement9.	  Continuous Improvement
•	 Process Evaluation: Regularly review and evaluate the claims settlement and reinsurance processes for opportunities to 

enhance efficiency and effectiveness.
•	 Feedback Mechanisms: Implement mechanisms for stakeholders to provide feedback on the claims process, using this 

information for continuous improvement.

10.	  Crisis Management and Contingency Planning10.	  Crisis Management and Contingency Planning
•	 Incident Response: Develop contingency plans for managing claims in response to large-scale events such as natural 

disasters or catastrophic losses.
•	 Crisis Communication: Ensure effective communication strategies are in place for stakeholders during significant claims 

events or crises.

Report of Claim Settlement and Reinsurance Committee regarding the work performed during the year
Number of  Claim Settlement and Reinsurance Committee meetings held during the year: 8 meetings
Work Performed

•	 Develop and review claims handling policies and procedures to ensure compliance with regulatory standards and industry best 
practices.

•	 Establishment of guidelines for claims assessment, evaluation, and settlement processes.
•	 Overseeing the evaluation and assessment of insurance claims to determine validity, extent of coverage, and appropriate 

compensation.
•	 Ensuring that claims are settled in a timely manner in accordance with policy terms.
•	 Reviewing the measures and procedures to detect and prevent fraudulent claims.
•	 Formulate annual reinsurance plan of company to manage risk exposure effectively and optimize the company’s financial performance.
•	 Overseeing the placement of reinsurance treaties and contracts, ensuring terms are favorable and align with company objectives.
•	 Monitoring the performance of reinsurance contracts, ensuring adherence to terms and conditions.
•	 Review of the claims paid under reinsurance agreements and assess the impact on financial results.

AchievementsAchievements
SALICO has been successful in Implementation of streamlined claims processing procedures resulting in reduced turnaround times for claims 
settlement, improving customer satisfaction rates. It has been able to establish effective fraud detection mechanisms that led to a significant 
decrease in fraudulent claims, thereby protecting the company’s financial resources. We have observed continuous improvement in the quality 
of claims handling, evidenced by positive customer feedback and reduced complaints regarding claim settlements. Negotiation of favorable 
terms with reinsurers has resulted in cost savings while maintaining necessary coverage levels, thereby enhancing profitability. There is fostering 
collaboration between claims, underwriting, and finance departments, leading to more integrated decision-making and risk management 
processes.

Risk Management and Financial Solvency Committee
Mr. Padma Jyoti, Coordinator
Mr. Lok Manya Golchha, Member
Head of Risk Department, Secretary

Roles of Risk Management and Financial Solvency Committee
1. 	 Risk Identification and Assessment1. 	 Risk Identification and Assessment

•	 Risk Framework Development: Develop a comprehensive framework for identifying, assessing, and categorizing various risks, 
including underwriting, operational, market, credit, liquidity, and reputational risks.
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•	 Ongoing Risk Monitoring: Regularly monitor internal and external environments to identify emerging risks and trends that could 
impact the organization.

2. 	 Risk Management Strategy2. 	 Risk Management Strategy
•	 Risk Appetite and Tolerance: Establish the company's risk appetite and tolerance levels, ensuring they align with the overall business 

strategy and regulatory requirements.
•	 Mitigation Strategies: Develop and recommend risk mitigation strategies, controls, and policies to safeguard the company’s assets and 

ensure operational continuity.

3. 	 Financial Solvency Oversight3. 	 Financial Solvency Oversight
•	 Solvency Monitoring: Monitor the company’s financial solvency by regularly reviewing solvency ratios, capital adequacy, and reserve 

levels to ensure compliance with regulatory capital requirements.
•	 Stress Testing and Scenario Analysis: Conduct stress testing and scenario analyses to assess the impact of adverse events on the 

company’s solvency and financial stability.
4. 	 Compliance and Regulatory Oversight4. 	 Compliance and Regulatory Oversight

•	 Regulatory Compliance:•	 Regulatory Compliance: Ensure compliance with relevant regulations related to risk management and financial solvency, including 
local and international requirements (e.g., Solvency II).

•	 Reporting:•	 Reporting: Prepare and review reports on risk management and solvency matters for the board of directors and regulatory authorities.

5. Internal Controls5. Internal Controls
•	 Control Framework Oversight:•	 Control Framework Oversight: Review and evaluate internal control frameworks to ensure effective management of risks and 

protection of the company's assets.
•	 Audit Coordination:•	 Audit Coordination: Collaborate with internal and external auditors on risk management practices and financial solvency assessments.

6. Policy Development and Review6. Policy Development and Review
•	 Policy Formulation:•	 Policy Formulation: Develop, review, and approve policies related to risk management, solvency, and financial reporting.
•	 Guidance for Implementation:•	 Guidance for Implementation: Provide guidance to operational units on the implementation of risk management and solvency 

policies.

7. Collaboration with Other Committees7. Collaboration with Other Committees
•	 Cross-Committee Collaboration:•	 Cross-Committee Collaboration: Work collaboratively with other committees, such as the Audit Committee, Investment Committee, 

and Underwriting Committee, to ensure comprehensive risk management across all domains.
•	 Communication of Risks:•	 Communication of Risks: Foster communication regarding significant risks and issues within the organization to facilitate informed 

decision-making.

8. Training and Culture8. Training and Culture
•	 Promoting Risk Awareness:•	 Promoting Risk Awareness: Foster a culture of risk awareness and management throughout the organization by providing training 

and resources.
•	 Employee Engagement:•	 Employee Engagement: Encourage all employees to take an active role in identifying and managing risks within their areas of 

responsibility.

9. Monitoring and Reporting9. Monitoring and Reporting
•	 Regular Reporting:•	 Regular Reporting: Prepare and present regular reports to the board of directors on the risk landscape, financial solvency status, and 

any significant risk management activities under ORSA framework.
•	 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs):•	 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs): Establish KPIs and metrics to measure the effectiveness of risk management processes and financial 

solvency.

10. Crisis Management and Business Continuity10. Crisis Management and Business Continuity
•	 Crisis Response Planning:•	 Crisis Response Planning: Develop and oversee crisis management and business continuity plans to respond to significant events that 

could affect the company’s operations and solvency.
•	 Resilience Planning:•	 Resilience Planning: Ensure that the organization is prepared for potential financial shocks by implementing robust risk management 

practices.

Report of Risk Management and Financial Solvency Committee regarding the work performed during the year
Number of Risk Management and Financial Solvency Committee held during the year: 1 Meeting

Work PerformedWork Performed
•	 Drafting and implementation of  risk management policy and framework that covers operational, underwriting, credit, market, and 

liquidity risks.
•	 Formulated and implemented risk mitigation strategies and action plans to address identified risks.
•	 Drafted and implemented the ORSA Plan of SALICO.
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The Self-Evaluation of Board’s Performance
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AchievementAchievement
SALICO has been able to draft risk management policy and ORSA plan accrding to the directive issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority. It has 
ensured establishment of a robust risk management culture within the organization, leading to increased awareness and accountability related 
to risk management across all departments. It has laid the foundation for stress tests run which provides valuable insights into the company’s 
resilience under various adverse scenarios, leading to informed strategic adjustments and better preparedness.

ORSA Owner: Mr. Padma Jyoti
ORSA Operational Owner: Mr. Basudev Joshi
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Policy of the company Remarks

Internal Policy and procedure regarding AMLCFT, 2079

The purpose of an internal policy and procedure regarding Anti-Money Laundering 
and Counter Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) is to establish a comprehensive 
framework within SALICO to prevent, detect, and respond to activities related to 
money laundering and the financing of terrorism.

Claim Settlement Manual 2079

The purpose of a claim settlement manual company is to provide a structured and 
comprehensive framework for the efficient and equitable processing of insurance 
claims. It helps to establish consistent procedures for processing different types of 
claims, ensuring that all claims are handled uniformly. It provides clear instructions 
and guidelines for claims adjusters, underwriters, and support staff on how to assess, 
investigate, and settle claims. It ensures that claims are evaluated fairly, consistently, 
and objectively, irrespective of the claimant or circumstances.

Procedure for monitoring and supervising the 
corporate governance, 2079

The purpose of a procedure for monitoring and supervising the corporate governance 
of SALICO is to ensure that the organization operates in a manner that is ethical, 
transparent, and compliant with applicable laws and regulations

CSR Policy, 2080

The purpose of a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of SALICO is to outline 
the company’s commitment to ethical behavior, social responsibility, and sustainable 
practices while addressing the needs and concerns of its stakeholders. It focuses on 
contributing positively to the communities in which the company operates, through 
programs that support education, health, environment, and social development.

Financial Administration Bylaws, 2079

The purpose of financial administration bylaws of SALICO is to establish a framework 
for managing the company’s financial activities, ensuring compliance with regulations 
and standards, and promoting operational efficiency and accountability. It is essential 
in maintaining the integrity and sustainability of the company's financial operations 
and to maintain financial governance and internal control.

IT Policy, 2081

The IT (Information Technology) policy of of SALICO serves as a framework to guide 
the management and use of technology resources within the organization. This policy 
is crucial for ensuring that Information Technology aligns with the company’s business 
objectives, protects sensitive information, and manages the risks associated with 
technology use. It ensures data security and data privacy.

IT Manual, 2079

IT manuals of SALICO serves as comprehensive documents that outline the 
procedures, guidelines, and best practices related to the organization's information 
technology systems and processes. It outlines the SOP, operational guideline and 
quality assurance.

Marketing and promotion policy and procedure, 2079

A Marketing and Promotion Policy and Procedure of SALICO serves as a strategic guide 
for how the organization promotes its products and services to potential customers. 
The policy outlines the company’s branding, marketing strategies, and promotional 
tactics, ensuring they align with legal regulations, company values, and business 
objectives. It focuses on brand consistency, target market identification, strategic 
planning, performance measurement and analysis, innovation , adaptability and 
training and development.

Major Policies and Practices
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Reinsurance Policy, 2080

Reinsurance policy of SALICO serves as a critical risk management tool. It involves the 
transfer of a portion of SALICO’s risk to reinsurers in exchange for a premium. This 
practice augments the financial stability and operational performance of the company. 
It aims in risk management, capital management, stabilization of loss experience, 
expansion of underwriting capacity and financial stability of company.

Reinsurance Manual , 2079
Reinsurance Manual serves as a comprehensive guide for SALICO regarding 
reinsurance operations and policies. It outlines the processes, guidelines, and best 
practices involved in reinsurance agreements and transactions and SOPs.

Human Resource Policy, 2079

Human Resource (HR) Policy of SALICO serves several important purposes that help 
manage the workforce effectively, comply with legal requirements, and support the 
company's business goals. It helps to ensure the company comply with labor laws and 
regulation, effective employee recruiting and onboarding, outlines employees rights 
and responsibilities, conflict resolution and grievance handling, health & safety and 
employee training and development.

Underwriting Manual, 2079

Underwriting Manual of company serves as a comprehensive guide that outlines 
the principles, policies, and procedures used in the underwriting process. The main 
purpose of this manual is to ensure consistency, accuracy, and efficiency in assessing 
risks and determining the terms of insurance coverage. It helps in standardization of 
underwriting practices withing the organization, sets the criteria for risk assessment 
and evaluation, ensures compliance with tariff guidelines of regulator.

Climate Change and Risk Management Policy, 2080

The Climate Change Risk Management Policy of SALICO serves several key 
purposes, aimed at safeguarding the company's assets, providing value to clients, 
and contributing to broader environmental sustainability. The policy helps the 
organization identify various climate-related risks, including physical (e.g., extreme 
weather events), transition (changes due to shifting to a low-carbon economy), and 
liability risks (lawsuits from climate-related damages). By establishing a framework to 
assess the impact of climate change on different lines of business, the policy ensures 
that the company comprehensively understands its exposure to climate risks. The 
policy facilitates compliance with existing and emerging regulations and standards 
for climate risk disclosure

Risk Based Internal Audit Policy, 2081

The Risk-Based Internal Audit Policy of SALICO serves several critical purposes aimed 
at enhancing the overall governance, risk management, and operational effectiveness 
of the organization. It is aimed is strengthening the risk culture of company and 
optimization of resource utilization.
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SALICO has framed a risk management framework designed to identify, assess, monitor, and manage the myriad risks that are inherent to the 
insurance industry. This framework is crucial for safeguarding the company’s financial health, ensuring regulatory compliance, and enhancing 
overall operational effectiveness. Below is an overview of the framework along with mechanisms employed to us identify and manage risks:

	 Components of an Insurer’s Risk Management Framework of SALICO
1.	 Risk Governance Framework

•	 Leadership and Oversight:•	 Leadership and Oversight: Establishment of a Risk Management Committee  at the board or executive level that oversees risk 
management activities.

•	 Defined Roles and Responsibilities:•	 Defined Roles and Responsibilities: Clear delineation of responsibilities for risk management throughout the organization, starting 
from the board to various departmental heads.

2.	 Risk Management Objectives
•	 Risk Management Objectives aligned with the overall strategic goals of the insurer, such as maintaining adequate capital levels, 

ensuring regulatory compliance, and protecting the interests of policyholders.

3.	 Risk Identification
•	 Comprehensive Risk Assessment:•	 Comprehensive Risk Assessment: Utilization of various methodologies such as workshops, surveys, interviews, and scenario analyses 

to compile a thorough inventory of risks (underwriting, operational, market, credit, liquidity, etc.).
•	 Data Analytics:•	 Data Analytics: Employ advanced analytics and modeling techniques to identify emerging risks based on historical data patterns 

and current market trends.
•	 Regulatory and Industry Monitoring:•	 Regulatory and Industry Monitoring: Update on information about changes in regulations, economic conditions, and industry 

trends that might introduce new risks.

4.	 Risk Assessment and Measurement
•	 Qualitative Risk Analysis:•	 Qualitative Risk Analysis: Assessing risks based on their nature, potential impact, and probability through expert judgment or 

assessment matrices.
•	 Quantitative Risk Analysis:•	 Quantitative Risk Analysis: Use techniques like Value at Risk (VaR), stress testing, and predictive modeling to quantify risks and their 

potential financial implications.
•	 Risk Profiling:•	 Risk Profiling: Developing a risk profile map that categorizes risks based on their likelihood and impact, enabling prioritization.

5.	 Risk Control and Mitigation Strategies
•	 Risk Avoidance:•	 Risk Avoidance: The company has enlisted high-risk activities that should be avoided altogether.
•	 Risk Sharing/Transfer:•	 Risk Sharing/Transfer: The has in practice of using reinsurance contracts and risk-sharing arrangements to hedge against potential 

severe losses.
•	 Risk Reduction:•	 Risk Reduction: Implementing measures to mitigate risks, such as enhancing underwriting guidelines, improving claims 

management, and strengthening internal controls.
•	 Risk Acceptance:•	 Risk Acceptance: Identifying and documenting the risks that are accepted because the cost of mitigation exceeds the potential 

impact.

6.	 Implementation of Risk Management Practices
•	 Policies and Procedures:•	 Policies and Procedures: Documenting and formalizing the risk management processes in operational policies to ensure consistency 

Risk Management Policy or Framework

RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

8.
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As required by risk management guideline 2076 ORSA guideline 2081 issued by Nepal Insurance Authority, the company has been preparing the 
policies to streamline the risk management function throught the entity. 

across the organization.
•	 Integration into Business Processes:•	 Integration into Business Processes: Embedding the risk management into day-to-day operations and decision-making processes, 

including product development and pricing.

7.	 Monitoring and Reporting
•	 Continuous Monitoring:•	 Continuous Monitoring: Established mechanisms to regularly monitor risks using Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) and other metrics that 

provide ongoing insight.
•	 Risk Reporting:•	 Risk Reporting: Create a routine reporting process that provides management and the board with updates on risk exposure and the 

effectiveness of risk mitigation measures.

8.	 Review and Continuous Improvement
•	 Regular Reviews:•	 Regular Reviews: Conducting periodic reviews of the risk management framework, including effective assessments and updates 

based on changes in the risk landscape.
•	 Feedback Loops:•	 Feedback Loops: Incorporate findings from incident reports, audit results, and stakeholder inputs to refine the risk management 

process.

9.	 Crisis Management and Business Continuity Planning
•	 Crisis Response Plans:•	 Crisis Response Plans: SALICO has developed plans to address potential crises or significant adverse events, ensuring that the 

organization can respond effectively.
•	 Business Continuity Management:•	 Business Continuity Management: Ensure continuity of critical operations in the event of disruptions through well-defined recovery 

strategies.

10.	 Compliance and Regulatory Oversight
•	 Alignment with Regulatory Standards:•	 Alignment with Regulatory Standards: Ensuring that the risk management framework complies with relevant regulations set by the 

regulator.
•	 Documentation and Auditing:•	 Documentation and Auditing: Maintaining comprehensive documentation supporting risk management activities to facilitate 

external reviews and audits.

	 Mechanisms deployed by SALICO to Identify and Manage Risks
1.	 Risk Assessment Tools

•	 Developed the tools like risk matrices, and dashboards help visualize and prioritize risks effectively.

2.	 Technology Utilization
•	 Planning to embed risk management software solutions that provide data analytics, reporting capabilities, and central repositories 

for tracking risks.
•	 Planning to use machine learning and AI to predict risk based on historical data trends.

3.	 Stakeholder Engagement
•	 Engaging employees, clients, and partners in the risk identification process to gather diverse perspectives and insights.
•	 Establishing feedback channels (e.g., surveys or forums) for employees to voice concerns and report potential risks.

4.	 Scenario Analysis and Stress Testing
•	 Conduct scenario analyses and stress tests to evaluate how the insurer would perform under various adverse conditions, helping 

identify vulnerabilities.

5.	 Regular Training and Awareness Programs
•	 Ongoing training initiatives for employees to increase risk awareness, ensuring everyone understands their role in risk management.

6.	 External Audits and Consultations
•	 Utilizing third-party auditors or consultants for objective evaluation of the risk management framework, including compliance 

checks and validations.

Other Disclosure in Respect of Risk Management



79

SALCO has framed the Climate Risk Management Policy 2080, as required by the directive on climate risk management, 2078 issued by the 
Nepal Insurance Authority. The company reviews its strategic plan in alignment with  impact of climate risks and opportunities on the company’s 
business, strategy and financial planning considering the orderly scenario as defined by the Network for Greening Financial System (NGFS). The 
company’s risk management systems framework include the process for identifying, assessing, and managing climate change risks including 
the effect of climate change risk on reputation, liability, credit, market, strategic, and operational risks. The company has developed key metrics, 
indicators and other measurements used to assess the company’s climate change risks. The company has set the three targets as an initial 
approach towards assessing the climate change risk management awareness;
1.	 Commitment of SALICO to reduce carbon emissions
	 The target includes efforts of the company to transition to renewable energy sources, improve energy efficiency in offices, and reduce 

wastes.
2.	 Investment in sustainable and environmentally friendly assets (such, renewable energy projects such as hydropower, solar power etc. to a 

certain percentage.
3.	 Creating guidelines for pricing insurance products based on climate risk exposure, adjusting coverage conditions to reflect the  risks 

posed by climate change, or developing new products aimed at supporting policyholders in climate adaptation  efforts (like insurance for 
renewable energy projects).

SALICO has practice of framing an annual reinsurance policy, which is a contract between SALICO and a reinsurer. This type of reinsurance 
agreement is crucial for the company, as it helps them manage risk more effectively, stabilize company’s financial results, and mitigate the impact 
of large claims. The policy has provided the benefits to the company such as, risk management, capital relief, stabilization of earning and support 
for future growth. 

The reinsurance policy of the company has provided for different types of coverage for different types lines and sublines of the business such 
as quota share treaty, surplus treaty, , excess of loss treaty, CAT XL and umbrella treaty. While finalizing the reinsurance covert the reinsurers are 
selected by the company on the basis of market position of the leader reinsurer, access to foreign exchange settlement, credit rating agency 
of leader ( at least A-). Same due regards is algo given while selecting the reinsurance broker as well.  In case of reinsurance exceeding treaty 
capacity the company has policy to resort the facultative reinsurance arrangements. As per the guidelines from the regulator, the company has 
appropriated 16%  direct cession arrangement for local reinsurers on account of reinsurance arrangements.

As per guideline from the regulator, 10% of the net profit is required to be allocated to catastrophe reserved annually. The company has set aside 
approximately NPR 190 million for catastrophe reserve so far. In the fiscal year, the company has taken the cover for the catastrophic exposure, to 
the limit of total NPR 3 billion; 1 billion for whole property+ Engineering and GPA catastrophic excess of loss and 2 billion for spillover cover for 
catastrophe excess of loss, the per evet retention limit of exposure being NPR 100 Million.

An effective internal control system in an insurance company is essential for ensuring compliance with regulations, safeguarding assets, enhancing 
operational efficiency, and achieving strategic objectives. The internal control framework of SALICO typically consists of several components that 
work together to form a robust system. Below is a detailed overview of the key components of an internal control system framework in SALICO.

Internal Control Environment:Internal Control Environment:
There is a clearcut organizational structure mentioning the position of Internal Control Department in the organization which oversees the 
overall internal control function of the company. There is strong commitment from the board of directors and management to ethical behavior 
and sound corporate governance. There is a separate compliance officer in the company which checks the compliance with laws and regulations 
applicable to the company. The company has also framed the Risk Based Internal Audit Policy for the company which emphasizes risk assessment 
and control activities to mitigate the risk on various sector and departments of the organizations.

Risk EnvironmentRisk Environment
The company has in place the robust process of risk assessment including that risk identification, risk evaluation and risk tolerance. The risk 
identification further focuses on identifying the internal and external risks, including credit risk, operational risk, market risk, and compliance 
risk specific to the company. Risk assessment process assess the likelihood and impact of identified risks, prioritizing them based on potential 
severity. And risk tolerance establishes risk appetite and tolerance levels to guide decision-making for the higher level management.

Control Activities of SALICOControl Activities of SALICO
The company has developed the risk based internal audit policy and risk management framework the helps to mitigate the identified risks. 
Further company has developed many department centric policies and procedures with clear segregation of duties among the employees and 
establishing the proper authorization protocols for transactions, investments and policy change. The company has deployed  both preventive 
and corrective mechanisms in the operations at various departments.

Climate Risk Related Disclosure

Reinsurance Policy and Disclosure on Adequacy of Reinsurance Cover Including
Catastrophic Reinsurance

Internal Control System Framework
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Management Information System and MonitoringManagement Information System and Monitoring
SALICO has framed  the management information system through direct involvement of Internal Control Department which facilitates sharing 
of information related to risks, controls, and responsibilities and other findings to the respective departments and higher authority on periodic 
basis. It has also been conducting ongoing training programs to ensure staff understand their roles in the internal control system and the 
importance of compliance.

The internal control department conduct continuous monitoring of operations and controls, including data analytics and automated systems 
checks. It is engaged in internal audits to assess the effectiveness of internal controls and compliance with policies and regulations.

Report of internal control and evaluationReport of internal control and evaluation
The internal control department provide regular reports to senior management and the board of directors on the effectiveness of internal 
controls and any identified deficiencies. It has a system of developing action plans for addressing any shortcomings or weaknesses identified in 
the internal control system.

The control mechanism in SALICO has helped to foster a culture of continuous improvement regarding internal controls, updating practices as 
needed based on changing risks, regulatory requirements, and organizational growth.

Internal control system of SALICO has proved to be critical for ensuring that the company can achieve its objectives, manage risk, maintain 
compliance with regulatory requirements, and safeguard its assets. The internal control system of the company has helped enhancing the overall 
governance of the organization and providing confidence to the stakeholders. SALICO’s internal control system has been proved to be effective 
on the following grounds;

1. 	 Alignment with Corporate Objectives
•	 Strategic Alignment:•	 Strategic Alignment: The internal control system is aligned with the overall strategic goals of the company. This has ensured that 

internal controls are designed to support the achievement of business objectives while managing relevant risks.
2. 	 Comprehensive Risk Assessment

•	 Identifying Risks:•	 Identifying Risks: The company’s internal control system begins with a thorough risk assessment process, identifying both internal and 
external risks affecting the organization, including underwriting risks, operational risks, market risks, and compliance risks which is the 
core of insurance function in global scenarios.

•	 Risk Prioritization:•	 Risk Prioritization: The control system has  prioritized risks based on their potential impact, allowing the company to focus resources 
on significant areas of concern.

3. 	 Robust Control Activities
•	 Preventive and Detective Controls:•	 Preventive and Detective Controls: A balance of preventive controls (to avoid issues) and detective controls (to identify issues if 

they occur) has enhanced the effectiveness of the system. Controls include system access, transaction authorizations, and regular 
reconciliations.

•	 Segregation of Duties:•	 Segregation of Duties: Ensuring that no single individual has control over all aspects of a financial transaction has helped prevent 
fraud and errors, thus strengthening the internal control system.

4. 	 Effective Communication and Training
•	 Information Dissemination:•	 Information Dissemination: Clear and open communication channels has ensured that relevant information regarding internal 

controls, policies, and responsibilities reaches all employees.
•	 Training Programs:•	 Training Programs: Regular training of employees on internal control processes and compliance requirements has enhanced their 

understanding and commitment to maintaining effective controls.
5. 	 Regular Monitoring and Evaluation

•	 Ongoing Monitoring Activities:•	 Ongoing Monitoring Activities: Continuous monitoring by the system has allowed for timely identification of control deficiencies. This 
includes real-time data analytics and automatic alerts for any unusual transactions.

•	 Internal Audits:•	 Internal Audits: Periodic internal audits assess the effectiveness of internal controls, providing independent evaluations of processes 
and compliance, while highlighting areas for improvement.

6. 	 Management and Board Oversight
•	 Leadership Commitment:•	 Leadership Commitment: Strong support from senior management and the board of directors has supported  for fostering a culture 

of compliance and emphasizing the importance of internal controls.
•	 Accountability Structures:•	 Accountability Structures: Assigning clear responsibilities for oversight and accountability regarding internal controls has helped the 

company reinforce it’s importance within the organization.
7. 	 Adaptability and Continuous Improvement

•	 Responsive to Changes:•	 Responsive to Changes: The company has been be adaptable, allowing the organization to respond to changes in the regulatory 
landscape, market conditions, and internal dynamics.

•	 Feedback Mechanisms:•	 Feedback Mechanisms: System of gathering feedback from employees, audits, and performance measures has helped in improvements 
in internal control processes.

8. 	 Documentation and Record Keeping
•	 Thorough Documentation: SALICO has well-documented policies, procedures, and controls that are critical for effective implementation 

and consistency of internal controls.

Effectiveness of Internal Control System 



81

•	 Access to Records: It has in place of maintaining accurate and accessible records enables timely analysis and oversight, facilitating 
compliance and transparency.

9. 	 Fraud Prevention and Detection
•	 Fraud Mitigation Strategies:•	 Fraud Mitigation Strategies: The company has followed various measures to prevent and detect fraudulent activities.

For managing various business operations, improving customer experience, enhancing decision-making processes, and ensuring compliance 
with regulatory requirements SALICO has been functioning under enhanced reliance on information technology. It has integrated all of the 
procedures in the system and the company has aimed to transform into complete digitalization in the near future. Major features of IT system of 
SALICO are mentioned below:

1. Core IT System
SALICO has it own inhouse software “Beema Manager” for management of core insurance function. The core Beema manager system administers 
the following functions.

Insurance Policy Management System 
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Manages the lifecycle of insurance policies, including underwriting, binding, endorsement, renewal, and cancellation.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Automates premium calculations, policy issuance, and customer communications.

Claims Management System
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Handles the processing and management of insurance claims from initiation to settlement.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Includes workflows for claims intake, fraud detection, adjuster assignments, and payment processing.

Customer Relationship Management (CRM) System
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Centralizes customer data and interactions, helping insurance companies manage their relationships with policyholders and 

prospective clients.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Includes tools for tracking leads, managing customer service requests, and analyzing customer interactions.

Underwriting System
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Assesses risk and determines the appropriate premiums for different insurance products.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Leverages data analytics, algorithms, and actuarial models to evaluate risks associated with potential clients.

Accounts and Payments System
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Manages premium collections, invoicing, and accounts receivable.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Facilitates various payment methods, including online payments, automated billing, and reminders.

Reinsurance Management System
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Handles reinsurance treaties, contractual agreements, and transactions with reinsurers.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Assists with risk management through analytics and reporting on the reinsurance portfolio.

2. Data Management and Analytics
a. Data Warehousing
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Centralizes data from multiple sources within the organization to support reporting and analysis.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Provides a single source of truth for data used in decision-making.

b. Business Intelligence (BI) Tools
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Visualizes and analyzes data to derive insights for strategic planning and operational improvement.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Dashboards, interactive reports, and data visualization tools, enabling users to perform ad-hoc analysis.

c. Predictive Analytics 
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Analyzes historical data to predict future trends and behaviors.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Used in underwriting, fraud detection, claims forecasting, and customer segmentation.

3. Customer Engagement Tools
a. Digital Portals and Mobile Applications
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Provide a user-friendly platform for customers to manage their policies, submit claims, and make payments.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Self-service capabilities, mobile app functionalities, personalized dashboards, and communication channels.

b. Chatbots and AI Assistants
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Enhance customer service by providing instant responses to frequently asked questions and guiding users through processes.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Available 24/7, reducing the load on human agents and improving response times.

IT System and Control
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4. Security and Compliance
a. Cybersecurity Measures
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Protect sensitive customer data and company systems from unauthorized access, breaches, and other cyber threats.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Firewalls, intrusion detection systems, encryption protocols, and regular security audits.
b. Compliance Management Systems
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Ensure adherence to regulatory requirements (e.g., GDPR, HIPAA, state and federal insurance regulations).
•	 Features:•	 Features: Track regulatory changes, facilitate reporting, and maintain necessary documentation.

5. IT Infrastructure and Support
a. Cloud Computing
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Provides scalable resources that can be accessed anywhere, improving operational efficiency and flexibility.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Offers solutions such as for disaster recovery solutions.
b. Network Infrastructure
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Connects various systems and users through secure, reliable networks.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Includes local area networks (LAN), wide area networks (WAN), and Virtual Private Networks (VPN) for secure remote access.

c. Technical Support and Helpdesk
•	 Functions:•	 Functions: Aids users experiencing technical issues with IT systems.
•	 Features:•	 Features: Support ticketing systems, knowledge bases, and user-training material.

6. Integrations and APIs
•	 Interoperability:•	 Interoperability: APIs (Application Programming Interfaces) enable different systems to work together, facilitating seamless data exchange 

between core applications, third-party services, and external partners.
•	 Data Sharing:•	 Data Sharing: Enables collaboration with insurers, reinsurers, and regulatory bodies.

Key IT Controls
•	 Access Controls:•	 Access Controls: Restrict access to sensitive data and systems based on user roles and responsibilities. Implementing multi-factor 

authentication and regular password updates is essential.
•	 Data Encryption:•	 Data Encryption: Protect sensitive customer data both at rest and in transit through strong encryption methods, ensuring confidentiality 

and integrity.
•	 Change Management Controls:•	 Change Management Controls: Establish procedures for managing changes to IT systems, including approvals for system modifications, 

testing of changes, and documentation of changes made.
•	 Backup and Recovery Procedures:•	 Backup and Recovery Procedures: Regularly back up data and have a disaster recovery plan in place to ensure prompt restoration of 

operations in the event of data loss or system failure.
•	 Monitoring and Logging:•	 Monitoring and Logging: Implement continuous monitoring and logging of system access and transactions to detect unauthorized 

activities and facilitate audits.
•	 Incident Response Plan:•	 Incident Response Plan: Develop an incident response plan to address potential data breaches and cybersecurity incidents, detailing roles, 

responsibilities, and communication processes.
IT Compliance
•	 Regulatory Compliance:•	 Regulatory Compliance: Ensure that all IT systems comply with regulatory requirements as set out in the IT directives issued by the Nepal 

Insurance Authority in 2076.
•	 IT Governance Framework:•	 IT Governance Framework: Establish an IT governance framework that aligns IT strategies with business objectives, ensuring that IT 

investments deliver value and mitigate risks.
•	 Third-party Risk Management:•	 Third-party Risk Management: Assess and manage risks associated with third-party service providers, ensuring they comply with the same 

security and operational standards as the company.
IT Audit
•	 Regular Audits:•	 Regular Audits: Conduction of internal and external audits of IT systems and controls to assess effectiveness and identify areas for 

improvement.
•	 Performance Metrics:•	 Performance Metrics: Define and track performance metrics related to IT system effectiveness, incident response times, user satisfaction, 

and compliance adherence.
•	 Technology Upgrades:•	 Technology Upgrades: Stay updated with technological advancements and trends to maintain a competitive edge and improve system 

capabilities.

Training and Awareness
•	 Employee Training:•	 Employee Training: Regularly training employees on cybersecurity best practices, data privacy, and the importance of following IT policies 

and procedures.
•	 Phishing and Social Engineering Awareness:•	 Phishing and Social Engineering Awareness: Conduct awareness campaigns to educate employees about common attack vectors and how 

to recognize potential threats.
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Statement of Responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer

As the Chief Finance Officer (CFO), I acknowledge my responsibility for ensuring the integrity, accuracy, and compliance of the company's financial 
statements. This responsibility encompasses the following key areas:

1. Maintenance of Accounting Records and Compliance with Regulations
The company maintains proper accounting records that accurately reflect its financial position in accordance with:

•	 Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).
•	 The Companies Act, 2063, which governs corporate financial reporting and disclosure requirements.
•	 The Insurance Act, 2079, which sets regulatory frameworks specific to the insurance sector.
•	 Directives regarding the preparation of Financial Statement, 2080, which sets clear guidelines regarding the preparation of financial 

statements of non-life Insurance companies.
These records ensure transparency, accountability, and adherence to statutory obligations.

2. Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared and presented fairly, ensuring that:

•	 Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently.
•	 Reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made to reflect a true and fair view of the company’s financial position.
•	 The financial statements comply with applicable accounting standards and legal requirements.
•	 The going concern assumption has been adopted, considering the company has adequate financial resources to sustain its operations in 

the foreseeable future.

3. Internal Control System and Risk Management
To protect the company’s financial and operational interests, an effective internal control system has been established. This system is designed to:

•	 Safeguard the company's assets from unauthorized use, fraud, and misappropriation.
•	 Prevent and detect fraud, errors, and other irregularities through periodic financial audits, reconciliations, and risk assessments.
•	 Ensure compliance with regulatory and corporate governance requirements.

The management is committed to continuously improving internal control mechanisms to strengthen financial security and operational efficiency.

4. Investment Management and Prudence in Financial Decisions
To optimize returns while managing risks, the company follows a prudent investment strategy as per the Investment Guidelines issued by Nepal 
Insurance Authority. This involves:

•	 Diversified investments in permitted asset classes to minimize risks.
•	 Maximizing returns through income generation in the form of interest, dividends, and capital appreciation.
•	 Ensuring that investments align with liquidity needs, risk tolerance, and regulatory constraints.

By adhering to these principles, the company seeks to enhance shareholder value, maintain financial stability, and ensure sustainable growth.

Thus, I confirm that the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable standards, laws, and regulations and reflect a true and 
fair view of the company’s financial position and performance.

Ganesh DhakalGanesh Dhakal
Chief Finance Officer

A COMPARATIVE
STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY
BALANCE SHEET
AND NFRS BASED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

9.
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Appointed Actuary's Report on Adequacy of the Liability in Financial Statements
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Financial Statements Approved by Nepal Insurance Authority

A Information related to  Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Limited
Following matters are disclosed under this title

1 Date of establishment: 2051/10/17
2 Insurer licence date: 2053/03/12
3 Insurance business type, nature: Non Life Insurance
4 Date of commencement of business: 2053/04/02

5
Other matters: Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Ltd with Brand Name "SALICO" has been in operation after the merger of 
Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd and Lumbini Genreal Insurance Company Ltd merged on 13 March 2023. SALICO is one of Nepal's 
leading non-life insurers with more than 112 branches all over Nepal.

B Board of Directors has approved following matters:
1 Tax,  service charges, fine and penalties  to be paid under laws & regulation whether paid or not

Tax,service charges are paid to the concerned authority.
2 Share structure of the insurer, changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation

The share structure of company is change to promotor holding 51% and public holding 49% .
3 Whether solvency ratio as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority is maintained or not

Solvency ratio as prescribed by  Nepal Beema Pradhikaran is maintained.
4 a) Statement regarding assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than it's fair value.

The assets of the company that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated.
b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements.
The measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements are mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

5 Declaration on investment made by insurer that are in line with prevailing laws. If not reason to be disclosed.
Investment made by insurance in line with prevailing laws except government bonds. In case government bonds, it is less than 
prescribed limit due to non availability of government bonds in the markert.

6 Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle the outstanding claim. 
14,958 number of claim file are settled and 13,321 number of claim file are still outstanding within the year and the claim oustanding 
file shall be settled within 35 days upon receiving survey report.

7 Declaration on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulation, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other 
prevailing laws & regulation to which insurer shall adhere to and any non compliance with reasons thereof.
The company has made compliance withsuch legal and regulatory provision.

8 Declaration that the appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted.
The appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted based on Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

9 Declaration on Financial Statements as at Reporting Date that the insurer's Financial Position and Financial Performance are 
presented true & fairly.
The company's Financial Position and Financial Performance as on date are presented true & fair.

10 Declaration that Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for 
identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.
The company has implemented adequate and appropriate provision like physical verification of assets on regular interval to safeguard 
the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

11 Declaration that Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.
The company has prepared Financial Statement based on going concern basis.

12 Declaration that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the insurer's business.
The internal control system of the company is effective & adequate based on volume of the business.

13
Declaration that the insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2079, Insurance Regulation, 
Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or with any entity 
in which insurer's director has interest.
The company has not conducted any such transactions.

14 Disclosure on any penalties, levied by Nepal Insurance Authority for the particular financial year.
There is no any such penalties.

15 Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by Board of Directors/management
The company has maintained all reseve & fund as per the provision of Insurance Act and Rules. 

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
 Minimum Disclosure in Directors’ Report
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Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 
Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4  157,908,034  157,766,615 
Property and Equipment 5  253,904,384  264,134,949 
Investment Properties 6  112,576,632  113,238,278 
Deferred Tax Assets 7  61,407,847  3,237,463 
Investment in Subsidiaries 8  -    -   
Investment in Associates 9  -    -   
Investments 10  6,403,300,940  6,225,267,243 
Loans 11  10,658,216  11,121,779 
Reinsurance Assets 12  4,598,415,205  5,501,072,122 
Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net) 21  322,132,187  169,761,537 
Insurance Receivables 13  1,017,174,653  1,045,001,459 
Other Assets 14  1,403,116,678  735,413,839 
Other Financial Assets 15  86,843,479  264,304,698 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16  698,369,027  243,548,479 
Total Assets  15,125,807,282  14,733,868,461 

Equity & Liabilities
Share Capital 17 (a)  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200 
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b)  -    -   
Share Premium 17 (c)  -   
Special Reserves 17 (d)  2,550,477,445  2,550,477,445 
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (e)  188,982,189  167,747,461 
Retained Earnings 17 (f )  403,873,383  135,314,068 
Other Equity 17 (g)  442,291,564  456,120,490 
Total Equity  6,208,262,781  5,932,297,664 

Liabilities
Provisions 18  89,483,586  81,460,391 
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19  6,612,296,151  7,399,201,598 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7  -    -   
Insurance Payable 20  1,482,601,113  743,547,768 
Current Tax Liabilities 21  -    -   
Borrowings 22  -    -   
Other Liabilities 23  509,359,681  360,311,133 
Other Financial Liabilities 24  223,803,970  217,049,907 
Total Liabilities  8,917,544,501  8,801,570,797 
Total Equity and Liabilities  15,125,807,282  14,733,868,461 

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position

As At 15th July, 2024 (Ashad End 2081) Fig in NPR

	 Manohar Das Mool	 Ajith R. Gunawardena	 Lokmanya Golchha	 Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari		
	 Chairman	 Director	 Director 	 Director		
	
				     
	 Arun Raj Shrestha	 Bijan Bhattarai	  Nirmala Devi Manandhar	
	 Public Director	 Public Director	 Independent Director   	
               	
			   As per our report of even date,		
			   CA Kiran Dongol			
			   Partner
	  Chunky Chhetry	 Ganesh Dhakal	 For J. B. Rajbhandary & DiBins
	 Chief Executive Officer	 Chief Finance Officer	 Chartered Accountants
	  

April 10, 2025				  
Kathmandu, Nepal
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Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25  4,893,836,679  3,248,479,863 
Premiums Ceded 26  (3,173,626,727) (1,644,343,788)
Net Earned Premiums  1,720,209,952  1,604,136,075 
Commission Income 27  506,016,093  472,845,114 
Other Direct Income 28  33,274,526  24,614,527 
Income from Investments & Loans 29  479,920,286  391,880,292 
Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30  -    -   
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31  26,817,790  3,432,444 
Other Income 32  6,026,208  1,143,642 
Total Income  2,772,264,855  2,498,052,094 

Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid 33  2,833,292,614  2,386,751,213 
Claims Ceded 33  (1,650,584,250)  (1,213,885,278)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 34  (682,036,004)  2,030,981,628 
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 34  795,296,859  (2,021,811,426)
Net Claims Incurred  1,295,969,219  1,182,036,138 
Commission Expenses 35  38,221,816  46,825,765 
Service Fees 36  12,920,256  12,346,527 
Other Direct Expenes 37  7,202,057  6,597,725 
Employee Benefits Expenses 38  608,007,691  397,761,780 
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39  46,966,017  34,610,295 
Impairment Losses 40  (3,585,431)  76,332,755 
Other Operating Expenses 41  144,327,746  144,249,583 
Finance Cost 42  14,631,672  8,517,715 
Total Expenses  2,164,661,042  1,909,278,282 

Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits of 
Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax  607,603,813  588,773,812 

Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity 
Method 9  -    -   

Profit Before Tax  607,603,813  588,773,812 
Income Tax Expense 43  146,623,944  257,750,796 
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year  460,979,869  331,023,016 
Earning Per Share 51 
Basic EPS  17.58  17.51 
Diluted EPS  17.58  17.51 

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

	 Manohar Das Mool	 Ajith R. Gunawardena	 Lokmanya Golchha	 Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari		
	 Chairman	 Director	 Director 	 Director			 
				     
	 Arun Raj Shrestha	 Bijan Bhattarai	  Nirmala Devi Manandhar	
	 Public Director	 Public Director	 Independent Director   	
               	
			   As per our report of even date,		
			   CA Kiran Dongol			
			   Partner
	  Chunky Chhetry	 Ganesh Dhakal	 For J. B. Rajbhandary & DiBins
	 Chief Executive Officer	 Chief Finance Officer	 Chartered Accountants
	  

April 10, 2025				  
Kathmandu, Nepal

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss

For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024 
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081) Fig in NPR
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Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Cash Flow From Operating Activities: 

 Cash Received 
 Gross Premium Received  4,788,967,236  3,248,479,863 
 Reinsurance Commission Received  526,046,495  472,845,114 
 Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers  1,650,584,250  1,003,411,033 
 Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -   
 Other Direct Income Received  33,274,526  24,614,527 
 Others (Other Income received)  6,026,208  1,143,642 
 Others (Others to be specified)  -    -   

  
 Cash Paid 
 Gross Benefits and Claims Paid  (2,833,292,614)  (2,386,751,213)
 Reinsurance Premium Paid  (3,066,266,669)  (1,118,416,855)
 Commission Paid  (39,564,197)  (46,825,765)
 Service Fees Paid  (28,066,108)  (43,415,913)
 Employee Benefits Expenses Paid  (540,927,572)  (444,121,566)
 Other Expenses Paid  (144,327,746)  (144,249,583)
 Other Direct Expenses Paid  (7,202,057)  (6,597,725)
 Others (Changes in Working Capital)  67,116,217  (566,154,199)
  
 Income Tax Paid  (174,624,560)  (265,539,716)

 Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]  237,743,408  (271,578,358)
  

 Cash Flow From Investing Activities 
 Acquisitions of Intangible Assets  (550,000)  -   
 Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets  -    -   
 Acquisitions of Investment Properties  -    -   
 Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties  -    -   
 Acquisitions of Property & Equipment  (8,343,900)  -   
 Proceeds From Sale of Property & Equipment  3,808,754  18,143,825 
 Investment in Subsidiaries  -    -   
 Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries  -    -   
 Investment in Associates  -    -   
 Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates  -    -   
 Purchase of Equity Instruments  (322,922,837)  (163,459,495)
 Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments  199,295,641  54,292,632 
 Purchase of Mutual Funds  (16,713,928)  (29,220,209)
 Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds  4,892,300  -   
 Purchase of Preference Shares  -    -   
 Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares  -    -   
 Purchase of Debentures  (73,360,236)  (62,842,000)
 Proceeds from Sale of Debentures  -    -   
 Purchase of Bonds  -    -   
 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds  -    -   
 Investments in Deposits  -    -   
 Maturity of Deposits  99,250,000  113,000,000 

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows

For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024 
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig in NPR

Continue...
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows

For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024 
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig in NPR

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Loans Paid  -    -   
 Proceeds from Loans  463,563  (562,828)
 Rental Income Received  14,400,567  13,710,254 
 Proceeds from  Finance Lease  -    -   
 Interest Income Received  459,032,896  373,684,879 
 Dividend Received  8,944,906  4,485,158 
 Others (to be specified)  (20,000,000)  -   

 Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]  348,197,727  321,232,218 
  

Cash Flow From Financing Activities 
 Interest Paid  -    -   
 Proceeds From Borrowings  -    -   
 Repayment of Borrowings  -    -   
 Payment of Finance Lease  (32,721,059)  (28,120,233)
 Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital  -    -   
 Share Issuance Cost Paid  (418,834)  -   
 Dividend Paid  (97,980,694)  (8,703,684)
 Dividend Distribution Tax Paid  -    -   
 Others (to be specified)  -    -   

 Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]  (131,120,587)  (36,823,917)
  

 Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]  454,820,548  12,829,943 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period  243,548,479  166,011,300 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents transferred from LGIC  -    64,707,236 
 Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period  698,369,027  243,548,479 

 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents 
 Cash In Hand  227,706  227,706 
 Cheuqe in Hand 
 Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months) 

 Balance With Banks   698,141,321  243,320,773 

Notes: Statement of Cashflow has been prepared using direct method 

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

	 Manohar Das Mool	 Ajith R. Gunawardena	 Lokmanya Golchha	 Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari		
	 Chairman	 Director	 Director 	 Director		
	
				     
	 Arun Raj Shrestha	 Bijan Bhattarai	  Nirmala Devi Manandhar	
	 Public Director	 Public Director	 Independent Director   	
               	
			   As per our report of even date,		
			   CA Kiran Dongol			
			   Partner
	  Chunky Chhetry	 Ganesh Dhakal	 For J. B. Rajbhandary & DiBins
	 Chief Executive Officer	 Chief Finance Officer	 Chartered Accountants
	  

April 10, 2025				  
Kathmandu, Nepal
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024 
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig in NPR

Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 

Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year  460,979,869  331,023,016 

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using 
the equity method 9  -    -   

Income Tax Relating to Above Items

Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments  (76,833,023)  70,544,059 

Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations  -    -   

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using 
the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items  23,049,907  (21,163,218)

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax  (53,783,116)  49,380,841 

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax  407,196,752  380,403,858 

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

	 Manohar Das Mool	 Ajith R. Gunawardena	 Lokmanya Golchha	 Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari		
	 Chairman	 Director	 Director 	 Director		
	
				     

	 Arun Raj Shrestha	 Bijan Bhattarai	  Nirmala Devi Manandhar	
	 Public Director	 Public Director	 Independent Director   	
               	
			   As per our report of even date,		
			   CA Kiran Dongol			
			   Partner
	  Chunky Chhetry	 Ganesh Dhakal	 For J. B. Rajbhandary & DiBins
	 Chief Executive Officer	 Chief Finance Officer	 Chartered Accountants
	  

April 10, 2025				  
Kathmandu, Nepal
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024 
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig in NPR

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Opening Balance in Retained Earnings  135,314,068  175,089,548 

 Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year 

 Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss  460,979,869  331,023,016 

 Appropriations: 
 i)Transfer to Insurance Fund 

 ii)Transfer to Special Reserve  -    (202,453,963)

 iii)Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve  (21,234,728)  (10,122,698)

 iv)Transfer to Capital Reserve 

 v)Transfer to CSR reserve  (4,246,946)  (4,049,079)

 vi)Transfer to/fromRegulatory Reserve  -    3,656,290 

 vii)Transfer to Fair Value Reserve  (6,733,118)  (1,281,170)

 viii)Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve  (36,285,299)  59,905,528 

 ix)Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classification 

 x)Transfer on business combination (LGIC Retained Earning)  -    (38,031,805)

 Deductions:  -    -   

i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL  -    -   

a) Equity Instruments  -    -   

b) Mutual Fund  -    -   

c) Others (if any)  -    -   

ii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties  -    -   

iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges  -    -   

iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges  -    -   

v) Accumulated Fair value gain of  Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges  -    -   

vi)) Goodwill Recognised  -    -   

vii) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency  -    -   

viii) Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method included 
in Investment Account  -    -   

ix) Overdue loans  -    -   

x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss  -    -   

xi) Investment in unlisted shares  -    -   

xii) Delisted share Investment or mutual fund investment  -    -   

xiii) Bonus share/ dividend paid  (131,131,910)  (174,073,684)

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive  -    -   

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial directive  -    -   

xv) Share issuance cost  (418,834)  (1,939,405)

xvi)Others (Prior Period Adjustment)  7,630,281  (2,408,510)

xvii)Lease Equalization Fund  -    -   

xviii) Acturial Reserve  -    -   

 Adjusted Retained Earning  403,873,382  135,314,068 
 Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account  -    -   

 Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital  -    -   

 Less: Deduction as per sec 15(1) Of Financial directive  -    -   

 Add/Less: Others  -    -   

 Total Distributable Profit/(loss)  403,873,383  135,314,068 
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

1    Reporting Entity
Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 17/10/2051 and operated as 
general insurance company after obtaining license from Insurance Board of Nepal on 3/12/2053 under the Insurance Act 2079.  The registered 
office of the Company is located at Bhagwati Marg, Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company's shares are listed and trading on Nepal Stock 
Exchange.

On March 13, 2023, Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited and Lumbini General Insurance Company Limited underwent a  merger at a 
swap ratio of 100:80 and commenced the operation under the unified banner of Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Limited (SALICO).  
 
The principal activities of the company are to provide various non-life insurance products through its province offices, branches, sub-braches, 
and network of agents.

2	 Basis of Preparation	 					   
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.						    
(a)	 Reporting Period and approval of financial statements						    

	The Company reporting period is from 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashadh 2081 with the corresponding previous year from 1st shrawan 
2079 to 31st Ashadh 2080 . These financial statements have been approved by the Management on April 10 , 2025			 
			

(b)	 Statement of Compliance						    						   
	The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement	
of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two separate statements, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes 
to the Financial Statements which have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by 
the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act , 2006, directives issued by 
Nepal Insurance Authority and required disclosures as per Securities Board of Nepal. The format used in the preparation and presentation 
of the Financial Statements and disclosures made therein also complies with the specified formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal 
Insurance Authority. 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards and the related 
interpretations which are consistently used. 
The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 10 , 2025.				  
		

(c)	 Basis of Measurement						    
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets & Liabilities which have been 
measured at Fair Value amount: 
i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value 
ii. Defined Employee Benefits 
iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT). 
 
Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation 
technique. 
 
In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or 2, or 3 based on the degree to 
which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its 
entirety, which are described as follows: 
• Level 1• Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that the entity can access at the 
measurement date; 
• Level 2• Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the Asset or Liability, either directly 
or indirectly; and 
• Level 3• Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.						    
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

(d)	 Use of Estimates						    
The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make estimates, judgements and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to 
Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in 
estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in 
the Notes to the financial statements.
					   

(e)	 Functional and Presentation Currency						    
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial 
information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise. 
			 

f)	 Going Concern	 					   
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered a wide range of  information 
relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the 
going concern basis. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. 				  
		

(g)	 Changes in Accounting Policies						    
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Company in preparing and 
presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard 
or interpretation; or results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, 
other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.					  
	

(h)	 Recent Accounting Pronouncements	 					   
Accounting standards issued and effective  
All the accounting standard made effective by the ASB are applied while preparing the financial statement of the Company & 
IFRS 16   "Leases"					   

Accounting standards issued and non-effective						    
IFRS 17   "Insurance Contracts"						    
							     

(i)	 Carve-outs						    
The company has not applied any carve outs provided by ASB					   
							     

(j)	 Presentation of financial statements	 					   
The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped by the nature and listed in an order 
that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern.						    

(k)	 Offsetting	 					   
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position, only when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by Nepalese 
Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and 
Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.	
							     

(l)	 Materiality and aggregation						    
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or function are presented 
separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. 
Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability and comparability of Financial 
Statements of the Company. Understandability of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material information with 
immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.
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3	 Significant Accounting Policies						    
This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.				  
						    
(a)	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)	 					   
	 i) Recognition						     	 i) Recognition						    

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction 
less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it 
can be used for more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it meets the 
recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.		
			 

ii) Revaluation						     ii) Revaluation						    
After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have been carried at revalued amount at the 
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.Valuations are being 
performed to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as at the reporting date. 
Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.
			 
An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under 
the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease 
of the same asset previously recognised in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in profit 
or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation 
surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is 
transferred directly to retained earnings.

The Company has not used revaluation model for subsequent measurement of its PPE.

iii) Depreciationiii) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, 
Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on " Diminishing Balance  Method (DBM)" based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the 
management.						    

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting date and the effect of any changes in 
estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.						    
							     
Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on DBM is categorised as stated below:	

List of Asset Categories Rate of Depreciation
(in %) for DBM

 Buildings 5%
 Furniture & Fixtures 25%
 Computers and IT Equipments 25%
 Office Equipment 25%
 Vehicles 20%
Other Assets 25%
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iv) Derecognition						     iv) Derecognition						    
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise 
from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.						    
						    
v) Impairment of Assets						     v) Impairment of Assets						    
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, 
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk 
specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had there been no impairment loss. 						    
vi) Capital Work-In-Progress						     vi) Capital Work-In-Progress						    
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and system development 
which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in 
Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.				  

(b)	 Goodwill & Intangible Assets						    
i) Recognition						     i) Recognition						    
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding 
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the year in 
which the expenditure is incurred. 
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific 
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

ii) Amortization						     ii) Amortization						    
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall be regarded as having an indefinite 
useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected 
generate net cash inflow for the entity.
Amortisation is recognised in income statement on straight line method over the estimated useful life of the intangible assets from the date 
that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each 
financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life 
(In Years) for SLM

Softwares 5

iii) Derecognition						     iii) Derecognition						    
An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain 
or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and 
is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.		  				   				  

iv) Impairment of Assets						     iv) Impairment of Assets						    
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible Assets may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, 
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discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk 
specific to the assets.

(c)	 Investment Properties						    
Cost Model						     Cost Model						    
Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciaiton or both, is classified as investment property. Investment properties are 
measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent 
expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when 
incurred. 

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as mentioned above.		
			 
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property is permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.  Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an 
investment property are recognised in the statement  of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. 				  
		
Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property to PPE, the 
deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company 
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.				  
		

(d)	 Cash & Cash Equivalent	 					   
Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.	

(e)	 Financial Assets						    
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement						     i) Initial Recognition & Measurement						    
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Financial 
Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Assets not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisation of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets 
carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss."					   
	
ii) Subsequent Measurement	ii) Subsequent Measurement	
a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)	a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)	
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  Interest income in these financial assets is measured using effective interest 
rate method.
		
b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)	b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)	 					   
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are 
taken to statement of other comprehensive income. 						    
							     
c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 						     c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 						    
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.				  
iii) De-Recognition						     iii) De-Recognition						    
A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the Financial Asset. Where 
the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial 
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Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.			 
			 
iv) Impairment of Financial Assetsiv) Impairment of Financial Assets						    
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of 
impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default 
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and 
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults.										        
		

(f) Financial Liabilities						     						    
i) Initial Recognition & Measurementi) Initial Recognition & Measurement						    
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition. 
All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the Financial Liability.							     
					   
ii) Subsequent Measurement	ii) Subsequent Measurement	 					   
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Method.  
 
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial Position, the carrying amounts approximate 
Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.						   
							     
iii) De-Recognitioniii) De-Recognition						    
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing Financial 
Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and 
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.				  
		

(g)	 Offsetting financial instruments						    
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial Position where there is legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.	
							     

(h)	 Reinsurance Assets	 					   
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount which are recoverable from the 
reinsurer. These assets are created for the resinsurer's share of insurance contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after the initial recognition of the 
reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably 
measurable impact on the amount that the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces 
the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.					   

(i)	 Equity	 					   
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a Financial 
Liability or Financial Asset.						    
							     

(j)	 Reserves and Funds						    
i) 	 Share Application Mo ney Pending allotment: Share Application Mo ney Pending allotment: Share Application Money Pending Allotment means the amount received on the 

application on which allotment is not yet made (pending allotment).					   
ii) 	 Share Premium: Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other than share capital such amount 
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is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is allowed for distribution subject to provisions of company act & 
regulatory requirement.						    

iii) 	 Catastrophe Reserves:Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is 10% of the net profit for the year as per 
Regulator's Directive.But as per the benefit provided to merger company, we have allocated 5% of the net profit for the year 2080/81	
					   

iv) 	 Fair Value Reserves:Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of Fair Value Gain recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s directive.					   

v)	 Regulatory Reserves: Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by regulatory authority.It has been 
transferred to Special Reserve.						    

vi) 	 Actuarial Reserves:	 Actuarial Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit obligation resuting from, experience 
adjustments (the effects of  differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and  the effects 
of changes in actuarial assumptions.						    

vii) 	Revaluation Reserves: 	Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments & intangible assets, other than the 
reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss. 						    

viii) Special Reserves: Special Reserves: Reserve created as per the provision of Sec. 39 of Insurance Act, 2079.
ix) 	 Other Reserves: Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve, others (to be specified)				 

						    
(k)	 Insurance Contract Liabilities	 					   

i) Provision for unearned premiumsi) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating to the unexpired term of coverage.  
 
Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written premium transferred to the unearned 
premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period of the polices.

ii) Outstanding claims provisionsii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the statement of financial 
position date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs.

iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known 
with certainty at the statement of financial position date. 
The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical data 
and current assumptions  that may include a margin for adverse deviation. 				 
							     
Liability adequacyLiability adequacy
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to determine whether there is 
any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of 
future contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life 
insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency 
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.						    
				  

(l)	 Employee Benefits						    
i) Short Term Obligationsi) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 
the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting 
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.						    
ii) Post - Employment Benefits						     i) Post - Employment Benefits						    
- Defined Contribution Plan	- Defined Contribution Plan	 					   
The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds/Social Security Fund as per local regulations. 
The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined 
contribution plans and the contribution are recognized as Employee Benefit Expenses when they are due.				  
- Defined Benefit Plan	- Defined Benefit Plan	 					   
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For Defined Benefit Plan , the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations 
being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the 
period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is 
amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in 
the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service 
cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the 
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.					   
							     
iii) Long Term Employee Benefits						     iii) Long Term Employee Benefits						    
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the 
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to 
the terms of assumptions.						    
							     
iv) Terminationiv) Termination						    
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date, or when an 
employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the 
following dates:
a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and 
b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the payment of termination 
benefits.  
The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case of voluntary retirement 
scheme.					   
							     

(m)	 Revenue Recognition						    
i) Gross Premiums						     i) Gross Premiums						    
Gross Premium are recognized as soon as the amount of the premiums can be reliably measured. First premium is recognized from inception 
date. At the end of the financial year, all due premiums are accounted for to the extent that they can be reliably measured.		
							     
ii) Unearned Premium Reserves						     ii) Unearned Premium Reserves						    
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned 
premiums are calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned 
premiums.						   
							     
iii) Premium on Reinsurance Accepted						     iii) Premium on Reinsurance Accepted						    
Premium on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts entered 
into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in 
the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance 
premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. 
Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as negative items within premiums 
and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business is managed.	
				  
iv) Reinsurance Premium						     iv) Reinsurance Premium						    
Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts 
entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any 
adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. 
Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after 
the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying direct insurance 
policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.  
 Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as negative items within premiums 
and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business is managed.				  
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v) Commission Income						     v) Commission Income						    
Commission Income is recognized on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they are deferred and recognized over those 
future periods.						    
							     
vi) Investment income						     vi) Investment income						    
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR method. Fees and commissions 
that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.  
Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.
						    
vii) Net realised gains and losses						    vii) Net realised gains and losses						   
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets and properties. Gains 
and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are 
recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction. 						    
							     

(n)	 Claims and Expenses						    
i) Gross Claims						     i) Gross Claims						    
Claims includes the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims handling costs that are directly related to processing 
and settlement of claims. Claims that are incurred during the financial year are recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or the insurer 
is notified. Reserve for Incurred but not Reported Claims (IBNR) has been created as per acturial Valuation.				  
	
ii) Reinsurance Classification						     ii) Reinsurance Classification						    
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according to the term of the relevant contracts.	
					   

(o)	 Product Classification						    
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another 
party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) 
adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by 
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk. 
The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Property Portfolioi) Property Portfolio - Property/Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out ccontracts of insurance, otherwise 
than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other 
occurrences customarily included among the risks insured against in the property/fire insurance business.		
ii) Motor Portfolio -ii) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss of, or 
damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.	
					   

iii) Marine Portfolio - iii) Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss of 
consignment of goods during transit.						    
							     
iv) Engineering Portfolio - iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic safeguard to the risks faced by the 
ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment in project operation.			 

v) Micro Portfolio - v) Micro Portfolio - Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential to provide value to low-
income farmers and their communities, both by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.	
					   
							     
vi) Aviation Portfolio –vi) Aviation Portfolio – Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger injuries, environmental and 
third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.						    
							     
vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damange to Cattle and crops.		
				  
viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio – viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio – All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above categories fall under miscellaneous insurance business. 
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Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.		
					   

(p)	 Borrowing Costs						   
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily 
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the 
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings 
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs 
are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
							     

(q)	 Cash Flow Statement						    
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash payments are disclosed as cash flows.	
					   
							     

(r)	 Leases						    
The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. For all the significant lease, the Right-of-Use assets has been recognized at 
its initial recognition under cash model. The Lease liability has been recognized at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at that date. The lease payment has been discounted at the incremental borrowing rate in lease which is 10%. After the commencement 
date, the right of use asset has been measured using cost model. The lease liability has been increased to reflect interest on the lease liability 
& has been reduced by the lease payment.						   

(s)	 Income Taxes						    
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.					   
	
i) Current Taxi) Current Tax						    
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made 
for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance 
with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.						    
							     
ii) Deferred Tax	ii) Deferred Tax	 					   
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities in the Statement of Financial 
Position and their Tax Base. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising 
between the tax base of Assets & Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable 
Profit nor Loss at the time of the transaction.
 
Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 
 
Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference.
 
The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.			 
							     

(t)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets						    
(i) Provisions						     (i) Provisions						    
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 
amount can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognized as interest expenses. Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books a matter of abundant precaution 
and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes that chances of these matters going 
against the company are remote and there will not be any probable cash outflow.
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(ii) Contingent Liabilities						     (ii) Contingent Liabilities						    
Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured 
in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an 
ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.					   
	
(iii) Contingent Assets						     (iii) Contingent Assets						    
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not recognized but disclosed in the 
Financial Statements.						   
							     

(u)	 Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions						    
The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the Company's Functional Currency. In preparing the 
Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company's Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are 
recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.					   
	

(v)	 Earnings Per Share						    
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the Weighted Average Number of 
equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year. For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 
is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.							     
				  

(w)	 Operating Segment	 					   
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker 
(CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.
Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income & Expenses which are not identifiable to 
any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to 
any business.						    
							     

(x)     Business Combination	 						    
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date i.e. when control is transferred to the 
Insurance Company. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities.
The Insurance Company measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•	 the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus
•	 the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire, plus
•	 if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the preexisting equity interest in the acquire, less
•	 the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
•	 When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
•	 The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such 		

mounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.
•	 Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the company incurs in connection with 

a business combination are expensed as incurred.
•	 Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as 

equity, then it is not re-measured, and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of 
the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss except for measurement period adjustment.			 
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

 Particulars  Softwares  Goodwill  Others(to be 
Specify)  Total 

 Gross carrying amount 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2079  -    -   
 Additions during the year 
      Acquisition  -   
      Internal Development  -   
      Business Combination( to be Specified)  1,765,761  156,141,249  157,907,010 
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Revaluation/Adjustment  -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080  1,765,761  156,141,249  -    157,907,010 
 Additions during the year  550,000 
      Acquisition 
      Internal Development 
      Business Combination( to be Specified)  -    -    -   
 Disposals during the year 
 Revaluation/Adjustment 
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  2,315,761  156,141,249  -    158,457,010 

 Accumulated amortization and impairment 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2079 
 Additions during the year  140,396  140,396 
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Impairment during the year  -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080  140,396  -    -    140,396 
 Additions during the year  408,580  408,580 
 Disposals during the year 
 Impairment during the year 
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  548,976  -    -    548,976 

Capital Work-In-Progress
As on Shrawan 1, 2078
Additions during the year  -   
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year

 Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079  -    -    -    -   

Additions during the year 

Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
 Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -    -    -   

Net Carrying Amount
As on Ashadh 31, 2080  1,625,365  156,141,249  -    157,766,615 
As on Ashadh 31, 2081  1,766,785  156,141,249  -    157,908,034 

4. Goodwill & Intangible Assets 	 Fig in NPR
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

 Particulars  Land   Building   Total 

 Gross carrying amount 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2079  100,005,359  26,015,510  126,020,869 
 Additions during the year  -   

 Acquisition  
 Subsequent Expenditure 

 Assets classified as held for sales 
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Revaluation/Adjustment  -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080  100,005,359  26,015,510  126,020,869 
 Additions during the year  -   

 Acquisition  
 Subsequent Expenditure 

 Assets classified as held for sales 
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Revaluation/Adjustment  -   
 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  100,005,359  26,015,510  126,020,869 

 Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2079  -    12,086,122  12,086,122 
 Additions during the year  696,469  696,469 
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Impairment during the year  -   
 Transfer/Adjustments  -   
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080  -    12,782,591  12,782,591 
 Additions during the year  661,646  661,646 
 Disposals during the year  -   
 Impairment during the year  -   
 Transfer/Adjustments  -   

 Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081  -    13,444,237  13,444,237 

Capital Work-In-Progress
As on Shrawan 1, 2079
Additions during the year 
Capitalisation during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079  -    -    -   

Additions during the year 
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

 Net Carrying Amount 
 Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080  100,005,359  13,232,919  113,238,278 
 Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2081  100,005,359  12,571,273  112,576,632 

6.	 Investment Properties 	 Fig in NPR
	 Investment Properties at Cost 
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Land - -

 Building - -

 Total  -    -   
    

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Rental income  14,400,567  13,710,254 

 Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income  -    -   

 Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income  -    -   

 Profit from investment properties before depreciation  14,400,567  13,710,254 

 Depreciation charge  661,646  696,469 

 Profit from investment properties  13,738,921  13,013,785 
    

 (i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss 	 Fig in NPR

 (ii) Fair value of investment properties:

 (iii) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties: 

(iv) Contractual obligations:  

 Notes on Fair Value : 
The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for 
similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company consider information from a variety of sources including :
			 
a) 	 current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted to reflect 

those differences,			 
b) 	 discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,			 
c) 	 capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalization rate derived from an analysis of market 

evidence.			 
The fair values of investment properties have been deteremined by Er.Reinforcement Consultant Pvt Ltd. The main inputs used are the rental growth 
rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transcations and industry data.

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Through 
SOPL 

 Through 
SOCI  Total  Through 

SOPL 
 Through 

SOCI  Total 

Goodwill & Intangible Assets  -  - 
Property and Equipment  (29,511,008)  -  (29,511,008)  (25,896,107)  -  (25,896,107)

Financial Assets at FVPTL  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Financial Assets at FVTOCI  -  (65,007,879)  (65,007,879)  -  (86,892,964)  (86,892,964)

Provision for Leave   22,774,006  -  22,774,006  16,850,812  -  16,850,812 

Provision for Gratuity   1,140,301  -  1,140,301  1,230,309  -  1,230,309 

Impairment Loss on Financial Assets  34,119,715  -  34,119,715  39,912,018  -  39,912,018 

Impairment Loss on Other Assets  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Unearned Premium Reserve  (18,768,936)  -  (18,768,936)  -  -  - 

Premium Deficiency Reserve  1,259,937  -  1,259,937  124,351  -  124,351 

IBNR and IBNER Claims  17,150,245  -  17,150,245  12,028,739  -  12,028,739 

Margin For Adverse Deviation  27,414,609  -  27,414,609  -  -  - 

Carry forward of unused tax losses  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Changes in tax rate  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Others (Provisions as prescribed by Beema 
Pradhikaran) 

 1,725,000  -  1,725,000  1,725,000  -  1,725,000 

i) Deferred commission income  68,304,212  -  68,304,212  45,028,910  -  45,028,910 
ii) Deferred commission expense  (5,164,994)  -  (5,164,994)  (4,762,280)  -  (4,762,280)

iii) ROU Assets and Lease Liability  5,972,638  -  5,972,638  3,888,677  -  3,888,677 

 Total  126,415,726  (65,007,879)  61,407,847  90,130,427  (86,892,964)  3,237,463 
 Deferred Tax Asstes  126,415,726  126,415,726  90,130,427  (86,892,964)  3,237,463 

 Deferred Tax Liabilities  -  - 

7.	  Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 SOPL  SOCI  Total  SOPL  SOCI  Total 

As at Shrawan 1, 2080  90,130,427  (86,892,964)  3,237,463  113,395,075  (13,979,379)  99,415,696 
Addded through merger  -  50,620,261  (51,366,016)  (745,755)
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss  36,285,299  36,285,299  (73,884,909)  (73,884,909)
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive 
Income 

 23,049,907  23,049,907  (21,163,218)  (21,163,218)

Charged/(Credited) Directly to Equity  (1,164,823)  (1,164,823)  (384,351)  (384,351)
As at Ashadh 31, 2081  126,415,726  (65,007,879)  61,407,847  90,130,427  (86,892,964)  3,237,463 

 Movements in deferred tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 

8.	   Investment in Subsidiaries 	
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - -
 Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - -
 Less: Impairment Losses - -
 Total - -
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 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 
Method  Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 

Method 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Investment in Quoted Subisidiaries 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 
Method  Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 

Method 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

 Particulars 
Percentage of Ownership

 Current Year Previous Year

 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - -
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - -
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - -
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - -

 Information Relating to Subsidiaries

9.	  Investment in Associates 	
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investment in Quoted Associates - -
 Investment in Unquoted Associates - -
 Less: Impairment Losses - -
 Total -

 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 
Method  Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 

Method 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -
 Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - - -
 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Investment in Quoted Associates 

 Particulars 
 Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 
Method  Cost  Fair Value  (or) Equit 

Method 
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. - - - - - -
 Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -
 Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - - -
 Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Investment in Unquoted Associates 
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 Information Relating to Associates 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Name - -

 Place of Business - -
 Accounting Method - -
 % of Ownership - -
 Current Assets - -
 Non-Current Assets - -
 Current Liabilities - -
 Non-Current Liabilities - -

 Income - -
 Net Profit or Loss - -
 Other Comprehensive Income - -
 Total Comprehensive Income - -

 Company's share of profits - -
 Net Profit or Loss - -
 Other Comprehensive Income -

    

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Investments measured at Amortised Cost  5,042,917,363  5,068,807,127 
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions  - 
ii) Investment in Debentures  377,411,236  304,051,000 
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)  6,500,000  6,500,000 
iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions  3,885,250,000  4,036,000,000 
v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks  -  - 
vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions  635,000,000  594,000,000 
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions  139,000,000  128,500,000 
viii) Others ( to be Specified)  -  - 
Less: Impairment Losses  (243,873)  (243,873)
Investments at FVTOCI  1,360,383,577  1,156,460,116 
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)  1,127,942,046  336,900,125 
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)  147,653,220  758,606,874 
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds  84,788,311  60,953,118 
iv) Investment in Debentures  -  - 
v) Others ( to be Specified)  -  - 
Investments at FVTPL  -  - 
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)  -  - 
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)  -  - 
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds  -  - 
iv) Investment in Debentures  - 
v) Others ( to be Specified)  -  - 
Total  6,403,300,940  6,225,267,243 

10.	  Investments 
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
 Investment in Debentures - -
 Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
 Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions - -
 Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks - -
 Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions  243,873 -
 Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions - -
 Others (to be Specified) - -
 Total  243,873  - 

 a) Details of Impairment Losses 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 
 Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 
 Investment in Mutual Funds 
 Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions 
 Investment in Debentures  21,802,840  - 
 Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 
 Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions  3,456,050,000  3,154,050,000 
 Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks 
 Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions  560,000,000  320,000,000 
 Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions  132,000,000  70,000,000 
 Others (to be Specified) 
 Total  4,169,852,840  3,544,050,000 

 b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months: 

 Particulars 
 Current Year   Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) - -  -  - 
 Api Power Company Ltd.-39067-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  8,940,415  7,461,797  5,551,866  3,811,950 

 Arun Kabeli Power Ltd.-764-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  66,000  141,340  29,500  85,124 

 Asian Life Insurance Co. Limited-7673-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  5,297,614  4,780,279  3,918,537  3,816,402 

 Barun Hydropower Co. Ltd.-35584-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  14,276,256  10,532,864  14,276,256  8,860,416 

 Butwal Power Company Limited-30746-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  10,020,000  9,531,260  10,020,000  10,161,553 

 CEDB Hydropower Development Company Limited-21857-Equity Share of Rs 
100 Each 

 22,319,726  25,332,263  1,191,360  1,194,184 

 Central Finance Co. Ltd.-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  1,073,824  846,522 

 Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited-24959-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  29,365,165  22,463,100  29,365,165  23,770,000 

 Chilime Hydropower Company Limited-51512-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  26,980,147  23,953,080  10,019,046  9,235,534 

 Citizen Investment Trust-7523.75-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  19,440,112  14,633,694  19,440,112  12,573,691 

 Dordi Khola Jal Bidyut Company Limited-7-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,159  3,154  2,616,740  2,081,765 

Forward Microfinance Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited-1-Equity Share of Rs 
100 Each 

 1,033  1,413  1,033  1,321 

 Global IME Bank Limited-58081-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  13,870,685  11,279,330  7,041,298  4,509,198 

 Green Development Bank Ltd.-544-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  52,500  267,104  52,500  166,464 

 c) Information relating to investment in equity instruments 

Continue...
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 Particulars 
 Current Year   Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

 Himalayan Bank Limited-24084-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  7,021,300  4,917,953  7,021,300  5,125,075 

 Himalayan Distillery Limited-3976-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  9,306,259  5,502,784  9,306,259  8,126,520 

Hydorelectricity Investment and Development Company Ltd-22433-Equity Share 
of Rs 100 Each 

 3,088,452  4,015,507  3,088,452  4,127,672 

Hydorelectricity Investment and Development Company Ltd-200655-Equity 
Share of Rs 100 Each 

 19,727,796  20,667,465  10,040,000  10,537,000 

Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd.-1-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  417  -  413 

Manjushree Finance Ltd.-3660-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,082,620  2,206,614  2,082,620  2,013,000 

Mero Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.-271-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  10,900  189,700  10,900  179,131 

Multipurpose Finance Company Limited-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  11,732,373  12,323,631 

National Hydro Power Company Limited-68387-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  20,796,121  11,140,242  18,516,521  8,110,639 

National Life Insurance Co. Ltd.-10244.12-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  8,219,095  6,095,251  6,411,349  4,314,405 

National Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited-106-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,900  149,354  1,900  133,868 

Nepal Bank Limited-44670-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  9,887,607  10,251,765  7,152,685  8,333,283 

Nepal Finance Ltd.-12909-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,211,900  3,601,611  1,211,900  3,601,611 

Nepal Hydro Developers Ltd.-26569-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  9,008,342  14,187,846  9,008,342  9,361,287 

Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited-43256-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  16,852,463  9,862,368  10,986,901  4,429,376 

Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited-25092-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  3,611,127  3,485,279  3,611,127  3,861,659 

Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited-58131-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  12,063,781  10,178,738  5,741,843  3,814,562 

Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.-5768-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,480,925  3,570,392  2,480,925  4,291,392 

NIC Asia Bank Ltd.-38700-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  23,751,138  17,151,840  23,751,138  23,814,000 

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited-34286-Equity Share of Rs 100 
Each 

 39,703,532  24,408,203  39,703,532  26,228,790 

People's Power Limited-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  1,448,724  1,245,000 

Prabhu Bank Limited-35639-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  9,748,891  5,834,104  9,748,891  5,794,902 

Reliance Finance Ltd.-11340-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  6,154,302  5,205,060  6,154,302  4,109,063 

Reliance Finance Ltd.-98077-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  6,500,000  20,007,708  6,500,000  19,799,780 

Ridi Power Company Limited-1045-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  310,821  199,073  275,432  169,128 

River Falls Power Limited-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  550,987  500,000 

RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.-134-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  7,400  92,728  7,400  76,024 

Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited-218-Equity Share of Rs 100 
Each 

 254,377  213,858  254,377  145,459 

Sanima Bank Limited-32779-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  7,977,901  9,145,341  7,977,901  7,834,017 

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  957,395  849,300 

Saptakoshi Development Bank Ltd-3000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  780,293  1,290,000  780,293  774,000 

Shine Resunga Development Bank Ltd.-170101-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  73,918,791  68,907,915  72,551,208  57,336,576 

Singati Hydro Energy Limited-6820-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,417,820  1,169,630  1,076,820  954,800 

Standard Chartered Bank Limited-3837-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,102,700  2,309,874  2,102,700  2,033,994 

SuryaJyoti Life Insurance Company Limited-5163-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  4,130,850  2,219,574  4,130,850  2,856,630 

Suryadaya Laghu Bittiya Sanstha -53-Equity Share Of Rs 100 Each  -  -  1,700  38,849 

Swarojgar Laghu Bitta Bikas Bank Ltd.-10097-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  11,494,182  8,592,547  11,494,182  6,568,485 

Synergy Power Development Ltd.-5064-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,196,698  1,290,814  61,600  177,321 

Union Hydropower Limited-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  2,227,252  1,795,360 

Prime Commercial Bank Ltd.-3966-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  742,548  879,659  -  - 

Fig in NPR
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 Particulars 
 Current Year   Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Suryodaya Womi Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited-62-Equity Share of Rs 100 
Each 

 1,700  58,590  -  - 

Chandragiri Hills Limited-3880-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  5,184,394  3,523,040  -  - 

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited-782-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  386,900  425,877  -  - 

IME Life Insurance Company Limited-8522-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  4,742,290  3,860,466  -  - 

Reliable Nepal Life Insurance Limited-25328-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  12,643,861  11,600,224  -  - 

SHIVAM CEMENTS LTD-2636-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,335,142  1,324,063  -  - 

Himalayan Bank Limited-141116-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  18,508,158  17,639,500  -  - 

Jyoti Bikas Bank Limited-1996-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  635,152  626,744  -  - 

Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd.-17462-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  6,629,182  6,408,554  -  - 

NRN Infrastructure and Development Limited-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  -  - 

Sindhu Bikash Bank Ltd-5333-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,561,308  2,421,182  -  - 

Sonapur Minerals And Oil Limited-7000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  3,553,052  3,192,700  -  - 

Himalayan Reinsurance Limited-29109-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  19,883,851  16,883,220  -  - 

Ngadi Group Power Ltd.-33383-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  11,138,136  11,383,603  -  - 

Sagarmatha Jalabidhyut Company Limited-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  -  - 

Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited-4146892-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each 323,633,600 611,459,225 323,633,600 691,373,215 

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) Through Portfolio Manager
Nepal SBI Capital 
Life Insurance Company Nepal-870-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,188,559  1,251,060 

National Life Insurance Company Limited-851-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  562,911  506,345 

NIC Asia Bank Limited-1100-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  583,889  487,520 

Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited-1100-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  369,367  373,450 

Shivam Cements Limited-7641-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  3,296,128  3,838,074 

Universal Power Company Limited-3143-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  778,966  647,772 

Muktinath Capital 
Asian Life Insurance Company Limited-3124-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,874,519  1,946,252 

Garima Bikas Bank Limited-3000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,154,084  1,155,300 

Ghorahi Cement Industry Ltd.-1000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  520,082  496,000 

Mountain Energy Nepal Limited-1500-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  919,916  895,500 

NIC Asia Bank Limited-3000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,530,445  1,329,600 

Sanima Reliance Life Insurance Limited-3000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,395,991  1,417,200 

Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited-1000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  401,405  405,100 

Shivam Cements Limited-1000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  503,757  502,300 

Sonapur Minerals and Oil Ltd.-1000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  458,812  456,100 

Suryajyoti Life Insurance Company Limited-3298-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,605,122  1,417,810 

NIC Asia Capital 
Api Power Company Ltd.-800-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  146,245  152,800 

Arun Kabeli Power Ltd.-800-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  143,290  148,000 

Citizen Investment Trust-500-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,057,788  972,500 

Garima Bikas Bank Limited-5000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,890,496  1,925,500 

Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited-5800-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,174,237  2,412,800 

Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Limited-4992-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,707,495  1,757,184 

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited-3000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,098,104  1,101,000 

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Particulars 
 Current Year   Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

 Prime Commercial Bank Limited-10000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,936,140  2,218,000 

 Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 
 Insurance Inst. Of Nepal (P)  9,403,220  9,403,220  9,403,220  9,403,220 

 Nepal Insurance Association-Promoter's Share  -  -  2,080,439  2,080,439 

 Bandipur Cable Car And Tourism(P)  52,500,000  52,500,000  52,500,000  50,000,000 

 Machhapuchhre Capital Ltd (P)  5,750,000  5,750,000  5,750,000  5,750,000 

 Appolo Hydropower  10,000,000  10,000,000  -  - 

 Mewa Developers  70,000,000  70,000,000  -  - 

 Investment In Mutual Funds (Quoted) 
 Citizens Mutual Fund -1-1064806-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  10,520,905  10,264,730  10,474,759  9,933,664 

 Global IME Balanced Fund-1-251800-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,515,281  2,291,380  2,500,000  2,335,000 

 Laxmi Equity Fund-555000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  9,678,971  5,255,850  9,678,971  5,322,450 

 Laxmi Unnati Kosh-649455-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  6,779,193  5,845,095  6,552,824  5,839,312 

 Mega Mutual Fund -1-375579-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  3,286,050  2,899,470  2,745,745  2,405,621 

 NABIL BALANCED FUND-2-501000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  5,008,138  4,509,000  5,000,000  4,400,000 

 Nabil Equity Fund-56323-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  563,230  557,598  315,480  340,403 

 NIBL Pragati Fund-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  7,690,044  4,636,253 

 NIC Asia Select Fund 30-158817-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,352,613  1,524,643  829,706  899,000 

 NMB 50-506000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  5,055,914  5,080,240  5,000,000  5,250,000 

 NMB Hybrid Fund L- 1-0-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  -  -  563,230  541,264 

 NMB Sulav Investment Fund - 2-250000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,500,000  2,515,000  2,500,000  2,497,500 

 Sanima Equity Fund-1010000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  10,100,000  11,019,100  10,100,000  11,918,000 

 Siddhartha Equity Fund-660285-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  5,874,153  5,539,791  2,550,000  2,404,650 

 Sanima Large Cap Fund-260100-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  2,581,468  2,416,329  2,500,000  2,230,000 

 Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund-1000700-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  10,006,162  10,007,000  -  - 

Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3-507900-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  5,066,418  4,799,655  -  - 

 NIC Asia Growth Fund 2-1000000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  10,000,000  8,200,000  -  - 

 Himalayan 80-20-110-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,003  1,099  -  - 

 Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana-1700-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  14,507  16,439  -  - 

 Kumari Equity Fund-5700-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  46,246  55,062  -  - 

 Laxmi Value Fund 2-9780-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  80,240  90,367  -  - 

 Nabil Balanced Fund-3-18870-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  138,720  147,186  -  - 

 NIBL Growth Fund-34341-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  278,038  365,388  -  - 

 NIC Asia Balanced Fund-7000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  60,021  67,200  -  - 

 NIC Asia Flexi CAP Fund-4600-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  40,756  42,550  -  - 

 Prabhu Select Fund-43699-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  376,510  427,813  -  - 

 RBB Mutual Fund 1-29974-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  239,469  244,588  -  - 

 RBB Mutual Fund 2-200-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  1,689  1,900  -  - 

 Sunrise Bluechip Fund-22200-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  176,976  183,594  -  - 

 Sunrise Focused Equity Fund-10000-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  80,253  82,400  -  - 

Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme - 2-35600-Equity Share of Rs 100 Each  285,396  337,844  -  - 

 Total 1,143,690,660 1,360,383,578 867,127,332 1,156,460,116 

 d) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 386.3 Crore To Nepal Insurance Authority. 

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig in NPR
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Loans measured at Amortised Cost - -
 Loan to Employees  10,658,216  11,121,779 
 Others ( to be Specified)  -  - 
 Less: Impairment Losses  -  - 
Total  10,658,216  11,121,779 

11.	  Loans

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Loan to Employees  -  - 

 Others ( to be Specified)  -  - 

Total  -  - 

 a) Expected repayment of loan within 12 months: 

Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Reinsurance Assets on: - -
 Unearned Premium Reserve  1,153,932,899  884,388,365 
 Unexpired Risk Reserve -  376,904,592 
 Earthquake Premium Reserve  - 
 Incurred but not reported (IBNR)  65,051,974  597,984,363 
 Incurred but not enough reported (IBNER)  377,149,895  - 
 Outstanding Claims  3,002,280,437  3,641,794,803 
 Others  -  - 
 Less: Impairment Losses  -  - 
 Total  4,598,415,205  5,501,072,122 

12.	  Reinsurance Assets	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Receivable from Reinsurer  435,792,634  518,883,904 
 Receivable from Other Insurance Companies  695,114,403  659,157,614 
 Others( to be Specified)  -  - 
 Less: Impairment Losses  (113,732,384)  (133,040,059)
 Total  1,017,174,653  1,045,001,459 

13.	  Insurance Receivables 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Receivable from Reinsurer  435,792,634  518,883,904 
 Receivable from Other Insurance Companies  695,114,403  659,157,614 
 Others( to be Specified)  -  - 
 Total  1,130,907,037  1,178,041,518 

 a) Expected receivable within 12 months: 
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  Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Capital Advances  -  - 
 Prepaid Expenses  1,761,540  1,620,032 
 Claim Advances  1,243,814,608  575,319,960 
 Advance To Suppliers  -  - 
 Staff Advances  15,929,161  7,693,876 
 VAT Receivable  -  915,156 
 Printing and Stationary Stocks  -  - 
 Stamp Stocks  125,159  71,119 
 Deferred Expenses  -  - 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses  -  - 
 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses  17,216,648  15,874,266 
 Lease Receivables  -  - 
 Others  -  - 
 Others(Sundry Advances)  6,280,764  90,152,875 
 Total  1,285,127,880  691,647,283 

 a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months: 	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Security Deposits  23,561,859  23,794,606 

 Accured Interest  31,912,832  34,370,915 

 Other Receivables  -  - 

 Other Deposits  -  4,956,507 

 Sundry Debtors  31,368,788  201,182,670 

 Other ( to be Specified)  -  - 

 Less: Impairment Losses  -  - 

 Total  86,843,479  264,304,698 

15.	 Other Financial Assets 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Capital Advances  -  - 
 Prepaid Expenses  1,761,540  1,620,032 
 Claim Advances  1,243,814,608  575,319,960 
 Advance To Suppliers  -  - 
 VAT Receivable  -  915,156 
 Staff Advances  15,929,161  7,693,876 
 Printing and Stationary Stocks  -  - 
 Stamp Stocks  125,159  71,119 
 Deferred Expenses  -  - 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses  -  - 
 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses  17,216,648  15,874,266 
 Lease Receivables  -  - 
 Others  117,988,799  43,766,556 
 Others( Sundry Advances)  6,280,764  90,152,875 
 Less: Impairment Losses  - 
 Total  1,403,116,678  735,413,839 

14.	 Other Assets	

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig in NPR



124

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

 a) Expected maturies within 12 months: 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Security Deposits  -  - 

 Accured Interest  31,912,832  34,370,915 

 Other Receivables  -  - 

 Other Deposits  -  4,956,507 

 Sundry Debtors  31,368,788  201,182,670 

 Other ( to be Specified)  -  - 

 Total  63,281,620  240,510,092 

Fig in NPR

 16.    Cash and Cash Equivalent 	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Cash in Hand  227,706  227,706 

 Cheque in Hand  -  - 

 Bank Balances  -  - 

 i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions  576,729,333  197,428,677 

 ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks  -  - 

 iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions  90,271,476  33,955,650 

 iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions  31,132,533  11,936,446 

 Less: Impairment Losses  (39,700)  - 

 Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months  -  - 

 Others ( to be Specified)  47,679  - 

 Less: Impairment Losses  -  - 

 Total  698,369,027  243,548,479 

17 (a)  Share Capital 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Ordinary Shares 

 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  2,622,638,200  1,333,629,000 

 Additions during the year  -    -   

       i) Bonus Share Issue  -    165,370,000 

       ii) Share Issue  -    -   

       iii)Share Issue due to merger  -    1,123,639,200 

 As at Ashadh 31, 2081  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200 

 Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)  -    -   

 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  -    -   
 Additions during the year  -    -   

 As at Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -   
 Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)  -    -   

 As at Shrawan 1, 2080  -    -   
 Additions during the year  -    -   

 As at Ashadh 31, 2081  -    -   
 Total  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200 
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

 (i) Ordinary Shares 	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Authorised Capital: - -

 50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each  5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000 

 Issued Capital:  

 26,226,382 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200 

 Subscribed and Paid Up Capital: 

 26,226,382 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200 

 Total  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200 

 (ii)  Preference Share Capital 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Authorised Capital: - -
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each - -
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each - -
 Issued Capital: - -
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each - -
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each - -
 Subscribed and Paid Up Capital: - -
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each - -
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each - -
 Total -

 Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

 Particulars 
 Number of Shares  Percentage

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Promoters 
Government of Nepal 
Nepali Organized Institutions  3,031,770  3,031,770 11.56% 11.56%
Nepali Citizens  7,346,010  7,346,010 28.01% 28.01%
Foreigners 
Others - Ceylinco Holdings PLC (Formerly Known as Ceylinco 
Insurance PLC), Srilanka 

 2,997,675  2,997,675 11.43% 11.43%

 Total (A)  13,375,455  13,375,455 51.00% 51.00%
 Other than Promoters 

General Public  12,850,927  12,850,927 49.00% 49.00%
Others ( to be Specified) 

 Total (B)  12,850,927  12,850,927 49.00% 49.00%
 Total(A+B)  26,226,382  26,226,382 100.00% 100.00%

Fig in NPR
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 Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:  	

 Particulars 
 Number of Shares  Percentage

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Ceylinco Holdings PLC, Srilanka  2,997,458  2,997,458  11.43  11.43 
Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd.  1,107,975  1,107,975  4.22  4.22 
Manohar Das Mool  1,084,749  1,084,748  4.14  4.14 
Salt Trading Corporation Limited  910,991  910,989  3.47  3.47 
Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited  864,295  864,296  3.30  3.30 
Dibya Mani Rajbhandari  827,314  790,314  3.15  3.01 
Overseas Trading Company Private Limited  411,421  407,936  1.57  1.56 
Suraj Vaidya  400,776  400,776  1.53  1.53 
Shanker Ghimire  400,724  381,606  1.53  1.46 
Narendra Kumar Agrawal  374,726  374,726  1.43  1.43 
Chintamani Bhattarai  350,200  350,199  1.34  1.34 
Sanjay Golchha  314,246  183,768  1.20  0.70 
Bhajuratna And Company Pvt. Ltd  293,864  293,863  1.12  1.12 
Himal And Company Pvt. Ltd  293,864  293,864  1.12  1.12 
Jyoti And Company Pvt Ltd  293,864  293,863  1.12  1.12 
Ram Krishna Manandhar  293,864  293,862  1.12  1.12 
Ashok Kumar Todi  271,818  374,671  1.04  1.43 
Arun Raj Shrestha  266,077  266,076  1.01  1.01 
Birendra Bajracharya  261,120  261,120  1.00  1.00 

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig in NPR

17 (b)   Share Application Money Pending Allotment 	
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Share Application Money Pending Allotment - -
 Total -

17 (c)    Share Premium 
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 As on Shrawan 1, 2080 - -
 Increase due to issue of shares at premium - -
 Decrease due to issue of bonus shares - -
 Transaction costs on issue of share - -
 Others ( to be Specified) - -
 As on Ashadh 31, 2081 -

17 (d)  Special Reserves
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 As on Shrawan 1, 2080  2,550,477,445  1,201,098,164 
 Additions -  1,349,379,281 
 Utilizations 
 As on Ashadh 31, 2081  2,550,477,445  2,550,477,445 

17 (e)   Catastrophe Reserves 	
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 As on Shrawan 1, 2080  167,747,461  118,630,802 
 Additions  21,234,729  49,116,659 
 Utilizations 
 As on Ashadh 31, 2081  188,982,189  167,747,461 
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (f)    Retained Earnings 	
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 As on Shrawan 1, 2080  135,314,068  175,089,548 
 Net Profit or Loss  460,979,869  331,023,016 
 Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings  -    -   

 Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations  -    -   
 Transfer to reserves  -    -   

 Revaluation Reserves  -    -   
 Special Reserves  -    (202,453,963)
 Capital Reserves  -    -   
 Catastrophe Reserves  (21,234,728)  (10,122,698)
 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves  (4,246,946)  (4,049,079)
 Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves  -    -   
 Fair Value Reserves  (6,733,118)  (1,281,170)
 Actuarial Reserves 
 Deferred Tax Reserves  (36,285,299)  59,905,528 
 Regulatory Reserves  -    3,656,290 
 Other Reserve(to be specified)  -    -   
 Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment  -    -   
 Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment  -    -   
 Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI  -    -   
 Transfer on business combination (LGIC Retained Earnings)  -    (38,031,805)

 Issue of Bonus Shares  (131,131,910)  (174,073,684)
 Transaction costs on issue of Shares  (418,834)  (1,939,405)
 Dividend Paid  -    -   
 Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -   
 Others ( Lease Equalization Fund)  -    -   
 Adjustment of prior period  7,630,281  (2,408,510)
 As on Ashadh 31, 2081  403,873,383  135,314,068 

17 (g)   Other Equity 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Revaluation Reserves  -    -   
 Capital Reserves  -    -   
 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves  8,049,536  7,098,564 
 Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves  -    -   
 Fair Value Reserves  151,685,052  202,750,249 
 Actuarial Reserves  -    -   
 Deferred Tax Reserve  126,415,726  90,130,427 
 Regulatory Reserve  -    -   
 Other Reserve(to be specified)  156,141,249  156,141,250 
 Total  442,291,563  456,120,490 

18.   Provisions	

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Provision for employee benefits 
   i) Provision for Leave   75,913,354  56,169,372 
   ii) Provision for Gratuity   3,801,003  4,101,031 
   iii)Termination Benefits  -  - 
   iv)Other Employee Benefit obligations( to be Specified)  3,068,404  14,574,163 

 Provision for tax related legal cases  -  - 
 Provision for non-tax legal cases  579,047  579,047 
 Others( to be Specified)  371,778  286,778 
 Others (As prescribed by Beema Pradhikaran)  5,750,000  5,750,000 
 Total  89,483,586  81,460,391 

Fig in NPR
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig in NPR(a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

 Description  Opening 
Balance 

Additions  
During 

the Year

Utilised  
During the 

Year

Reversed 
During the 

Year

 Unwinding 
of Discount 

 Closing 
Balance 

 Provision for employee benefits - - - - - -
i) Provision for Leave  56,169,372  69,737,209  (49,993,228) - -  75,913,354 
ii) Provision for Gratuity   4,101,031  3,429,506  (3,729,534) - -  3,801,003 
iii)Termination Benefits - - - - - -
iv)Other Employee Benefit obligations( to be Specified) - - - - - -

 Provision for tax related legal cases - - - - - -
 Provision for non-tax related legal cases - - - - - -
 Others( to be Specified) - - - - -

 (b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Provision for emoloyee benefits 
   i) Provision for Leave   -  - 
   ii) Provision for Gratuity   3,801,003  - 
   iii)Termination Benefits 
   iv)Other Employee Benefit obligations( to be Specified)  3,068,404  14,574,163 
 Provision for tax related legal cases 
 Provision for non-tax related legal cases  579,047  579,047 
 Others ( to be Specified) -

19.    Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Unearned Premium Reserve  2,062,129,742  1,900,978,472 
 Unexpired Risk Reserve  4,199,791  377,319,094 
 Earthquake Premium Reserve  15,716,559 
 Margin Over Best Estimates  91,382,031 
 Incurred but not reported (IBNR)  124,612,984  745,304,473 
 Incurred but not enough reported (IBNER)  497,002,227 
 Outstanding Claims  3,817,252,818  4,375,599,559 
 Others  -  - 
 Total  6,612,296,151  7,399,201,598 



129

 Pa
rti

cu
lar

s 
Lin

e o
f B

us
in

es
s

 To
ta

l 
 Pr

op
er

ty
 

 M
ot

or
 

 M
ar

in
e 

 En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

 M
icr

o 
 Av

iat
io

n 
 Ca

ttl
e a

nd
 Cr

op
 

M
sc

ell
an

eo
us

 

As
 at

 Sh
raw

an
 1,

 20
80

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
 U

ne
arn

ed
 Pr

em
ium

 Re
se

rve
 

 46
9,9

52
,38

9 
 87

8,6
38

,54
5 

 82
,74

2,2
44

 
 21

2,4
79

,70
0 

 7,
19

9,3
25

 
 40

,53
5,9

62
 

 74
,48

6,8
71

 
 13

4,9
43

,43
5 

 1,
90

0,9
78

,47
2 

 U
ne

xp
ire

d R
isk

 Re
se

rve
 

 24
0,1

83
,27

2 
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 13

7,1
35

,82
2 

 -   
 -   

 37
7,3

19
,09

4 
 Ea

rth
qu

ak
e P

rem
ium

 Re
se

rve
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 M

arg
in 

Ov
er 

Be
st 

Es
tim

ate
s 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NR
) 

 20
1,1

52
,46

0 
 16

8,9
86

,27
7 

 14
,19

7,9
67

 
 55

,01
9,7

74
 

 10
3,8

70
,79

9 
 14

7,4
23

,60
8 

 18
,11

6,1
68

 
 36

,53
7,4

22
 

 74
5,3

04
,47

3 
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t e

no
ug

h r
ep

or
ted

 (IB
NE

R) 
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 O
ut

sta
nd

ing
 Cl

aim
s 

 1,
34

1,0
16

,39
8 

 83
2,3

60
,60

4 
 51

,07
9,7

55
 

 36
6,7

98
,49

6 
 69

2,4
71

,99
1 

 98
2,8

24
,05

0 
 36

,06
8,4

81
 

 72
,97

9,7
84

 
 4,

37
5,5

99
,56

0 
 O

th
ers

  
 -   

 To
tal

 Ba
lan

ce
 As

 at
 Sh

raw
an

 1,
 20

81
 

 2,
25

2,3
04

,51
8 

 1,
87

9,9
85

,42
5 

 14
8,0

19
,96

6 
 63

4,2
97

,97
1 

 80
3,5

42
,11

5 
 1,

30
7,9

19
,44

2 
 12

8,6
71

,52
0 

 24
4,4

60
,64

2 
 7,

39
9,2

01
,59

9 

 Ch
an

ge
s d

ur
ing

 th
e y

ea
r 

 U
ne

arn
ed

 Pr
em

ium
 Re

se
rve

 
 95

,17
9,1

98
 

 (9
5,1

75
,69

6)
 (9

,94
8,2

81
)

 47
,36

0,8
04

 
 (6

,90
2,2

20
)

 15
4,4

69
,13

9 
 (2

0,3
93

,87
7)

 (3
,43

7,7
96

)
 16

1,1
51

,27
0 

 U
ne

xp
ire

d R
isk

 Re
se

rve
 

 (2
40

,18
3,2

72
)

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 (1
32

,93
6,0

31
)

 -   
 -   

 (3
73

,11
9,3

03
)

 Ea
rth

qu
ak

e P
rem

ium
 Re

se
rve

 
 14

,51
4,7

33
 

 -   
 -   

 93
8,5

35
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 26

3,2
92

 
 15

,71
6,5

59
 

 M
arg

in 
Ov

er 
Be

st 
Es

tim
ate

s 
 26

,61
1,4

17
 

 56
,75

4,2
04

 
 2,

18
8,5

89
 

 2,
89

5,3
85

 
 13

,06
4 

 39
1,0

06
 

 1,
42

2,4
75

 
 1,

10
5,8

90
 

 91
,38

2,0
31

 
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NR
) 

 (1
36

,60
8,7

99
)

 (1
31

,08
2,9

24
)

 (1
1,4

56
,03

5)
 (4

7,0
89

,85
8)

 (1
03

,87
0,7

99
)

 (1
47

,06
1,1

79
)

 (1
5,0

73
,56

2)
 (2

8,4
48

,33
4)

 (6
20

,69
1,4

89
)

 In
cu

rre
d b

ut
 no

t e
no

ug
h r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NE
R) 

 25
8,1

74
,64

3 
 15

1,6
13

,40
9 

 10
,96

7,7
30

 
 31

,71
9,6

66
 

 -   
 -   

 12
,17

0,4
21

 
 32

,35
6,3

58
 

 49
7,0

02
,22

7 
 O

ut
sta

nd
ing

 Cl
aim

s 
 (4

61
,63

1,4
47

)
 (7

2,8
16

,46
7)

 13
8,1

46
,65

4 
 (1

89
,46

4,6
72

)
 (7

,78
7,4

00
)

 (1
6,3

47
,07

4)
 (2

1,9
76

,87
8)

 73
,53

0,5
41

 
 (5

58
,34

6,7
42

)
 O

th
ers

  
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 To
tal

 ch
an

ge
s d

ur
ing

 th
e y

ea
r 

 (4
43

,94
3,5

27
)

 (9
0,7

07
,47

3)
 12

9,8
98

,65
7 

 (1
53

,64
0,1

40
)

 (1
18

,54
7,3

55
)

 (1
41

,48
4,1

39
)

 (4
3,8

51
,42

2)
 75

,36
9,9

51
 

 (7
86

,90
5,4

48
)

 As
 at

 As
ha

dh
 31

, 2
08

1 
 U

ne
arn

ed
 Pr

em
ium

 Re
se

rve
 

 56
5,1

31
,58

7 
 78

3,4
62

,84
9 

 72
,79

3,9
62

 
 25

9,8
40

,50
5 

 29
7,1

05
 

 19
5,0

05
,10

1 
 54

,09
2,9

94
 

 13
1,5

05
,63

9 
 2,

06
2,1

29
,74

2 
 U

ne
xp

ire
d R

isk
 Re

se
rve

 
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 4,
19

9,7
91

 
 -   

 -   
 4,

19
9,7

91
 

 Ea
rth

qu
ak

e P
rem

ium
 Re

se
rve

 
 14

,51
4,7

33
 

 -   
 -   

 93
8,5

35
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 26

3,2
92

 
 15

,71
6,5

59
 

 M
arg

in 
Ov

er 
Be

st 
Es

tim
ate

s 
 26

,61
1,4

17
 

 56
,75

4,2
04

 
 2,

18
8,5

89
 

 2,
89

5,3
85

 
 13

,06
4 

 39
1,0

06
 

 1,
42

2,4
75

 
 1,

10
5,8

90
 

 91
,38

2,0
31

 
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NR
) 

 64
,54

3,6
61

 
 37

,90
3,3

52
 

 2,
74

1,9
32

 
 7,

92
9,9

17
 

 -   
 36

2,4
29

 
 3,

04
2,6

05
 

 8,
08

9,0
88

 
 12

4,6
12

,98
4 

 In
cu

rre
d b

ut
 no

t e
no

ug
h r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NE
R) 

 25
8,1

74
,64

3 
 15

1,6
13

,40
9 

 10
,96

7,7
30

 
 31

,71
9,6

66
 

 -   
 -   

 12
,17

0,4
21

 
 32

,35
6,3

58
 

 49
7,0

02
,22

7 
 O

ut
sta

nd
ing

 Cl
aim

s 
 87

9,3
84

,95
1 

 75
9,5

44
,13

8 
 18

9,2
26

,40
9 

 17
7,3

33
,82

4 
 68

4,6
84

,59
1 

 96
6,4

76
,97

6 
 14

,09
1,6

03
 

 14
6,5

10
,32

6 
 3,

81
7,2

52
,81

8 
 O

th
ers

  

 To
tal

 Ba
lan

ce
 As

 at
 As

ha
dh

 31
, 2

08
1 

 1,
80

8,3
60

,99
2 

 1,
78

9,2
77

,95
2 

 27
7,9

18
,62

2 
 48

0,6
57

,83
1 

 68
4,9

94
,76

0 
 1,

16
6,4

35
,30

3 
 84

,82
0,0

98
 

 31
9,8

30
,59

3 
 6,

61
2,2

96
,15

0 

SA
G

A
RM

AT
H

A
 L

U
M

BI
N

I I
N

SU
RA

N
CE

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

LI
M

IT
ED

No
te

s t
o 

th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 1
9.

1 
   G

ro
ss

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
    

    
    

 a
) G

ro
ss

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 L

ia
bi

lit
y

Fi
g 

in
 N

PR



130

	
b)

 R
ei

ns
ur

an
ce

 A
ss

et
s	

Fi
g 

in
 N

PR

SA
G

A
RM

AT
H

A
 L

U
M

BI
N

I I
N

SU
RA

N
CE

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

LI
M

IT
ED

No
te

s t
o 

th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 Pa
rti

cu
lar

s 
Lin

e o
f B

us
in

es
s

 To
ta

l 
 Pr

op
er

ty
 

 M
ot

or
 

 M
ar

in
e 

 En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

 M
icr

o 
 Av

iat
io

n 
 Ca

ttl
e a

nd
 Cr

op
 

M
sc

ell
an

eo
us

 

As
 at

 Sh
raw

an
 1,

 20
80

 U
ne

arn
ed

 Pr
em

ium
 Re

se
rve

 
 28

3,5
12

,47
9 

 15
4,6

97
,04

0 
 59

,94
5,0

24
 

 18
6,3

32
,20

7 
 68

,48
1 

 39
,53

4,1
67

 
 59

,86
7,1

78
 

 10
0,4

31
,79

0 
 88

4,3
88

,36
5 

 U
ne

xp
ire

d R
isk

 Re
se

rve
 

 24
0,1

83
,27

2 
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 13

6,7
21

,32
0 

 -   
 -   

 37
6,9

04
,59

2 
 Ea

rth
qu

ak
e P

rem
ium

 Re
se

rve
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NR
) 

 18
4,6

03
,21

2 
 53

,35
4,4

87
 

 12
,73

2,7
66

 
 53

,15
9,6

31
 

 10
3,8

70
,79

9 
 14

7,0
55

,04
8 

 16
,26

7,6
95

 
 26

,94
0,7

24
 

 59
7,9

84
,36

3 
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t e

no
ug

h r
ep

or
ted

 (IB
NE

R) 
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 O
ut

sta
nd

ing
 Cl

aim
s 

 1,
23

0,6
88

,08
3 

 25
3,8

17
,11

1 
 44

,44
8,1

57
 

 35
4,3

97
,53

7 
 69

2,4
71

,99
1 

 98
0,3

66
,99

0 
 29

,34
0,9

25
 

 56
,26

4,0
09

 
 3,

64
1,7

94
,80

3 
 O

th
ers

  
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 To
tal

 Ba
lan

ce
 As

 at
 Sh

raw
an

 1,
 20

80
 

 1,
93

8,9
87

,04
6 

 46
1,8

68
,63

7 
 11

7,1
25

,94
7 

 59
3,8

89
,37

5 
 79

6,4
11

,27
1 

 1,
30

3,6
77

,52
5 

 10
5,4

75
,79

7 
 18

3,6
36

,52
3 

 5,
50

1,0
72

,12
2 

 Ch
an

ge
s d

ur
ing

 th
e y

ea
r 

 U
ne

arn
ed

 Pr
em

ium
 Re

se
rve

 
 11

,20
9,9

43
 

 99
,20

6,7
16

 
 (5

6,5
44

,39
9)

 59
,06

5,0
06

 
 (6

0,2
56

)
 15

3,8
84

,79
6 

 (1
5,2

42
,12

5)
 18

,02
4,8

54
 

 26
9,5

44
,53

4 
 U

ne
xp

ire
d R

isk
 Re

se
rve

 
 (2

40
,18

3,2
72

)
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 (1

36
,72

1,3
20

)
 -   

 -   
 (3

76
,90

4,5
92

)
 Ea

rth
qu

ak
e P

rem
ium

 Re
se

rve
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NR
) 

 (1
49

,83
8,4

57
)

 (4
0,1

60
,56

7)
 (1

1,9
36

,15
8)

 (4
6,4

55
,62

5)
 (1

03
,87

0,7
99

)
 (1

47
,05

5,0
48

)
 (1

3,7
70

,38
5)

 (1
9,8

45
,34

9)
 (5

32
,93

2,3
89

)
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t e

no
ug

h r
ep

or
ted

 (IB
NE

R) 
 25

1,7
79

,39
2 

 52
,77

5,6
78

 
 3,

18
6,4

34
 

 31
,03

7,6
51

 
 -   

 -   
 9,

98
9,2

38
 

 28
,38

1,5
02

 
 37

7,1
49

,89
5 

 O
ut

sta
nd

ing
 Cl

aim
s 

 (5
92

,46
4,1

69
)

 (3
3,1

16
,61

0)
 13

4,5
79

,76
0 

 (1
89

,78
3,2

19
)

 (7
,78

7,4
00

)
 (1

6,3
06

,20
6)

 (1
7,6

59
,97

1)
 83

,02
3,4

50
 

 (6
39

,51
4,3

65
)

 O
th

ers
  

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 To

ta
l c

ha
ng

es
 du

rin
g t

he
 ye

ar
 

 (7
19

,49
6,5

63
)

 78
,70

5,2
17

 
 69

,28
5,6

37
 

 (1
46

,13
6,1

87
)

 (1
11

,71
8,4

55
)

 (1
46

,19
7,7

79
)

 (3
6,6

83
,24

3)
 10

9,5
84

,45
6 

 (9
02

,65
6,9

17
)

 As
 at

 As
ha

dh
 31

, 2
08

1 
 U

ne
arn

ed
 Pr

em
ium

 Re
se

rve
 

 29
4,7

22
,42

1 
 25

3,9
03

,75
5 

 3,
40

0,6
26

 
 24

5,3
97

,21
3 

 8,
22

4 
 19

3,4
18

,96
3 

 44
,62

5,0
52

 
 11

8,4
56

,64
4 

 1,
15

3,9
32

,89
9 

 U
ne

xp
ire

d R
isk

 Re
se

rve
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 Ea

rth
qu

ak
e P

rem
ium

 Re
se

rve
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 In

cu
rre

d b
ut

 no
t r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NR
) 

 34
,76

4,7
56

 
 13

,19
3,9

19
 

 79
6,6

08
 

 6,
70

4,0
06

 
 -   

 -   
 2,

49
7,3

10
 

 7,
09

5,3
75

 
 65

,05
1,9

74
 

 In
cu

rre
d b

ut
 no

t e
no

ug
h r

ep
or

ted
 (IB

NE
R) 

 25
1,7

79
,39

2 
 52

,77
5,6

78
 

 3,
18

6,4
34

 
 31

,03
7,6

51
 

 -   
 -   

 9,
98

9,2
38

 
 28

,38
1,5

02
 

 37
7,1

49
,89

5 
 O

ut
sta

nd
ing

 Cl
aim

s 
 63

8,2
23

,91
4 

 22
0,7

00
,50

1 
 17

9,0
27

,91
7 

 16
4,6

14
,31

8 
 68

4,6
84

,59
1 

 96
4,0

60
,78

4 
 11

,68
0,9

54
 

 13
9,2

87
,45

9 
 3,

00
2,2

80
,43

7 
 O

th
ers

  
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 To
ta

l B
ala

nc
e A

s a
t A

sh
ad

h 3
1, 

20
81

 
 1,

21
9,4

90
,48

3 
 54

0,5
73

,85
4 

 18
6,4

11
,58

4 
 44

7,7
53

,18
8 

 68
4,6

92
,81

5 
 1,

15
7,4

79
,74

6 
 68

,79
2,5

54
 

 29
3,2

20
,97

9 
 4,

59
8,4

15
,20

5 



131

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
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S.no. Type of insurance

 Outstanding 
claim for claims 

intimated 
during the 

year (A) 

Unclaimed Fund

Gross 
oustanding 
claim (A+B) 

Reinsurance  
share (C)

  Net 
Outstanding 

Claim (A+B-C)

 Outstanding 
claim for claims 

intimated 
during the 

previous 1 year 

Outstanding 
claim for claims 

intimated 
during the 

previous 2 year

Outstanding 
claim for claims 

intimated 
during the 

previous 3 year

Total Unclaimed 
Fund (B)

1  Property  292,353,125  548,509,043  1,577,664  36,945,119.00  587,031,826.29  879,384,951  638,223,912  241,161,039 
2  Motor  561,114,073  145,734,222  32,909,088  19,786,753.93  198,430,064.52  759,544,138  220,700,501  538,843,636 
3  Marine  181,480,451  4,045,974  3,318,296  381,689.00  7,745,958.74  189,226,409  179,027,917  10,198,493 
4  Engineering  124,973,330  31,493,661  12,350,151  8,516,682.73  52,360,493.94  177,333,824  164,614,318  12,719,506 
5  Micro  1,300,000  200,000  174,350,000  508,834,591.00  683,384,591.00  684,684,591  684,684,591  -   
6  Aviation  354,285,540  612,191,436  -    -    612,191,436.06  966,476,976  964,060,784  2,416,192 
7  Cattle and Crop  13,803,603  -    288,000  -    288,000.00  14,091,603  11,680,954  2,410,649 
8  Miscellaneous  56,282,172  8,414,919  1,190,000.00  80,623,235.00  90,228,153.57  146,510,326  139,287,459  7,222,867 

 Total  56,282,172  1,350,589,255  225,983,198  655,088,071  2,231,660,524  3,817,252,818  3,002,280,436  814,972,382 

19.2  Disclosure of Outstanding claim 	 Fig in NPR

20.  Insurance Payable 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Payable to Reinsurer  1,476,084,291  679,659,058 
 Payable to Other Insurance Companies  6,516,822  63,888,711 
 Portfolio Withdrawal Premium  -    -   
 Withdrawal Claims  -    -   
 Others (to be Specified)  -    -   
 Total  1,482,601,113  743,547,768 

21.   Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net) 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Income Tax Liabilities  -    (1,127,087,856)
 Income Tax Assets  322,132,187  1,296,849,393 
 Total  322,132,187  169,761,537 

22.    Borrowings 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Bonds  -    -   
 Debentures  -    -   
 Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution  -    -   
 Bank Overdrafts  -    -   
 Others (to be Specified)  -    -   
 Total  -    -   

 Payable within 12 months: 

 Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

 Payable to Reinsurer  1,476,084,291  679,659,058 
 Payable to Other Insurance Companies  6,516,822  63,888,711 
 Portfolio Withdrawal Premium 
 Withdrawal Claims 
 Others (to be Specified) 
 Total  1,482,601,113  743,547,768 
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 Payable within 12 months: 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Bonds - -
 Debentures - -
 Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution - -
 Bank Overdrafts - -
 Others (to be Specified) - -
 Total -

23.  Other Liabilities 
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 TDS Payable  19,936,624  4,649,089 
 VAT Payable  56,089,785  44,901,270 
 Unidentified deposits  41,042,718  41,694,211 
 Advance Premiums  13,889,627  5,615,002 
 Insurance Service Fee Payable  35,936,863  10,406,216 
 Lease Liability  114,783,356  102,948,979 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income  227,680,707  150,096,366 
 Deferred Income  -    -   
 Others(to be specified)  -    -   
 Total  509,359,681  360,311,133 

 Payable within 12 months 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 TDS Payable  19,936,624  4,649,089 
 VAT Payable  56,089,785  44,901,270 
 Unidentified Deposits  41,042,718  41,694,211 
 Advance Premiums  13,889,627  5,615,002 
 Insurance Service Fee Payable  35,936,863  10,406,216 
 Lease Liability  114,783,356  102,948,979 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income  227,680,707  150,096,366 
 Deferred Income 
 Others(to be specified)  -    -   
 Total  509,359,681  360,311,133 

24  Other Financial Liabilities 

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Redeemable Preference Shares  -    -   
 Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares  -    -   
 Refundable Share Application Money  -    -   
 Payable to Insured  -    -   
 Payable to Agents  10,039,912  8,798,304 
 Payable to Surveyor  35,513,665  -   
 Sundry Creditors  72,740,065  138,866,293 
 Retention and deposits  -    -   
 Short-term employee benefits payable  -    -   
 i) Salary Payables  -    -   
 ii) Bonus Payables  67,080,119  68,681,958 
 iii) Other employee benefit payable ( to be Specified)  1,594,122  -   
 Audit Fees Payable  535,000  -   
 Actuarial Fees Payable  650,000  -   
 Dividend Payable  24,766,673  70,277 
 Others (to be specified)  10,884,415  633,074 
 Total  223,803,970  217,049,907 
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25	  Gross Earned Premiums 

 Particulars 
 Direct Premiums  Premium on Reinsurance 

Accepted 
 Gross Change in Unearned 

Premium  Gross Earned Premiums 

 Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year  Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year 

 Property  1,178,321,840  796,535,200  -    -    103,877,924  (914,087)  1,282,199,763  795,621,113 
 Motor  1,658,979,349  1,329,607,533  53,953,902  187,260,580  38,421,491  117,767,806  1,751,354,743  1,634,635,919 
 Marine  208,862,426  179,265,804  -    -    7,759,693  51,455,538  216,622,119  230,721,343 
 Engineering  635,325,800  370,463,449  150,391  -    (51,194,724)  (17,115,801)  584,281,467  353,347,647 
 Micro  657,310  10,912,330  -    -    6,889,157  (3,926,636)  7,546,467  6,985,693 
 Aviation  603,371,824  174,578,421  -    -    (21,924,114)  (315,624,833)  581,447,710  (141,046,411)
 Cattle and Crop  112,713,590  110,585,669  -    -    18,971,402  17,274,791  131,684,993  127,860,460 
 Miscellaneous  336,630,803  250,590,772  -    -    2,068,614  (10,236,674)  338,699,418  240,354,099 
 Total  4,734,862,942  3,222,539,178  54,104,293  187,260,580  104,869,444  (161,319,895)  4,893,836,679  3,248,479,863 

 Payable within 12 months 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Redeemable Preference Shares  -    -   
 Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares  -    -   
 Refundable Share Application Money  -    -   
 Payable to Insured  -    -   
 Payable to Agents  10,039,912  8,798,304 
 Payable to Surveyor  35,513,665  -   
 Sundry Creditors  72,740,065  138,866,293 
 Retention and deposits  -    -   
 Short-term employee benefits payable  -    -   
 i) Salary Payables  -    -   
 ii) Bonus Payables  67,080,119  68,681,958 
 iii) Other employee benefit payable ( to be Specified)  1,594,122  -   
 Audit Fees Payable  535,000  -   
 Actuarial Fees Payable  650,000  -   
 Dividend Payable  24,766,673  70,277 
 Others (to be specified)  10,884,415  633,074 
 Total  223,803,970  217,049,907 

25.1 Direct Premiums 

 Particulars 
  New Business Premium  Renewal Premium  Co-Insurance Premium  Total Direct Premium 

 Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year  Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year 

 Property  517,796,865  303,033,218  543,510,442  430,178,058  117,014,533  63,323,924  1,178,321,840  796,535,200 
 Motor  997,168,287  710,605,311  660,305,891  618,151,990  1,505,171  850,232  1,658,979,349  1,329,607,533 
 Marine  183,083,169  152,364,740  25,779,257  26,901,064  208,862,426  179,265,804 
 Engineering  441,872,474  310,467,487  135,793,241  45,219,740  57,660,085  14,776,221  635,325,800  370,463,449 
 Micro  349,194  10,912,330  308,116  657,310  10,912,330 
 Aviation  506,465,549  174,552,298  26,123  96,906,274  603,371,824  174,578,421 
 Cattle and Crop  112,713,590  110,572,865  12,804  112,713,590  110,585,669 
 Miscellaneous  254,292,507  201,703,251  78,091,474  45,382,265  4,246,822  3,505,257  336,630,803  250,590,772 
 Total  3,013,741,636  1,974,211,499  1,418,009,164  1,138,970,981  303,112,142  109,356,698  4,734,862,942  3,222,539,178 
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27	  Commission Income 

 Particulars 

 Reinsurance Commission 
Income 

 Deferred Commission 
Income  Profit Commission  Commission Income

 Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year  Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year 
 Property  150,231,353  101,813,802  (25,167,032)  20,504,903  28,135,409  -    153,199,730  122,318,705 
 Motor  120,404,723  49,915,324  (33,215,038)  38,282,410  2,507,291  3,820,810  89,696,976  92,018,545 
 Marine  45,908,488  43,636,771  1,963,496  11,142,223  1,580,404  4,059,605  49,452,388  58,838,600 
 Engineering  99,009,464  66,892,718  (12,887,146)  8,478,466  17,517,195  10,888,996  103,639,514  86,260,180 
 Micro  11,932  -    (5,393)  -    11,813  -    18,352  -   
 Aviation  5,382,834  1,635,219  (1,525,486)  780,500  -    -    3,857,348  2,415,719 
 Cattle and Crop  14,246,998  16,254,580  616,165  2,383,892  5,302,047  6,583,443  20,165,210  25,221,915 
 Miscellaneous  90,850,703  72,085,371  (7,363,907)  4,261,922  2,499,780  9,424,157  85,986,576  85,771,451 
 Total  526,046,495  352,233,785  (77,584,341)  85,834,317  57,553,939  34,777,012  506,016,093  472,845,114 

26	  Premiums Ceded 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars 
Premium Ceded To Reinsurers Reinsurer’s Share of Change in 

Unearned Premiums Premium Ceded

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property  637,503,689  492,113,537  228,973,329  (10,963,668)  866,477,018  481,149,869 
 Motor  653,815,064  412,946,702  (99,206,716)  92,042,772  554,608,348  504,989,474 
 Marine  152,837,998  138,654,557  56,544,399  19,342,119  209,382,397  157,996,675 
 Engineering  617,520,300  327,123,539  (59,065,006)  (1,838,431)  558,455,295  325,285,109 
 Micro  79,549  1,682,405  60,256  (68,481)  139,805  1,613,924 
 Aviation  600,199,547  173,654,537  (17,163,476)  (315,051,054)  583,036,072  (141,396,517)
 Cattle and Crop  93,777,707  90,680,250  15,242,125  12,791,788  109,019,832  103,472,038 
 Miscellaneous  310,532,814  219,420,760  (18,024,854)  (8,187,543)  292,507,960  211,233,217 
 Total  3,066,266,669  1,856,276,286  107,360,058  (211,932,498)  3,173,626,727  1,644,343,788 

26.1  Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums 

 Particulars 
Gross Earned Premiums Premium Ceded Net Earned Premium

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property  1,282,199,763  795,621,113  866,477,018  481,149,869  415,722,746  314,471,244 
 Motor  1,751,354,743  1,634,635,919  554,608,348  504,989,474  1,196,746,395  1,129,646,445 
 Marine  216,622,119  230,721,343  209,382,397  157,996,675  7,239,722  72,724,667 
 Engineering  584,281,467  353,347,647  558,455,295  325,285,109  25,826,172  28,062,539 
 Micro  7,546,467  6,985,693  139,805  1,613,924  7,406,662  5,371,770 
 Aviation  581,447,710  (141,046,411)  583,036,072  (141,396,517)  (1,588,361)  350,106 
 Cattle and Crop  131,684,993  127,860,460  109,019,832  103,472,038  22,665,160  24,388,422 
 Miscellaneous  338,699,418  240,354,099  292,507,960  211,233,217  46,191,458  29,120,882 
 Total  4,893,836,679  3,248,479,863  3,173,626,727  1,644,343,788  1,720,209,952  1,604,136,075 

28	  Other Direct Income 	

 Particulars 
 Direct Income  Other(to be Specified)  Total Other Direct Income 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Motor  31,954,512  23,243,158  -    -    31,954,512  23,243,158 
 Marine  42,350  69,386  -    -    42,350  69,386 
 Engineering  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Micro  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Aviation  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Cattle and Crop  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Miscellaneous  1,277,663  1,301,982  -    -    1,277,663  1,301,982 
 Total  33,274,526  24,614,527  -    -    33,274,526  24,614,527 
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29	  Income from Investments & Loans 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs - -
    i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions  345,544,026  283,603,875 
   ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank  -    -   
   iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions  58,175,018  46,081,078 
   iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions  12,807,474  9,149,882 
   v) Debentures   34,417,659  26,203,924 
   vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)  295,400  -   
   vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit  5,335,235  8,646,121 
   xiii) Employee Loans  -    -   
   ix) Other Interest Income ( to be Specified)  -    -   
 Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI  -   
   i) Interest Income on Debentures  -    -   
   ii) Dividend Income  8,944,906  4,485,158 
   iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified)  -    -   
 Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL  -   
   i) Interest Income on Debentures  -    -   
   ii)Dividend Income  -    -   
   iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified)  -    -   
 Rental Income  14,400,567  13,710,254 
 Others( to be Specified)  -    -   
 Total  479,920,286  391,880,292 

30	  Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes 
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL  -    -   
   i) Equity Instruments  -    -   
   ii) Mutual Fund  -    -   
   iii) Others (to be specified)  -    -   
 Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties  -    -   
 Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges  -    -   
 Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges  -    -   
 Other ( to be Specified)  -    -   
 Total  -    -   

31	  Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL 
   i) Equity Instruments  -    -   
   ii) Mutual Fund  -    -   
   iii) Others (to be specified)  -    -   
 Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs 
   i) Debentures  -    -   
   ii) Bonds  -    -   
   iii) Others (to be specified)  -    -   
 Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at FVTOCI  -    -   
   i) Equity Instruments  24,275,841  3,432,444 
   ii) Mutual Fund  2,541,949  -   
   iii) Others (to be specified)  -    -   
 Total  26,817,790  3,432,444 
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33  Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded 

 Particulars 
 Gross Claims Paid Claims Ceded Net Claims Paid 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property  592,301,949  440,806,101  428,267,832  298,216,198  164,034,118  142,589,904 
 Motor  1,308,549,370  1,260,994,638  372,405,607  304,003,128  936,143,763  956,991,510 
 Marine  87,124,330  127,108,074  66,078,240  106,760,201  21,046,090  20,347,873 
 Engineering  193,546,332  142,800,256  179,836,413  135,609,780  13,709,920  7,190,476 
 Micro  1,561,967  141,212,089  188,917  140,203,736  1,373,051  1,008,353 
 Aviation  353,743,367  46,088,000  352,859,008  45,972,780  884,358  115,220 
 Cattle and Crop  112,663,951  107,717,667  92,573,749  84,968,307  20,090,202  22,749,361 
 Miscellaneous  183,801,346  120,024,388  158,374,484  98,151,148  25,426,862  21,873,239 
 Total  2,833,292,614  2,386,751,213  1,650,584,250  1,213,885,278  1,182,708,364  1,172,865,935 

33.1 Details of Gross Claim Paid 

 Particulars 
Claim Paid Survey Fees Total Claims Paid

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property  567,490,637  425,938,773  24,811,313  14,867,328  592,301,949  440,806,101 
 Motor  1,277,352,354  1,226,657,656  31,197,016  34,336,982  1,308,549,370  1,260,994,638 
 Marine  82,295,275  120,954,220  4,829,055  6,153,854  87,124,330  127,108,074 
 Engineering  176,307,806  132,644,186  17,238,527  10,156,070  193,546,332  142,800,256 
 Micro  1,328,941  141,014,673  233,026  197,416  1,561,967  141,212,089 
 Aviation  348,504,456  46,088,000  5,238,911  -    353,743,367  46,088,000 
 Cattle and Crop  112,227,827  107,380,312  436,124  337,355  112,663,951  107,717,667 
 Miscellaneous  182,955,369  119,729,149  845,977  295,239  183,801,346  120,024,388 
 Total 2,748,462,665  2,320,406,969  84,829,949  66,344,244  2,833,292,614  2,386,751,213 

32	  Other Income 	 Fig in NPR
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
   i) Employee Loan  -    -   
   ii) Bonds  -    -   
   iii) Others (to be Specified)  -    -   
 Foreign Exchange Income  -    -   
 Interest Income from Finance Lease  -    -   
 Amortization of Deferred Income  -    -   
 Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment  917,682  773,118 
 Amortization of Deferred Income  -    -   
 Stamp Income  -    -   
 Others ( Miscellaneous income)  5,108,526  370,523 
 Total  6,026,208  1,143,642 

34  Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

 Particulars 
Gross Change in Insurance 

Contract Liabilities Change in Reinsurance Assets Net Change in Insurance 
Contract Liabilities

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property  (340,065,603)  845,510,071  (490,523,234)  888,150,573  150,457,631  (42,640,502)
 Motor  (52,285,982)  94,880,426  (20,501,499)  46,003,869  (31,784,483)  48,876,557 
 Marine  137,658,349  (33,120,156)  125,830,036  (25,668,607)  11,828,314  (7,451,549)
 Engineering  (204,834,864)  150,865,570  (205,201,193)  152,598,394  366,329  (1,732,825)
 Micro  (111,658,199)  (137,132,868)  (111,658,199)  (131,661,306)  -    (5,471,562)
 Aviation  (163,408,253)  1,129,785,876  (163,361,255)  1,126,961,411  (46,998)  2,824,465 
 Cattle and Crop  (24,880,020)  6,487,777  (21,441,118)  7,782,536  (3,438,902)  (1,294,760)
 Miscellaneous  77,438,565  (26,295,067)  91,559,603  (42,355,444)  (14,121,037)  16,060,378 
 Total  (682,036,004)  2,030,981,628  (795,296,859)  2,021,811,426  113,260,855  9,170,202 
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36   Service Fees 

 Particulars 
 Service Fees  Reinsurer’s Share of Service Fees  Net Service Fees

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Property  8,837,414  6,609,270  4,781,276  4,273,598  4,056,137  2,335,672 
 Motor  12,846,999  12,511,831  4,903,613  3,496,615  7,943,386  9,015,216 
 Marine  1,566,468  1,516,671  1,146,285  1,246,061  420,183  270,610 
 Engineering  4,766,071  2,970,673  4,631,402  2,708,472  134,669  262,201 
 Micro  4,930  90,193  597  12,618  4,333  77,575 
 Aviation  4,525,289  1,403,858  4,501,497  1,399,048  23,792  4,810 
 Cattle and Crop  845,352  904,648  703,333  733,365  142,019  171,283 
 Miscellaneous  2,524,731  2,058,964  2,328,996  1,849,804  195,735  209,160 
 Total  35,917,254  28,066,108  22,996,999  15,719,581  12,920,256  12,346,527 

  Note: Note: Service fee is calculted on the basis of gross written premium.

37   Other Direct Expenes 

 Particulars 
 Direct Expenses  Other(to be Specified)  Total Other Direct Expenses

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Property  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Motor  444,349  1,201,440  -    -    444,349  1,201,440 
 Marine  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Engineering  12,867  -    -    -    12,867  -   
 Micro  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Aviation  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Cattle and Crop  6,744,841  5,396,285  -    -    6,744,841  5,396,285 
 Miscellaneous  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 Total  7,202,057  6,597,725  -    -    7,202,057  6,597,725 

35	  Commission Expenses 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars 

 Commission Expenses on 
Direct Premiums 

 Commission Expenses on 
Premium on Reinsurance 

Accepted 
 Deferred Commission 

Expenses  Total Commission Expenses

 Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year  Current Year  Previous 
Year  Current Year  Previous 

Year 

 Property  7,892,724  9,953,601  798,201  2,229,838  8,690,926  12,183,440 
 Motor  12,541,548  13,938,405  366,765  (3,248,219)  12,908,313  10,690,186 
 Marine  1,836,782  1,439,664  (47,505)  1,409,243  1,789,277  2,848,907 
 Engineering  8,933,040  4,265,063  (1,893,066)  8,075,721  7,039,974  12,340,784 
 Micro  14,836  994,652  442,415  (449,121)  457,251  545,531 
 Aviation  -    -    -    919,896  -    919,896 
 Cattle and Crop  1,516,492  764,073  (377,423)  1,795,732  1,139,069  2,559,805 
 Miscellaneous  6,828,773  5,217,710  (631,768)  (480,494)  6,197,006  4,737,216 
 Total  39,564,197  36,573,168  -    -    (1,342,382)  10,252,597  38,221,816  46,825,765 
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38	  Employee Benefits Expenses 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Salaries  233,573,551  151,000,011 
 Allowances  140,994,391  94,723,734 
 Festival Allowances  28,139,804  10,104,608 
 Defined Benefit Plans  -    -   
    i) Gratuity  3,878,656  3,613,841 
    ii) Others ( to be Specified)  -    -   
 Defined Contribution Plans  -   
    i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund  42,543,855  27,981,780 
    ii) Others ( to be specified)  -    -   
 Leave Encashments  66,660,931  24,161,054 
 Termination Benefits  5,498,355  -   
 Training Expenses  9,947,643  4,196,850 
 Uniform Expenses  2,300  3,509,650 
 Medical Expenses  -    9,886,836 
 Insurance Expenses  5,639,106  594,054 
 Staff Welfare Expenses  -    -   
 Others( Wages to Temporary Staffs and Sweeper)  4,048,981  2,570,048 
 Sub Total   540,927,572  332,342,467 
 Employees Bonus  67,080,119  65,419,312 
 Total  608,007,691  397,761,780 

39  Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Amortization of goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4)  408,580  140,396 
 Depreciation on Property and Equipment(Refer Note.5 )  45,895,791  33,773,430 
 Depreciation on Investment Properties ( Refer Note. 6 )  661,646  696,469 
 Total  46,966,017  34,610,295 

40   Impairment Losses 
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Impairment Losses on Property and Equiment, Investment Properties and Goodwill & Intangible Assets 
   i) Property and Equipment   -    -   
   ii) Investment Properties  -    -   
   iii) Goodwill & Intangible Asssets  -    -   
 Impairment Losses on Financial Assets  -    -   
   i) Investments  -    -   
   ii) Loans  -    -   
   iii) Other Financial Assets  76,787  (2,431,071)
   iv)Cash and Cash Equivalents  39,700  -   
   v) Others ( to be Specified)  -    -   
 Impairment Losses on Other Assets  -    -   
   i) Reinsurance Assets  -    -   
   ii) Insurance Receivables  (3,701,919)  78,763,826 
   iii) Lease Receivables   -    -   
   iv) Others (to be Specified)  -    -   
 Total  (3,585,431)  76,332,755 
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41	  Other Operating Expenses 	 Fig in NPR
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Rent Expenses  -    -   
Electricity and Water  6,525,749  5,173,190 
Repair & Maintenance  -    -   

i) Building  -    -   
ii) Vehicle  1,719,340  1,616,903 
iii) Office Equipments  3,297,743  4,527,183 
iv) Others( to be Specified)  -    -   

Telephone & Communication  9,497,707  9,268,111 
Printing & Stationary  11,932,380  11,155,522 
Office Consumable Expenses  11,945,896  10,114,315 
Travelling Expenses  -    -   

i) Domestic  31,031,689  23,703,469 
ii) Foreign  2,437,311  1,409,024 

Transpotation & Fuel Expenses  -    -   
Agent Training  131,984  138,743 
Other Agent Expenses  -    -   
Insurance Premium  1,386,157  996,375 
Security & Outsourcing Expenes  1,519,700  1,026,000 
Legal and Consulting Expenses  2,432,272  5,036,029 
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals  164,207  148,573 
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses  7,035,698  15,852,424 
Business Promotion  1,870,609  3,362,437 
Guest Entertainment  16,842,264  12,791,704 
Gift and Donations  77,000  86,000 
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses  -    -   
i) Meeting Allowances  1,404,000  1,356,000 
ii) Other Allowances  1,044,000  828,000 
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses  -    -   

i) Meeting Allowances  830,000  512,000 
ii) Other Allowances  -    -   

General Meeting Expenses  744,360  395,015 
Actuarial Service Fee  650,000  -   
Other Actuarial Expenses  -    -   
Audit Related Expenses  -    -   

i) Statutory Audit  375,000  375,000 
ii) Tax Audit  -    -   
iii) Long Form Audit Report  -    -   
iv) Other Fees  85,000  85,000 
v) Internal Audit  400,000  400,000 
vi) Others(Audit expense)  561,775  567,874 

Bank Charges  2,668,708  1,381,860 
Fee and Charges  3,467,172  3,697,907 
Postage Charges  1,400,167  1,581,233 
Foreign Exchange Losses  1,206,504  2,472,382 
Fines and Penalties  207,492  231,157 
Others (to be Specified)  -    -   

i) Other direct expense related with insurance business  -    -   
ii) Revenue Stamp  2,987,930  2,302,680 
iii) Office expense  1,728,017  1,950,805 
iv) Computer expense  5,158,820  4,400,115 
v) VAT expense  1,531,561  2,299,251 
vi) Penalty  -    -   
vii) Seminar expense  1,527,719  573,121 
viii) Subscription and membership fees  421,580  424,220 
ix) Miscellaneous expense  5,373,251  11,352,287 
x) SMS credit expense  266,376  364,647 
xi) Low Cost Durable Item  407,209  222,426 
xii) Generator expense  33,400  70,600 

 Total  144,327,746  144,249,583 
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42	  Finance Cost 	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Unwinding of discount on Provisions  -    -   
 Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs  -    -   
 Interest Expenses -  Bonds  -    -   
 Interest Expenses -  Debentures  -    -   
 Interest Expenses -  Term Loans  -    -   
 Interest Expenses -   Leases  14,631,672  8,517,715 
 Interest Expenses -   Overdraft Loans  -    -   
 Others ( to be Specified)  -    -   
 Total  14,631,672  8,517,715 

43   Income Tax Expense 
(a)  Income Tax Expense

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Current Tax -
 i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year  182,909,243  183,865,887 
 ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods  -    -   
 Deferred Tax For The Year  -    -   
 i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences  (36,285,299)  73,884,909 
 ii) Changes in tax rate  -    -   
 iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses  -    -   
 iv) Write-down or reversal  -    -   
 v) Others ( to be Specified)  -    -   
 Income Tax Expense  146,623,944  257,750,796 

(b)	  Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & the Accounting Profit
 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Accounting Profit Before Tax  607,603,813  588,773,812 
 Income Tax Expense 30% 30%
 Average Effective Tax Rate  182,281,144  176,632,144 
 Less: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose  3,131,062  8,343,817 
 Add: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction  (2,502,963)  (1,110,073)
 Add: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods  -    -   
 Add/ (Less): Others( to be Specified)  -    -   
       i) NFRS Profit & NAS Profit Difference  -    -   
       ii) Originating and reversal of temporary differences  (36,285,299)  73,884,909 
 Income Tax Expenses  146,623,944  257,750,796 
 Effective Tax Rate 24.13% 43.78%
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44	 Employee Retirement Benefits		
a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans	
For the year ended Ashad 31,2081 ( Jul 15, 2024) the company has recognised an amount of NPR. 42,543,855 as an expenses under the defined 
contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss				  
		
b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans	
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried 
out. The company has run Leave Encashment Plan only as defined benefit plan during the reporting period. Scheme for gratuity has been changed to 
defined contribution and necessary adjustment has been made accordingly.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss	 				                    Fig in NPR

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Current service cost  2,838,312  2,332,678 
Past service cost  -    -   
Net interest cost (a-b)  4,637,356  4,352,966  -    -   
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO)  7,019,984  5,166,758 
b. Interest (income) on plan assets  (2,382,628)  (813,792)
C Net acturial loss/(gain)  18,569,067  17,170,298 
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or 
Loss  26,044,735  23,855,942  -    -   

-

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes 
in DBO

 -    -    -    -   

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO  -    -    -    -   
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate  -    -    -    -   
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss  included in OCI  -    -    -    -   

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss  -    -    -    -   
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI  -    -    -    -   
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    -   

f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year  85,738,427  40,347,068 
Business Combination (Transfer From LGIC)  -    25,714,593 
Service cost  2,838,312  2,332,678 
Interest cost  7,019,984  5,166,758 
Benefit payments from plan assets  (9,377,031)  (6,572,588)
Transfer of scheme
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions  18,103,501  12,908,226 
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience  -    5,841,692 
Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End  104,323,193  85,738,427  -    -   

NoteNote : Additional Liability booked over the liability calculated at the date of change of scheme has been charged to acturial reserve and profit and loss 
proportionately.
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g) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year  29,569,055  -   
Interest Income
Expected return on plan assets  2,382,628  813,792 
Employer contributions  -    -   
Participant contributions
Benefit payments from plan assets  (3,076,278)  (1,546,430)
Transfer in/ transfer out  -    28,722,073 
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets  (465,566)  1,579,620 
Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End  28,409,839  29,569,055  -    -   

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Defined Benefit Obligation  104,323,193  85,738,427 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  (28,409,839)  (29,569,055)
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in Statement of Financial Position  75,913,354  56,169,372  -   

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Expected company contributions for the next year - - -  -   

j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end  56,169,372  40,347,068 

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss  26,044,735  23,855,942 

Total remeasurements included in OCI  -    -   

Transfer in/ transfer out  -    (3,007,480)

Acquisition/ divestment  -    -   

Employer contributions  (6,300,753)  (5,026,158)

Net defined benefit liability/ (asset)  75,913,354  56,169,372  -    -   

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period  -    -   

Total remeasurements included in OCI  -    -   

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss  -    -    -    -   
-

l) Current/Non - Current Liability

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Current Liability 12,844,071  10,643,993.00 

Non - Current Liability(Net) of Plan Assets 91,479,122  75,094,435 

Total  104,323,193  85,738,428  -    -   
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m)  Expected Future Benefit Payments	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Within 1 year  13,935,817  11,548,732 

Between 1-2 years  11,889,328  11,735,229 

Between 2-5 years  35,013,569  29,436,045 

From 6 to 10  48,243,065  40,970,889 

Total  109,081,779  93,690,895  -    -   

n)  Plan assets

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 (% Invested)  (% Invested)  (% Invested)  (% Invested) 

Government Securities (Central and State)  - 

Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds)  - 

Mutual Funds  - 

Deposits  - 

Cash and bank balances  - 

Retirement Fund  - -

Others (to be Specified) 100% 100%

Total 100% 100%  -    -   

o) Sensitivity Analysis

 Particulars 
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5% 
Increase in Discount Rate  100,997,840  8,00,95,218  -   

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5% 
Decrease in Discount Rate

 107,867,458  9,21,63,974  -   

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5% 
Increase in Salary Escalation Rate

 10,75,57,079  9,11,80,667  -   

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5% 
Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate

 10,12,57,667  8,08,54,560 

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5% 
Increase in withdrawal Rate

 10,40,03,010 8,52,02,622

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5% 
Decrease in Attrition Rate

 10,46,63,339 8,63,43,660  -   

p) Assumptions
 Particulars Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Discount Rate 8.5% -

Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 10% -

Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 12% -

Mortality Rate During Employment Nepali Assured Lives Mortality (2009) -
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45  Fair Value Measurements	 Fig in NPR
(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy							     
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments that are (a) recognised 
and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. 
 
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into 
Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.	
Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximises the 
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an 
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.			 
						    
There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.					   
	
(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value							     
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using either discounted cash flow analysis or Net-worth basis. (where direct data from 
market is unavailable)
	
(iii) Valuation Process							     
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting 
purposes. Valuation processes and results are reviewed at least once in a year.						    
						    
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:						    
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.						    
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material.			 
			 

 Particulars Level
Current Year Previous Year

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost

Investments

i) Investment in Equity Instruments  1/3  -    1,275,595,266  -    -    1,095,506,999  -   

ii) Investment in Mutual Funds  1  -    84,788,311  -    -    60,953,118  -   

iii) Investment in Preference Shares of 
Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -    -    -    -    -   

iv) Investment in Debentures  -    -    377,411,236  -    -    304,051,000 

v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal 
Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by 
Nepal Government)

 -    -    6,500,000  -    -    6,500,000 

vi) Fixed Deposits  -    -    4,659,250,000  -    -    4,758,500,000 

vii) Others (to be specified)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Loans  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Assets  -    -    86,843,479  -    -    264,304,698 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    698,369,027  -    -    243,548,479 

 Total Financial Assets  -    1,360,383,577  5,828,373,742  -    1,156,460,116  5,576,904,177 
Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    1,706,405,083  -    -    960,597,675 

 Total Financial Liabilities  -    -    1,706,405,083  -    -    960,597,675 
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(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost	 Fig in NPR

 Particulars 
 Current Year Previous Year

Carrying  
Amount

Fair  
Value

Carrying  
Amount

Fair  
Value

Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions  -    -    -    -   

ii) Investment in Debentures  377,411,236  377,411,236  304,051,000  304,051,000 
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by 
Nepal Government)

 -   

iv) Fixed Deposit  4,659,250,000  4,659,250,000  4,758,500,000  4,758,500,000 

v) Others (to be Specified)  -    -    -    -   

Loans  -   

i) Loan to Employees  -    -    -    -   

ii) Others (to be Specified)  -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Assets including Cash  785,212,507  785,212,507  507,853,177  507,853,177 

 Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost  5,821,873,742  5,821,873,742  5,570,404,177  5,570,404,177 

Borrowings

i) Bonds  -    -    -    -   

ii) Debentures  -    -    -    -   

iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution  -    -    -    -   

iv) Bank Overdrafts  -    -    -    -   

v) Others (to be Specified)  -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Liabilities  1,706,405,083  1,706,405,083  960,597,675  960,597,675 

 Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost  1,706,405,083  1,706,405,083  960,597,675  960,597,675 

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash flows discounted using current discount rate. 
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature.

46  Insurance Risk
Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature of claims, frequency and 
severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer 
having either received too little premium for the risks it has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay 
claims, or that claims are in excess of those expected. 

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an appropriate mix and spread of 
business based on its overall strategy. This is complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.			 
									       
The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:  
a) Product development 
b) Pricing 
c) Underwriting 
d) Reinsurance 
e) Claims Handling 
f ) Reserving									       
										        
a) Product development: 
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts: 
 - Property 
 - Motor 
 - Marine 
 - Engineering   
 - Micro 
 - Aviation 
 - Cattle and Crop 
 - Miscellaneous										        
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The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate leading to natural disasters, behavioral 
trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation of costs in respect of spares in the auto industry’s.				  
					   
The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability of 
risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms 
of type of risk and level of insured benefits.
 
Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent 
investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of 
actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact 
the business.								      

b) Pricing:									       
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs and the income arising from investing 
the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing 
assumptions and the base rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.			 
							     
The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used for pricing. The base rate represents the 
amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits, expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company’s own 
historical experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and external data, and could include trends 
observed in claims costs and expenses.										        
Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of the risks and available data. 
Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.		
								      
c) Underwriting: 
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the internal underwriting procedures. Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate 
underwriting risks are detailed below:  
 i)  Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management staff, including those attached to the 
distribution network,  
 ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process, 
 iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate risk prior to acceptance, 
 iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed, 
 v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of these covers.			 
									       
d) Reinsurance										        
The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the 
programmes already agreed based on the risks written by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession 
made in respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made for the loss. Although we mitigate 
our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company. 
Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent ceded to each reinsurer.	
									       
										        
e) Claims handling: 
Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below: 
  i) Claims are assessed immediately, 
  ii)  Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working throughout, 
  iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of reserves, 
  iv)  Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed, 
  v)  Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of these covers.			 
								      
Sensitivities										        
The non-life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumption as mentioned in the table below. 					  
					   
The following analysis is performend for resonably possible movement in key assumption with all other assumptios held constant, showing the impact 
on gross and net liabilities, profit before  tax and profit after tax. The correlation of assumption will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate 
claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to change in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis.		
								      



147

 Particulars  Land 

Current Year Previous Year

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

on Gross 
Liabilities

Increase/ 
(Decrease) on 
Net Liabilities

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

- Profit 
Before Tax

Increase/ 
(Decrease) - 
Profit After 

Tax

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

on Gross 
Liabilities

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

on Net 
Liabilities

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

- Profit 
Before Tax

Increase/ 
(Decrease) - 
Profit After 

Tax
Average Claim Cost + 10% - - - - - - - -
Average Number of Claims + 10% - - - - - - - -

Average Claim Cost - 10% - - - - - - - -
Average Number of Claims - 10% - - - - - - -

Claim development table									       
The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and IBNR for each successive incident year at 
each reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date.

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Year of incident > PY 4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY 1 Current Year Total

At end of incident year  2,757,917,212  2,757,917,212 
One year later  2,685,465,491  2,685,465,491 
Two year later  391,488,906  391,488,906 
Three year later  622,712,779  622,712,779 
Four year later  15,309,620  15,309,620 
More than Four years  177,651,423  177,651,423 
Current estimate of cumulative claims  177,651,423  15,309,620  622,712,779  391,488,906  2,685,465,491  2,757,917,212  6,650,545,432 
At end of incident year  1,172,324,918  1,172,324,918 
One year later  1,334,876,236  1,334,876,236 
Two year later  165,505,708  165,505,708 
Three year later  79,062,043  79,062,043 
Four year later  7,993,939  7,993,939 
More than Four years  73,529,770  73,529,770 
Cumulative payments to date  73,529,770  7,993,939  79,062,043  165,505,708  1,334,876,236  1,172,324,918  2,833,292,614 
Gross outstanding claim provision  104,121,653  7,315,682  543,650,736  225,983,198  1,350,589,255  1,585,592,294  3,817,252,818 

Gross outstanding claim provision	

Year of incident > PY 4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY 1 Current Year Total

At end of incident year  1,253,703,219  1,253,703,219 
One year later  559,132,606  559,132,606 
Two year later  108,439,316  108,439,316 
Three year later  35,615,377  35,615,377 
Four year later  7,624,545  7,624,545 
More than Four years  33,165,682  33,165,682 
Current estimate of cumulative claims  33,165,682  7,624,545  35,615,377  108,439,316  559,132,606  1,253,703,219  1,997,680,746 
At end of incident year  654,878,688  654,878,688 
One year later  410,822,002  410,822,002 
Two year later  82,434,681  82,434,681 
Three year later  16,150,322  16,150,322 
Four year later  5,480,676  5,480,676 
More than Four years  12,941,995  12,941,995 
Cumulative payments to date  12,941,995  5,480,676  16,150,322  82,434,681  410,822,002  654,878,688  1,182,708,364 
Net outstanding claim provision  20,223,687  2,143,869  19,465,056  26,004,635  148,310,604  598,824,531  814,972,382 

Net  outstanding claim provision
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 Particulars 

 Current Year  Previous Year 

Gross 
Insurance 
Liabilities

Reinsurance 
Assets Net Liabilities

Gross 
Insurance 
Liabilities

Reinsurance 
Assets Net Liabilities

Property  1,808,360,992  1,219,490,483  588,870,509  2,252,304,518  1,938,987,046  313,317,473 
Motor  1,789,277,952  540,573,854  1,248,704,099  1,879,985,425  461,868,637  1,418,116,788 
Marine  277,918,622  186,411,584  91,507,038  148,019,966  117,125,947  30,894,018 
Engineering   480,657,831  447,753,188  32,904,643  634,297,971  593,889,375  40,408,596 
Micro  684,994,760  684,692,815  301,944  803,542,115  796,411,271  7,130,845 
Aviation  1,166,435,303  1,157,479,746  8,955,557  1,307,919,442  1,303,677,525  4,241,917 
Cattle and Crop  84,820,098  68,792,554  16,027,544  128,671,520  105,475,797  23,195,723 
Miscellaneous  319,830,593  293,220,979  26,609,613  244,460,642  183,636,523  60,824,118 
Total  6,612,296,151  4,598,415,205  2,013,880,947  7,399,201,599  5,501,072,122  1,898,129,477 

f) Reserving	
Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.					   
The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year end has been measured as insurance 
contract liabilities and disclosed as below:							                      		                   Fig in NPR	
							     

47  Financial Risk Management							     
The Company’s activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.						    
	
i) Credit Risk							     
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their payment obligations to the Company.  Thus, 
for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the 
reinsurance contract.						   
								      
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:			 
a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the Company. Compliance with 
the policy is monitored and exposures/ breaches are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for 
changes in the risk environment. 						    
						    
b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided by entering into agreement with more 
than one party. At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase 
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.						    
						    
c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of 
financial loss from defaults. 

Particulars Asset Group Gross Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
probability 
of Default

Expected 
Credit 
Losses

Carrying 
Amount After 

Provision

Credit Risk has not significantly 
increased since initial 
recognition

Loss allowance measured 
at 12 months expected 
credit losses

Fixed Deposit  4,659,250,000 0%  -    4,659,250,000 
Debenture  377,411,236 0%  -    377,411,236 
Other Financial 
assets

 86,843,479 0%  -    86,843,479 

Credit Risk has significantly 
increased and not credit 
impaired

Loss allowance measured 
at li fe-time expected 
credit losses

- - - -

Credit Risk has significantly 
increased and credit impaired

- - - -

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2081
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Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Particulars
Measured at 12 

months expected 
credit losses

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

Credit Risk has significantly 
increased and not credit 

impaired

Credit Risk has significantly 
increased and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashad 31, 2080  -    -   
Changes in loss allowances  -    -   

Write-offs  -    -   

Recoveries  -    -   

Loss Allowance on Ashad 31, 2081  -    -   

ii) Liquidity Risk	 						    
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering 
cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there  is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash 
out–flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.						    
							     
Maturity of Financial Liabilities/Maturity of Financial Assets						    
The table below summarises the Company’s Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial 
Liabilities/Financial Assets.	

iii) Market Risk							     
a1) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure						    
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual 
financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not 
maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.        
The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in Nepali Rupee.				  
							     
b1) Interest Rate Risk	 					   
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 	
					   

 Particulars 
 Current Year Previous Year

Upto 1 Year 1 Year to 5 Year  More than 5 Year Upto 1 Year 1 Year to 5 Year  More than 5 
Year 

Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Liabilities  1,706,405,083  -    -    274,271,163  -    -   

Other Financial Assets  1,104,018,132  -    -    651,924,557  -    -   

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2080	                                                           Fig in NPR

Particulars Asset Group Gross Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
probability 
of Default

Expected 
Credit 
Losses

Carrying 
Amount After 

Provision

Credit Risk has not significantly 
increased since initial 
recognition

Loss allowance measured 
at 12 months expected 
credit losses

Fixed Deposit  4,758,500,000 0%  -    4,758,500,000 
Debenture  304,051,000 0%  -    304,051,000 
Other Financial 
assets

 264,304,698 0%  -    264,304,698 

Credit Risk has significantly 
increased and not credit 
impaired

Loss allowance measured 
at li fe-time expected 
credit losses

- - - -

Credit Risk has significantly 
increased and credit impaired

- - - -



150

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity						    
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 1% which is reasonably possible based on 
Management’s Assessment would have the following effect on the Profit After Tax.

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Equity Index - Increase By 1%  -    -   

Equity Index - Decrease By 1%  -    -   

c1) Equity Price Risk							     
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific 
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
 
The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from investments held by the Company and classified in 
the statement of financial position as fair value through OCI/ fair value through profit or loss.						    
				  
c2) Sensitivity							     
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and impact on OCI/ profit or loss for the period. 
The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the 
Company’s equity instruments moved in line with the index.

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

 * Holding all other Variable Constant

48  Operational Risk							     
Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems 
or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead 
to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and 
responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation 
and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in 
environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.			 
			 
49  Climate Related Risk							     
Climate Risk Policy has been developed by SALICO.						    
Assessing the climate change risk of a general insurance company requires a slightly different set of metrics and indicators than for other types of 
companies. Here are some key metrics and indicators to consider:
i.	 Catastrophe risk exposure: This measures the extent to which the insurance company’s underwriting portfolio is exposed to catastrophic 

events such as floods, hurricanes, wildfires, and droughts. These events are likely to become more frequent and severe due to climate change, 
and can lead to significant losses for insurance companies.

ii.	 Geographic concentration: This measures the extent to which the insurance company’s underwriting portfolio is concentrated in regions that 
are particularly vulnerable to climate change, such as coastal areas, regions prone to wildfires, and areas with high exposure to flooding.

iii.	 Climate change scenario analysis: This involves modeling the potential impacts of different climate change scenarios on the insurance 
company’s underwriting portfolio, including the frequency and severity of claims related to climate events.

iv.	 Risk management policies: This measures the insurance company’s policies and procedures for managing climate-related risks, including 
the use of risk transfer mechanisms such as reinsurance, and the development of products and services that help customers manage their own 
climate-related risks.

v.	 Disclosures and reporting: This measures the extent to which the insurance company discloses its exposure to climate-related risks and its 
plans for managing those risks, as well as its progress in reducing its own carbon footprint.

vi.	 Investment portfolio: This measures the extent to which the insurance company’s investment portfolio is aligned with a low-carbon future, 
and whether the company is investing in companies and sectors that are particularly vulnerable to climate change.

vii.	 Regulatory risks: This measures the potential impact of current and future regulations related to climate change on the insurance company’s 
operations and financial performance, including the impact of carbon pricing mechanisms. Overall, assessing the climate change risk of a general 
insurance company involves a thorough analysis of its underwriting portfolio, risk management policies, investment portfolio, and disclosures 
and reporting, as well as an understanding of the regulatory landscape related to climate change.	
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 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Profit For the Year  460,979,869  331,023,016 
Less: Dividend on Preference Shares  -    -   
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Basic Earning per Share  460,979,869  331,023,016 
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share  460,979,869  331,023,016 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For 
Basic Earning per Share

 26,226,382  18,899,639 

Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:
i) Dilutive Shares
ii) Options
iii) Convertible Bonds
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for 
Diluted Earning Per Share

 26,226,382  18,899,639 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares
Basic Earnings Per Share  17.58  17.51 
Diluted Earning Per Share  17.58  17.51 
Proposed Bonus Share  -    -   
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for 
Diluted Earning Per Share

 26,226,382  18,899,639 

Restated Basic Earning Per Share 17.58 17.51
Restated Diluted Earning Per Share 17.58 17.51

51  Earnings Per Share (EPS)
      a) Basic Earnings Per Share

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

50  Capital Management							     
The Company’s objectives when managing Capital are to:						    
a.	 Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 

stakeholders, and						    
b.	 Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.	  In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 

adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.				  
		

Regulatory minimum paid up capital							     
Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Nepal Beema Pradhikaran to attain a stipulated minimum paid up capital of 
NPR 2.5  billion . As on the reporting date, the company’s paid up capital is NPR 2,622,638,200.

 Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

(i) Dividends recognised
The Company has  recognized the 5%  cash dividend declared and approved by 
the Annual General Meeting held on 13th Chaitra 2080 during the fiscal year.

 131,131,910  174,073,680 

 131,131,910  174,073,680 

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In addition to the above dividends, for  the year ended Ashad 31, 2081, 
the directors have recommended the payment of a final Cash dividend of  
NPR.  15 per fully paid equity share including Tax on Dividend .  This proposed 
dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general 
meeting.					   

393,395,730  131,131,910 

393,395,730    131,131,910 

Dividend
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

52 Operating Segment										        
Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. Management of the Company has identified portfolio as business 
segment and the Company’s internal reporting structure is also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management 
believes that it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these industries.			
							     

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the view that the financial information by 
geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to be presented.					  
Business Segments of the Company’s are:	

i) 	 Property	
ii) 	 Motor							     
iii) 	 Marine
iv) 	 Engineering
v) 	 Micro
vi) 	 Aviation
vii) 	 Cattle and Crop					   
viii) 	Miscellaneous
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 Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segmental Profit  252,027,293  423,002,453 
Less: Employee Benefit Expenses  (60,800,769)  (39,776,178)
Less: Depreciation and Amortization  (4,696,601.70)  (3,461,029)
Less: Other Operating Expenses  (14,432,775)  (14,424,958)
Less: Impairment Losses  3,585,431  (76,332,755)

Less: Finance Cost  (14,631,672)  (8,517,715)

Add: Unallocable Other Income  446,552,906  308,283,995 
Profit Before Tax  607,603,813  588,773,813 

c) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss	                				                   Fig in NPR

 Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Assets  5,615,589,858  6,546,073,581 
Goodwill and Intangible Assets  157,908,034  157,766,615 
Property, Plant and Equipment  253,904,384  264,134,949 
Investment Properties  112,576,632  113,238,278 
Deferred Tax Assets  61,407,847  3,237,463 

Investments in Subsidiaries  -    -   

Investments in Associates  -    -   
Investments  6,403,300,940  6,225,267,243 
Loans  10,658,216  11,121,779 
Current Tax Assets (Net)  322,132,187  169,761,537 
Other Assets  1,403,116,678  735,413,839 
Other Financial Assets  86,843,479  264,304,698 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  698,369,027  243,548,479 
Total Assets  15,125,807,282  14,733,868,461 

d) Reconciliation of Assets

 Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Liabilities  8,094,897,265  8,142,749,366 
Provisions  89,483,586  81,460,391 
Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -   
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)  -    -   
Other Financial Liabilities  223,803,970  217,049,907 

Other Liabilities  509,359,681  360,311,133 

Total Liabilities  8,917,544,501  8,801,570,798 

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
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53 Related Party Disclosure							     
(a) Identify Related Parties							     
Holding Company: 	 						    
The company does not have any holding company.							     

Subsidiaries:							     
The company does not have any Subsidiaries.							     

Associates:							     
The company does not have any Associates.							     

Fellow Subsidiaries:							     
The company does not have any Fellow Subsidiaries.							     

Key Management Personnel:							     
KMPs of the Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Company Ltd. includes members of Board of directors, Chief Executive Officer, Deputy CEO and Assistant 
General Manager namely:

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Name of Key Management Personnel Designation

Manohar Das Mool Chairman 

Ajit R. Gunawardena Director

Lokmanya Golchha Director

Siddhartha Mani Rajdhandari Director

Arun Raj Shrestha Public Director 

Bijan Bhattarai Public Director 

Padma Jyoti Alternate Director

Nirmala Devi Manandhar Independent Director

Chunky Chhetry Chief Executive Officer

Barishma Saud Acharya Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Kabiraj Poudel DGM

Subhash Dixit AGM

Karuna Devi Manandhar AGM

 Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Short-term employee benefits  37,046,555  24,382,133.75 

Post-employment benefits  -    -   

Other long-term benefits  -    -   

Termination benefits 1,980,000   -   

Total  39,026,555  24,382,134 

(b)  Key Management Personnel Compensation:
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 Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances  13,000,000  8,298,285 
Performance based allowances  -    -   
i) Employee Bonus  2,150,969  1,959,518 
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions  1,413,699  402,740 
iii) Incentives  -    -   
Insurance related benefits  -    -   
i) Life Insurance  -    -   
ii) Accident Insurance  15,813  -   

iii) Health Insurance (including family members)  23,400  -   

Total  16,603,880  10,660,543 

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)								                       Fig in NPR

(c)  Related Party Transactions:

Particulars Holding
Company Subsidiaries Associates Fellow

Subsidiaries 
Key Managerial

Personnel Total

Premium Earned
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Commission Income
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Rental Income
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Interest Income
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Premium Paid
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Commission Expenses
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -   

 Meeting Fees 
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    2,234,000  2,234,000 
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    2,764,000  2,764,000 

 Allowances to Directors 
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    1,044,000.00  1,044,000 
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    828,000.00  828,000 

Others (to be specified)
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2080  (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

54 Leases						    
(a) Leases as Lessee	 					   
(i) Operating Leases:						   
The Company has not entered into any lease agreement i.e. rental agreements to be classified as operating leases

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below
There is no non- cancellable lease as such . All the lease (rental agreements) can be cancelled by serving the notice period 
as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Payments				     Current Year  Previous Year 

i) Not Later than 1 year  -    -   
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -    -   
iii) Later than 5 years  -    -   

(d)  Related Party Balances:	  Fig in NPR

Particulars Holding
Company Subsidiaries Associates Fellow

Subsidiaries 
Key Managerial

Personnel Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables

As at  Ashadh 31,2081 (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at  Ashadh 31,2080 (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other Receivables (to be Specified)

As at  Ashadh 31,2081 (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at  Ashadh 31,2080 (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Payables including Reinsurance Payables

As at  Ashadh 31,2081 (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at  Ashadh 31,2080 (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other Payables (to be Specified)

As at  Ashadh 31,2081 (July 15, 2024)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at  Ashadh 31,2080 (July 16, 2023)  -    -    -    -      -   

(b) Leases as Lessor						    
(i) Operating Lease:	 					   
The Company has leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental income received during the year in respect of 
operating lease is NPR 14,400,567  Details of assets given on operating lease as at year end are as below. 

Future Minimum Lease Payments				     Current Year  Previous Year 

i) Not Later than 1 year  15,120,595 14,400,567
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -    -   
iii) Later than 5 years  -    -   

 Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

(ii) Finance Lease:						   
The Company has classified lease rental agreement entered for branches and head office under finance leases.

Future Minimum Lease Payments				    Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year  32,752,758  30,733,923 
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  98,431,549  92,686,540 
iii) Later than 5 years  16,932,746  10,451,373 
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments  148,117,053  133,871,836 
Less: Effect of Discounting  33,333,697  30,922,857 
Finance lease liability recognised  114,783,357  102,948,979 
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Particulars
 Current Year Previous Year

Gross 
Investment

Unearned 
Finance Income Net Investment Gross 

Investment
Unearned 

Finance Income Net Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
ii) Later than 1 year and not 
later than 5 years

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

iii) Later than 5 years  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) Finance Lease:						   
The Company has not leased out any of its assets on lease.	

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Particulars				     Current Year  Previous Year 

Property, Plant and Equipment  -    -   
Investment Properties  -    -   
Goodwill & Intangible Assets  -    -   
Total  -    -   

55 Capital Commitments						    
       Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for: No capital Commitments has been made

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts
a) Income Tax  89,806,721  25,444,909 
b) Indirect Taxes  1,299,840  1,299,840 
c) Other (to be Specified)  -    -   
Total  91,106,561  26,744,749 

56  Contingent Liabilities	 					   
In the opinion of the Directors and the Company’s lawyers, pending litigation against the Company will not have a material impact on the reported 
financial results or future operations of the Company. All pending litigation for claims have been evaluated and adequate provisions have been made 
in the financial statements.

  Fig in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables  -    -   
Investments in equity  -    -   
Fixed Deposits  -    -   
Property and equipment  -    -   
Others (to be Specified)  -    -   
Total  -    -   

58  Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are: Assets has not been pledged as security

57  Events occuring after Balance Sheet	
There are no such material non-adjusting events after Balance Sheet date to be disclosed.	

59     Corporate Social Responsibility
Directive 57B of Corporate Governance Directive, 2075 issued by Nepal Insurance Authority requires Insurers to create Corporate Social 
Responsibility Fund and annually appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund. The fund is created towards covering the 
Insurance’s expense in CSR activities in the subsequent year. The Insurance appropriates required amount to this fund for every reporting period. 
Salico has appropriated 1% of profit into the fund as on Ashad end, 2081.
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60    Others (Merger and Goodwill)
After merger of Lumbini General Insurance Company Limited (LGIC) with Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited (SIC) to form Sagarmatha 
Lumbini Insurance Company Limited (SALICO). All the assets and liabilities of LGIC has been transferred to SALICO at the fair value as on 
13/03/2023 as per NFRS 3 business Combination. Purchase consideration for the acquisition of assets and liabilities of LGIC has been derived 
from net worth per share of SIC as on 16/07/2022 ( latest available information (as per audited financial statements) i.e. NRs. 226.57. Goodwill of 
NRs. 156,141,249/- has been arised as a result of merger as per NFRS 3 business combination as mentioned in below table;			 
			 

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Particulars  Amount (NRs.)

A. Net Assets Acquired
Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets  1,765,761 
Property and Equipment  131,706,362 
Investments  2,414,109,666 
Loans  10,558,951 
Reinsurance Assets  1,302,243,659 
Current Tax Assets (Net)  104,696,769 
Insurance Receivables  317,140,689 
Other Assets  106,167,546 
Other Financial Assets  160,641,580 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  64,707,236 
Total Assets  4,613,738,218 
Liabilities
Provisions  15,486,212 
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities  1,914,252,103 
Deferred Tax Liabilities  745,757 
Insurance Payables  86,455,619 
Other Liabilities  165,587,886 
Other Financial Liabilities  41,530,881 
Total Liabilities  2,224,058,458 
Net Assets Acquired  2,389,679,760 
B. Purchase Consideration
Number of shares of SALICO given to Shareholders of LGIC  11,236,392 
Per Share Networth of SIC as on 16/07/2022  226.57 
B. Purchase Consideration  2,545,821,010 
Purchase Goodwill arised  156,141,249 

Goodwill arised  of NPR.156,141,249 has been shown under other equity component. 
  For the financial year 2080/81  there is no any indication of impairment of goodwill inconsidering following factors. 
1. A significant decline in the market value of the business. 
2. Adverse changes in the economic environment, industry conditions, or operational performance. 
3. Loss of key customers, suppliers, or employees. 
4. The company's inability to meet financial performance expectations.

61    Impairment of Insurance Recievable
Impairment on Insurance Recievable  as per Section 18 of Financial Directive stands  to NRs. .113,732,383.90 with comparision to  NRS. 133,040,058  
of previous Year. Difference has been routed through Profit & Loss. Company has been suceessfull in recovering old balances.		
				  

62   Miscellaneous
(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.						    
(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.						    
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S.N. Particular Indicators 
Fiscal Year

2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77
A. Equity:
1 Net worth NRs. 6,208,262,781 5,932,297,664 3,021,593,344 2,624,142,558 2,177,841,761 
2 Net Profit NRs.  460,979,869  331,023,016  370,880,681  447,425,708  384,065,959 
3 Number of Shares Number 26,226,382.00 26,226,382.00  13,336,290  11,113,575  10,012,229 
4 Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs.  17.58  17.51  27.81  33.55  34.56 
5 Book value per shares NRs.  236.72  226.20  226.57  236.12  217.52 
6 Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. 15.00  5.00  13.16  21.05  11.58 
7 Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs.  727.00  748.00  870.00  1,344.00  700.00 
8 Price Earning Ratio Ratio  41.36  42.71  31.28  40.06  20.26 
9 Change in Equity %  -    96.65  20.00  11.00  -   
10 Return on Equity %  7.43  5.58  12.27  17.05  17.64 
11 Affiliate Ratio  -    -    -   
12 Capital to Total Net Assets Ratio  42.24  44.21  44.14  42.35  45.97 
13 Capital to Technical Reserve Ratio  1.30  1.38  1.03  0.90  0.94 
14 Market Share %  11.55 11.39
15 Solvency Margin %  2.75  4.07  4.97  4.79  4.44 
B. Income

Business
16 Net Earnings Ratio  9.42  10.19 
17 Gross Earned Premium Growth Rate  50.65  8.99 

Property %  61.16  24.12  11.95  13.58  (1.08)
Motor %  7.14  8.58  20.21  13.35  9.37 
Marine %  (6.11)  34.20  19.49  23.67  (23.17)
Engineering %  65.36  58.89  20.49  (2.21)  (2.23)
Micro %  8.03  (75.06)  (99.99)  48.98  10,281.79 
Aviation %  512.24  (188.11)  106.45  421,702.82  -   
Cattle and Crop %  2.99  23.52  34.95  73.48  18.97 
Miscellaneous %  40.92  62.38  25.49  (12.13)  (10.17)

18 Direct Premium Growth Rate  46.93  9.76 
Property %  47.93  41.30  18.11  25.03  (72.68)
Motor %  24.77  6.77  22.74  9.20  (27.60)
Marine %  16.51  35.72  (17.07)  48.86  (86.19)
Engineering %  71.49  400.09  (17.70)  27.05  (95.92)
Micro %  (93.98)  294,880.03  (99.99)  32.32  4,941.72 
Aviation %  245.62  130.89  37.30  1,645.19  -   
Cattle and Crop %  1.92  (6.43)  27.74  73.48  (76.21)
Miscellaneous %  34.33  94.12  59.47  6.66  (94.02)

19 Retention Ratio  35.15  49.38 
Property %  32.42  38.22  32.07  30.40  27.61 
Motor %  68.33  72.78  65.11  63.77  66.20 
Marine %  3.34  22.65  15.02  21.64  17.98 
Engineering %  4.42  11.70  3.71  5.43  4.18 
Micro %  98.15  84.58  100.00  43.13  48.56 
Aviation %  (0.27)  0.53  0.28  0.41  100.00 
Cattle and Crop %  17.21  18.00  18.93  20.00  20.00 
Miscellaneous %  13.64  12.44  10.27  8.08  6.66 

20 Net Reinsurance Inflow/(Outflow) Amount 
in Cr.  (90.97)  (16.95)

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
 For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Annexure III
Major Financial Indicator
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
 For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)

Annexure III
Major Financial Indicator

S.N. Particular Indicators 
Fiscal Year

2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77

21 Reinsurance commission Income/ Gross 
Reinsurance Premium %  15.94  23  25.05  25.44  28.78 

22 Gross Earned Premium to Equity %  78.83  54.76  98.64  94.73  104.54 
23 Net Earned Premium to Equity %  27.71  27.04  40.67  38.29  45.05 
24 Gross Earned Insurance Premium to Total Assets %  32.35  22.05  53.06  48.61  47.66 

25 Gross Premium to Equity %  77.14  54.92 

26 Net Profit to Gross Premium %  9.63  10.19  12.06  16.84  16.89 
27 Yield on Investments & Loan %  7.48  5.31  5.24  6.94  7.59 

C. Expenses:
28 Reinsurance Ratio %  64.85  50.62  57.53  57.09  45.15 

29 Management Expenses Ratio % 16.56 17.98 13.12 12.26 13.04

30 Regulatory Expenses Ratio % 1.49 1.07 1.31 1.84 1.90

31 Employee Expenses Per Employee  960,517.68  795,523.56  619,864.00  524,015.37  529,085.50 

32 Commission Ratio %  0.78  2.92 3.81 4.80 4.86

33 Employee Expenses to Total Expenses ( Excuding 
Claims & Benefits) % 65.32 68.98 66.47 64.72 64.59

34 Expense Ratio % 3.39 8.00 6.16 3.52 1.77
35 Loss Ratio % 75.34 73.69 72.66 77.33 62.26
36 Combined Ratio (Loss Ratio + Expense Ratio) % 78.73 81.69 78.81 80.85 64.03
D. Assets:
37 Increment in Investment Held %  2.86  69.90  23.30  14.77  11.80 

38 Increment in Loan %  (0.04)
39 Liquidity Ratio %  30.29  17.37  45.93  218.40  271.35 
40 Return on Assets %  3.05  2.25  5.24  6.94  7.59 
41 Long term Investments/Total Investments %  34.88  43.07  21.16 
42 Short term Investments/Total Investments %  65.12  56.93  78.84 

43 Total Investment & Loan/Gross Insurance Contract 
Liabilities %  97.00  84.28  111.28  94.83  130.50 

44 Reinsurer Receivable to Total Assets %  6.72  7.09 
45 Investment in Shares to Total Assets %  8.43  18.47  17.22  19.83  7.06 
46 Investment in Unlisted Shares to Total Assets %  0.98  1.18  0.23  -   
E. Liabilities:
47 Increment in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities %  (10.64)  124.72  5.10  57.94  4.30 

48 Gross Technical Provision to Gross Earned 
Premium %  1.35  2.28 

49 Gross Technical Provision to Total Equity %  106.51  124.73 

50 No of Outstanding to No of Paid Claim %  89.06 

51
No. of Outstanding Claim/ No. of Intimated 
Claim

%  75.92  83.56  73.16  54.74  45.14 

52 Total No of In Force Insurance Polices No.s  286,367.00  239,984.00 

53 Total No of Renewed Insurance Policies/Last Year's 
Total No of In Force Policies %  37.06  35.29  36.83  32.79  25.69 

F. Others:
54 Number of Offices  112  115  87 76 76
55 Number of Agents  315  283  185 190  190 
56 Number of Employees  633  635  437  396  359 
57 Number of Surveyors  189 192 135 80 76
58 Employee Expenses to No of Employees NPR  960,518  795,524  619,864  524,015  529,086 



163

S.
N.

Insurance 
Type

Existing Insurance 
Policies Numbers

Insured Amount against Existing 
Insurance Policies

Insured Risk Ceded to  
Re-Insurer

Net Insured Risk Retained by 
Insurer

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

1 Property  65,622  49,012  565,752,166,814  433,838,567,111  306,087,081,823  156,976,586,346  259,665,084,991  276,861,980,765 

2 Motor  163,013  146,660  119,134,332,108  102,378,925,511  45,472,770,706  20,418,499,986  73,661,561,402  81,960,425,525 

3 Marine  22,850  16,033  133,821,343,552  110,698,456,207  97,925,637,852  75,261,386,696  35,895,705,700  35,437,069,511 

4 Engineering  4,572  3,768  83,592,076,713  59,856,867,016  81,230,115,405  34,109,238,626  2,361,961,309  25,747,628,390 

5 Micro  286  4,741  316,462,515  5,511,233,015  38,298,708  4,408,986,412  278,163,807  1,102,246,603 

6 Aviation  25  14  17,443,944,468  12,658,464,309  17,352,231,512  -    91,712,956  12,658,464,309 

7
Cattle and 
Crop

 10,840  7,619  2,425,304,734  2,525,563,892  2,017,853,538  2,019,941,035  407,451,196  505,622,857 

8 Miscellaneous  19,159  13,259  135,374,700,375  98,489,162,237  124,879,500,591  87,511,651,696  10,495,199,784  10,977,510,541 

Total  286,367  241,106  1,057,860,331,280  825,957,239,298  675,003,490,135  380,706,290,797  382,856,841,146  445,250,948,501 

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Annexure IV

Statement of Sum Assured
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-ljlgodfjnL ;+zf]wgsf] nflu tof/ ul/Psf] # dxn] ljj/0f_-ljlgodfjnL ;+zf]wgsf] nflu tof/ ul/Psf] # dxn] ljj/0f_

sDkgLsf] lgodfjnLsf] lgod -#@_ sf] pklgod -!_ sf] v08 -s_ / -3_ df lgDgfg';f/ ;+zf]wg ug]{M

xfnsf] Joj:yf k|:tfljt ;+zf]wg ;+zf]wg ug'{kg]{ sf/0f

-s_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s a:bf cWoIfnfO{ 

?=!@,)))÷– / ;b:ox?nfO{ ?= !),)))÷– a}7s 

eQf k|bfg ul/g]5 .

-s_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s a:bf cWoIfnfO{  

?= @%,)))÷– / ;b:ox?nfO{ ?= @#,)))÷– a}7s 

eQf k|bfg ul/g]5 .

;dofg's'n a}7s eQf  

;+zf]wg ug'{kg]{ ePsf]n] .-3_ ;ldlt jf pk–;ldltsf ;+of]hs tyf 

;b:ox?sf] a}7s a:bf ;+rfnsx?n] kfP ;/x 

?= !),)))÷– a}7s eQf k|bfg ul/g]5 .

-3_ ;ldlt jf pk–;ldltsf ;+of]hs tyf 

;b:ox?sf] a}7s a:bf ;+rfnsx?n] kfP ;/x 

?= @#,)))÷– a}7s eQf k|bfg ul/g]5 .
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lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzglwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL, @)&# sf] lgod @^-!_  lgodfjnL, @)&# sf] lgod @^-!_ 
;+u ;D;+u ;DalGwt yk ljj/0fMalGwt yk ljj/0fM

s_	 sDkgLsf] cf=a= @)*)÷)*! sf] aflif{s k|ltj]bg o;}df ;dflji6 5 .

v_	 sDkgLsf] cf=a= @)*)÷)*! sf] n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg o;}df ;dflji6 5 .

u_	 sDkgLsf] cf=a= @)*)÷)*! sf] ljQLo ljj/0f k|ltj]bg o;}df ;dflji6 5 .

3_	 sfg"gL sf/jfxL ;DaGwL ljj/0fM

c=	 ;dLIff cjlwdf s]lx aLdf bfjL e'QmfgL ;DaGwL larf/flwg d'2f afx]s cGo g/x]sf] .

cf=	 sDkgLsf] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] la?4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf kmf}Hbf/L ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf 

s'g} bfo/ u/]sf] jf ePsf]af/] s'g} hfgsf/L k|fKt gePsf] .

O=	 s'g} ;~rfns jf ;+:yfks la?4 cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ ePsf]af/] s'g} hfgsf/L k|fKt gePsf] .

ª_	 sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/ tyf k|ultsf] ljZn]if0fM

c=	 sDkgLsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]jf/ ahf/sf] l;4fGt cg';f/ ;~rfng x'g] ePsf]n] o; ;DaGwdf Joa:yfkgsf] s'g} 5'6[} wf/0ff /x]sf] 

5}g .

cf=	 ut jif{ @)*)÷)*! sf] k|To]s q}dfl;s cjlwdf sDkgLsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go'gtd / cGtLd d"Nosf ;fy} s"n sf/f]jf/ 

z]o/ ;+VofM  

	 ;flassf ;u/dfyf OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= tyf n'lDagL hg/n OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= aLr sDkgL ufEg]÷ufleg] ;DaGwL ;Demf}tfsf 

qmddf z]o/ sf/f]jf/ /f]Ssf /x]sf] x'+bf klxnf] / bf]>f] q}dfl;s cjwLdf z]o/ sf/f]jf/ ePg . af+sL t]>f] / rf}+yf] q}dfl;ssf] 

sf/f]jf/ b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 . ->f]tM g]kfn :6s PSr]~h_

q}dfl;s cjlw clwstd\  
d"No ?=

Go"gtd\  
d"No ?=

clGtd  
d"No ?=

sf/f]jf/ 
lbg

sf/f]jf/ 
;+Vof

z]o/ ;+Vof

k|yd   780.00 656.00  688.90   61.00 ,516.00   740,050.00 

bf]>f] 746.00  639.00 714.00 49.00 3,923.00     632,511.00 

t]>f] 720.00 638.00 661.00   58.00 3,622.00    464,115.00 

rf}yf]   740.00  602.00  727.00   61.00 4,377.00   744,551.00 

r_	 ;d:of / r'gf}ltsf kIfx? o;};fy ;dflji6 ePsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

5_	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL ljifo o;};fy ;dflji6 ePsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .
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Approval Letter from Nepal Insurance Authority of Financial Statements
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Board Response to the Conditions Set by Nepal Insurance Authority on Financial Statements

aLdf k|flws/)fåf/f caLdf k|flws/)fåf/f cf=j=2080÷081 sf] ljQLo ljj/)f ;zt{ :jLs[t lbOPsf] x"¤bf To;df pNn]lvt zt{x? ;DaGwL f=j=2080÷081 sf] ljQLo ljj/)f ;zt{ :jLs[t lbOPsf] x"¤bf To;df pNn]lvt zt{x? ;DaGwL 
Joj:Joj:yfkgsf] lgDg adf]lhdsf] k|To"Q/ /x]sf] % .yfkgsf] lgDg adf]lhdsf] k|To"Q/ /x]sf] % .    

!= 	 aLdsn] NFRS-17 Insurance Contracts nfu" ug]{ ;DaGwdf, sfof{Gjogsf nflu af]nkq cfJxfg ul/;s]sf] / cfufdL !% lbg leq 

;f] ;+u ;DalGwt sfo{of]hgf agfO{ k]z ul/g] Joxf]/f cg"/f]w ub{5f+}+ . 

@= 	 aLdssf] :yL/ ;DkQLsf] /lhi6/ sDkgLsf] Beema Manager Software System dfkm{t tof/ u/L cWofjlws ul/g] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L 

u/fp“b5f}+ . 

#= 	 aLdsn] g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0faf6 hf/L ul/Psf] AML/CFT ;DalGw Joj:yfx?sf] k'0f{ kfngfsf nflu cfjZos sd{rf/Lx? lgo'Qm 

u/L ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ lgoldt ?kdf AML/CFT ;+u ;DalGw cled"lvs/0f sfo{qmdx? ;+rfng ub}{ cfPsf 5f}+ . AML/CFT 

;DalGw Joj:yfx?sf] k'0f{ kfngfsf nflu sDkgL s6La4 /x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5f}+ . 

$=	 sDkgLaf6 g]kfn aLdf k|flws/0faf6 hf/L aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;';fzg ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf, @)*) sf] bkmf $%-@_ sf] Joj:yfx? 

kfngf eO{/x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5f}“ . 

%=	 sDkgLsf] n]vf k/LIf0f ;ldlt k|efjsf/L /x]sf] / sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ cem ;'b[9 agfpg 5'§} cfGtl/s lgoGq0f 

ljefu v8f ul/Psf] hfgsf/L u/fp“b5f}+ .

^=	 hf]lvdf+sg tyf bfjL e"QmfgL k|s[ofnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfOPsf] / o;nfO{ cem} ;do;fk]If yk ;jn, ;'b[9 / z;Qm agfO{g] Joxf]/f 

hfgsf/L u/fp“b5f}+ .

&= 	 k|flws/0fsf] :ynut lgl/If0fsf] qmddf b]lvPsf tyf n]vf k/LIfsn] cf}+NofO{Psf] s}lkmotx? ;'wf/ ul/g]5 / cfufdL lbgx?df 

To; k|sf/sf s}lkmotx? bf]xf]l/g glbgsf nflu cfjZos sfof{y{ ;DalGwt ljefuLo k|d'vnfO{ lgb]{zg lbO{Psf] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w  

u/fp“b5f}+}+ .

*=	 k|flws/0faf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[lt kfPsf] ^) lbg leq} pko'Qm :yfg 5gf]6 u/L sDkgLsf] ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg x'g] hfgsf/L 

u/fpg rfxG5f}“ .
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Disclosure on Quality of Assets and Capital Resources

1.	 Quality of Assets
i.	 Analysis of Asset Composition Analysis of Asset Composition 

The Composition of the assets of the company as at 15th July 2024 is hereunder:

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year Composition (%)

Assets    

Goodwill & Intangible Assets        157,908,034        157,766,615 1%

Property and Equipment        253,904,384        264,134,949 2%

Investment Properties        112,576,632        113,238,278 1%

Deferred Tax Assets          61,407,847            3,237,463 0%

Investments     6,403,300,940     6,225,267,243 42%

Loans          10,658,216          11,121,779 0%

Reinsurance Assets     4,598,415,205     5,501,072,122 30%

Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)        322,132,187        169,761,537 2%

Insurance Receivables     1,017,174,653     1,045,001,459 7%

Other Assets     1,403,116,678        735,413,839 9%

Other Financial Assets          86,843,479        264,304,698 1%

Cash and Cash Equivalent        698,369,027        243,548,479 5%

Total Assets   15,125,807,282  14,733,868,461  

 As of the end of the current year, the company’s total assets amounted to NPR 1,513 crores, reflecting a growth from NPR 1,473 crores in the 
previous year. Reinsurance assets and investments continue to dominate the asset portfolio, collectively accounting for 73% of total assets. The 
remaining assets include intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, deferred and current tax assets, insurance 
receivables, and other financial instruments.

Reinsurance assets, which are provisions against receivables from reinsurers for unexpired premium reserves (UPR), unexpired risk reserves (URR), 
outstanding claims reserves, IBNER, and IBNR, declined from NPR 550 crores to NPR 460 crores.

Investments represent the largest asset component, contributing approximately 42% of total assets. The investment portfolio comprises fixed 
deposits, debentures, equities, mutual funds, and other financial instruments, all maintained in alignment with the Nepal Insurance Authority's 
regulatory framework, the company’s investment policy, and its asset-liability management guidelines. Most of these investments are in fixed-
income instruments, primarily fixed deposits and debentures issued by commercial banks. The investment strategy prioritizes risk-adjusted 
returns, liquidity, and alignment with claims and operational obligations. With robust monitoring systems in place, particularly for cash flow 
and short-term funding needs, the company ensures financial stability. During the year, the total investment value increased by NPR 18 crores, 
reaching NPR 640 crores.

ii.	 Geographical Distribution and Exposure of Assets:ii.	 Geographical Distribution and Exposure of Assets:
The Company’s Assets are located within the Nepal expect a certain amount of reinsurance receivables from foreign reinsurers.

2.	 Quality of Capital Resources
i.	 Capital Strength, Solvency Position, and Shareholders’ Equityi.	 Capital Strength, Solvency Position, and Shareholders’ Equity

As of 15th July 2024, the company’s shareholders’ fund reached NPR 621 crores, up from NPR 593 crores recorded on 16th July 2023. The company 
maintains a strong capital efficiency position within the insurance sector, as reflected by its favorable ratio of gross written premiums to share 
capital.
In adherence to the Nepal Insurance Authority’s solvency regulations, which mandate a minimum solvency margin of 150% (the excess of asset 
value over insurance liabilities), the company has reported a robust solvency ratio of 275.7% based on its solvency balance sheet—significantly 
exceeding the regulatory requirement.
The composition of shareholders’ equity as of 15th July 2024 is detailed below.
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Equity  Current Year  Previous Year 

Share Capital   2,622,638,200   2,622,638,200 

Special Reserves   2,550,477,445   2,550,477,445 

Catastrophe Reserves      188,982,189      167,747,461 

Retained Earnings      403,873,383      135,314,068 

Other Equity      442,291,564      456,120,490 

Total Equity   6,208,262,781   5,932,297,664 

ii.	 Return on Equityii.	 Return on Equity
The company achieved a return on equity (ROE) of 7.43% for the current year, marking an improvement from 5.58% in the previous year.

iii.	 Dividendiii.	 Dividend
In light of its consistent financial and operational performance, along with a strong solvency ratio of 275.7% under the risk-based capital 
framework, the Board of Directors, in its meeting on 10th April 2025, approved to propose a cash dividend of 15% in Annual General Meeting. 
This decision reflects the company’s solid capital base, stable liquidity position, and commitment to delivering value to its shareholders.
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Variance Report  on Statement of Financial Position
As At 15th July, 2024 (Ashad End 2081)

Particulars Unaudited 4th 
Qtr 80/81

 Audited Final 
80/81 Difference Variance 

% Remarks

Assets
Goodwill & Intangible 
Assets

 157,441,541  157,908,034  466,493  0.30 

Property and Equipment  227,855,231  253,904,384  26,049,153  11.43 
Right of Use Asset  In quarterly Statement 
calculated in last year basis, In Annual Report 
calculated on actual basis.

Investment Properties  112,576,632  112,576,632 - -

Deferred Tax Assets  28,364,552  61,407,847  33,043,295  116.50 
In quarterly statement DTA/DTL created only 
in FVTOCI, However in annual calculated on 
UPR, URR, IBNR, IBNER, EPR, and More.

Investment in Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -   
Investment in Associates  -    -    -    -   
Investments  6,413,393,248  6,403,300,940  (10,092,308)  (0.16)
Loans  10,658,216  10,658,216  -    -   
Reinsurance Assets  5,060,362,527  4,598,415,205  (461,947,322)  (9.13)

Current Tax Assets  184,807,175  322,132,187  137,325,012  74.31 

Lower Tax Liability due to decrease in profit, 
Increase in Deferred tax income. Advance tax 
on Commision on RSMDST and other various 
not booked earlier.

Insurance Receivables  1,057,059,185  1,017,174,653  (39,884,532)  (3.77)
Other Assets  1,148,066,187  1,403,116,678  255,050,492  22.22 Classification Error
Other Financial Assets  375,089,450  86,843,479  (288,245,971)  (76.85) Classification Error
Cash and Cash Equivalent  286,597,150  698,369,027  411,771,877  143.68 Classification Error
Total Assets  15,062,271,094 15,125,807,282  63,536,188  0.42 
Equity:  -   
Share Capital  2,622,638,200  2,622,638,200  -    -   
Share Application Money 
Pending Allotment

 -    -    -    -   

Share Premium  -    -    -   
Special Reserve  2,622,638,200  2,550,477,445  (72,160,755)  (2.75)
Catastrophe Reserves  194,584,482  188,982,189  (5,602,292)  (2.88)
Retained Earnings  507,577,719  403,873,383  (103,704,336)  (20.43) Due to Decrease In Profit
Other Equity  400,411,453  442,291,564  41,880,111  10.46 Increase in Deffered tax reserve
Total Equity  6,347,850,054  6,208,262,781  (139,587,273)  (2.20)
Liabilities:  -   
Provisions  90,554,589  89,483,586  (1,071,003)  (1.18)
Gross Insurance Contract 
Liabilities

 6,904,746,633  6,612,296,151  (292,450,482)  (4.24)

Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -    -    -   
Insurance Payable  1,096,882,459  1,482,601,113  385,718,654  35.16 Classification Error
Current Tax Liabilities  -    -    -    -   
Borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Other Liabilities  393,520,829  509,359,681  115,838,852  29.44 Classification Error
Other Financial Liabilities  228,716,530  223,803,970  (4,912,560)  (2.15)
Total Liabilities  8,714,421,040  8,917,544,501  203,123,461  2.33 
Total Equity and 
Liabilities

 15,062,271,094 15,125,807,282  63,536,188  0.42 
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Varaince Report on Statement of Profit or Loss
For Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024

Particulars Unaudited 4th 
Qtr 80/81

 Audited Final 
80/81 Difference Variance 

% Remarks

Income:
Gross Earned Premiums  4,672,381,127  4,893,836,679  221,455,552  4.74 

Premiums Ceded  (2,762,359,541)  (3,173,626,727)  (411,267,186)  14.89 

Due to Margin over Best Estimate not 
considered in quaterly Statement. Marine 
Closing UPR Consider for only 2080.81 Net 
Premium only.

Net Earned Premiums  1,910,021,586  1,720,209,952  (189,811,633)  (9.94)
Commission Income  534,453,873  506,016,093  (28,437,781)  (5.32)
Other Direct Income  30,357,805  33,274,526  2,916,721  9.61 
Income from Investments & Loans  473,464,420  479,920,286  6,455,866  1.36 
Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes  -    -    -    -   
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)  24,321,687  26,817,790  2,496,103  10.26 
Other Income  1,433,956  6,026,208  4,592,252  320.25 Motor TPL management income.
Total Income  2,974,053,327 2,772,264,855 (201,788,473)  (6.78)
Expenses:  -   
Gross Claims Paid  2,833,292,614  2,833,292,614  -    -   
Claims Ceded  (1,647,357,599)  (1,650,584,250)  (3,226,650)  0.20 
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities  (610,240,961)  (682,036,004)  (71,795,044)  11.77 Calculated on the basis of Acturial Valuation in 

Annual Financial report however in quarterly 
Statement  calculated as per Insurers Quaterly 
financials Statement related Circular.

Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to 
Reinsurers

 680,483,222  795,296,859  114,813,637  16.87 

Net Claims Incurred  1,256,177,276  1,295,969,219  39,791,943  3.17 

Commission Expenses  39,564,197  38,221,816  (1,342,382)  (3.39)
Service Fees  13,395,255  12,920,256  (474,999)  (3.55)
Other Direct Expenes  7,189,158  7,202,057  12,899  0.18 
Employee Benefits Expenses  618,211,548  608,007,691  (10,203,856)  (1.65)
Depreciation and Amortization 
Expenses

 42,974,764  46,966,017  3,991,253  9.29 

Impairment Losses  (27,231,689)  (3,585,431)  23,646,257  (86.83) Write off of SIC LGIC Balance.
Other Operating Expenses  142,700,972  144,327,746  1,626,773  1.14 

Finance Cost  11,213,013  14,631,672  3,418,659  30.49 
Finance cost In quarterly calculated in last year 
basis, In Annual calculated on actual basis.

Total Expenses  2,104,194,494  2,164,661,042  60,466,547  2.87 
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before 
Share of Net Profits of Associates 
Accounted for Using Equity Method 
and Tax

 869,858,833  607,603,813  (262,255,020)  (30.15)

Share of Net Profit of Associates 
accounted using Equity Method

 -    -    -   

Profit Before Tax  869,858,833  607,603,813  (262,255,020)  (30.15)
Income Tax Expenses  260,957,650  146,623,944  (114,333,706)  (43.81)
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year  608,901,183  460,979,869  (147,921,314)  (24.29)
Earning Per Share  23.22  17.58  (5.64)  (24.29)
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Assets Financial
Statement

Solvency
Balance Sheet

Goodwill  156,141,249 
Deferred acquisition costs  -   
Intangible assets  1,766,785 
Deferred tax assets  73,822,184 
Pension benefit surplus  -    -   
Property, plant & equipment held for own use  253,904,384  460,838,099 
Investments (other than replicating unit portion index/unit-linked contracts)  6,526,535,788  6,618,622,260 
Investments in properties (other than for own use)  112,576,632  148,968,000 
Investment in subsidiaries  -    -   
Investment in associates  -    -   
Equities  1,275,595,266  1,275,595,266 
   Equities - listed in stock exchange licensed by SEBON  1,127,942,046  1,127,942,046 
   Equities - listed in stock exchange other than licensed by SEBON  -    -   
   Equities - unlisted  147,653,220  147,653,220 
Bonds  383,911,236  436,883,724 
   Government Bonds  6,500,000  6,268,639 
   Corporate Bonds  377,411,236  430,615,085 
      Fixed-income bonds with no option  377,411,236  430,615,085 
      Floating rate notes  -    -   
     Other bonds with embedded interest rate derivatives  -    -   
Structured notes  -    -   
Collateralised securities  -    -   
Collective Investments Undertakings  84,788,311  84,788,311 
Derivatives  -    -   
Deposits other than cash equivalents  4,659,006,127  4,664,190,943 
Other investments  -    -   
Loans and mortgages  10,658,216  8,196,016 
   Loans on policies  -    -   
   Other loans with collateral or guarantees  10,658,216  8,196,016 
   Other loans without collateral or guarantees  -    -   
Assets replicating the unit portion of index/unit-linked contracts  -    -   
Reinsurance recoverables from:  5,031,762,427  4,142,480,578 
   Non-life technical reserves (after risk correction)  4,639,796,326  3,750,514,477 
   Life excluding index-linked and unit-linked technical reserves (after risk correction)  -    -   
   Life index-linked and unit-linked technical reserves (after risk correction)  -    -   
   Deposits to cedants (related to accepted reinsurance)  -    -   
   Reinsurance receivables  391,966,101  391,966,101 
Current tax assets (net)  323,373,621  323,373,621 
Insurance, coinsurance and intermediaries receivables  625,208,553  436,178,765 
   Receivables from insurers other than coinsurance  625,208,553  436,178,765 
   Receivables from coinsurance/pools  -    -   
   Receivables from intermediaries  -    -   
Own shares (held directly)  -    -   
Amounts due in respect own equity items called up but not yet paid in  -    -   
Cash and cash equivalents  698,369,027  698,369,027 
Any other assets, not elsewhere shown  1,489,960,158  1,470,981,970 
Total assets  15,180,844,176  14,150,844,320 

Reporting date : Ashad-End 2081Balance Sheet

A comparative Statement of Solvency Balance Sheet and NFRS Based Financial Statement, 
Solvency Calculation Sheet and Statement of Available Capital
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SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Liabilities (without transitionals) Financial
Statement

Solvency
Balance Sheet

Technical provisions - non-life  6,612,296,151  6,611,933,725 

  Best Estimate Direct Insurance (excluding Earthquake reserves)  6,404,271,586  6,403,914,782 

   Best estimate Direct Insurance Earthquake reserves  15,716,559  15,716,560 

   Margin over best estimate Direct insurance  91,019,946  91,019,946 

   Best estimate Accepted reinsurance (excluding Earthquake reserves)  100,925,977  100,920,354 

   Best estimate Accepted Earthquake reserves  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate Accepted reinsurance  362,083  362,083 

Technical provisions - life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked)  -    -   

   Best Estimate Direct insurance participating life insurance  -    -   

   Best Estimate Direct insurance non-participating life insurance  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate Direct insurance  -    -   

   Best estimate Accepted reinsurance  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate Accepted reinsurance  -    -   

Technical provisions - index-linked and unit-linked life insurance contracts  -    -   

   Technical provisions calculated as a whole (unit reserves)  -    -   

   Best Estimate (non unit reserves)  -    -   

   Margin over best estimate  -    -   

Other technical provisions  -    -   

Reinsurance deposits and payables  1,476,084,291  1,476,084,291 

   Deposits from reinsurers  -    -   

   Reinsurance payables  1,476,084,291  1,476,084,291 

Insurance, coinsurance and intermediaries payables  6,516,822  6,516,822 

   Payables to insurers other than coinsurance  6,516,822  6,516,822 

   Payables to coinsurance/pools  -    -   

   Payables to intermediaries  -    -   

Other payables (not related to insurance or reinsurance)  509,359,681  509,359,681 

Debts owed to credit institutions  -    -   

Other financing debts  -    -   

   Qualified as Tier 1 Available Capital Resources  -   

   Qualified as Tier 2 Available Capital Resources  -   

   Not qualified as Available Capital Resources  -   

Derivatives  -   

Current tax liabilities  -   

Provisions other than technical provisions  6,700,825  6,700,825 

Contingent liabilities  -    -   

Pension benefit obligations  82,782,761  82,782,761 

Deferred tax liabilities  -    -   

Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown  227,942,083  227,942,083 

Total liabilities  8,921,682,614  8,921,320,188 

Excess of assets over liabilities  5,229,524,132 
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TIER 1 CAPITAL. List of items
 (Capital resources that absorb losses on a going-concern basis and in winding-up 

basis)

Solvency
Balance

Sheet
Excess of assets over liability as per Solvency Balance Sheet  5,229,524,132 

Add:  Paid-in (paid-up) subordinated debts qualified as tier 1 Available Capital Resources  -   

Less: Revaluation reserve  -   

Less: CSR Reserve -8,434,380 

Less: Fair value reserve -151,685,052 

Less: Actuarial reserve  -   

Less: Excess of deferred tax reserve shown in equity of 02.01 BS over deferred tax assets as per Financial 
Statement -65,007,879 

Less: Assets pledged by the insurer when the facility guaranteed is not in the liability side of the solvency 
balance sheet  -   

Less: Credit Facilities granted by the insurer and secured by its own shares when the facility is not in the 
liability side  -   

Less: Direct and indirect investments, reciprocal cross holdings, arranged either directly or indirectly 
between financial institutions  -   

Less:  Assets not valued at nil whose valuation in the solvency balance sheet should not increase the 
Available Capital Resources -260,000,000 

Less: Deduction as per para 66(6) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not valued at nil in 
solvency balance sheet  -   

Less: Deduction as per para 66(7) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not valued at nil in 
solvency balance sheet  -   

Less: Embedded profit if already included in surplus i.e. excess of assets over liability as per 02.01 BS  -   

TIER 1 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS    4,744,396,821 

Available Capital Resources (ACR), Solvency position and MCR
Reporting date : Ashad-End 2081Amounts in NPR units (no decimals)

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

EQUITY Financial
Statement

   Share capital  2,622,638,200 

   Share application money pending allotment  -   

   Share premium  -   

   Special reserves  2,550,477,445 

   Catastrophe reserves  190,906,412 

   Retained earnings  440,048,760 

   Other equity  455,090,744 

      Revaluation reserves  -   

      Capital reserves  -   

      Corporate Social Responsibility Reserves (CSR)  8,434,380 

      Insurance Fund  -   

      Fair Value Reserves  151,685,052 

      Actuarial reserves  -   

      Deferred Tax Reserves  138,830,063 

      Other reserves  156,141,249 

Total Equity  6,259,161,561 
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TIER 2 CAPITAL. List of items 
(capital resources that absorb losses only in winding-up basis)

Solvency
Balance Sheet

Cumulative irredeemable preference shares qualified as tier 2 Available Capital Resources  -   

Irredeemable subordinated debts qualified as tier 2 Available Capital Resources  -   

Other capital resources qualified as Tier 2, including unpaid preference shares, unpaid subordinated debt, 
letters of credit, guarantees and mutual member calls  -   

Future profits embedded in the valuation of technical provisions (reserves)  -   

TIER 2 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS    -   

Dividend during financial year 2078 - 2079      233,970,000 

Dividend during financial year 2079 - 2080      174,073,680 

Dividend during financial year 2080 - 2081      131,131,910 

Dividend agreed or expected during financial year 2081 - 2082      260,000,000 

Available Capital Resources (ACR), Solvency position and MCR

Risk-Based Capital Requirement  1,720,745,943 

 Reduction of life technical reserves due to transitional (only where approved by the NIA)  -

 Reduction of non-life technical reserves due to transitional (only where approved by the NIA)  -   

SOLVENCY SITUATION

Reporting date : Ashad-End 2081

Tier 1 items before limits  -

Tier 1 Paid-in subordinated debt before limit  -   

Reduction to limit up to 30% Tier 1

Tier 1 Paid-in subordinated debt after deduction of the limit

Exceptional increase para (65)(6) Annexure V of RBC Directive - only previous NIA 
approval

Tier 1 items after limits  4,744,396,821  4,744,396,821 

Calculations without
Transitional

Calculations with
Transitionals

Tier 2 before limits  -   

Before limits - Future profits embedded in technical reserves  -   

After limits - Future profits embedded in technical reserves  -   

Recalculated Tier 2 after limits to Future profits embedded in technical reserves  -

Tier 2 after limit 40% RBC - -

Total Solvency Available Capital Resources  4,744,396,821  4,744,396,821 

Solvency surplus/deficit  3,023,650,878  3,023,650,878 

  Solvency ratio 275.7% 275.7%

Amounts in NPR units (no decimals)

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
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MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT  573,581,981  573,581,981 

Tier 1 covering MCR  4,744,396,821  4,744,396,821 

Tier 2 covering MCR  -    -   

MCR surplus/deficit  4,170,814,840  4,170,814,840 

MCR ratio 827.2% 827.2%

Calculations without
Transitional

Calculations with
Transitionals

SAGARMATHA LUMBINI INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Supervisory Target Capital Level (paragraph (85) Annexure VI of RBC 
Directive  (%)

130.00%
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Risk Based Capital and Solvency Approval from Regulator
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SALICO has developed and maintained the effective communication mechanisms which are essential for ensuring smooth interaction and 
information flow among stakeholders of the Company. Stakeholders of SALICO include employees, customers (policyholders), agents and 
brokers, regulatory bodies, suppliers, and shareholders. Below are various communication mechanisms that company has employed to enhance 
interaction and information dissemination among these stakeholders:

1. Internal Communication Mechanisms
a. Intraneta. Intranet
There system in place in the company of a centralized internal web portal for employees. Share company announcements, policies, training 
materials, and infro access of inter departmental documents. It has facilitated ease of access to information and encourages collaboration among 
employees.

b. Email Communicationb. Email Communication
The company has outsourced Zoho mail service for standard email systems for official communication and sharing updates, reports, and 
announcements, and facilitating discussions. It has provided a record of communication and allows for detailed correspondence.

c. Instant Messaging and Collaboration Toolsc. Instant Messaging and Collaboration Tools
For effective and instant communication, the company has encouraged other free online tools such as Microsoft Teams, Whatsapp and Viber. 
It has fostered real-time collaboration and discussions among teams. It has enabled quick information exchange and enhances team synergy.

d. Regular Meetings and Briefingsd. Regular Meetings and Briefings
The company has in place of holding scheduled monthly meetings which focus on regular and periodical discussion of  operational updates, 
performance metrics, and strategic initiatives. It has promoted transparency and keeps all employees informed of company objectives.

2. External Communication Mechanisms
a. Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Systemsa. Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Systems
A dashboard on website has been created to manage customer interactions and data. It keeps track of customer inquiries, service requests, and 
feedback.

b. Websiteb. Website
The company has created an informative and user-friendly website for customers and stakeholders , which has enabled us to provide information 
on products, services, claims processes, and company news. It has also served as a central hub for customer inquiries and enhances accessibility 
to information.

c. Mobile Applicationc. Mobile Application
SALICO has developed a mobile app for policyholders that enables customers to manage their policies, submit claims, and communicate with 
support. It has provided a a convenient platform for policyholders to interact with the company.

d. Social Media Channelsd. Social Media Channels
Company has ensured the presence on platforms like Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, and Instagrams. The platforms has been used to share 
important updates, encouraging the engagement with customers, and inform about products and services to the society. It has helped the 
company to enhance brand visibility and allowed us for direct interaction with customers.

OTHER
DISCLOSURE

10.

Communication Mechanism for Interaction and Information Flow to Stakeholders
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3. Customer Support and Engagement
a. Customer Service Departmenta. Customer Service Department
SALICO has a separate department with a dedicated customer service department with dedicated phone lines for customer service. The 
department provides assistance with policy inquiries, claims, and complaints. It has been offering personalized and immediate support to 
customers.

b. Chatbotsb. Chatbots
The company has developed a AI-driven chat systems on website or mobile app to provide 24/7 assistance for frequently asked questions and 
basic inquiries for enhancing customer engagement and to reduce response time.

c. Nodal and Grievance Handling Mechanismsc. Nodal and Grievance Handling Mechanisms
The company has appointed Nodal officer and Information officer with responsibility and accountability to address and manage the grievance 
of stakeholders. The mechanism gathers customer opinions and suggestions on services and processes. It also provides insights into customer 
satisfaction and areas for improvement.

4. Reporting and Transparency
a. Stakeholder Reportsa. Stakeholder Reports
SLAICO has practice of publication of regular reports (annual, quarterly) both on newspaper and online on web portals for stakeholders to share 
insights on company performance, financial health, and strategic direction. The company has adopted culture of  transparency and builds trust 
among stakeholders.

b. Regulatory Reportingb. Regulatory Reporting
SALICO has been regularly observing compliance communication with regulatory bodies by submitting required data and reports to regulatory 
authorities which has ensured company’s adherence to legal obligations and maintains good standing with regulators.

The company has appointed a Nodal Officer and an Information Officer, both responsible and accountable for addressing and managing 
stakeholder grievances. The mechanism collects customer feedback, including opinions and suggestions on services and processes, providing 
valuable insights into customer satisfaction and areas for improvement. Multiple channels have been enabled for grievance registration, 
including an online portal, mobile app, website, email, phone support, and in-person visits to the office. Employee grievances are handled 
internally by the Human Resources Department. SALICO has also established a clear escalation process for unresolved grievances, which can be 
directed to higher management or specialized departments (e.g., compliance, legal) by the grievance officer. Management has set timelines for 
the initial review and resolution of grievances.

SALICO has yet to pursue credit ratings from independent agencies. However, the company is actively working towards obtaining ratings from 
local credit rating agencies. While it is not formally rated by independent entities, its financial statements demonstrate a strong position of 
liquidity and stability. Additionally, SALICO has maintained a significant market share in the industry, with a proven track record of delivering 
consistent, guaranteed returns to its shareholders.
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HEADS

Koshi Province

Mr. Narayan Gautam
Province HeadProvince Head

Biratnagar
9851226446

narayan.gautam@salico.com.np

Mr. Pramendra K.C.
Branch HeadBranch Head

Belbari
9842076726

pramendra.kc@salico.com.np

Mr. Santosh  Tiwari
Branch HeadBranch Head

Bhojpur Sub Branch
9852062075

santosh.tiwari@salico.com.np

Mr. Sanjay  Mandal
Branch HeadBranch Head
Biratnagar 2
9852026153

sanjaya.mandal@salico.com.np

Mr. Chandra Prakash Baskota
Branch HeadBranch Head

Birtamode
9852678628

chandra@salico.com.np

Mr. Dev Raj Dangal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Damak
9852673563

devraj@salico.com.np

Ms. Pranita Pokhrel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dhankuta Extension Counter
9842110617

pranita.pokhrel@salico.com.np

Ms. Sunita Rijal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dharan
9862073789

sunita.rijal@salico.com.np

Mr. Dhan Bahadur Katuwal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Gaighat Sub Branch
9852837384

dbkatuwal@salico.com.np

Mr. Sujan Niroula
Branch HeadBranch Head

Ilam
9842727711

sujan.niroula@salico.com.np

Mr. Netra Bahadur Poudyal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Inaruwa
9852082008

netra.poudel@salico.com.np

Mr. Ram Babu Karki
Branch HeadBranch Head

Itahari / Itahari Yatayat Counter
9842023209

rambabu@salico.com.np

Mr. Babu Ram Acharya
Branch HeadBranch Head

Khotang Sub Branch
9852846062

baburam@salico.com.np

Mr. Subash Banskota
Acting Branch HeadActing Branch Head
Phidim Sub Branch

9847805423
subash.baskota@salico.com.np

Mr. Durga Prasad Gautam
Branch HeadBranch Head

Sankhuwasabha Sub Branch
9852099620

durgaprasad.gautam@salico.com.np

Mr. Ganesh Magar
Branch HeadBranch Head

Surunga
9852639127

ganesh@salico.com.np

Madhesh Province
Mr. Nishant  Kumar  Lamichanne 

Province Head Province Head 
Birgunj 

9851124459
nishant@salico.com.np

Mr. Sandeep Singh Thakuri
Branch HeadBranch Head

Birgunj
9851066919

sandeep.thakuri@salico.com.np

Mr. Dilip  Dhungel 
Branch HeadBranch Head

Birgunj 2
9855022811

dilip@salico.com.np

Mr. Ritesh Kumhal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Birgunj Extension Counter
9845094269

ritesh.kumhal@salico.com.np

Mr. Uttam Thapa
Branch HeadBranch Head

Chandranighapur Sub Branch
9844003829

uttam.thapa@salico.com.np

Mr. Mukesh Das
Branch HeadBranch Head

Janakpur
9844314000

mukesh.das@salico.com.np

Mr. Amit Kshetri
Branch HeadBranch Head
Janakpur 2

9854029188
amit.kshetri@salico.com.np

Mr. Birendra Byahut
Branch HeadBranch Head

Kalaiya
9849711439

birendra.byahut@salico.com.np

Mr. Bhanu Pratap Singh
Branch HeadBranch Head

Lahan
9852833231

bhanu.singh@salico.com.np

Mr. Lok Bahadur Katuwal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Sarlahi Sub Branch
9851133049

lok.katuwal@salico.com.np

Ms. Ruk Maya Tamang
Branch HeadBranch Head

Simara
9845486645

rukmaya@salico.com.np

Bagmati Province
Mr. Machhindra Bogati

Cluster Head Cluster Head 
Narayangarh
9855049000

machhindra@salico.com.np

Mr. Prakash Chandra Pradhan
Branch HeadBranch Head

Banepa
9851067948

prakash@salico.com.np

Mr. Rupendra Thapa
Branch HeadBranch Head
Baneshwor

9851175577
rupendra@salico.com.np

Mr. Bharat Kumar Adhikari
Branch HeadBranch Head

Bhaktapur
9851052233

bharat@salico.com.np
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Gandaki Province

Mr. Bishnu Raj Poudel
Province HeadProvince Head

Pokhara
9856032166

bishnu@salico.com.np

Mr. Rishi Gautam
Branch HeadBranch Head

Arunkhola
9847014213

rishi.gautam@salico.com.np

Mr. Om Giri
Branch HeadBranch Head

Baglung
9857622833

om@salico.com.np

Mr. Devendra Paudel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Beni Sub Branch
9857621182

devendra.paudel@salico.com.np

Mr. Sandeep Aryal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Besisahar - Lamjung Sub Branch
9843713427

sandeep.aryal@salico.com.np

Mr. Pawan Singh Karki
Branch HeadBranch Head

Damauli
9846555495

pawan.karki@salico.com.np

Mr. Bishal Pradhan
Branch HeadBranch Head
Dulegauda

9862437020
bishal.pradhan@salico.com.np

Mr. Sudip Shrestha
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dumre Sub Branch
9846512305

sudip.shrestha@salico.com.np

Mr. Deepak Prasad Bhandari
Branch HeadBranch Head

Galyang
9846097661

deepak.bhandari@salico.com.np

Ms. Swastika Pokharel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Gorkha Sub Branch
9856051983

sostika.pokharel@salico.com.np

Mr. Uttam Lamichhane
Branch HeadBranch Head

Kawasoti Sub Branch
9857041828

uttam.lamichhane@salico.com.np

Mr. Shankar Raj Tiwari
Branch HeadBranch Head

Lekhnath
9856069500

shankar.tiwari@salico.com.np

HEADS

Bagmati Province

Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh
Branch HeadBranch Head
Bhaktapur 2
9854023984

ajay.singh@salico.com.np

Mr. Sudam Pokhrel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Bharatpur
9855050917

sudam.pokhrel@salico.com.np

Mr. Madan Oli
Branch HeadBranch Head

Chabahil
9851038197

madan.oli@salico.com.np

Mr. Ganesh Gurung
Branch HeadBranch Head

Chanauli Sub Branch
9867003373

ganesh.gurung@salico.com.np

Mr. Deepak Thapa Magar
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dhading
9851278143

deepak.thapamagar@salico.com.np

Ms. Sirjana Magar
Branch HeadBranch Head

Gajuri
9843507969

sirjana.magar@salico.com.np

Mr. Shivaraj Dhital
Branch HeadBranch Head

Galchi Sub Branch
9851335702

shiva.dhital@salico.com.np

Mr. Madhav Dhakal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Gongabu
9851074737

madhav@salico.com.np

Mr. Devendra Prasad Acharya
Branch HeadBranch Head
Gyaneshwor
9851055660

devendra.acharya@salico.com.np

Mr. Bhaskar Adhikari
Branch HeadBranch Head

Hetauda
9855010855

bhaskar.adhikari@salico.com.np

Mr. Diwakar Sharma
Branch HeadBranch Head

Kalanki
9851036920

diwakar@salico.com.np

Mr. Ram Krishna Lamichhane
Branch HeadBranch Head

Khairahani
9845728150

ramkrishna.lamichhane@salico.
com.np

Mr. Hemanta Poudel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Manthali Sub Branch
9854040510

hemanta.poudel@salico.com.np

Ms. Bigya Karki
Branch HeadBranch Head

Naxal
9851346701

bigya@salico.com.np

Ms. Sushila Bhandari
Branch HeadBranch Head

New Road
9851253304

sushila.bhandari@salico.com.np

Mr. Shambhu Prasad Basaula
Branch HeadBranch Head
Newroad 2

9851039270
shambhu@salico.com.np

Mr. Susan Shrestha
Branch HeadBranch Head

Nuwakot
9851102084

susan.shrestha@salico.com.np

Mr. Kishwor Bartaula
Branch HeadBranch Head

Patan
9851204092

kishwor@salico.com.np

Mr. Hom Bahadur Chhetri
Branch HeadBranch Head

Tandi Sub Branch
9855060606

hombahadur@salico.com.np

Mr. Anil Raj Bajracharya
Branch HeadBranch Head

Teku
9851058705

anil.bajracharya@salico.com.np

Ms. Prasamsa Rana Malla
Branch HeadBranch Head

Thamel
9851153707

prasamsa.rana@salico.com.np

Mr. Sachin Rajbhandary
Branch HeadBranch Head

Thapathali
9851015142

sachin.rajbhandary@salico.com.np
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HEADS

Lumbini Province

Mr. Bishwo Dipak Nepal
Province HeadProvince Head

Butwal
9851204116

bishwodeep@salico.com.np

Mr. Mohan Gautam
Cluster HeadCluster Head

Butwal
9847091880

mohan.gautam@salico.com.np

Mr. Rom Nath Dhakal
Cluster HeadCluster Head

Butwal
9857038606

romnath@salico.com.np

Mr. Santosh Bhusal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Arghakhachi Sub Branch
9857084836

santosh.bhusal@salico.com.np

Mr. Subit Khanal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Bardaghat
9847298978

subit.khanal@salico.com.np

Mr. Bishnuhari Gautam
Branch HeadBranch Head

Basgadi
9858023314

bishnuhari.gautam@salico.com.np

Mr. Keshav Bhandari
Branch HeadBranch Head
Bhairahawa
9857023525

keshav@salico.com.np

Mr. Satish Bhusal
Branch HeadBranch Head
Bhairahawa 2
9857011851

satish.bhusal@salico.com.np

Mr. Kiran  Poudel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Chandrauta - Kapilvastu
9857014465

kiran.poudel@salico.com.np

Mr. Bed Prakash Adhikari
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dang - Ghorahi Sub Branch
9857822010

bed.adhikari@salico.com.np

Mr. Tuphan Sapkota
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dang - Tulsipur
9857826026

tufan@salico.com.np

Mr. Sujan Acharya
Branch HeadBranch Head

Gulmi Tamghas Sub branch
9857039888

sujan.acharya@salico.com.np

Mr. Bishnu Acharya
Branch HeadBranch Head

Jeetpur
9844716712

bishnu.acharya@salico.com.np

Mr. Dev Narayan Kafle
Branch HeadBranch Head

Kohalpur
9858023311

devnarayan.kafle@salico.com.np

Mr. Ramesh Prasad Paudel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Manigram
9857071149

ramesh.skt@salico.com.np

Mr. Yegya Prasad Sapkota
Branch HeadBranch Head

Nepalgunj
9858028688

yegya.sapkota@salico.com.np

Mr. Gopal Prasad Neupane
Branch HeadBranch Head

Parasi, Nawalparasi Sub Branch
9847034173

gopal.neupane@salico.com.np

Mr. Kuber Shahi
Branch HeadBranch Head

Pyuthan
9868162562

kuber.shahi@salico.com.np

Mr. Dolraj Shrestha
Branch HeadBranch Head

Rampur - Palpa Sub Branch
9857068726

dolraj@salico.com.np

Mr. Bimal Basnet
Branch HeadBranch Head

Sunauli Extension Counter
9867459952

bimal.basnet@salico.com.np

Mr. Karuna Kaphle
Branch HeadBranch Head

Tansen Sub Branch
9857060204

karuna.kaphle@salico.com.np

Gandaki Province

Mr. Rajesh Babu Khatri
Branch HeadBranch Head

Pokhara
9856035057

rajesh@salico.com.np

Mr. Atit Pokharel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Pokhara 2
9856083889

atit.pokharel@salico.com.np

Mr. Prakash Paudel
Branch Headranch Head

Pokhara, Hari Chowk
9856020093

prakash.paudel@salico.com.np

Ms. Nirmala Paudel
Branch HeadBranch Head

Prithivi Chowk
9846732767

nirmala.poudel@salico.com.np

Mr. Narayan Prasad Khanal
Branch HeadBranch Head

Waling - Syangja Sub Branch
9851243587

narayan.khanal@salico.com.np



191

HEADS

Karnali Province

Mr. Binit Poudel
Province HeadProvince Head

Surkhet
9868933711

binit.poudel@salico.com.np

Mr. Changu Narayan Bista
Branch HeadBranch Head

Jajarkot
9848209895

ch.bista@salico.com.np

Mr. Lokendra Neupane
Branch HeadBranch Head

Jumla
9858031920

lokendra.neupane@salico.com.np

Mr. Min Bahadur Malla
Branch HeadBranch Head

Mugu
9848322453

min.malla@salico.com.np

Mr. Motilal Bohara
Branch HeadBranch Head

Rukum Sub Branch
9851147511

moti.bohara@salico.com.np

Mr. Binod Chalaune
Branch HeadBranch Head

Salyan
9857840271

binod.chalaune@salico.com.np

Ms. Anu Neupane
Branch HeadBranch Head

Surkhet
9858041400

anu.neupane@salico.com.np

Sudurpaschim Province 

Mr. Dharma Raj Badu
Province HeadProvince Head

Dhangadhi 
9858751851

dharmaraj@salico.com.np

Mr. Prakash Bhatta
Branch HeadBranch Head

Attariya
9858426653

prakash.bhatta@salico.com.np

Mr. Prakash Prasad Bhatta
Branch HeadBranch Head
Dadeldhura
9848797585

prakashprasad@salico.com.np

Mr. Hemant Lamichhane
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dhangadi
9858424733

hemant.lamichhane@salico.com.np

Mr. Raju Ghale
Branch HeadBranch Head

Dipayal Sub Branch
9858485566

raju.ghale@salico.com.np

Mr. Dikra Prasad Timilsaina
Branch HeadBranch Head

Lamki Sub Branch
9851117765

dikraprasad@salico.com.np

Mr. Tek Raj Bhatt
Branch HeadBranch Head

Mahendranagar
9858751771

tekraj@salico.com.np

Mr. Kishan B.K.
Branch HeadBranch Head

Tikapur Sub Branch
9848615494

kishan.bk@salico.com.np
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Our Networks

Biratnagar
Province  OfficeProvince  Office

021-518136
biratnagar@salico.com.np

Belbari
BranchBranch

021-434286
belbari@salico.com.np

Bhojpur
Sub BranchSub Branch
029-420771

bhojpur@salico.com.np

Biratnagar 2
BranchBranch

021-578619
biratnagar2@salico.com.np

Birtamode
BranchBranch

023-533437
birtamode@salico.com.np

Damak
BranchBranch

023-585435
damak@salico.com.np

Dhankuta
Extension CounterExtension Counter

9842110617
dharan@salico.com.np

Dharan
BranchBranch

025-570751
dharan@salico.com.np

Illam
BranchBranch

027-521497
illam@salico.com.np

Inaruwa
BranchBranch

025-590067
inaruwa@salico.com.np

Itahari
BranchBranch

025-586794
itahari@salico.com.np

Itahari
Extension CounterExtension Counter

itahari@salico.com.np

Khotang
Sub BranchSub Branch
036-420754

khotang@salico.com.np

Phidim
Sub BranchSub Branch
024-522008

phidim@salico.com.np

Sankhuwasabha
Sub BranchSub Branch
029-561157

sankhuwasabha@salico.com.np

Surunga
BranchBranch

023-590001
surunga@salico.com.np

Udaypur, Gaighat
Sub BranchSub Branch
035-423212

gaighat@salico.com.np

Koshi Province

Birgunj 2
Province OfficeProvince Office

051-531566
birgunj2@salico.com.np

Bardibas
BranchBranch

044-550711
bardibas@salico.com.np

Birgunj
BranchBranch

051-523795
birgunj@salico.com.np

Birgunj 
Extension CounterExtension Counter

9851066919
birgunj@salico.com.np

Chandranighapur
Sub Branch  Sub Branch  
055-540647

chapur@salico.com.np

Janakpur
BranchBranch

041-520788
janakpur@salico.com.np

Janakpur 2
BranchBranch

041-590047
janakpur2@salico.com.np

Kalaiya
BranchBranch

053-590283
kalaiya@salico.com.np

Lahan
Branch Branch 

033-565188
lahan@salico.com.np

Sarlahi
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
  046-530517

sarlahi@salico.com.np 

Simara
Branch Branch 

053-521567
simara@salico.com.np

Madhesh Province
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Head  Office
01-4512367

ho@salico.com.np

Banepa 
BranchBranch

011-664292 
banepa@salico.com.np

Baneshwor 
BranchBranch

01-4787015 
baneshwor@salico.com.np

Bhaktapur
Branch Branch 

01-6610701
bhaktapur@salico.com.np

Bhaktapur 2
Branch Branch  

01-5092209
bhaktapur2@salico.com.np

Bharatpur 
Branch Branch 

056-493530
bharatpur@salico.com.np

Bharatpur 
Extention CounterExtention Counter

bharatpur@salico.com.np

Chabahil
BranchBranch

01-4498060
chabahil@salico.com.np

Chanauli
Sub BranchSub Branch
056-591830

chanauli@salico.com.np

Charikot
Sub BranchSub Branch
049-421598 

charikot@salico.com.np

Dhading
Branch Branch 

010-520043
dhading@salico.com.np

Dhading Galchi 
Sub Branch Sub Branch 

galchi@salico.com.np

Gajuri
Branch Branch 

010-402188 
gajuri@salico.com.np

Gongabu
Branch Branch 

01-4950978
samakhushi@salico.com.np

Gyaneshwor
BranchBranch

01-4511707
gyaneshwor@salico.com.np

Hetauda
Branch Branch 

057-526810
hetauda@salico.com.np

Kalanki
Branch Branch 

01-5234007
kalanki@salico.com.np

Khairahani
Branch Branch 

056-493986
khairahani@salico.com.np

Manthali
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
048-540702

manthali@salico.com.np

Naxal
Branch Branch 

01-4512367
naxal@salico.com.np

Narayangarh
BranchBranch

056-595730
narayangarh@salico.com.np

Newroad
Branch Branch 

01-5713180 
newroad@salico.com.np

Newroad 2 
Branch Branch 

01-5318695
newroad2@salico.com.np

Nuwakot
Branch Branch 

010-561953 
nuwakot@salico.com.np

Patan
Branch Branch 

01-5452961
patan@salico.com.np

Sindhuli
Branch Branch 

sindhuli@salico.com.np

Tandi
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
056-561870 

tadi@salico.com.np

Teku
Branch Branch 

01-4100209
teku@salico.com.np

Thamel
Branch Branch 

01-4533199
thamel@salico.com.np

Thapathali
Branch Branch 

01-5180215
kupondole@salico.com.np

Bagmati Province
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Pokhara
Province  OfficeProvince  Office

061-553211
pokhara2@salico.com.np

Arun Khola
BranchBranch

078-555025
arunkhola@salico.com.np

Baglung
Branch Branch 

068-522709
baglung@salico.com.np

Beni 
Sub BranchSub Branch
069-521373

beni@salico.com.np

Besisahar Lamjung
Sub BranchSub Branch
066-521267 

besisahar@salico.com.np

Damauli
Branch Branch 

065-563676
damauli@salico.com.np

Dulegauda
Branch Branch 

065-414457
dulegauda@salico.com.np

Dumre
Sub Branch  Sub Branch  
065-580386

dumre@salico.com.np

Galyang
BranchBranch

063-461518
galyang@salico.com.np

Gorkha 
Sub Branch  Sub Branch  

064-420876
gorkha@salico.com.np

Kawasoti
Sub BranchSub Branch

078-541136
kawasoti@salico.com.np

Lekhnath
Branch  Branch  

061-561857 
lekhnath@salico.com.np

Pokhara 
Branch Branch 

061-585057
pokhara@salico.com.np

Pokhara, Hari Chowk
Branch Branch 

061-590757
harichowk@salico.com.np

Prithivi Chowk 
Branch Branch 

061-551957
prithivichowk@salico.com.np

Waling - Syangja
Sub Branch   Sub Branch   
063-440692

waling@salico.com.np

Gandaki Province

Butwal 
Province OfficeProvince Office

071-553941
butwal@salico.com.np

Arghakanchi
Sub Branch   Sub Branch   
077-420865

arghakhachi@salico.com.np

Bansgadi 
BranchBranch

084-590524
bansgadhi@salico.com.np

Bardaghat
BranchBranch

078-580486 
bardaghat@salico.com.np

Bhairahawa 2
Branch Branch  

071-526222
bhairahawa2@salico.com.np

Bhairahawa
BranchBranch

071-571342
bhairahawa@salico.com.np

Chandrauta - Kapilvastu
Branch  Branch  

076-540245
chandrauta@salico.com.np

Dang - Ghorahi
Sub BranchSub Branch
082-560195

ghorahi@salico.com.np

Dang - Tulsipur 
BranchBranch    

082-523098
tulsipur@salico.com.np

Gulmi Tamghas
Sub BranchSub Branch

079-520865
gulmi@salico.com.np

Jeetpur
Branch  Branch  

076-550125
jeetpur@salico.com.np

Kohalpur
BranchBranch

081-542056
kohalpur@salico.com.np

Manigram 
Branch Branch 

071-561820
manigram@salico.com.np

Nepalgunj
Branch Branch 

081-530322 
nepalgunj@salico.com.np

Parasi, Nawalparasi
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
078-520150

parasi@salico.com.np

Pyuthan
BranchBranch

9868162562
pyuthan@salico.com.np

Rampur, Palpa
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
075-400484

rampur@salico.com.np

Sunauli
Extention CounterExtention Counter

071-418426
bimal.basnet@salico.com.np

Tansen 
Sub BranchSub Branch
075-521394

tansen@salico.com.np

Lumbini Province
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Surkhet
Province  officeProvince  office

083-524491
surkhet@salico.com.np

Jajarkot
Branch Branch 

089-430336
jajarkot@salico.com.np

Jumla
Branch Branch 

087-520649
jumla@salico.com.np

Mugu  
BranchBranch

9848322453
mugu@salico.com.np

Rukum 
Sub BranchSub Branch
088-530351

rukum@salico.com.np

Salyan
Branch Branch 

088-400094
salyan@salico.com.np

Karnali Province

Dhangadhi
Province  officeProvince  office 

091-410205
dhangadi2@salico.com.np

Attariya
Branch Branch 

091-551007
attariya@salico.com.np

Bajhang
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
092-421078

bajhang@salico.com.np

Dadeldhura  
BranchBranch

096-410317
dadeldhura@salico.com.np

Dhangadi  
BranchBranch 

091-523322
dhangadi@salico.com.np

Dipayal
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
094-412278

dipayal@salico.com.np

Lamki
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
091-540519

lamki@salico.com.np

Mahendranagar
Branch Branch 

099-524392
mahendranagar@salico.com.np

Tikapur
Sub Branch Sub Branch 
091-561432

tikapur@salico.com.np

Sudhurpaschim Province
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